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Our strategic framework

Our purpose |
We connect for a better future

Our aimis to improve one billion lives and halve our environmental impact

Our strategy
A converged communications technology leader, enabling the digital society

Our priorities

To extend our competitive advantage and improve returns by:

Deepening

g g Supported by our scaled platforms and partnership approach
mpmwng [Oy alty and dﬂViﬂg revenue Europe’s leading TV and Leading global M-Pesa Affica’s fargest
growth in all three custormer segments content distribation platform T glatform payment piatforrT

Myvodafone app driving loyalty
and customer engagement

Transformingour

operating model 2
for greater efficiency and agility Digital ‘First’ Radlcaﬁy simpler Leverage Group scale
Improving 0 e
NI/
asset utilisation R=4
with sustained network leadership Capital smart L.eading Gigabit
infrastructure partnerships networks
Au supported by our Sustainable Risk . | People
responsible approach to... business Governance " management and culture

...enabling us to create value for society and shareholders through...

A clear focus on operational
excellence and organic growth
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Chairman’s statement

Evolving our strategy to
address mdustry headwinds

E)unng zhe 13a5t yearwe have experaenced

asignificant fall it our shaze price. Despite goc:i:i .

-perfornancein mostmarkets, wefaced -
incressing mmpetnon in Spainand ltaly, aswell

‘3% pressuresin Saumﬁxfncadunngthesemnd S

half of the year Although we met our financial
: guidance, oL revenue growth slowed during -

- the yearand 5Gspectrurn aucﬁorrmts:wefe
- high; reducmgourfmncsalheadmom and
-contsbuting to dowiward pressure on ourshate
price Adedinein thevalie ofour lisied stake -
ki Vodafone ideawas aﬁthher headwumi

 Reb ’4 ngtheﬂkvidmdtosuppoﬂ
Vodafme‘stransfonnaﬁunand

3
£
P

These sharing agreemerzts also untocfs potential
“tower monetisation options. Nick describes this -
revised stfateqy on pages 121021

On track to comptebe the

Liberty Globat deal in July .
InMay 2018, we anfoLnced the acquisition .

of Liberty Global's assetsin Germany, the Czach .
+t Republic,Hungary and Romaria.This acqutsmon
positians Vodafone as Europes fargest next:
generation network (NG} infrastructure
owner, héleading merged challengertothe
incurmbents in these markets and unlocks

: SynergnemmanNP\!nfoverQ?Sbatim

- We have offered a package of remedies to the
" .| European Cormmission, including a broadband
- “wholesale access agreement with Telefonica

Detsehiland, andmexpecttheacqwsmon
to c:cmplete induy 201, :

Recapitallsiagvodam Keain lndia

“Wemmpietadthe metgerof odafone India
|+ andides Celidar in Algust 2018, creating -
an@ﬂi&a&@phﬁ Vodafone dea. However,

he cormpetitive ervrorment remained |

; icﬂaﬂengmgdw%ngmeyearas industry prices

W sht:osts.!nraspansawehave
ntegratior; efforts, tavgetm;}

On a reported basis our business declined

. duetothe sale of Qatar, a lower benefit from
¢ handset financing in the UK and a nurnber

[T

" efsettiementsinthepriaryear.
¢ “This performarice reflected good revenue

“and profit growth in Germary, UK and Other-

¢ Euroge, offsetby eamings declinesin Spainand
* taly. by Spainwa ook action o comrnercially

L L)

réposition the business giveningreased price.

.3 competitionin thevalue segment, whils
: Initalywe faced a new enfrant it he mobite
" farket. South Africa also stowexdin the second

half impacted by aweak macroeconofnic

Venwonmentmd rewdate rﬁgulancﬂ

neljvenng a better future’ reqmras
regutators to play their part.

. OneofNick's first decisions was toput the
: company's refreshed purpose —"We connect

H

ek

SN

for a better futurg’ — atthe core of aur strategy.
We have comrmitied toimprove one bilion

tves and halve our enwvironmentat impact

by 2025, as we discuss on page 3 opposite,

This ambition to enablethe digital society,
supportinclusion for all and protect our planet
is part of our broader commitment to operating
responsibly, recogrising that over the long-term

© thesuccess of our businessis tnextnce;biy linked

iothesuccessofthe commumnes inwhich
W&operate . .

However, policy makers and regulators also
nesd to play their paf‘(tzyensurlng srormpetitive

. ervronment that provides an adequate

:etumonmesubstanmunvestmemm "
miibeneeded tomest these important ~
Thts:s espeuailyimportant .
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Our purpose

We connect for a better future

We are a communications technology company responsible for connecting
over 650 million people, and organisations of all sizes, to the digital society.

We are optimistic about haw technalogy and connectivity can enhance the
future and improve people’s lives. Through our business, we aim to build a digitat
society that enhances socio-economic progress, embraces everyone and does
not come at the cost of our planet. That is why we have committed to improve
one billion lives and halve our environmental impact by 2025, by taking
congrete action in three areas digital society, inclusion for all and planet.

: : et g
Digital society Inclusion for All Planet
We believe in a connected digital society, We believe that the opportunitiesandprormise . We believe that usgent and sustained action
where data flows at speed, connectingpecple,  of abetter digital future should be accessible is required to address climate change and that
communities and things to the internet ke to aliand are committed to ensuring that the business success should not come at a cost
never before, Gigabit networks, the Intermet more vulnerable are not left behind on the to the environment. Through our commitment
of Things {loT") and mobite financial services journey towards that future. Through our te halve our environmental impact, we witt

enable Incredible innovation and technologies  technology, we wilkwork to bridge the divides help to ensure a sustainable future for all

to be developed to help make our lives easier,
heaithier, smarter and more fulfilling.

— By connecting over 350 million people
to our Gigabit networks by 2025,
citizens will access an ever-growing range
of services in real-time and businesses can
devetop new products and services to meet
the needs of future generations

— Byconnecting over 150million vehicles
tothe loT by 2025, we will create more
efficient, safer and smarter transport

— By connecting over S0 mitlion people
and theirfamnilies to mobile money
services by 2025, we will reduce poverty
and enable access to essential services like
healthcare and education

that exist and help people to contribute equatly
and fully to society.

By connecting an additional S0million
women in emerging marketsto mobile
by 2025, through specially designed
products and services, we wilt help to improve
health and wellbeing, create financiat
inclusicn and increase safety and security,
sowomen can reach their full potentiat

By becoming the world’s best employer
for women by 2025, we will help
thousands of womert to progress their
careers, stimulating lost ecenomic activity
for the benefit of all

By supporting 10 million young people
to access digital skills, leaming and
employment opportunities by 2022,
we will help to upskill the next generation
and support thern to succeedn the

digital ecenormy

Byimproving the lives of 400 million
people through our Foundation
programmes by 2025, we aim to support
the most vulnerable people in society,
enabling free access to healthcare and
educational resources and creating
opportunites for them to improve ther
lives and livelihoods

Our focus on energy efficency, renewable
energy supply and network waste wilt help
L3 to rnitigate the growth of our business and
otr customer’s increasing demand for data.

— Byreducing our greenhouse gas
emissions by 50% by 20257, we will
significantly reduce curimpactonthe
environment, while ensuringwe can
continue to grow profitably

— Bypurchasing 100% of our electricity
from renewable sources by 2025, we will
reduce our reliance on fossil fuels, future-
proof our energy supply and help to create
a heaithier planet for everyone

— Byreusing, reselling or recycting 1002
of our redundant network equipment?,
we will reduce the armount of electronic
waste produced by our business and
will support the move towards amore
circular economy

Nates
1 Agamnsta 2017 baseline
2 Excluding hazardous waste
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Highlights of the year

Statutory figures IFRS 1S bt T 1
Group revenue £m 43,666 46,571 47,631 49810
Operating {loss)/profit £m (951) 4,299 3,725 1,320
{Loss)/profit for the finanaial year £m (7,644) 2788 6,079 5122)
Closing net debt’ £m (27,033) (29631) (29,338) (26,993)
Weighted average number of shares m 27,607 27770 27971 26,692
Total dwidends per share £ 9.00 1507 1477 ~14.48
@ Read more on our financial performance

. 2019 2018 2017 2016
Alternative performance measures? IAS18 IAS 18 IAS 18 IAS 18
Group service revenue £€m 39,220 41,066 42987 44,618
Adjusted EBITDA £m 14,139 14737 14149 14155
Adjusted EBIT £€m 4,474 4827 3970 3,769
Adusted earnings per share € 5.26 11.59 804 687
Free cash flow pre-spectrum £m 5,443 5417 4056 1,271
Free cash flow £m 4,411 4044 3316 (2163)
@ @ Read more on our alternative performance measures

. . 2019 2018 2017 2016
Key financial metrics IAS18 IAS 18 1AS 18 1AS 18
Organic service revenue growth % 034 201 1.9 11
European net operating expenses reduction® £bn 04 03 - -
Adjusted EBITDA margin % . 306 297 284
Organic adjusted EBITDA growth % 30 65° 58 23
Organic adjusted EBIT growth % 9.44 2544 70 {73
Capex intensity % 16.0 157 161 21.2
Net cost of debt % 2.5 25 25 17
Average maturity of debt years 10.5 94 96 75
Adjusted effective taxrate % 24.4% 206 254 266
Leverage (net debt/adjusted EBITDA) ratio 1.9 20 21 19
Operational metrics 2019 2018 2017 2016
European mobile contract customers® millons 63.2 624 617 604
European fixed broadband customers " millors 188 178 134 123
European Consumer converged customers® millions 6.6 5.3 37 30
European mobile contract churn % 15.5 158 15.6 159
European NGN homes 5a§sed lon-net) milions 367 361 361 271
Emerging market mobile customers’ millions 526 410 387 364
Emerging market data users’ millions 243 169 151 141
M-Pesa customers? millions 371 33.0 295 24.0
loT connections millions a5 68 52 37
Group datatraffic exabytes 54 36 2.2 1.4
Average number of emplpygaes thousands 92 92 92 AN
Sustainable business metrics 2019 2018 2017 2016
Women in management and leadership roles® % 3 30 29 28
Estimated additicnal female customersin emerging markets’ millions 6.1 39 94 -
Greenhouse gas ernissions (Scope 1 and 2)° mtonnesCoze 2.00 206 202 204
@ Read more on our sustainable business metrics
Notes
% Pnoryear amounts have been revised 1o exciude €1 8 biton of habilties for peyments due 5 Europe and common funchion Dperaung costs
to holders of equity shares in Kabel Beutschland AG, see page 159 6 Including VodafoneZiggo
2 Alternative performance measures are non-GAAP measures thatare presented to provide 7 Including Vodafone dea in 2018 (Vodafone India In prioryears), Vs and associates
readerswith additional financialinformation that s reqularly reviewed by management 8 Excludesindiainall penods

3 OnanlFRS 15 basis 9 Excludesjont ventures and associates Histonical data has been revised to exclude
4 ExcludingUK handset financing and ane-cff settlements 2018 figures rewvised for Vodafone India and Qatar

comparability purposes
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Strategic update

“The acquisition of Liberty Global’s
assets will complete Viodafone's
strategic transformation into
a converged leader. | believe
that success in the next phase
of Vodafone's transformation
requires a renewed focus on
operational excellence and
more consistent commerciat
performance across the Group.”

Nick Read
Chief Executive

@ (3 resirone

F'nancaal pnontles

"As Group CFO lam focused on
three key objectives for the
business. First, to drive better
returns on capitat in Europe,
Second, to transform owur cost
base by leveraging new digital
technologies. And third, deleveraging
the balance sheetwith the aimto
move to the lower end of our
targeted 2 5%-30xrange in the

next few years.”

Margherita Della Valle
Chief financial Officer

Overview

Driving consistent comrnercial performance

13.8%

usiness

Mobile contract net adds . Fixed service revenue growth

+24.1%
+719K %%
Broadband netadds IoT SiMgrowth

+1.1m

Converged consumer customers
Supporting a record low maobile
contractchum

+2.7m

' Mobile datausers

Accelerating digital transformation

287 vodafone @

European fixed line sales from

digitalchannels New digital only plans launched
mproving customers’ experience Simplifying our custorer offering
at lower cost

12% €0.4bn

Reductioninfrequencyof customercontact  European net opex saving achieved
Improving efficiencyin custormer service by Targeting >£1.2 billion over three years
rolingout chathots and digital applications

Improving asset utilisation Portfollo management

Network sharing agreements * India
Anncuncementsin the UK, taly and Spain—
unlockingindustrial synergies

» — Viedafone [dea merger completed

— Indus Towers merger awaiting approval

AR BRI

_ New Zealand sale announced, £2.1bn

Partnerships announced with:

ARM and AT&T forloT,

and |BM for Cloud

Lowering our capital intensity and unlocking
new potential revenue streams

unitymedia

Acquisition of Liberty Global's assets

In Germany, Czech Republic, Hungary and
Romania expected to complete by July 2019
Targeting €535 million of annual cost and
capex synergies

Accelerated M&A synergy targets
— YodafoneZiggo one vear ahead of plan

- Vodafone ldea two years ahead of plan
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Our business at aglance

What we offer

We offer a range of communication services to both consumers

and businesses in multiple regions.

Our wide range of products and services

Europe
_Consumer -

49%
(o ]
of service revenue

Mobile

We provide a range of mobile services,
enabling customers to call, text and access
data whether at home or travelling abroad
As Europe moves towards SG, our ambition
15 to bulld Europe’s largest 5G network,
which will allow us to continue to co-lead
ineach market.

Fixed broadband, TV and voice

Our fixed line services include broadband,
TV offerings and voice. We offer high-speed
connectivity through our next-generation
network (NGN')

Convergence

Qur cenverged offers, which combine micbile,

fixed and content services, provide simplicity
and better value for customers. They also
increase customer loyalty and lower churn.
We market these converged bundles

as “Gigakombi”in Germany and "Vodafone
One” in Spain and ltaly.

ol
&6y
Converged consumer customers

Other value added services

These include our Consumer IcT proposition
“V by Vodafone™ twhich launched last year),
as well as security and insurance products.

Note
1 Including VodafoneZiggo

Vodafone
. Business .

30%
(o]
of service revenue

We offer mobile, fixed and a suite

of converged communication services

to support the growing needs of our business
custorners who range from small home
offices to large mult-national comparies

Internet of Things (16T

loT connections bring objects to ife

by allowing them to communicate securely
through our network We offer a diverse
range of services including managed loT
connectvty, automotive and iInsurance

services, smart metering and health solutions,

Cloud & Security

Our Cloud & Security portfolio Includes both
public and private cloud services, as well

as cloud-based applications and products for
securing netwerks and devices.

Carrier services

We sell capacity on our global submarine
and terrestrial cable systems. The services
we offer include international voice, IP transit
and messaging.

Emerging
Consumer

1624
(o]
of service revenue

Mobile

We provide a range of mobile services,
enabling customers to call, text and

access data The demand for mobile

data s growingrapidly driven by the lack

of fixed broadband access and by increased
smartphone penetration

M-Pesa

M-Pesa is our African payment platform,
which has moved beyond its origins

as amoney transfer service and now provides
financial services, and business and merchant
payment services

Other

5%
(o)
of service revenue

We rent capacity to mobile virtual network
operators (MYNOs) who use this to provide
mobile services. We also offer a variety

of services to operators outside our footprint
through our partner market agreements,
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Where we operate

We manage our business across two geographic regions —
Europe, and Rest of the World (RoW?)

Operations in 25 countries

We are the nurmber ore or two mobile operator
mmost of our operations andwe are Europe’s
fargest NGN provider.

Europe
Fixed ard mobile in 11 out of 13 markets,

Aibahia‘. Cz;ech Rép»’uibhc.‘Germa hy, Greece, Hungary', Iretand, italy.
Malta, Netherlands (joint venture). Portugal, Romania, Spain, UK.

Rest of the world
4G in all markets, M-Pesa in 8 out of 12 markets

Emerging: Eqypt?, Ghanad Turkey, Vodacom Group (South Africa,
Tanzanie?, Democreatic Republic of Congo®, Mozambique?, Lesotho®,
Other: New Zealand, Australia fomt venture), India® (oint venture),
Kenya? (associate)

¥ Furope :
Notes. W Rest ot the World #
1 Mobleservicesonly. 2 M-Pesa services avalable & Joint Ventures and Assocates
Worldwide service reach
partner markets countries with IP-VPN countries with 4G roaming coverage
Toextend our reach beyond the cornpanies We are among the top five internet Our teading giobal 4G roaming footprint
we own, we have partnership agreements providers globally and one of the largest, serves fwice as rmany destinations as the next
with local cperatorsin 41 countries. operators of submarine cables. best local comnpetitor in most of our markets.

Group service revenues (IAS 18 basis) - Our main markets and joint ventures (IAS 18 basis)

Europe  Restofthe World Mobile Fixed
v ) revenye Fixed revenue  Consumer
7GA 22u/0 Mobile  merket broadband  market convinged Convergence
customers share  customers share  customers  penetration
(0 o2 {rmi g m %

205 336 69 214 1.5 202

w2 213 06 68 0.3 570

" 4B italy 210 31 28 93 10 414
© & Spain 137 74 32 4 23 914
> e
¢ #&8 South Africa 527  463°¢ 003 - - -
£
. Joint ventures
(<5 S
Fa = Vodafone ldea 3341 315 03 - - -
Hpe 5 A g
€05bn - ot
(ncludes partner markets VodafoneZiggo 50 276 33 405 11 319
and commonfunctiens)® -
Notes
4 Common functions ncludes revenue from senices provided centrally
aroffered outside our operating campany footprnt including some Notes
markets where we have a icensed network operation, for exampte offenng 7 Duetothe converged nature of the Sparish market only total communicatians market shares are reported
P-YPN servces N Singapore 8 AsatDecember 2013
5 QOther Europeincluding ebnunations 9 % of consumer broadband customer base thatis converged
6 Other markets including elminations 10 OnaniFRS15bass
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Key trends shaping our industry

We operatein a rapidly
changing industry where
innovation and scale are key

Rising giobal smartphone penetration, ubiquitous superfast internet access, increasingly
converged solutions and remarkable new technologies are rapidly transforming the way that
we live and work, while simultaneousty creating a range of new commerdial, regulatory and
societal challenges. These long-term opportunities and risks are reflected in our strategy.

Growing demand for mobile data,

high speed broadband and converged solutions

Europe Consumer

in turope the demand for mobite data
continues to grow rapidly, Cver the tast
5years, mobile data traffic per userincreased
by 602¢' per annum and growth over the
next three years is expected to remain
strong. The challenge for operators

is how to monetise this strong volume
grawth. Eurapean total mobile service
revenues grew by only 0.2%4" in 2018,

due to substantial unitary price deflation,
driven by technoelogicat improvements,
regulation and a high levet of competition.
The evolution to 5G, with services launching
ir 2019, will aflow operators to significantly
reduce the cost of carrying data on their
network. 5Gwill also enable arange of new
revenue opportunities over the medium term
such as Quality of Service (QoS), e-gaming,
Internet of Things (loT ) services end niche
Fixed Wireless Access (FWA) solutions,

as well as other new business ¢ases.

in fixed, demand for NG high-speed
broadband services over cable or fibre
continues to grow rapidly. Over the next
five years, Analysys Mason estimate
that over 40 miltion households

in Etrope will rnove to NGN servicas
within Vodafone's European footprint.

Rapid technological change

QOverthe last 30 years, mobite and fixed
networks have evolved significantly. in the
1990s, secand generation (2G) mobile
networks prirmarily carried voice calls and
SMS data traffic Ge. texts), Today, mobile
phone users can experience 4G+ download
speeds in excass of 300Mbps (4000 times
faster than 2G) supported by the latest
technological advancernents, such as carrier
aggregation and massive MIMO (multiple
Input and muttiple output) antennae.

. Thé néxt tecﬁnotogical evoiutici% of mobile
- networks willbe to deploy 5G, supparted
" largely by the infrastructure deployed for

This represents a significant window of
opperiunity for operators with access to high
quatity NGN infrastructure. Fixed revenues

in Europe grew by 1.0%' over the last year,
supported by the shift to NGN.

Today, consumers are increasingly taking
converged bundles of mobile, landiine,
broadband and TV services. For the consurner
this provides the benefit of simplicity

one provicer of multiple services—and better
value, For operators this provides higher
custormer loyalty as welt as operationat
effidiencies. This growing demand for
converged services is forecast to continue
across all markets in Europe, albelt the pace
of adoption will vary by market.

Business

Infixed, busnesses are currently transizioning
from traditional Wide Area Networks (WAN?
1o Software Defined Networks (SDN in order
to simplify their gperations, increase their
speed of execution, autornate thelr networks
and save costs, This represents a significant
oppartunity for operatorswhe have the
expertise to take advantage of this.

The Internet of Things is also growing

at & rapid pace, with a vast array of use cases
from sensors used to control industrial
machinery and count stocklevels

to automated self-driving vehicles.

4G, combined withnew 5G radio spectrum
and antennae. Thiswitl eventually enable
downlead speeds in excess of 1Gbps
combined with extrernely tow tatency.

The evolution of fixed netwerks has been

" equallyrapid, with tegacy copper techinology

being supersedad by NGN infrastructure such
as cable and fibre-to-the-home (FTTH).

@ Q See pages 1410 17 of thisreport for
further mgights

Analysys Mason estimate that the number
of IoT connections is expected to grow from
less than 600 million in 2018 to around

2.7 billion by 2023,

The demand for converged services,
simitar to the Consurner segmentis also
growing with operatars bringing together
communication tools for businesses that
work across all fixed and mobile end points.

Emerging Consumer

In emerging markets, mobile datais growing
rapidly, with data traffic increasing

on average by over 100%€ per annum over
the last five years. This trend is expected

to continue, driven by a lack of fixed line
infrastructure and by the rapid adoption

of smartphones. The GSMA estimates that
smartphone penetration will rise from 55%

" to 78% in emerging markets between 2017

and 2025.

~ This growityin smartphone penetration

provides operators with the opportunity
o notonly offer connectivity but also
arange of digital services, such as banking,
10 consurners for the first time,

Noter
1 Source: Analysys Mason.

@ @ Sae page 21 of this repert for further insights

- Braadbaﬁd d@n{oad speeds have e;/o‘tved
" quickly from sub-64Kbpsvia a dialup

modem in the late 1990s to download
speeds of 165ps today: through high

© speed NGN services, Further technological
- advancements, such as DOCSIS 3.1 for cable

and deeper fibre penetration, will detiver even
faster speeds of up to 10Gbps in the future,
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Digital transformation opportunity

The world isundergoing a rapid digital
transformation. New technologies including
smartphones, cloud cornputing, artificial
inteltigence and robotic process automation,
are enabling companies to connectwith
custorners directly, proactively olleling
persenalised solutions, while simplifying
and autormating operational processes and
improving the efficiency of all cormmercial
Landterhnniagical decsions,

Note:
2 GoldmanSachs,

Regulatory intervention

The remit of regulators is extensive, including
wholesale charges betwaen operators,
spectrum allocation, and obligations

in relation to consumer rights Regulators are
also responsible for topics relating to data
protection and cyber security. The decision

fo requlate or not has material consequences.

Within the broad remit of ensuring
sustainably cormnpetitive markets, reguiators
are {asked with striking the nght balance
between short-term consumer wetfare
throtgh measures such as regulated

prices and longer-term consurner wetfare
by mcentivising investment.

Highly competitive markets

0

Digitatisation is a key operational thermne

* for the telecorns industry, which has

a significant proportion of activities that can
be autornated, while also having unrivelled
insightinto custorner usage trends. By using
aevancert digitat technotogies, operators
witl be able to enhonce their custorners’
experience, genarate ncrementat revenue

" opportunities, and reduce costs.

""$he cost cuttirg opportunity atone for

European telecorns has been estimated

" to be as much as €60 billior?.

in 2018 the European Electronic
Communications Code was finalised and will
be transposed into national iaw by the end
of 2020, The Code overhauted the existing
telecomns rutes and sought to tip the balance
towards longer-term consumer welfare
through measures to incentivise theroll-out
andiake-up of NGN high capacity networks.
It also includes a broader set of services inits
remit, including over-the-top communication
services for the first time.

- The European telecornmunicationsindustry

i highly competitive, with many altemative
providers giving custormers 4 wide choice

of suppliers. In each of the countnes in which
we operate, there are typically three or four
mabile network operators (MNOs, such

a5 Vodafore, who own their own network
infrastructure, asweill as several resellers
that “wholesale” netwark services from
MNOs. In addition, there are anincreasing

 number of overthe-top operators that

provide internet-based apps for content
and commurication services,

Changing customer and societal expectations

We believe that technology and connectivity
can help to create a more positive future

for societies around theworld. Every day,

we work to help our custormers, partners and
other stakeholders understand how new
technology can enhance their business and
contribute to Socie-eCoNomIC progress,

However itis mportant o recognise that

the benefits of a connected society need

to be accessible to all and cannot come

at the cost of the future of our planet.

Society expects companies to find ways

to minimise therr impact on the environrment,
while continuing to grow They also expect
organisations to help to bridge the divides that
exist and find ways to address inequalities

Strategic Report

See page 18 of this reportfor further insights

Speed of execution will be key in order
for operators to further differentiate
their services and retain the benefits
from digitalisation.

However, the Code also introduces new
regulabion i retation to internaticnal calls
within the EU. We await the implementation
of the Code at national level.

Cverall, Governments and policy makers

" have recognised that Gigabit networks

will underpin the digital competitiveness

of the entire ecocnomy. We therefore expect
an enabling policy environment to ensure
that investors in networks are able to earn

a reasonabte return on ther nvestments,
ensuring that societies realise ther full
potential for economic growth.

In fixed, there is usually one national
incumbenit {typically the forrner state owned
operaton, who is generally required to offer

" wholesale access to its network at regulated

prices to resedlers, while most markets will also
have one of two cabte or satellite operators.
Irs sorme markets, the uncompetitivewholesale

access terms offered by incumbents and
the slow pace of NGN infrastructure rotlout

has seen the emergence of alternative fibre
builders, who are looking to capitalise on the
growing customer demand for gigabit speeds
by offering attractive wholesale access terms
toresellers.

@ Seepage 36 of ths feportfor fUrther insights

We believe that our technology can give
marginalised communities access to the
transformative power that connectivity
delivers, asit dernocratises access to better
health information, education resources and
financial services for people around the world,
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Our business model

Delivering value for
society and returns
for our shareholders

Our leading scale enables us to sustain our investments in supeyior
Gigabitinfrastructure, delivering an excellent customer experience which
poth benefits society and drives our revenue growth, Together with the
substantial opportunities to transform our business model, this allows us
to grow our cash flows, reinvest and deliver retums for our shareholders.

Differentiated

assets and
leading scale

Sustained g\?g;ﬂg
reinvestment
streams
Delivering
value for society
and returns for
our shareholders

Oriv ‘
riving free Transformation

opportunity

cash flow
generation
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Differentiated assets

and leading scale

- Leading/co-eading mobile networks and
deep spectrumpositions.

- Europé’s 1ar§est'ﬁ>;ed NGN network.

— Unigue global footprint and scale
in'Vodafone Business.

- Platforms;

— turope’s leading TV and content
distribution ptatform

- MyVodafone app driving loyalty and
custormer engagement

— Amarket leading globat [ol ptatform

- M-Pesa Africa’s targest
payment platform.

- Ads;crong brand and the best people.
— Asustainable business focus.

@ @ Read mone onowr peaple and culture
@ @ Read more onour sustainable business

Driving free cash flow generation
Qur clear focus onrevenue growth, cost

savings, and improved asset utiisation
supperts our free cash flow cash generation.

— Free cash flow (FCF) pre-spectrum was
£5.4 billion in 2079 (stable year-on-yean,
despite significant competitive challenges
in Spain and italy.

— After spectrurr; and restructuring o
we generated FCF of €44 bilionin 2019
vs €40 bitlionin 2018,

@ Read more on ourfinancial performance

Growing reventie streams

We have Eurppe’slargest NGN footprint,
providing uswith the oppartunity to gain
substantial market share infixed Une, and the
ability to drive convergence across our
fixed/mobile custorner base. 5G also brings
further epportunities.

We have a unique globat footpnnt to meet

the needs of multi-national corporates. are
achallengerto incumbentsin fixed, can
leverage on our leadership positionin lof, and
are a digital enabler for SoHo/SMEs.

We have significant opportunity

to drive mobile data growth, and expand
M-Pesa to capture digital and financial
services opportunities.

@ @ Read more on Europe Consumer
@ Read move onVodafone Business
@ @ Read rmoreon Emerging Consurner

Sustained reinvestment

€59.5bn

investedt over the past five years,

This comprises of;

= to modernise ourmobile and

:"84::,'5 bn T networks and deploy foed
pe fibre networks.

¥ ~d 10 secure spectrurm primarily

€8.2bn for 4G/5G

spectrum

andlicences

€7.8bn

M&A

prneipally cable company
acquisttions in Europe.

Strategic Report

- Transformation opportunity

© We have anumber of opportunities

to structurally transform our operating model

- andfundamentally reshape our cost base,
. while also improving the overall experienice
- for ourcustorners. We are doing this by:

© — Being Digitat First
— Becoming Radicatly Simpler.

— Leveragingour Group Scale.

We are alsa focused on deliveringimproved
asset utilisation, improving our return

. oncapital by:
- Exploring network sharing opportunities.

— Agreeing ‘capital smart’ strategic
partnerships in fixediine.

— Capturing material synergies from our
announced in-market consolidation deals,

@ o Readmore on transforming eur operating madet

@ Read more on rmproving assetutitisation

- Delivering value for society
. and returns for our shareholders

" Ournew dividend policy will ’éf;able

us to rebuild our financial headroom while
praviding investars with a sustainable,
pragressive dividend, We have also refreshed
our purpose and announced new goals

for 2025.

Dividends per share in 2019

9.00 eurocents

Our new purpose goals
Improve one billion lives
Halve our

environmental
impact
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Chief Executive’s review

A focus on operational
excellence and
organic growth

The acquisition of Liberty Global’s assets

in Gerrany and Central Eastern Eurppe will
complete Vodafone's strategic transforrnation
into a corverged leadsr, owning
Europe’siargest 4G/5G mobile networks,
Europe’s broadest gigabit-capable NGN
network and Africa’s [eading data networks.
We wilt be strongly pasitioried to achieve our
{ongtenmgoals—enabling the digital society,
supporting inclusion for all and protecting

the planet, This purpose-driven approach
underpins our ambition to-drive organic
revenue growth, expand EBIT margins and
increase our cash generation.

1believe that success in this next phase

of Vodafone's fransformation requires -
-arenewed focus on operational excellerice
"ahd more consistent commerciat performance
aCross the Group. When | stepped into the
Chief Executive rale last October, lidentified
three key priorities for the business. i mature
rrarkets we neéd to focus on deepening
engagernent with our existing custorners,
primarily by selling ‘one more product’ = ;
1o grow revenue andiower churm. Wenieed

to accelerate our digital transformation, : -

improving both the customer experience -

and the efficiency of our operations tt&rough

aradically simpler approach. And we need .

to explore ali options to improvethe & 0

utilisation of ourteading network’ .

assets through arenewed emphasts

G partrering. We explore the progressw

roiaking on each of these prioritiesin déts
npages #1021, - ;

The dedision o rebase our dividend in order

+_to support the execution of our strategy and
: rebuild financial headroorn Fas notbeen taken

fightly, However. | am convinced that thisis the
right approach for the Group, and will enhance
our abitity to defiver muchimproved fotal
returns for ourshareholders,

: Apew social contractis
 needed fortheindustry

S A b

eosrenang v e

At the sarne time, | believe anew approach is
reeded by the industry and by governiments
if society is to gain the maximurn benefit from
the ppportunities praserited by the digitat
soriety. These opportunities are reflectedin
the armbitious goals that underpin Vodafone's
plrpose; toimproveone billion lives and halve
our envirenmental impact by 2025,

During the coming year wewillwork to develop
“Vodafones social contract with policy makers,

< politicians and regulatorsbased onthe
-shared principles of duty of care, faimess

and leadership, Through such contracts our
vision is that the industry compits to intensify
its effortstﬂ simnplify and innprove services

s customers, and ensures better network

coverage, wheress i return regulators

ssessmetrapprcach ipthe sector, ensunng

Inour key custorner segments, Eusups
Ceprmurne service revenues declined
by 1392, but grew 2.7%" excluding Spain and

; Haly, supported by our strongmomenturm
! inbroadbsand where we remained
: Europe’s fastest growing operator,

. Vodafone Business grew by 0.3%, with

continued cormpetition in mobile offset

by rnarket share gains in fixed and good
growth inloT and Cloud. | am excited about.

the disruptive opportunity for further fixed
share gains created by new Software Defined
Networking solutions. Emerging Consumer
grewat 742, driven by data senvices and the
ongoing success of our unique mobile financial
services platforn M-Pesa.

investing and partnering to

: delivet leading Gigabit Networks
- Investingin leading network assets s at the

¢ asdctiveradioeg uiprnent (outsac!a major cifiest
* gliowsboth pamesmmdnc&operatmg costs

heartof our stratedy, and we rernain cormmitted
10 providing a differentizted custorner
experience compared 1o value players,
However, in all of our markets at least one
otherteading player shares a similar network
vision. Sharing our passive infrastructure assets,
suchas our towers and fibre backhaut, aswell -

_ -andcapital expendires - without sacrificing
3 quality o5 differeritiation. Mestimportanty, -

; j; by sharingm t}vswaymr mstamétsb&hﬁﬁt
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fadically simpter, Digital ‘First’
commercial propositions

One of our industry's greatest operational
challengesis avast range of legacy products

and pricing plans. Thisiegacy creates signficant

complexity for custormers, and an immense
and costly T infrastructure for us to manage,
which lirnits our cormmercial agility.

Inorderto unlock the fill opporturity

of digitalisation, we need to make our commercial

propositions radically simpler. We have made
agood siartonthisjourney with speed-tiered
unlimited data planslaunched in Spain,

and greatly simplified mobie {a#iffs in Germany.

Additionally, we see an opporturity for growth
in the vears ahead using second brands and
sub-brands such as ho. inltaly, Lowi in Spain

andVOXlin the UK. By offering distinct features

such as speed-timited produicts and online

onbycustomer service, we can offer morevatue
to this segment without degrading our margins. -

Platforms and partnerships —

aunique opportunity for Vodafone

The concept of driving better assetutilisation
does not only apply to cur networks.
Vodafone owns a number of carmmercial
platformsmﬁ'tworici leading scale—

the| mWodaf‘cme app for customer sefvice,
engagement and loyalty; Vodafore TV for ;
access to leading content; aurworid-leading
1o platforrm and M-Pésafor financial services

© inAfrics,Qur scale makes us a partner of choice -
e tn eath of these areas, ur‘!tocktng naw pr}tentiat

revenuestreanms. | am pleased thatwe have
aimedy concluded agreerents with AT&T and
ARM for 10T, and wih 1BM for c:%oud services:
{see page 1 16}

: Creaﬂngthe teadmg canverged
chaliengertn Germanyand CEE

. We are making good progressinsecuring -

- regulatory approvats for our acguisition

af Unityrmediain Gerrnany and the LIPC
assetsinthe Czech Republic. Hungary and
Roriania, endcuently expect the fransaction
o compiete in July Hook forward to weicoming
Unity ang UPC’s employees to Vodafone,

AN
Nick Read
Chief Exgecutive

Strategic Report

Our strategy

A converged communications technology
leader, enabling the digital society

Deepening customer engagement

improving loyalty and driving revenue growthin all
three customer segments

' Vodafone

' Business

Leading fixed challenger

Selling ‘one more Drive mobile data growth
melj uctper cn.#]stomef  Industr: walising loT Grow digital and
) owerng chum . D;gltal enabler to financial ser_yice'sf
Fixed market share gains SoHo/SME
Drwtng corvergence T
56 opportunities

Supported by our scaled platforms and partnershlp approach

teading gtobal
loT platormy

M- PesaAfncasiargest

Europe’sleading TV and
payment platform

content distribution platform

MyVodafone app driving loyalty
and customer engagernent

Transforming our operating model
for greater efficiency and aglity ‘ N

- : o 1, : $
U
Leverage Group scale

Digital ‘First’ Radically simpler
Targeting =£1,2 billion of net operating cost reduction in Europe overthree years

Dehvermg 3 better overal% expenence for our customers

Improving asset utilisation

with sustained network leadership

rd .
7 . —0 :
& g
oY
Capital smart Leading Gigabit
infrastructure partnerships networks

Network sharing opportunities
Strategic partnerships in fixed

Europe's largest NGN and 5G network
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Our strategy

Deepening customer
engagement

Ourgoals
Selling ‘one more product’ per custormer, lowering churn
through convergence

We airn to drive growth i the Europe Consurmer segrnent by developing deeper custorner
relationships, with a strong focus on our existing base.

We irtend to do thisby:

- c;'o;ss-selljﬁg more products e.g. broa;jband, farnily Sivts, TV}

- up~sél|jng new experienbes (such as tiered offers based on quality of service and/or ther
speeds, low latency mobile gaming services, and a wide range of Consumer (0T devices}

Our priorities:

— increase revenue per customer

— significantly lower churn through convergence

We have Europe’s largest NGN
footprint — providing us with
a significant platform for growth

The dermnand for NGN broadband (i.e. via fibre
or cable) in Europeis growing repidly. Over the
next five years, the number of households with
NGN services 15 expected to Increase by more
than 40 rmillion as consumers migrate fromn
legacy DSL to gigabit capable technologies.
This equates to over 120 miltion NGN
households by 2024.

Having created Europe’s largest NGN footprint,
this shift towards NGN represents a significant
window of opportunity for Vodafone to capture
substantial and profitable market share gains.
We are capitalising on this opportunity, adding
715000 broadband customers, including

15 million NGN customers, this year taking

our total European broadband custorner base
to 18.8 million (ncluding VodafoneZiggo).

During 2019, we also continued to expand
our NGN footprint. On a pro forma basis

for the acquisition of Liberty Global’s cable
assets, we now cover 122 milllon marketable
households, an increase of 8 million in the
year. Within this, 54 milion households

are on our fully owned network (on-net)
including VodafoneZiggo in the Netherlands,
and a further 9 million are covered through
strategic partnership agreements where

we have attractive access terms

Notes
1 Onaproformabasis ncluding Liberty Global's assets
2 Including VodafoneZiggo

With the potential to offer superior gigabit-
speedsvia DOCSIS 31 on cable andvia FTTH
to most of these homes in the next few years,
we see significant scope to increase our on-net
broadband custorner penetration, which

15 currently 28%.

Driving convergence
and lowering churn

By gaining scale n fixed, we further deepen our
relationship with customers through upseliing
converged offers and additional services.

Our commercial momentum in cenvergence
has accelerated this year having added

1.1 million customers. In total, we now have

& 6 milion? converged consumer customers
in Europe. Convergence contributed

to arecord low mobile contract churnrate

in Europe of 15.5%. The opportunity to grow
our converged base remains sigruficant with
only 40% of our consumer breadband base

in Europe currently taking both fixed and
mobile products from Viodafone.

5G brings further opportunities

We intend to launch 5G services in-line with
leading local competitors during calendar
2019 and 2020, with an initial focus on dense
urban areas. While the imrnediate benefit from
5G is the ability to significantly lower the cost
per gigabyte on our network, there are also
anumber of potential revenue opportunities
in the Consumer segment.

European marketable homes'  million
ws 100

Totgl
homes

Totmt

{ncl ADSL
and NG}
NGN
wholesale

Strategic
wholesale

network % ofhormes
Strengthening our reach
and economics

Germany and CEE acquisitl;;;ﬂ "
—Constructive discussions wath EC continue

- 300Mbps wholesale cable access agreement
with Tefefdnica Deutschiand

—Ontrack tacornplete in huly
Strateglc partnerships
l ' Open Fiber >3 million homes passed

E Network sharing agreemert with Orange,
expanding homes passed by an additional
1 million, oppotunity 10 co-invest

Gigabit upgrades (DOCSIS3.1)

—Spaincompiete
—Germany 66% of current footprnt
--Metherlands underway

Upselting more products and services

(&) &)

Super Wi-Fi Gigaholiday
26 (Tr
Yo Wi-Fi Alwaysconnected

SecuraNet converged Wanc}entertéinhént

Incremental churn benefit through
convergerice and additional services

European mobile contractchurn

FYis

FY18

FY15 FY17 FY19
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These include Quality of Service (QoS)
differentiation and opportunities for low
latency mobile gaming, with an estimated

157 million”® users forecast by 2025, fixed
wireless access (n select rural/semi-rural
areas}, end a range of potential Consurmner loT
devices and applications that will be supported
by our 'V by VYodafone” global platform.

Europe’s leading TV and content
distribution platform

Post the acquisition of Liberty Global's cable
assets we will have one of Europe’s leading
TV and content platforms with 22 millen
actwe users, Qver time, by having ane fully
integrated, scaled TV and content platform
across our European markets we will become
an attractive partner of cheice for content
providers, whe by agreeing cormmercial terms
at a Group level gain the ability to distribute
their content easily via one platform across
our markets.

Cur content strategy is to be an aggregator
and distributor of content, working closely with
naticnal and international partners, rather than
anowner or creator of unique content which
requires a cifferent skill set and focus. This was
reflectedin our decision earlier this year not

to renew football nghts in Spain, as itwas
uneconcmic to do so and the potential to grow
our football customer base was limited.

MyVodafone app — our platform
for deeper customer engagement

The ‘MyVodafone' app now has 25 million
active users each month. As well as providing
convenient and highly cost effective digital
customer service, the app Isincreasingly
becaming a key distribution platform for
marketing new personalised commercial
offers, loyalty schemes and addibonat services
directly to our custorners, deepening their
engagernent with Vodafone. For example,

In ltaly the Vodafcne "Happy' loyalty

scherne now has over @ million subscribers,
wha receive free offers from commercial
partners every Friday. Participating partners
provide these offers free of charge

to Vodafone, given the opportunity to engage
directly with our customer base

Performance in 2019

Overall, Europe Consurner service revenues
declined by 112, with fixed growth

of 2 62" offset by a mobile decline of 2.4%%,
Excluding Spain and [taly, service revenues
grew by 2.7%°, with fixed growth of 5 226" and
mobile growing by 1.76%.

Notes

3 Global Garning Report 2018, Newzoo Research,
forecasting mabile gaming population in Germany, [taly,
the LK and Spain

4 Excluding UK handset finanaing and one-off settlements

1 4
Through our Gigabit networks we bebieve we can build a digital society that
hetps irmnprove pepple’s lives. We are committed to investing in our network
infrastructure and coverage to detiver a high-quality service that allows

individuals and businesses to connect confidently anywhere and at any tirme.

This year, a report published by the UK Department for Digitat, Culture,
Media and Sport (DCMST) sef out a number of benefits that high-speedinternet
{such as 5G) can have on the economy, These include;

- increased consumer value by enabling innovative apps and
services, particularly those which feature Augmented Reality (AR

and Virtual Reality (VR

- productivity gans, such as faster download trmes and enabling the ability

towork in-transit

— reduced carbon emissions - through supporting the large-scale deployment
of foT technotogies acress sectors (see page 38 for more information).

By connecting over 350 million peopte to our Gigabit networks by 2025
we want to support our custorers, both individuals and businesses, to realise

these benefits,

Strategic Report

5G opportunities

The potential for high speed, high
capacity, low latency services — providing
our customers with a broader and

richer experience

Quality of Service ('G0oS’)

We are investing in the capability 1o provide
differentiated quality of service to differert
customer segments, allowing us to priphitise
critical applications such as medical devices.

By doing so we will be able to guarantee

a rinimumn quality of service that specifically
meetsaur customers needs and untocks potential
monetisation cpportunities.

Consumer loT
We arealready well positiened n Consumer

1ot havinglaunched WV byVodafone n 2017,
Thisleverages onour market leading global laT
platform inVedafone Business Todaywe provide
arange of smart senacesn thehome and anthe go,
erabling our customersto keep track of the things
they care abouL However, we now see an exciting
opportunity with 3G tooffer low latency senices

to customers, as they add a range ofwearabies
andother connected devioes 16 Ihelr ceounts,
Thisisa sizeable long-term market opportunity
where wearé targeting marketsharegains.

Fixed Wireless Access CFWAY)

We believe there 15 8 niche opportunity for FWA
in Europe, principally in areas cutside the reach
of fixed NGN networks. In these areas population
dengity s typically low, supporting aviable
business case. We will belooking to offer targeted
FWA propositions across several of our markets
as 5Gsrolled out,

E-gaming

We see this as a sigrificant area of future growth,
with gamers increasingly wanting fast, ‘real-time’
internet access, to support services such as low
latency mobile multiplayer gaming. Tofurther
strengthen our commitment 1o this growing
segrment, we are a prefmium partner of the ESL,
the world’s largest e-sports company.
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Ourgoals o
Aleading international challenger in fixed, ‘industrialising [s3)

|n 2018, we rebranded our former Enterprise division as “Vodafone Business. in order
1 increase our brand recognition aswe broaden the serviceswe offer.

Our strategy s fo drive growth and deepen our existing mobile customer relationships
by cross-seliing additional services including NGN fixed, 107, and Cloud services.

Our priorities:

— Increase revenue per account and reduce churn

— improving productivity through our sales force transformation initative and the rapid

digitalisation of our operations

We have a unique
global footprint

We believe our unigue global footprint

and extensive partnership relationships
provide us with a competitive advantage

in seluing to multinational custormers.

Today we have owned operations across 25
couniries, and 269 global paints of presence.
These markets are connected by cver 250,000
kilometres of fibre, enabling us 1o have

more control over the end-to-end custormner
experience that we deliver for large corporates
and importantly the securty that goes with

it Today, multinaticnal corporates represent
around 20% of our divisional service revenues
and are managed centrally by our ‘Vodafone
Global Enterprise” team.

A challenger to incumbents in fixed

In fixed, our revenue market share is low

at around 10% across our rmajor European
markets, compared to our mobile market
share of over 30%. We therefore see significant
future opportunities to gain share and disrupt
legacy relationships, particutarly as the Wide
Area Networking { WAN’) market transitions
to Software Defined Networking {SDN".

This provides large enterprise and SME
customers with both greater flexibility and
significant cost savings compared to legacy
products. This enables Vodafone to becormne
increasingly a total commurnications provider.

In January 2019, we signed a strategic Cloud
partnership with BM. Under the terms of the
agreernent, we retain the end custorner
relationship, and our customers will gain
immediate access to all of IBM's leading
mutti-cloud offerings.

This cloud partnerships also allows

us to simplify our operating model, reducing
our exposure to capital-intensive data centres
and instead move to a capital-light variable
cost model

Leveraging our loT
global leadership

We have a market leading global platformin
the rapidly growing loT segment Today we
are a leader in terms of connectivity market
share, with 85 million SIMs on our network.
We expect to continue to take market

share in connectivity, however there is also

a significant opportunity to grow in the
services segment. We are therefore investing
in loT service solutions for specific industry
verticals, expanding beyond our current focus
on automotive dwhich represents 22% of loT
revenuestto digital buildings, healthcare,
logistics, and insurance. This year we grew loT
connectivity service revenue by 14 5%, adding
rmore than 1.4 mitlion SiMs per month.

Digital enabler for SoHo/SMEs

For SoHo/SME customers, which represent
around 50% of dvisional service revenues,
we aim to cross-sell fixed and unified
communications propositions and also
pasition Vodafone as an integrator of value
added digital and loT services.

Performance in 2019

Vodafone Business grew service revenue

by 0.3% This was supported by market share
gains in fixed, loT, and Cloud and security
services, partially offset by ongoing pricing
pressure in mobile

Global footprint

Fvedafene markets FEPartner markets

Strategic Cloud partnership with IBM

Imnproves capability
Fult access to BMs multi-cloud offering

Managed ’ T

sepvices
agreement 3

with1BM

Co-develop
-3 new digital

l . services

Simplification of business model
Reduce exposure 1o capital intensive legacy
datacentras

‘Ourpurposein a_ctioh: L

We estimate that over 30% of the more
than 85 million lot connertionswe operate
directly enable custorners to reduce

their ernissions. Examples include smart
rneters and 10T technologies embedded

in vehicles to optimise route management,
vehicle maintenance and driver behaviour.
This year, we enablect our customers

10 avoid 2.9 tonnes of CO.e for every ong
tonne generated from our operations.

Ratio of GHG emission

savings for customers
to our own GHG footprint
29
2017 2018 2019
Note

Figures include all data carried by our mobile
networks Emissions savings for customers
have been calculsted based on GeSI'sICT
Enablement Methodology
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Qurgoals
Driving data penetration, growing digital and financial services

Wa continue 1o see significant growth potential in Emerging markets. Mobile data services
and usage penetration is still refatively low, and there is the potential to expand M-Pesa,
our African payments platform, beyond just money transfer to capture digital and financial

services ppportunities.
Qur priorities:

~ grow data custemers and mgbile ARPU

— Increase our M-Pesa customer base, supported by new services

Material data growth opportunities

Data growth in Emerging markets has
continued to be strong, growing at 5026

N 2019 However, smartphone penetration

15 still low, and only 3426 of our meobile
custormer base use 4G services. As 4G
smartphone costs continue to fall, drving
ongoing adoption, we airm to grow ARPUL

For example, customers in South Africa
typically spend 222 more when moving from
3G to 4G services.

M-Pesa as a financial
services platform

We also see a significant opportunity to grow
in digrtal and financial services. M-Pesa,

our African payments platferm, has moved
beyond its origins as a money transfer service,
and now provides enterprise payments,
financial services and merchant payrment
services for mobile commerce

society, including robbery and corruption,

Thanks to the development of additional services built on the M-Pesa

Marethan 2 billion people in the world, many of thern women,
stitl have no aceess to banking faailities®. With & rcbile phone and

an M-Pesa account, people on low incomescan send, receive and
store money safely and securely giving them miore control over their
financiat affairs. It also reduces the associated risks of a cash-based

Over £10 billion of payments are processed
over the platform every month, across the

seven Afncan markets where M-Pesa services

are active

We now have 37 milion M-Pesa customers,

and durng 2019 M-Pesa revenue grew by 212
to €750 millon, representing 122 of Emerging

Consumer service revenue In the year.

Performance in 2019

The Emerging Consumer segment grew
service revenue by 7.4%, supported by good
growth in data users of 4%to 77 million and
by price Increases to offset local inflation.
Within this our 4G custorner base grew

by 38%. M-Pesa also maintained good
rmomeantum, with active custormers growing
13%to 37 million, and transaction volumes
up 24% inthe year

offering, such as M-Shwari, M-Pawa and KCB M-Pesa, our custormners
canalso save money through interest-bearing accounts and can
arrange micro-loans to help fund their businesses. In addition, M-Pesa
is widely used to manage business transactions and to pay salaries,
pensions, agricuttural subsidies and government grants.

EREEN Y
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Customer base FY19°
{miliions)
M Vodacam
¥ Salaricom
+4% Yo

+13% oY

" Datausers’ AGeustomers' M-Pesacustomers

Penetratian

ARPU uplift in South Africa

M-Pesa: The largest payment
platform in Africa®

WCustomuersfrm ’ Tnnsact:anspé;;;';aizmibﬁ)

B8
M-Pesa Noi‘ ’ M-Pesa Afrscan PéS;'F’al‘
African card Global)
bank payments
Platform for growth
Consumer Enterprise Financial Mobile
platform  B2B,bank services  commerce
P2P& transfers, Loans, Merchant
Internationat bills, handset n-store
transfers selanes financing,  and online
Insurance
Notes

Includes Turkey, Vodacom, Egyptand Ghana

2 GSMA 2018, McKinsey Financial Services Report, eMarketer
23 Excludinglndia
4 Powernng Potential, BNY Mellon and UN Foundation, 2018
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Qur strategdy
Anew radically Gimpler D‘wgltat‘ﬁrst‘ operating model, leveraging
Group scale

Inan increasingy cﬁgrta’twcﬂd. weseeihe pITergeEnce of new rechnologies including
pig data analylics, artificial inteligence agents and TobotC process autaroation ERERD
530 mpeling opportunity 0 strycturally transform the Group's oparating rnodel and
fundamenta‘uy reshape auf cost base. while also improw’ngthe overail experience for
our custormers.

To riaxinise e penefits 10 vVodafone from these NEW tedwnokogies.speed and ambpition
are oritical. andwe aim o mave faster than inaindusty: We alsoneedto rriahe our pUSINesS
‘radically simpler’ and‘leverage our Group scale by driving standardisaﬁon FCFQSS OUT
operations. inorder o troly fransform our operdting model.

hcross our customer perations. we have
dep\oyedTOBn chatootsin 11 markets.
and pran 1o rollthernoutind eurther fve
arkets dunng Fy20.This contrbuted
10a12% year-on yeal reductionin the
frequency of cusStorrer contactsto ouf call
centresinGA.

aster than our peers,
and we navé acceterated the 1mplementataon
of our‘DngitaL\Jodafor\e' programme frorm five
yearsio three year

in addinon. By deployng RPA‘bots 1IN ou”
shared services centres we reduced over
1600FTE roles this year

This yE&T, We nhave already nereased e
groportion of mobile customers acquired
tprough digiiat channelsto 17%. Infixed, 28%
of custarnes acauisiions are aso NOW gnbine.

ourgoat: to {ead the fndustryin the transition o digital

Digital customet management i Dig’ﬁalopemcns

cWM campa&gnsenabled by pigbats'
Better rarpetng of thehase

e T e AT

Dlgltaichannels ghareof: satesbe :
REGUCE raliance unindlrectcha
MyVadafone PP penamﬁon‘
fenpeave: custesner engagerent .

' cmtbmsmofmmms)* '

Mroving fTomm mostiy RN roraesty digiat
Frequetcy of contacts LFOC

Blending fhe best ofdiggtatanits husan riteracions

ofes: '
1 ir\cludesau&aropeanmarkem 3 Focrequmnghumammawemlon pelyear.
2 Mobi&ecentractamms\uonsand re&enﬂonsinﬁermany.

yigly, UK. Spailt

Digital case study - rolling out
chatbots (T OB Inlaty

fofai (-] ieédl&g émﬁdaL intetligence

ahroadrange of support fom both basic
wmore camplicated queries. helping
us to deliver 2 greal customer experience.

InApril 2018we {aunched TORicnat
initaly, andin

TOB the first pointof contactfor amostall
customer enquines.

gince thenwe Pave spen asignif jcant Siep
change inour performance. A of harch
(119, 66% of customer contackswere

o FYIgwesana 504 reduction in the
trequency of contacts pel CUSIOTE
and Customer Operations oosts reduced
by 19% year-on-yedr
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QOver the last three years, we have halved

the number of tanff plans and reduced the
number of products by around 40% However,
we still have hundreds, and in some cases
thousands of legacy plans Inorder to dnive out
cost and increase commercial agility we now
are taking a mereradical approach

%
g
e

We will move to new simplified pricing
rodels across all of our markets, and will
proactively phase out comptlex legacy tanffs,
Lower complexity will allow both significant
savings N {T costs and greater commercial
aqility We are also introducing a number

of 'digital only’ products, which require

no human interaction, which will lower
COMMISSIons and operating costs N Spain,
we launched our first digital plan Vodafone Bit’
in November 2018.

EELE T
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We see additional opportunities to leverage
the benefit of our Group scale.

We have already achieved significant savings
through scale and standardisation in some
of our operations. For example, centralisation
has reduced the costs of our finance
operations by three quarters and the cost

of our network gperating centres by 40%,
since these activities were centralised.

We now have 21,000 employees in our shared
service centresn india, Egypt, and Eastern
Europe, and have centralised over 0% of our
procurement activities.

Looking ahead, we see further opportunities
from centralising European network

design and engineering functions, aswell

as T operations

These initiatives support our
>€1.2 biltion net opex reduction
target in Europe

Through a combination of these three
intiatives, together with the benefits of our
ongaing ‘Fit for Growth’ programme and zero
based budgeting efforts, we are targeting

to reduce our net operating costs in Eurcpe
{including Cornrmon functions) by at least
£1.2billienin FY21, compared to £ Y18

levels. In the Rest of the World, we expect

to keep operating cost growth below local
inflation levels.

In 2019, we have reduced European net
operating expenses by £04 billion, and we
are on track for at least a further €0. 8 billion
of savings over the next two years.

To date, we have already executed 5026
of the actions required in order to achieve
this cost target.

Group operating costs
€bn

M Curope’ 55 Rast of the World
12
R

5

Targets:
Growing <nflatiorn

»£1.2bn of
net savings

FY18 FY2le

Note 1 Eurspe and commen function opex



Vodafone Group Plc
Annual Report 2012

20

R BN TS N L SR TR
ERE L A LR AN B, i

Improving

asset utilisation

Vodafone enjoys the benefits of market leading assets and infrastructure but we need
to improve the utitisation of atl our assets, so we canimprove our return on capital. We see
several opportunities to generate si ignificant value creation and returns.

Network sharing opportunities

We see a unigue window of opportunity to
initiate or extend our existing mobile network
sharing agreernents as the industry begins
to deploy 5G. By sharing infrastructure, we
will support the ‘digital society’ by improving
network coverage and speeding up the
deployment of 4G and 5G services; protect
the planet by substantially reducing energy
emissions; and matenally improve the
utilisation of our assets, realising significant
cash savings in both operating costs and
capital expenditure. Importantly, by ensuring

thatwe only share networks with partnerswho

share our deterrmination to operate leading

Gigabit networks, we will not comprormise our

differentiation compared to value players

Specifically, across our European markets
we alm to pursue:

— ‘Passive infrastructure shanng, Including
towers and rocftop sites, on a national basis.

- ‘beep passive’ infrastructure sharnng,
including high speed backhaul solutions,
on a regional or nahonal basis.

— ‘Active infrastructure shanng. including
radio equipment, outside major cities.

Reflecting this priority, we have announced
agreerments in recent months inltaly and
Spain. which in aggregate are expecied

to reduce our annual medium term operating
expenses and capital expendrture by around
£200 millon; we also extended our 4G
agreernentin the UK:

— InApril 2019 we signed a new agreermnent
with Orange in Spain to significantly extend
the scope of our existing mobile network
sharing agreement, and to include 5G
services, with an estimated cumulative cash
benefit for Vodafone of at least €600 million
over the next ten years

— InFebruary 2019 we signed an MOU with
Telecom Italia for anew network sharing
agreerment across both 4G and 5G services.

— In January 2016 we signed an MOU with
Telefonicain the UK to extend cur existing
4G agreement to cover 5G services

Capwnng the matenalsynerg:esfmm m-marlmtconsoudauondeals

We have announced a number ofin- market consohdatlon :fansactmns which we expect
to unlock significant synergies, We have a strong track record of delivering o exceeding
targeted cost and capex synergies on prior deals, including Kabel Deutsehland in Germany

ancl ONDIﬂ Sp’amv

- Inthe hietherzands Vodafeneango has alread

detvered halfof the targeted cost and capex
synergies, and now expects to achieve s goal
of £210million of annual run-rate savings

by calendar 2020, one year ahead of it
oﬂgmak plan,

- Intndia,we have made avery fast start
pricapturing tergeted cost and capex savings
following the merger of Vodafone Indiawith
ldea Cellular, and now expect to achiove the
INR 84 billion annuial savmgs run-rate by FY23,
two years ahead of the original plan.

P - Ouramounceda:quxsmonof Luberty

Global'scable assets inGermany and Central
anvd Eastern Europe (CEE) targets expected cost
arid capex savings of £535 million by the fifth full
year post completion, with anNPY of €6 billion
ncluding integraton costs, We will remain
highly focused on capturing these sigeificant
opportunities for valuecreation.

Unlocking tower efficiencies
and monetisation options

Oncethese sharing arrangements are
sufficiently progressed, we will bein a positicn
to consider potential menetisation options
for our towers, We are currently actively
exploring a tower merger in Italy with Inwit,
Telecorn Italia’s isted tower subsichary, as well
as monetisation options in the Netherlands,
Spain and the UK.

For markets where tower monetisation

is etther strategically or financially unattractive,
we are creating an internal “Virtual’ TowerCo,

in which a centralised managernent team

will bring a dedicated focus to drive greater
operating efficency and incremental revenues
from additional tenancies.

Material cost and capex synergies

vodafone Q Zicco

€2.5bn

NPV of cost and capex synergies

0vodafone
INR 84bn

Annual run-rate savings by FY21

unigmedia

<6bn

NPV of cest and capex synergies
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Qur ambition in both Consumer and Busimess
Is underpinnad by cur market leading

or co-leading network position. We intend

to build on ourleadership in 4G to create
Europe’s largest 5G network in the coming
years. We are well posthoned to do this thanks
to Project Spring, where we densified and fully
modernised our network infrastructure.

Co-leading in 5G

Qur strategy for 5G deployrnent willbe one
of co-leadership, matching the pace of other
leaders in each market. Our initial focus will
be on major cities, where today 69% of sites
are 5G ready. This means they are both
single RAN enabled and have a backhaul
capacity of meore than one Gigabit per
second. In February 2019, we were the first
operator in the World to complete a full 5G
tive connection, and we expect to have 5G live
across 50 chies n Europe by the end of FY20
following commercial launches this surmmer

Creating an efficient
Gigabit factory

Demand for mobile data s growing rapidly,
with European data traffic growing by 52%

In 2019, As we evolve to 5G, one of the biggest
opportunities we see in the near term s that

It 1sa much more cost effective technolegy

The cost per gigabyte on a 3G network

15 up to 10 times more efficient than

on 4G, therefore driving unitary cost

down Thus provides us with the ability

to keep network costs stable while still
being able to manage the signficant growth
In data volurmes.

Our purpose in action :

Providing communications requires significant armounts of energy, andwiththe growing
demand for mobile data we are increasingly focused cnenergy efficiency to mitigate the cost

We are also rapidly moving towards a single
cloud-based architecture where our

IT applications and netwerk functions are
virtualised This enables us to become a much
more agile business, operating at a lower

cost base. On average, we see a 30-40% cost
saving each time an IT or network function
1smigrated to the Cloud. Adding incremental
capacity to the network will now take a matter
of hours rather than having to plan weeks

or months in advance,

Delivering Gigabit speeds
on cable

In fixed, we are upgrading our cable
infrastructure to deliver Grgabit speeds.

This 15 being achieved through a combination
of freeing up existing spectrum previously
used by analogue TV, deploying fibre

to thelast mile, and roling out the latest
DOSCIS 31 technology. In Spain, this upgrade
15 fully complete, and in Germany we are two
thirds through the upgrade We have also
commenced our roll-outin the Netherlands

andenvironmentatimpact of this growth.

We have reduced our energy dernand by installing lower-energy cooling and power

oo e e

Strategic Report
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Relative radio cost of delivery
indlexation of umt costs

3G

Delivering Gigabit speeds on cable

DOCSIS30 DOCSIS 3
Maximum 200Mbps
?gfegam |———> 1Gbps
Maxirnum 1Gbps
downstream ]______> 10Gbps

speed

technologies. For exampiz, at our main technology centre in Germany we improved energy
efficency by 8% by upgrading to a state-of-the-art power supply systerm. ACross our network,
we have also cut energy use by decommissioning legacy assets including data storage systems

and servers.

These energy effidency intiatives contribute towards our objective of reducing greenhouse
gas (GHG"Y emissions by 5024 by 2025. Duriry the year, we achieved a 36% reduction

I the armount of GHG ermissions per petabyte (PB) of mobile data carried, to reach an average
of 371 tonnes COeper PB.
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Key performance indicators

Turning our strategic
priorities into tangible

performance indicators

We measure our success by tracking key perforrnance indicators that reflect
our strategic, operational and financial progress and performance. These drive

internal management of the business and our remuneration.

Leading Gigabit networks e éé

Mobite data growth and network quality
Mbps

“The growth of Group data traffic over
our network and proportion of data
sessions delivered at high-definition
(HDrquatity {L.e. exceeds 3 Mbps).

5

W %datagrowih M %dotaseswens >3Mbps -
GPhone and Anckoid only} 2017

Bromrnard 31 Conver e Qonsuey customErs’
rillion

We zirn to rapidly grow our fved 178 . 1838
broadband customer base through :
rnarket share gans, and drive
convergence acrassour fixed and
mobile custorner base. During the
year, we added 719,000 broadband
customers, ncluding 1.5 millisn
NGN customets, and 1.1 million
converget customers.

W Broadbard 1 Convergedeonsumercustomers 2017 2018 2019

Fixed as a percentage of Business service revenue
%

Qur core Europeartmobile business | 32
continued toface ARPU pressure ;
reflecting ongeing price compatition.
Aga result, we are seeking to diversify
into fixed and business related senices
tooffsetthis pressure. Infixed, we see
asignficant opportunity o take
rrarket share as themarket raoves
frorn WAN 10 SDN,

017 o8 2019

Data and 46 date usery!

million

8% of sur Emerging markets’
customers use data services today.

o monetise v network Investment,
we aim to grow the number

of customers using smartphones which
5upporis data usageand the migration
10 45 services, Smartphone customers
grew 13.0%te 71 mitlion customers
arwd 4G penetration grew to 34%.

 Datausers W 4G customers

2019

208 2019

Eurcpean owned NGN coverage and strategic partnerships’
million marketable households passet

Tomeet thegrowingdemand for NGN
fixed and COMVErgRG SErVices we aim

to continually optimise our NGNreach
and penetration. Ona pro forma basis
for Liberty Global's assats, we will cover
122 million rrarketable households.
This comprises of 54 mitlion households
on-net, and 9 million through strategic
partnerships, and afurther 59 million via
wholesale accessterms,

W Crnet M Steastegicparinerships
% |iperly Global assets. 2617 2018 2018

Sobdscordraniohian
%

We are focused on deepening the
customer relationship with our
existing customers, In oIver 10 grow
revenue and lower churn. By growing
our corverged customer base, we are
seeing a clear reduction in mobile
contract churain Europe, which

isnowat atecord low.
e 2019
16T 51 growth
mittion
We are a market leader in the rapidly 85

growinglaternet of Things (10T
segment offering s diverse range
of services to-our Busingss customers 52
including managed loT connectivity,
autcmative and insurance senvices,
smart metenng and health solutions,
This year we grew ol SIMs onour
network by 24.1% to 85 million,

2017 2018 2019

MPags customars
mitlion

M-Pesa our African payments
platformcontinuestoses

rapid adoption with customers
growng by 13%mn the lastyear.
Addmionally our customer
retationship contmues jo deepen
with new services such as business
payments, fingncial services and
mioble commerce,

209

Notes 1 IncludesVodafoneZigge 2 Excluding the mpact of one-off settlerments 3 Excluding the impact of UK handset financing 4 Excluding JVs and associates
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Changes to KPIs this year

Strategic Report

We have updated some of our KPIs to more accurately reflect our strategic priorities

New KPls
— European mobile contract churn

European net operating expenses reduction

!

Emnerging Consumer data and 4G data users

M-Pesa custormers

Financial performance

The Group achieved 1ts financial guidance for the year, as good growth
In mostmarkets offset increased competition in Spain and Italy and
headwinds in South Africa. As a result, we achieved the mid-point of cur
ongnal guidance for 1-5% organic EBITDA growth, growing 3127 *

in the year. This was supported by anet reduction in operating expense
in Europe and common functions of €0.4 billion. We alsc delivered

£5 5 billion of free cash flow pre-spectrum at glidance FX rates

(€5 4 billion on a reported basis)

Organic service revenue growth
%

Growth in revenue demonsirates our
ability 10 grow our custemer base
and/or ARPU, This year we continued
to grow revenye despite tough
competiticn in ltaly and Spain. Overall,
we delivered organic Group service
revenue growth of 03567 in the year,

0.3
2007 2n8 2019
Organic adjusted EBITDA growth
%
Growthin adjusted EBITDA subports
our free cash flowwhich helps fund
investment and shareholder returns
Quradjusted EBITDA grew organically
by 319643 thisyear and conseguently 3428
the Group's adiusted EBITDA margin
mproved by 0.5 percentage palnts
10311%%%,
217 2019
Free cash flow pre-spectrum growth
%
Cashgenerations a key driver 54 55
oftong-term shareholder returns. i 54
On 3 guidance basis, we delivered 41 %ﬁ;;;;%
£5.5 billion of free cash flow pre- s éég%
spectrum inthe year, or £5.4 billion }ggég %;?‘é‘
pre-spectyum on areported basis, | o
.
.
S sl
2017 2018 2019

MW Reported W Gurdance basis

KPls removed
4G customers

Average smartphone data usage per custorner in Eurcpe

Consurner mobile net promgter score

Grow adjusted EBITDA faster than service revenue

Paying for performance

Theincentive plans used to reward the perfarmance of our Directors
and our senior managers, with some local variances, Include measures
linked to our KPIs This year while we performedin Une with our free cash
flow target, our service revenue, EBIT, customer appreciation, and TSR
performance was betow target and therefore the Group’s annual bonus
was lower this year.

@ Read meore on rewards and performance
inthe Remuneration Report

European net operating expenses reduction
£bn

We are targeting a net reduction 0.4
of over £1.2 billion :n operating

costsin Europe{including common

functions) on an absolute organic basis

by FY21, compared to FY18levels.

We expect to achieve this through the
transformationof our operating moded

by being Digital First, Radically simpler,

and Leveraging Group scale. -~

2017 18 2019

Organic adjusted EBIT growth
%

Adjusted EBIT is an important indicator
of profitability and returns for the Group.
Our organic adiusted EBI T grew by 94323
principally driven by adjusted EBITDA
growth and lower D&A.

9.423
2019
Dividends per share
eurocents
The ordinary dividend per share 1507
continues to be a key component
of shareholder return.
Our new dividend policy wil enable - 500
us to rebuild our financial headroom %
while providing investorswith é‘égt
asustananle, progressive dividend. égéé‘
gt
i
2018 2019
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Chief Financial Officer's review
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For rnarkets where tewermonetisamn

is e:tﬁerstfateg;calw o financially unatiractive,
© weake creating an internal virtual “fowerCo
witha dedtca’ced cantral managernent tearn,

inorderto drive improved operating efficency
) * an additional £.3x of deleveraging over the
; nextthreeyears. The new annual dvidend
} pbligation of approsirrately £2.4 bitlion

: represents a 60% payout of pur free cash
: flow after historic average spectrum and

© restructuring costsin FY19,which

. ishighly sustainable,

: Adoption of IFRS 15/16 standards
* During Fr19wa have adopted the IFRS 15
* accountingstandard twhich pnmarity relates
* toreveniue recogaition) for our statutory
* reporiing, but our rmanagerment reporting has
" rernained onanAS 18 basis, reflecting our
-% internat budgeting process. For FY20wawill
" glsoadept IFRS 15 for our managernent
. -reporting. This will have a materiat impact
{-onourreported service revenue grewth,
asitwilteliminate theltarge drag romthe -

andhigher tenancy ratios.

Acceterating deleveraging in order

to increase headroom

We have developed a comprehaensive

programme of deleveraging actions which

allow us toincrease our finangial headroom,

These include

— Driving organic ERBITDA growth, both
through top-line recovery, opex reduction
and synergy reatisation

- Non-core asset sales, such asthe
announced disposal of our New Zealand
business for £21 billion {Z.3x FRITDA and
16, EKOpCF}

AZ W—- i_ower spectm spend"zng,as rioted abwe
T withthe peaak of 5{3 am:izons passmg it F’YZG

— Waﬁqmgcapﬁaismﬁawm :ﬁdudmgmunnely
selling all handset recelvables going -
forwards, ?hssmttakgnme{:ammﬂowg .
an:&ﬁtomerrecewab{esmﬁ‘m}acash

7 outﬂows o hamaetmrm mcreasnng

Vs}amag mtaﬁ.

f; to rebuild headroom

** Deleveraging drivers

2.9x
FY19
30x EBITDA
Leverage
ranige

2 5%

11

FY19pro
forma leverage'

New 3yr
LTIP target

i; wrmmmaq e;abkrtyta oi‘fercusmmers’ : , :
jtmgerpaymentte mseamcseasmglycasﬂy‘g e

’Prioriﬂfisi‘ng deleveraging

0Bx
{old drvidend)

it

New 3yr
dividend

Anew dw:dend policy ’ :
Our ngw dividend policy will also help -

- toincrease financial headroor. The rebased
" dividlend fevel o 9 eurocents from 1507

eurocents per share) wil contribude

adaptmrr cfhandset ﬁnancmg mtﬁe UK,

_ feperting pgfspgcfrvgwemtendto adjustfor
mébene?’;{*tolis DA and £CF arising frofn !?xe

£bn

Lowerend
of 2.5-3.0x
range

¢ 2 Spectrum
Restructuring

Accat sates

Targeting the lower end of our 2.5x-3.0x range in the next few years

Potential MCB
buyback

Strategic Report

S " FY19 guidance detivered & FY20 outlook
© I EY19 we achieved the midpoint of our -

original guidance for 1536 organic EB[TDA

growth and delivered £5.5 billion of FCF pre- -
spectrum at guidance FXrates well ahead
of our original quidance for at least €5.2 billior?

© InfY20weexpect an adiusted EBITDArange
i of £13.8-14.2 bitlior on an organic basis, based

onquidance FX rates andunder IFRS 15/16
acceunting standards. This impliesiow
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Our financial performance

Our financial performance

This section presents our operating performance, providing commentary on
how the revenue and the adjusted EBITDA performance of the Group and its

operating segments have developed over the last year. Following the adoption

of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on 1 April 2018, the
Group's statutory results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are on an IFRS 15

basis, whereas the statutory results for the year ended 31 March 2018 are on an

[AS 18 basis as previously reported, with any comparison between the two bases
of reporting not being rmeaningful. As a result, the discussion of our operating
financial performance is primarily on an IAS 18 basis for all years presented.
See "Alternative performance measures” on page 231 for more information
and reconciliations to the closest respective equivalent GAAP measures.

Group'?
201% 2018 2018 WS 18growth
FRS 15 A5 18 IAS 18 Reparted Organc*
&m £€m €m % %
Revenue 43668 45066 46571 3.2 on
Service revenue 36458 26220 41066 4.5 0
Other revenue 7208 5846 5505
Adusted EBITDA 13918 14,139 14,737 @mn 05
Depreciation and amortisation {9665 9663  (9910)
Adjusted EBIT 4,253 4,474 4,827 (7.3 {2.5)
Share of adjusted results in associates and joint ventures® (348) (291 389
Adjusted operating profit 3,905 4183 5216 (19.8) 0.2
Adjustments for
Impairment loss {3525 -
Restructuring costs {486) (156)
Amortisation of acquired custorner bases and brand intangible assets (583) (974)
Otherincome and expense (262) 213
Operating (loss)/profit (95%) 4,299
Non-operating incorne and expense n 32
Net financing costs {1,655} (389)
Incorne tax (expense)/credit \(‘Lt{%‘) . 879
{Loss)/profit for the financial year from continuing operations ) @09 4,757
Loss for the financial year from discontinued operations (3,535 {1,969
{Loss)/profitforthefinancialyear = . . o STOAR L BTSEL

Notes:
*

Al armotintsin the Our financial performance section marked with an ™ representorganic growth which presents performance on 8 comparable basis, Both in terms ol sngmer and
acquisition activity and rovernents in foreign exchangs rates. Drganic growthis an alternative performarice measure See Alternative performance measures” on page 231 for further

detadsand reconciliations 1o the respective closest equivalent GAAP raeasure,

Revenue and sefvice ravenue inchude the regionat resuits of Eyrope, Rest of the Werld, Qther (which includes the results of partner market activites) and eliminations The 2019 results

reflest sverage Torelgnexehange rates of €166 BB £ LINR 093, £ 1ZAR 1592, €1 THL 6 05 and €1 EGP 20.61.

Service revenue, adiusted EBITDA, adiusted EBIT and adjusted operating profit are slternative performance tneasures Alternative performance measures ane non-GAAP measures that
are presented to provide readers with addional finanegl mformation that is regutarly reviswed by managerment and shoutd riof be viewed inisolation of as an altemative to the equivalzm
GAAP meastres. See Alternative performance eeasures” art page 231 far mare informmation and reconcligtions to the closest respéctive equivalent GAAP measure and “Diefinition

of terms” o page 250 for further details,

Share of adjusted resUlts 1n equity accounied assocates andjoint ventures exchudes amortsation of acquired cistomer bases and brand intangible assets, restructunng costs and other
sty of €0.6 billion which are included n amorisation of acquired Custornerbase ard brand intangible assets. restruciunng costs and other Iheome and expense fespectively,
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Revenue

On an IFRS 15 basis, revenue decreased by €2 G billlon dunng the year
10 £43.7 billion. This reflects a €1 4 bithon decrease due to the adoption
of IFRS 15.

On an l1AS 18 basis, reported revenue decreased by 3.2%¢, reflecting
adverse foreign exchange maovernents and the dispesal of Vodafone
Qatar in the prior penod. On an organic basis, revenue declined by 0.1%6*
Service revenue decreased by 0.9%* as increases in South Afnica, Turkey
and Egypt were offset by declines in ltaly, Spain and the UK

Adjusted EBITDA

On an IFRS 15 basis, adjusted EBITDA decreased by €0.8 billion
to €139 billion, pnmarily reflecting the dectine in reperted revenue.

On an 1AS 18 basis, adjusted EBITDA decreased by €0.6 billion,
adecline of 4124, or & 5%* on an crganic basis. This reflected a 4.7%*
decline N Europe, offset by a 6 3%* impravement in Rest of the World.
Excluding the impact of handset financing and settlements, adjusted
EBITDA increased by 3.1%6* on an organic basis

The adjusted EBITDA margin decreased from 31 626 to 31.4%

on areported basis Excluding the impact of handset finanaing and
settlernents, the adjusted EBITDA margin increased by 0.5 percentage
points to 311%

Adjusted EBIT

Onan IFRS 15 basis, adjusted EBIT decreased by £0.5 billon
to€£4 3 billon

Onan|AS 18 basis, adjusted EBIT decreased by €0 3 bilbon, a decline
of 7.3%, or 2.5%™* on an organic basis The decline was drven by the
lower adjusted EBITDA partially offset by lower depreciation and
amortisaticn expenses

Operating loss

Adjusted EBIT excludes certain Income and expenses that we have
separately identified to allow their effect on the results of the Group

to be assessed The items that are Included in statutory operating (loss)/
profit but are excluded from adjusted EBIT are discussed below

The Group reported an operating loss of €14 billon compared

to an operating profit of £4.3 billicn in the prior year. This reflects the
lower adjusted EBIT, but s primarnily driven by impairment charges

of £3.5 billion (Spain' €2 9 billon, Romania €0 3 billon and Vedafone
Idea £0.3 billon) In addition, there has been an increase In restructuring
costs of £0.3 billion and anincrease in other Income and expense due
to a non-recurring prior year gain on the disposal of Viodafone Qatar.
These factors are partially offset by a decrease in the amortisation

of Intangible assets by €04 billion.

e

Strategic Report
o R
Net financing costs
2009 2018
€n £&m
Investrment income 433 685
Financing costs 2088 (1,074
Netfinancingcosts ~ (1,655) (389)
Analysed s, - o
Net financing costs before interest on
settlement of tax issues (1,043) (749
Interestincormne ansing on settlement of
outstanding taxissues 1 T
(1,042) (738)
Mark to market (ossesy/gans 423) 27
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains' (s 322
Net financing costs (1655 (389)
Note

1 Pnmanly compnses foreign exchange differences reflected in the income statement
inrelation to sterling and US dollar balances

Net financing costs increased by €1.3 bilien, primarily driven

by mark-to-market losses (including hedges of the mandatory
convertible bond) and adverse foreign exchange rate movements.

Net financing costs before interest on settlerment of tax 1ssues includes
increased interest costs as part of the financaing for the Liberty Globat
transaction as well as adverse interest rate movements on borrowings
in foreign operations Excluding these, underlying financing costs
remained stable, reflecting consistent average net debt balances and
weighted average borrowing costs for both peniods.
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2019 28

£m £m

Income tax (expense)/credit: (1,496) 879
Tax on adjustrments tc derve adjusted profit
before tax (206) (188)
Deferred tax following revaluation
of investrents in Luxembourg “sg (330
Luxembeurg deferred tax asset recognised
in the year — (1,603)
Deferred tax on use of Luxermnbourg losses
n the year 320 304
Tax on the Safaricom transaction - 110
Derecegnition of a deferred tax assetin Spain 1166 -
Adjusted income tax expense for T
calculating adjusted taxrate’ . os @28
(Loss)/profit before tax (2,613) 3,878
Adustments to derive adjusted
profit before tax (see earnings per share} 5.14? 530
Aﬂiusted brofit beforetax' '2,536 4,408
Share of adjusted results in associates
and joint ventures 348 {389
Adjusted profit before tax for calculating
adjusted effective taxrate’ 2884 4019
Adjusted effective tax rate’ . 244% 206%
Note

1 See“Alternative performance measures” on page 231 for further details and reconcilliations
to the respective ¢losest equivalent GAAP measure

The Group's adjusted effective tax rate for its controlled businesses for
the year ended 31 March 2019 was 24.4% compared to 20 6% for the
last financial year The higher rate in the current year s pnmarly due
to a change In the mix of the Group's profit, driven by the financing

for the Liberty Global transaction. The tax rate in the prior year also
reflected the consequences of closing tax audits in Germany and
Romania. We expect the Group's adjusted effective tax rate to remain
In the low-rnid twenties range for the mediurm term

The Group's adjusted effective tax rate for both years does not include
the following items: the derecognition of a deferred tax asset n Spain
of £1,166 million (2018: £niL); deferred tax on the use of Luxernbourg
losses of €320 million (2018.£304 million); an increase in the deferred
tax asset of £488 million (2018: £330 million) arising from a revaluation
of Investments based upon the local GAAP financial staternents and
tax returns.

The Group’s adjusted effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March
2018 does not Include the recogrition of a deferred tax asset

of £1,603 million due to higher interest rates; and a tax charge i respect
of capital gains on the transfer of share in Vedafone Kenya Limited to the
Vodacom Group of £110 million.

Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted eamings per share, which excludes impairment losses and

the results of Vodafone India (the latter being included in discontinued
operations), were 5.26 euracents, a decrease of 54 6% year-on-year,

as lower adjusted operating profit. Incorporating the adoption of IFRS 15,
and higher net financing costs more than offset the decrease in adjusted
income tax expense

Basic loss per share were 2905 eurocents, compared to an earmings per
share of 8.78 eurocents for the year ended 31 March 2018.The decrease
is largely due to the non-cash impairment charges of €3 5 biilion,

a£3 4 billion loss on the disposal of Vodafone India recogrised during
the period, higher net financing costs from adverse fareign exchange
rnovernents, mark to market losses and higher gross borrowings and
the derecognition of a deferred tax asset in Spain, all of which have been
excluded from adjusted earmings per share.

2019 2208
£m £m
({Loss)/profit attributable to owners
ofthe parent {8,020) 2,439
Adjustrments:
impairment loss 3525 -
Amortisation of acquired customer base
and brand mtangible assets 583 974
Restructuring costs 486 156
Other Income and expense 262 (213)
Nen-operatingincome and expense 7 32
Investment income and financing costs' 286 419
5149 530
Taxation 792 (1,707}
India® 3535 1969
Non-controlling interests Y] 13
Adjusted profit attributable to owners )
oftheparent’ = L. 145 3218
Millions Milbions
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding—basic L. 27807 27770
eurocents eurocents
Earnings pershare:
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (2905)c B.78¢c
Adustedearningspershare’ - 526c  115%

Notes

1 Includes mark-to-rmarket losses of €0 3 bililon (2018 €0 2 billon gain), primarily on the
option structure thatis hedging the rmandstory convertible bonds, and forelgn exchange
maovements on certain sterling and US dollar balances

2 Primarily retates to the lass on disposat of Vodafaone India and also ncludes the operating
results, financing, tax and other gains and losses of Vodafone India, prior to becoming a joint
venture, recognised during the year.

3 Adjusted profit atiributable to owners of the parent and adjusted earmings per share are
alternative performance measures Alternatve performance measures are non-GAAP
rneasures that are presented to provide readers with additional financial information
that Is regularly reviewed by management and should not be viewed in1selation
oras an alternative to the equivalent GAAP measures See “"Alternative performance
measures” onpage 231 for further detalls
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Europe

Germany ltaly K
IAS 18 basis £m £m &m
Year ended 31 March 2019
Revenue 10,952 5882 6,799
Service revenue 10,306 4979 5775
Other revenue 6546 803 1,024
Adjusted EBITCA 4098 2189 1527
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 1088 921 110}
Adyusted FBITDA margin 4% 312 2%

On an 1AS 18 basis, revenue decreased by 1726 and organic service
revenue decreased by 2.5% Excluding the drag from UK handset
financing and a one-off settlement in Germany, service revenue
decreased by 11%6* (3 -1.1%, Q4 -1.82%) reflecting cornpetitive pressure
In ltaly and Spain offset by good growth in Germany., the UK and

Other Europe.

Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 47%* On an organic basis and excluding
both UK handset financing impacts and favourable settlements

in Gerrmany and the UK during the prior year, adjusted EBITDA declined
by 0.5%* as service revenue declines were offset by a €0.3 billion
reduction in ¢perating expenses.

Adjusted EBIT decreased by 201%, reflecting lower adjusted EBITDA.

Other
aCtv by
Reported {ncluding Foreiga Qrganic™®
change M&A) exchange change
% pps pps %
Europe revenue an (0.2) 01 1.8
Service revenue
Germany 04 01 - 0.5
Italy en 0.2 - 59
UK (5.2) 0.1 - (GN)]
Spain ©8 04 - 64
Other Eurcpe 26 (019)] 01 21
Europe service revenue (2.4) ©n - (2.5}
Adjusted EBITDA
Germany 2.2 02 - 20
Italy 6O 02 - (58
UK (13.3) 0.8 - 4.1
Spain (240 05 - (235
Other Europe 75 01 - 76
Europe adjusted EBITDA a.n - - 4.7
Europe adjusted EBIT (20.1) - - 20.1)
Europe adjusted
operating profit (16.0) - (om 61

Strategic Report

Span  OtherEurppe  Elminations Europe 2018 % change
£m £m £m ; £m £m Reported Qrganmic*
4688 5121 Me) 33326 35888 17 (1.8
4.275 4,743 {110 29988 30713 24 (2.5}
1413 378 )] 3358 3075
1.079 1628 - 10521 11,036 @ (4.7}
(179} 711 - 2431 2.895 160 en
230%  318% 36%  326%
Germany

Service revenue grew 1.5%* (03 1.1%* Q4: 1 0%*) excluding the impact
of a one-off tegal settlement In the prior year, as the benefit of good
commercial momenturn was partially offset by adecline inwholesale
revenues Onthe same basis, retail revenues grew by 2.2%* in the year
{Q3:19%* Q4 19%%

Mobile service revenue grew 0.8%* (03 0.2%6* Q4 0 6% driven

by a higher consumer contract custorner base, which offset revenue
dechines Inwholesale and Business. Excludingwholesale, mobile service
revenues grew 1.6%% (Q3: 1.1%* Q4: 16%6*) Dunng the vear we added
715,000 contract custorers, thanks in part to the success of our
GigaCube proposition In Q4 we added 84,000 contract custorners,
with the slowdown in quarterly momentum manly reflecting lower
raseller activity Contract ARPU declined by 2 724, reflecting an ongoing
rnix-shift to SIM-only, convergence and farmily plans in the Consumer
segment and competitive pressure on contract renewals In the
Business segment.

Fixed service revenue grew 2.6%6* (Q3 2.5%* Q4: 1.6%¥) excluding
the impact of afavouratle legal settlernent in Q4 2017/18.
Excludingwholesale, fixed service revenues grew 3.2%* (Q3: 3 226%,
Q4 2.4%%) We added 264,000 broadband custorners and 751,000
consumer converged customers in the year, bringing our consumer
converged custorner base to 1 S million, representing 20% of our
broadband base Our TV customer base declined by 92,000, primanly
reflecting the loss of low ARPU basic access custorners. During the
year we comnpleted the analogue switch off for TV services on the
cable network, and we are now marketing Gigabit broadband services
to 8 8m homes

Adjusted EBITDA grew by 4.3%* excluding the legat settlement, with

a 09 percentage pointimprovemnent in the adjusted EBITDA margin

to 37.4%. Tris was driven by service revenue growth, our focus on more
profitable direct channels, and effective cost managerment
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ltaly

Service revenue declined 5.9%* (A3; -4.6%* Q4 -6.1%*), reflecting
significant price competition in consumer mobile following the launch
of a new entrant. Excluding the phasing of loyalty programme changes.
service revenue performance was broadly similar in Q3 and Q4.

Mobile service revenue declined 9.426* (Q3: -8.4%*, Q4: -10.2%*)
reflecting a decline in the active customer base compared te the prior
year and competitive pressure on prepaid ARPU, Promotional activity
moderated throughout the year with Q4 mobile market number
portability (MNP volumes 23% lower quarter-on quarter, and 1494
lower year-on year, supporting a further 10 percentage point sequential
improvement N prepaid churn During H2, our active customer base
continued to decline, partially mitigated by the success of our second
brand, Ho ,which ended the year with 1.1 million customers.

Fixed service revenue grew 9.65¢* (Q3: 11.3%6% Q4: 11.0%%).

Cur cornmercial momentum remained strong, as we added 282,000
broadband households in the year and won significant new contracts
in the Business segment. Through our owned NGN footprint and our
rapidly expanding strategic partnership with Cpen Fiber, we now cover
6.5 million households. We also added 214,000 converged Consumer
customers in the year, taking our tatal converged Consumer customer
base to 957,000, represeriting 3424 of our broadband base.

Adjusted EBITDA declined by 5.8%* and the adjusted EBITDA margin
was 0.3 percentage points lower at 37 2%. Lower mobile pricng was
partially offset by tight control of operating expenses, which declined
by 9.9%* year-on-year, together with significantly lower commercial
Costs nHe.

We continue to seek further efficiency opportunities given the bugh
cost to acquire 5G spectrum (£2.4 billion in September 2018) and the
competitive market context In February we signed a Memorandum
of Understanding to explore an active and passive network sharing
agreement with Telecorn ltalia for 4G and 5G services, including

a combination of our tower assets with inwit, the listed company that
owns Telecom ltalia’s towers In Aprilwe announced the conclusion
of union negetiations impacting over 1,100 roles.

UK

Service revenue returned to growthin the year, up 0 6%* (A% 0.95%¢*,
Q4:01%*) excluding the drag from handset financing. Growth was
driven by higher Consurner revenue and supparted by areturn

to growth n Business fixed. Q4 saw strong Consumer mobile and fixed
line growth, balanced by a slowdown in Business dug to the phasing

of project revenues in the prior year. Service revenue declined 51%* (Q3:
-45%% Q4 -5 8%*), including the drag frorn handset financing which
werghed on organic service revenue Dy 5.7 percentage paints.

Mobile service revenue excluding handset financing declined by 0.826*
Q3 -11%6%, Q4: -0 7%, with growth in Consumer offset by lower
Business and MVNOQ revenue. Consumner growth was driven by a hugher
contract customer base and an RPI-linked price increase, partially
offset by the introduction of spend capping. Excluding Talkmehbile,
ourlow-end mobile brand which is being phased out, we added
330,000 contract customers in the year, compared to 106,000 last year.
Consurner contract branded churn improved by 1 2 percentage points
year on year In Q4 to record levels, reflecting our best ever network
satisfaction and consumer NPS scores, supported by the launch of our
VeryMe loyalty program.

Fixad service revenue grew 5.3%* (Q3. 73%* Q4 2.3%*) driven

by continued momentum in Consumer broadband and a return

1o growth in Business. The Q4 sequential trend reflects prior year
phasing of Enterprise project work. We added 193,000 broadband
customers in the year, increasing our total custorner base to 575000C.
Through our partnership with Cityfibre, our fibre-to-the-horme network
15 now live in 5 cities, with a further 7 cities due te go live during FY 20,

Adjusted organic EBITDA excluding handset financing and a one-off
settlement in the prior year grew 11 3%6*, and our adjusted EBITDA
rmargnimproved by 2.3 percentage points. Thisimprovement was
driven by service revenue growth and a 5.3%* reduction in operating
expenses, supported by our digital mitiatives Fixed profitability
continues to improve supported by the closure of legacy networks
and the decormmissicning of IT systems in Business, On areported
basis, adiusted EBITDA decreased by 14.1%* and our reported adjusted
EBITDAmargin decreased by 2.4 percentage points to 22.5%
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Spain

Service revenue declined 6.4%* (Q3:-7.4%% Q4: -8 9%6*) reflecting

the commercial actions we took In May in ordler to improve the
cornpetrtiveness of our offers, aswell as our decision not to renew
unprofitable foctballrights Following this decision, which led

to higher content costs for other operators, promotional discounting
increased IN Q2 and (3 as these rivals sought to win additional football
custormers. Dunng Q4 promoticnal intensity began to moderate and
our commercial trends stabilized, supported by a significant sequential
reductionin contract churn However, service revenue trends continued
to weaken reflecting the fullimpact of promotional discounts cffered
during the pricr quarter.

During the year we lost 115,000 mobile custormers, 123,000 fixed
brecadband custemers and 42000 TV customers However,in Q4

we returned to customer growth in both breadband and TV, adding
1,000 and 36,000 customers respectively. In Apnl 2019 we announced
a new simplified tariff structure which includes speed-differentiated
unbimited data bundles in both mobile-only and convergent offers for
the first time. We also launched our new TV offer based on thematic
packs which allow higher custornization and reflect our strategy to have
the best offers on series and movies,

Adjusted EBITDA declined by 23.5%* and the adjusted EBITDA margin
was 5 5 percentage points lower at 23.0%6* This was principally

dniven by the reduction in ARPU and a lower customer base, as well

as by higher commercial costs following the repositioning of the
business. Content costs declined only modestly duning the year

as we completed our commitrnent to offer the 8-match La Liga football
package, but will fall substantially next year as we exit football entirely,
In order to recover prafitability we are radically smplifying our business
In Spain. In Q4, we agreed a collective dismissal mpacting 1,000 roles
with urions, and we announced a wide-ranging network sharing
agreement with Crange covering both 5Gmobile and FTTH, which

1s expected to unleck at least £600 millon of cumulative cost and capex
savings over the next ten years.

Following challenging current trading and economic conditions,
management has reassessed the expected future business
performance In Spain. Following this reassessment, projected cash
flows are lower and this has led to an impairment charge of £2.9 billion
with respect to the Group's investrnent In Spain for the year ended

31 March 2019.

Strategic Report

Other Europe

Other Europe, which represents 122 of Group service revenue, grew
21%6% (Q3 2.2%*, Q4 1.1%*) with all major markets growing during the
year Adjusted EBITDA grew 7.6%* and the adjusted EBITDA margin grew
1.1 percentage points 1o 31.8%* reflecting contnued strong cost control
and good revenue growth.

Infreland, service revenue grew 1 3%* (Q3; 14%¥, Q4: -11%%)

driven by contract mobile base growth and higher prepaid ARPUs,
Excluding the impact of a one-off benefit in the prior year, service
revenue grew by 0.1%in Q4. In Portugal service revenue grew 2 436*
Q3 29%* Q4: 1.8%*) supported by strong contract customer base
growth and higher fixed ine ARPU The slowdown in Q4 trends reflected
lower fixed growth In Greece, service revenue grew by 2 426* (03 3 0%*,
Q4 3.4%* dnven by ARPU growth in consumer mobile and fixed
custorner base growth.

VodafoneZiggo joint venture

The results of VodafoneZiggo inwhich Vodafone owns a 50% stake)
arereported here under US GAAP which is broadly consistent with
Vodafone's IFRS basis of reporting.

Total revenue declined 0.7% (03 -0.4%, Q4: -1.0%). This reflected
continued price competition in mobile, particularly in the B2B segment,
partially offset by growth in fixed ine, The quarterly revenue trend
weakenedin Q4 prnmarily due to lower equipment sales and heightened
compehtion. 33% of broadband custorners and 7026 of B2C main brand
mebile custorners are now converged, delivering significant NPS and
churn benefits During Q4 we extended convergent benefits to our
second mobile brand ‘hollandsnieuwe’,

Adjusted EBITDA grew by 2 2% during the year supported by strong
growth in the second half of the year (Q3: 6.5%, Q4. 3.426), as dectining
revenues were more than offset by lower operating and direct costs.
We continued to make good progress on integrating the businesses
and now expect to reach our £210 millon cost and capital expenditure
synergy targets by 2020, one year ahead of the original plan.

During the year, Vodafone received €200 million in dividends from
the joint venture, aswell as €49 million ininterest payments and
£100 milbon in principal repayrments on the shareholder loan.
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Rest of the World'

IAS 18 basis “"“‘“2?

Year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue 5660
Service revenue 4660
Other revenue 1.000

Adjusted EBITDA 2155

Adjusted ocperating profit 1637

Adusted EBITDAmargn e S81%

Note'

Other Markets Elrminatons  Restof the world ) 2018 %change
€m £m £€m £€m fepoted 0O-ganic®

4,864 - 10,524 11462 82 61

4083 - 8743 3,501 80 6.1
781 - 1,781 1,961

1,395 - 3,550 3,757 55 63

64 - 170 2453 (307 6.6
7% -, 337%  528%

1 The Group revised its reporting segrents on 1 Dctober 2018 torefiect changesto its organisaticnat structure, The Rest of the World regien {previousty Afes, Mictdle East and Asia Pacific
cornprises Vodacom, Turkey and Otber Markets operating segments, Current and cormparative period results are reported under this new organisaponal structure

On an|AS 18 basis, revenue decreased by 8 294, with organic growth
offset by a 4.9 percentage point impact ansing from the disposal

of Vodafone Qatar at the end of FY18, and a 94 percentage point
drag from foreign exchange movemnents, particularly with regard

to the Turkish Lira. On an organic basis service revenue was up 6 1%*,
supported by custormer base and data revenue growth, as well as the
benefit of price Increases to adjust for local nflation

Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 5 5%, including a 4.2 percentage point
impact from the disposal of Vodafone Qatar and a 7.6 percentage point
drag from foreign exchange movernents. On an organic basis, adjusted
EBITDA grew by 6 3%* reflecting underlying revenue growth and
effective cost control, with operating expenses growing betow tocal
inflation levels,

Adsted EBIT grew by 1.8%, reflecting lower depreciation and
amortisation charges

Other
activity

Reported Gneluding Foreign Crganic*
change MEA) exchange change
% pps pps %
Rest of the World
revenue (8.2) 49 9.4 6.1
Service revenue
Vodacom o1 - 37 38
Other Markets as7 11.4 132 89
Rest of the World
servicerevenue 80) 54 87 &1
Adjusted EBITDA
Vodacom 22 - 41 19
Other Markets 102 114 128 14.0
Rest of the World
adjusted EBITDA (5.5) 4.2 76 6.3
Rest of the World
adjusted EBIT 18 1.3 73 7.8
Rest of the World
adjustedoperatingprofit ~ (30 329 = 44 = 66

Vodacom

Vodacom Group service revenue grew 3.8%* (Q3: 1.5%* Q4 2.5%%)

as growing demand for data and M-Pesa supported accelerating
growth at Vodacom's International operations, which offset macro and
regulatory pressuresin South Africa

In South Africa, service revenue grew by 2.1%* (Q3; -09%* Q4: 0.3%*)
Revenues declined In H2 as customers optimised therr bundle spend
armnid macroeconomic pressures and as national roaming revenues
declined due to a transiion between different partners. Additionally,

in March regulation was introduced affecting out of bundle charges,
rollover ang transfer of data, weighing on data revenue, which grew
39% for the year and by 1.6%in Q4. Despite these pressures our
commercial mormenturn remained robust. In total we added 2.1 million
prepaid customers in the year, taking our total prepaid customer base
to 46.8 million; we also added 475,000 contract customers,

Vodacom's International operations outside of South Africa, which
represent 24.7% of Yodacom Group service revenue, grew by 11.2%*
Q3 11.1%6% Q4: 9.5%"). Accelerating growth in Tanzania and continued
strong growthin Mezambique and DRC supported these trends

The cyclone In Mozambigue durning March has caused significant
darnage to Infrastructure. Aithough a significant portion of the network
in the affected areas has been restored, full recovery could take

up to six months.

Vodacom's adjusted EBITDA grew by 1.9%6* supported by revenue
growth. Adjusted EBITDAmargins declined to 38 1%, reflecting inflation
inked costincreases in South Africa where inflation is running c.4pp
higher than GDP growth Vodacom's strong focus on cost control

is helping to mitigate structural cost pressures

in Septemmber 2018, Vodacom concluded a new BEE (black economic
empowerment) ownership transaction replacing the existing deal from
2008. This new scheme, valued at €1 billion, 1s the biggest everin the
telecommunications industry and makes YeboYethu (Vodacom South
Africa BEE shareholders) Vodacor's third largest shareholder. The deal
secures Vodacom's Level 3 BEE scorecard credentials and effective
black ownership now stands at ¢.20%. These are key factors for both
spectrum allocation and Government/corporate business. As aresult
of this transaction Yodafone Group’s shareholding in Vodacom will
reduce over a period of 10 years from 64.5% to 60.5%, however
Vodacom now owns 100% of its South African business
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Turkey

In Turkey, service revenue grew 14 3%6* (03: 14 8%* Q4 13.1%6%)
supported by strong netadds in consumer contract, increased mobite
data revenue, and fixed line customer base growth. Adjusted EBITDA
grew 19.2%6* and the adjusted EBITDA margin increased by 0.5
percentage points to 23.1% despite significantinflationary pressures
following a 28% devaluation in the Turkish Lira during the year.

Other Markets

Egypt service revenue grew 14 7% (Q3: 14 4%, Q4 11 2%) supported
by growing data usage and a price increase In G3 FY18 The Q4
sequential trend primarily reflects the lapping of this price increase.
Adjusted EBITDA grew 23.196* and the Adjusted EBITDA margin
increased by 3 2 percentage points to 46 2% benefiting from strong
revenue growth and good cost discipline.

Associates and joint ventures

Vodafone Idea

0On 31 August 2018, the Group combined the operations of its
subsidiary, Vodafone India (excluding its 42% stake 1n Indus Towers),
with Idea Cellular Limited (Idea) , to create Vodafone Idea Limited.

a company jointly centrolled by Vodafone and the Aditya Birla Group
(ABG) As a result, the Group ne lenger consolidates its previous interest
In Vedafone india, which 1s presented within discentinued operations,
and now accounts for 1ts 45 222 mterest in Vodafone Idea as a joint
venture using the equity method.

The mobile market in India remained highly competitive during the
year, however headune tanffs have remained broadly stable in recent
quarters Viodafone Idea revenues increased by 0.1%6 quarter-on-
guarter in Q4 (Q3: -2 2%, Q2--71%), benefiting from the introduction

of minmum prepay tanff recharges. EBITDA grew by 3926 quarter-on-
guarter excluding certain positive one-off items and the EBITDA margin
expanded by 3.8 percentage points to 13.5% on the same basis.

The mobile custorner base declined by 53.2 million in Q4, reflecting
the discennection of zero and very low ARPU custormers following the
introduction of minimum tanff recharges.

Vodafone Ideais making rapid progress on capturing merger related
synergies and on mproving 4G coverage and capacity. INR 51 billien

of annual run-rate savings were achieved by Q4 out of the INR 84 billion
run-rate targeted by financial year end 2021, Network integration

is complete n 10 of 22 arcles, and the capacity inthese circles has
increased by around 34% leading to iImproved Net Promater Scores.
24,000 out of 67000 co-located sites have been optimized and 9500
low utilzation sites exited

On 8 May Vodafone |dea successfully completed its INR 250 billion
(€3 2 billion) equity capritalraise Vodafone Group's contribution of INR
10 billion €14 billion) was indirectly funded through a loan secured
againstthe Group’s Indian assets

Strategic Report

Vodafone Hutchison Australia

Vodafone Hutchison Australia service revenue declined by 8.7% {Q3;
-101%, Q4 -11.5%) as increased price compelition was partially offset
by MVNO revenue growth. Adjusted EBITDA grew by 81%. On 8 May
2019 the Austraiian Competition and Consumer Cornrnission (ACCC)
opposed the preposed merger of VHA and TPG We are challenging
the ACCC decision in the Federal Court We remain firmly committed
to the merger, which will create a stronger converged chatlengerin the
Australian telecorns rmarket.

Indus Towers Lirmited (Indus Towers)

Local currency operating revenue declined by 1 8% primarily as a result
of site tenancy exit notices receved during the last two financial

years. The majerity of notices received during the year were related

to the merger between Vodafone India and Idea Cellular. The revenue
decline, coupled with greater power and fuel costs, resultedin a 13 8%
EBITDA decline

Vodafone Group and Vodafone Idea own 42 0% and 11,15% of the
joint venture, respectively. Vodafone Group received dividends
of €141 million from Indus Towers during the year.

The merger of Bharti Infratel and Indus Towers has received approval
from the Competition Commission india, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India as well as the companies’ shareholders and creditors.

The next steps in the regutatory process are approvals from the Natianal
Company Law Tribunal and the Department of Telecommunications
(pertaining to foreign direct Investment) and we expect the transaction
to close in the next few months

Safancom

Safancom service revenue grew by 709% Q3. 6 9%, Q4: 5 8%) supported
by growth in M-PESA and in mobile and fixed data. Adjusted EBITDA
grew 10.6% supportad by strong revenue growth and cest discipline.
During the financial year we received dividends of £154 million

from Safanicomn.
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Financial position and resources

Consolidated statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position 1s set out on page 112
Details on the major movermnents of both our assets and labilities n the
year are set out below:

Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwil and other ntangible assets decreased by £2.3 billion to

£41.0 bilion. The decrease primarily arose as a result of £3.0 billion of
spectrum additions, principally 1 taly, the UK and Spain, €2 2 bibion

of software additions and €0.1 billion of goodwill ansing from the
acquisition of CYTA Hellas n Greece, offset by €3.3 billion of imparrment
charges recarded in respect of the Group’s investments in Spain and
Romania, £3 & billlon of amortisation and €0.4 billien of unfavourable
foreign exchange movernents.

Property. plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment decreased by €0.9 billion tc €27 4 billion,
principally due to €5.0 bilbon of addttions driven by continued
investrment in the Group's networks, offset by €5.9 billion of depreciation
charges and £0.2 billion of unfavourable foreign exchange movements

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets decreased by €1.2 billion to €34.8 billion
mainly due to & €2.3 billion decrease N cther investrnents following
the repayment of US$2.5 billion of loan notes issued by Venzon
Communications Inc and a<£1 4 billion decrease in deferred tax assets
following the derecognition of deferred tax assets in Spain, offset by
a<£1.4 billion Increase in investment In associates and joint ventures
following the formation of the Vedafone Idea joint venture and a

£1.1 billion increase m trade and other receivables.

Current assets

Current assets increased by €16.6 billion to €398 billion which
includes a €2.2 billon increase in trade and other receivables largely
due to the adoptien of IFRS 15, 2 €20 billion increase In cash and cash
equivalents and a €4.2 billion increase in other Investments due to the
issue of bends under the euro medium-term note programme and US
shelf programme with a nominal value equivalent of £4.2 billicn and
£10.2 billion respectively.

Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assets held for sale at 31 March 2019 of €£0.2 billicn relate to the
operations of Indus Towers and Vodafone Hutchison Australia Assets
and liabilities held for sale at 31 March 2018 of £13 8 billion and
£11.0billion respectively, related to our eperations in incha following the
agreement to comnbine with Idea Cellular.

Total equity and liabilities

Total equity

Total equity decreased by €5.2 billion to €63.4 billion largely due to

€4 6 billion of dividends paid to equity shareholders and non-controlling
interests and the total comprehensive expense for the year of

£5.2 billion, offset by €3 8 billon preceeds from the convertble bonds
and a £2.3 billion net increase from the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15.

Non-current liabitiies

Non-current liabilities increased by €15.9 billion to £53.9 billion,
primarily due to a €158 bilkon increase inlong-term barrowngs, due to
the 1ssue of bonds under the euro medium-term note pregramime and
US shelf programme with a nominal value equivalent of £€4.2 billon and
£10.2 billon respectively.

Current Liabilities

Current iabilites decreased by £13.2 billion to €25 5 billion manly due
to a £4.2 billon decrease in short term berrowings. Trade payables at

31 March 2019 were equivalent to 58 days (2018: 48 days) outstanding,
calcutated by reference to the amount owed to suppliers as a proportion
of the amounts invoiced by suppliers during the year. tis cur policy to

agree terms of transactions, including payment terms, with suppliers
and 1t is our normal practice that payrent is made accerdingly.

Share buybacks

On 28 January 2019, Vodafone announced the commencement

of a new rrevocable and non-discretionary share buy-back prograrmme
The sole purpose of the programrne was to reduce the1ssued share
capital of Vodafone and thereby avaid any change in Vodafone's issued
share capital as a result of the maturing of the second tranche of the
mandatory convertible bond {MCBYin February 2018,

In order to satisfy the second tranche of the MCB, 799.1 of miltion shares
were reissued from treasury shares on 25 February 2019 at a conversicn
price of £1.8027. This reflected the conversion price atissue (E2.1730)
adjusted for the pound sterling equivalent of aggregate dividends pad
from August 2016 to February 2019

The share buyback programme started in February 2019 and

13 expected to complete by 20 May 2019. Details of the shares
purchased under the programme, including those purchased under
Irrevocable Instructions, are shown below.

Total nurnber of

shares purchased Maximum

Average price underpubiscly  nurriber of snares

Number paid per share announced  thatmayyetbe

of shares melusve of  share buyback  purchased under

purchased  vansactroncosts programme  the programme

Date of share purchase 000s Pence 000s 000s

February 2019 14,529 13517 14529 784,539

March 2019 305,099 140.56 318628 479440

April 2019 290,570 142 20 610,198 188,870

May 2019 (to date) 116,228 14071 726,426 72642

Total 726426 14104 726426 72642
Dividends '

The Board 1s recommending a dividend per share of 900 eurocents,
representing a 40% decrease over the prior financial year's dividend per
share. This implies a final dividend of 4.16 eurocents compared to 10.23
eurocents in the prior year. The rebasing of the dividend 1s intended

10 support the Graup's strategic goals and to rebuild financial headraom,
helping the Group to reduce debt and delever to the low end of our
targeted 2.5%-3.0x leverage range in the next few years.

Contractual obligations and commitments

Asummary of our principal contractual financial obligations and
commitrments at 31 March 2019 are setout below In addition,
information in retation to our participation in the current German
spectrum licence auction and our cernmitrments arising from the
Group's announcement on 9 May 2018 that 1t had agreed to acquire
Liberty Global's operations in Germany, the Czech Repubhic, Hungary
and Remania (are set cutin note 28 “Commitments”).

Payments dusby Qentod
Contractual obligations and £m
commitments' Totat <lyear  1-3ysars 3-Syears *Syears
Financial Liabilities? 86160 21953 11404 14881 37922
Operating lease
commitments? 10816 2834 2881 1689 3412
Capital commitments™* 3012 1514 1,274 173 5
Purchase commitments® 8460 4091 2616 689 1064
Total ....108,448 30,392 18175 17432 42.449

MNotes

1 Thistable Includes obligations to pay dividends to non-controling sharehclders (see
"Owidends from associates and to non-controlling shareholders™ on page 160) The table
excludes current and deferred tax Liabilrties and obligations under post employment benefit
schemes, details of which are provided in notes & "Taxation” and 25 “Post employment.
benefits” respectively The table also excludes the contractual cbligations of associates and
jamtventures

See note 21 "Caprtal and financial risk management”

See note 28 “Commitments”

Primanty related to spectrurn and networkinfrastructure

Primarly related to device purchase obligations

w g
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Liquidity and capital resources

Our lquidity and working capital may be affected by a material decrease
Hriquiatyenciw 9grap ¢ Y ¢ . of £0.1 billion durning the year This reflected favourable working

In cash flow due to a number of factors as outhned In “Qur risks and
uncertanties” on pages 44 to 51 in addition to the commentary

on the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows betow, further
disclosure inrelation te the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managingits capital, its financial risk managerment objectives, detalls
of its financial nstruments and hedging activities and its exposures

to credit risk and liquidity sk can be found in “Borrowings and capital
reseurces” and “Capital and financial nisk management” in notes 20 and
21 respectively to the consoldated financial staternents.

Cashflows

Areconciliation of cash generated by operations to free cash flow,
anon-GAAP measure used by management, is shown on page 232.
Areconciiation of adjusted EBITDA to the respective closest equivalent
GAAP measure, operating profit, 1s provided in note 2 “Revenue
disaggregation and segmental analysis” to the consclidated finanoal
statements The reconciliation to net debt 15 shown below,

Restated”

22: 20[‘\8
Adjusted EBITDA 13918 14737
Caprtal additions? (7227) (7321
Working capital 188 (584)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 45 4
Cther 147 128
Operating free cash flow® ’ 7,05'1 " 7,001
Taxation 1040y Q010
Dividends received from associates
and investments 498 489
Dividends paid to nen-controling
shareholders in subsidiaries (584) (310
Interest receved and paid {502 (753)
Free cash flow (pre-spectrum)® 5,443 5417
Licence and spectrum payments ®837) (1723)
Restructuning payments (195} (250}
Free cash flow® 4,411 4,044
Acquisitions and disposals 182 1,405
Equity dividends paid (3.920)
Share buybacks* 0,626
Convertible 1ssue® -
Foreign exchange W 622
Other® o ) (818
Net debt increase ’ 3 (293)
Opening net debt 1 (29631 (29338)
Closing net debt _12705%) (29631
Notes

1 Netdebtat 31 March 2018 has beenrevised to exclude £1 8 billon of hiabilities for payments
dueto holders of the equity shares InKabel Deutschland AG under the tarms of a domination
and profit and loss transfer agreement, which are now separately disclosed in the consolidated
statermentoffinancial pesition and are no longer presented withinborowings

2 Capitaladdibionsinclude the purchase of property: plant and equipment and Intangible assets,
other than licence and spectrum

2 Operatingfree cash flow, free cash flow{pre-spectrum) and free cash flow are altemative
performance measures which are non-GAAP measures that are presented to provide readers
with addrional financial nformation that is regularly reviewed by manegement and should not
beviewed inisolation orasan altermnative to the equivalent GAAP measures See "Alternative
performance measures” onpage 231 for reconcibiations to the closest respective equivalent
GAAP measure and “Definition ofterms” on page 250 for further details

4 Sharebuybacksincludes €131 millionof cash outflow from the option structure relating to the

1ssue of the mandatory convertible bond in February 2016 The option structure was ntended

to ensure that the total cash outflow to execute the programmewas breadly equivalent to the
€144 billionraised onissuingthe second tranche

Mandatery converbble bonds of £3.44 billonssuedin March 2019

Othercash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019 include €2,135 mitlion (31 March 2018 €nil}

recenved from the repayment of US $2 5 biluon of ioan notes issued by Vienzon Communications

Inc, 8 €£1,577 million (31 March 2018 €niD capitalinjecian inte Vodafone India and €1,934 million

of debiinrelationtolicences and spectrurm in ltaly and Spain (31 March 2018 €nil

o
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Operating free cash flow
Operating free cash flow was €71 billion, representing an increase

" capital movernents offset by a lower adjusted EBITDA. Worlung capital

movements, include sales of custemer recevables, which increased

< by €249 million (31 March 2018:£44 million Increase) Recelvables are

sold to mitigate the adverse working capital impact from handset sales
to customers, where cash outflows are paid upfront fo suppliers but
inflows are receved from customers over the length of the contract.

Free cash flow (pre-spectrum)

. Free cash flow {pre-spectrum) was £5 4 billion which was broadly stable

year-on-year.

Licence and spectrum payments

Licence and spectrum payments were £0.8 billion, including ltaly

of £0.5 bithon and £0.2 billon in the UK (31 March 2018: Italy; €0.6 bitlion,
UK. £G.3 bilion and Germany. £0.1 bilion). Licence and spectrum
additions, which exclude working capital cash movements andrepresent
licences acquired during the year, were €3 0 billion, including €2.2 bilhon
in Italy, £0 4 billionin the UK and £0 2 bilbon in Spain,

Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions and disposals include €0.3 billion received on completion
of the merger of Vodafone India with Idea Cellular on 31 August 2018

Convertible ssue

Proceeds of £3.8 billon were receved on the1ssuance of £3 44 hillion
of mandatery convertible bonds in March 2019, €3.8 bilhon of which
has been classified as equity after taking into account the cost of future
coupon payments

Foreign exchange

. Aforeign exchange gain of €0.3 billion was recognised on net debt
* asaresult of the translation impact of closing foreign exchange rates,

mainly due to movernents in the Turkish lira and South African Rand
against the euro.

' Netdebt

Closing net debt at 31 March 2019 was £27.0 billon (31 March
2018:£296 billion) and excludes the £3 44 billon mandatory convertible
bondissued in February 2019, which will be settled in equity shares and
£08 billion of shareholder loans recervable from VodafoneZigge.

Closing net debt also continues to include certain bonds which are
reported at an amount €1.6 billion higher than their euro-equivalent cash
redemption value as aresult of hedge accounting under [FRS. In addition,
where bonds areissued in currencies other than euros, the Group

has entered into foreign currency swaps to fix the eurc cash outflows

on redemption. The impact of these swaps Is not reflected in gross debt
and would decrease the euro eguivalent redemption value of the bonds
by €10 billicn.

This year's report contains the Strategic Report on pages 6 to 51,
which includes an analysis of our performance and position,
areview of the business during the year, and outlines the principal
risks and uncertainties we face The Strategic Report was approved
by the Board and signed on its behalf by the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer.

Nick Read Margherita Della Valle
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
14 May 2019 14 May 2019
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Sustainable business

Delivering our Purpose

Our sustainable business strategy is embedded within and helps to drive
Vodafone's purpose —to connect for a better future — and is accompanied

by our commitment to act responsibly and with integrity wherever we operate.

Our sustainable business strategy

We believe that Vodafone has a significant

role to play in contributing to the societies
inwhich we operate. Our sustainable business
strategy articulates our Intention to deliver
sigrificant positive impact in three areas, each
of which has the potential to improve the bves
of our customers and wider society. We have
established long-term targets to drive change
that focuses onwomen's ermpowerrment, youth
skills and jobs, and energy mnovation,

Vodafone's purpose, to connect for a better
future, reinforces our commitment o drive
impact against the most relevant of the

UN’'s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
Through our business, our sustainable business
strategy, programmes and targets, and the
work of the Vodafone Foundation, we will
help to deliver a meaningful contribution
focused on quality education, gender
equality, decent work and econornic growth,
Industry, innovation and infrastructure,

and climate action

Read more about how our networks, products
and services make a difference to societies
and the SDGs in our Sustainable Busingss
Report 2019.

@ Read more at vodafone.com/sbreport2019

Driving positive societal

transformation

Women's empowerment

By empowering womnen and promoting
gender equality, we can enable comimunities,
econormies and businesses —including our

To address the mebile gender gap

of approximately 200 million women, In low
and middle-income countries, we have
established a goal to:

Goal:

To connect an additional 50 million
women living In emerging markets'
to mobile by 2025

We set this goal n 2016 and are bringing
the benefits of mobile to wermnen through

aseries of targeted commercial programmes.

We are also using our mobile technologies
to enhance the quality of wormen's lives
through programmes that:

— support education and skills,
— improve health and wellbeing; and

— enable economic empowerment.

These commercial propositions include
Vodacer's Mumn & Baby initiative in South
Africa, which provides parents and caregivers
with free health information, Vodafone

Idea’s Sakhi safety proposition (see case study
below) and our Business Wormen Connect
prograrmme in Tanzania and Mozambique
—aservice spectfically designed for wornen
who run micro-businesses that enables
thern to save and access useful business
skilis training — are also supparting women
toimprove their lives.

We have made progress towards our goal and
now have an estirnated 1198 million active
female customers, 61 millon more than last
year and 194 millon more since 2016.

Helping women to feel safer in India

In Indlia, there are over a billion rnobile connections and while aimost hatf of the
poputation is fernale, only 59% of them ownt a mobile phone? This year, Vodafone
Idea (our joint venture inindfa) launched a new mobile service for female customers
called Sakhithat includes a spemal set of security and safety features, mciuding

Ermnergency Alerts

Location alerts thatcan be sentto ten pre- regstered contacts inan 2 emergency

Emergency Balance

Ten free minutes of call time that can be used during emergencies, even with

zero credit

Private Number Recharge

Provides a durmmy ten-digit number to ensure the privacy of customerswhen
they recharge at retall outiets, avoiding the need for them 1o have to reveal their
mobile nurnber to an unknown retailer

awn —te prosper Communications techinology Fernale customers using Vedafone Idea prepaid or postpaid services can sign

plays a critical role in helping wemen
to improve their lives and livelhoods,

Qwning even the most bastc mobile phone
enables awoman to communicate, get access
to information, iearn, manage her finances,
set up andrun a business, and even get help

if feeling threatened,

Notes

1 Democratic Republic of Congo. Egypt. Ghana, India,
Kenya, Mozambique, South Africa, Tanzania and Turkey
2019 annual data only includes data frem Vodafone India
up to August 2018, pror to the merger of this business
with Idea Cellular to create Vodafone !dea

2 (GSMAMobile Gender Gap Report. 2019

up to Sakhi for free, anid can use the service on any type of phone, even without
credit or access to mobile internet,

To date, mitlions of women from both rural and urban areas have subscribed
10 Sakhi, giving thern the confidence ta travel further from hore to pursue
educationand empiowent apparwmtaes while feehng saf‘erand less atrisk

8 of harassment

F ey Sy e
#f@ w¥ 1800 123 100
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Pragress towards our

50 million women goal
Estimated number of female customers
inemerging markets

{millions)

198

Baseline:
206

2019

Gender equality in our workplace
Vodafone employs 36,500 wormen directly
and provides employment opportunities

for hundreds of thousands more across

our global supplier base, We believe that
achieving greater gender parity strengthens
our cormpany significantly, gving us a better
understanding of the needs of the women,
men, families and businesses who rely on our
networks and services

Achteving gender equality in the workplace,
at all levels, remains a significant challenge for
most businesses, especially those of a global
nature To address this issue, Vodafone has
along-term ambition to:

Geal;
We aim to be the world's best
employer forwomen by 2025

To help us meet this ambition and recruit,
retain and develop talented women at every
level of our workforce, we have developed
arange of programmes and initiatives,
ncluding cur global materrity policy

and our ReConnectintiative, which help

to tackle some of the main barriers to wormen
progressing their careers in the workplace

We have met our target of reaching 3034

of women in management and leadership
roles across our local markets and professional
functions, ahead of our deadline of 2020.
Asof 31 March 2019 women held 31% of our
management and leadership roles and

we have now set a revised target for wormen
to hold 40% of management and leadership
roles by 2030. In addition, as of 31 March
2019, 422 of the Directors of the Vodafone
Group Plc Board were wormen

Youth skills and jobs

In many of the countnes where we operate,
youth unemployment remains at very high
levels: 532610 South Africa, 4024610 Greece;
34%1n Spain and 32%6 1n Italy’ Togetherwith
a growing digital skills gap, this creates

a significant social and econormic challenge
Working together, governments, educators
and companies need to find ways to address
future workplace needs and enhance the skills
of people entening the workforce, to enable
them to be better equipped to contribute

to aprosperous and inclusive digital society,

Vodafone's programme, “What will you

be?" has been designed to help respond

to the digital skilts gap. This programme
focuses on deepening younger

people’s understanding of therr potential

to contribute to the digital economy and
includes a commitment to provide a greater
number of digital workplace experiences

at Vodafone

By 2022, we wll.

Goals:

Support ten million young people
to access digital skills, learning and
employment opportunities

Provide 100,000 opportunities for
young people to receive a digital
learning experience at Vodafone

in 2018 we launched a free smartphone-
based service called, Future Jobs Finder,
designed specifically to inspire and help
young people to understand their strengths
and skills in a digitat world, access relevant
training and find local job opportunities in the
digital economy.

Since launch, nearly 500,000 unique users
have completed the tcol, introducing each

of them to the top five jobs which match their
indmdual skilis and interests.

@ You can experience Yodafone's Future Jobs
Finder at vodafone com/whatwillycube
Lastyear we increased the opportunities

we provide to young peopte to expenence
work at Vodafone significantly. This year we
have provided over 54,500 digital workplace
experiences though a range of programmes
ncluding apprenticeships, intern and graduate
schemes, and coding programmes See case
study abgve, Read mare about our progress
againstourtarget onpage 42.

Note
1 QECD.2018

Strategic Report

n 2016, the Vodafone Turkey Foundation
launched its Coding Tomorrow project
with the aim of tackling the digital divide.
It provides children aged 7-14 with free
training in coding and robstics, along with
ather essential skills valuable for future
employrment in the digital economy:.

The project focuses on helping children
gain new digital skills and becorne

actve producers of technotogy rather
than just being passive consumers of it
I addition to building coding capabilities,
participants also develop skills such

as problem sobving, teamwork, creativity
and algorithmic thinking.

To expand the reach of the project to more
remate and rural areas, the Vodafone Turkey
Foundation delivers sorme of the training
using a specially customised truck, which
travetied over 6:000km i1 2078, Since launch,
more than 43,400 chitdren across 60 cities
have participated in the project, including
more than 30.000 inthe fast 12 months.

Vodafone Foundation

!
% .

Throughits “Connecting for Good”
strategy, Yodafone Foundation designs and
implernents programmes around the worid
that combine Vodafone's charitabie giving
and technology to deliver public benefit
andimprove people's ives i areas including
digitat heatth, digital learning, with a focus
ondriving gender equality, and disaster
response, Global and local programmes
arerun in partnership with charitable
organisations and NGOs. The total amount
donated t¢ Vodafone Foundationsin 2019
was over £50 millon.
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Our environmental impact

Energy innovation

There s clear evidence that man-made
greenhouse gases (GHG) are having a direct
negative impact on the climate. We support
the view that urgent action 1s needed

to address climate change and we have
introduced two targets to reduce ourimpact.
By 2025, we will:

Goals:
Reduce ourgreenhouse gas
emissions by 50%

Purchase 100% of the electricity
we use from renewable sources

These are ambitious targets for our business,
with ne simple global solution available,
particularly given the distributed nature of our
network and predicted data growth. However,

in the last year we have made progress to ensure
thatwe meet these targets in a credible way

and they are now beingintegrated nto future
business plans at a local country level.

This year our total GHG ernissions decreased
by 3% to 200 milion tonnes of COse
(carbon dioxide equivalent), predominantly
due to a reduction in the carbon emissions
associated with purchased electricity.

We continued to mprove our overall energy
efficiency profile during the year and

Sou rcing renewa ble electricity

achieved a 36% reductionin the amount

of GHG emrssions per petabyte (PB) of mobile
data carned, to reach an average of 371 tonnes
CO.e per PB (2018 577).

Wewill meet our targets through
acombinaticn of further investment in energy
efficiency initiatives across our networks,
particutarly in power supply and cooling,

(read more on page 21) and moving towards
purchasing 100% of our electncity from
renewable sources. During the year 15% of our
electriaty used was frem renewable sources

To support our energy reduction ambitions,
we have established an employee
engagemeant programme, “#RedlovesGreen’
This programme raises awareness of the
individual actions that employees can take
to reduce our business and their individual
energy use and encourages changes

in behaviour that collectively could have
asignificant impact Since launching the
programme in June 2018, over 5,000
employees engage regularly on this topic

In addition to reducing our drect GHG
emissicns, we also work to help our custorners
minimise their energy needs, particuiarly
through the development of loT services

that use network inteligence te optimise
performance and minimise energy use

This year we helped our customers to save

an estimated 2.9 tonnes of CO.e for every
tonne we generated through our own activities
(read more on page 16).

To meet our GHG targets we wsll be movmg to purchase mcreasmg
amounts of renewable electricity and further develop on-site
renewable energy generation capability, when itis commercially
and technically feasible to do so.

On-site renewabie electricity is primarily generated through
installing solar photovoltaic systemns at base station sites and
technology centres. However, the number of sites where this

is possibte is often limited by space or ownership constraints.
inVodacom Lesotho hewever, 23% of our base station sites are
powered by or- slte so{ar panels

This year, we 1aunched a tendef for the construction and operation
oftwo mdustrial scale'solar parksi it Egypt. The two solar C Brrays are
ptanned to corvie onliné before the start of 2025 arid wil aim to meet
asubstantial g:roparﬁor: of Vcdafone Egypt's electricity demands;

Greenhouse gas ('GHG") emissions
million tonnes of COse

W Scope Temisaons lover whichwe have direct control)
WM Scope? emussions from purchased electricity)

2.00

202 206
o

2017 018 "2019

Note;

Calculated usmiglocal market actualor estimated data
sources from nvoices. purchasing requisitions, dect
data measurernent and estimations Carbon emissions
cakeulated in kne with GHG Protocot standards,

Scope 2 emissions are reported using the market-based
methodology: For full methodalogy see our Sustainable
Business Repart 2019

GHG emissions per
petabyte of mobile data
carried by our networks
tonnes of CO.e

926

377

3

2017 2015 2019

Percentage of purchased electricity
from renewable sources

sa

. 208
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Operating responsibly

We are committed to ensuring that our
business operates ethically, lawfully and with
ntegrity in all our markets and see this as
cntical to our long-term success As part of
this, our transparency programme has been
designed to provide detailed information

on our policies, principles, approach and
performance n four main areas, each the focus
of ntense public debate The programmeis
alse supported by a number of other annual
statutery and material non-finanoial disclosures.

Taxation and total economic contribution
As amajor investor, taxpayer and employer,
we make a significant contribution to the
economies of all the countries inwhich

we operate. Qur tax report sets out our total
contribution to public finances on a cash-pard
basis The information we share ams tc help
our stakeholders understand our approach,
policies and principles. This year we also share
our views on key topics of relevance, including
the taxation of the digital economy. Cur report
also includes our OECD BEPS country-by-
country disclosure, as submitted to HMRC,
making us the first organisation to publish

this infermation.

@ Read more at vodafone com/tax

Supply chain integrity and safety
Qurbusinesses rely on a complex and
multitayer global supply chaln and we spend
mere than €22 billion a year with more than
10,800 direct suppliers arcund the world,

to meet our custorners needs. We recognise
there are many different labour nights,

safety and environmental risks inherent
within our supply chain and have develcped
and implemented policies and processes

to extend our human nghts comrmitments
into qur supply chain, as specafied N our Code
of Canduct.

We work with our suppliers, partners and peers
te drive responsible and ethical behaviour and
high standards threughout our supply chain,
and do our utmost to keep everyone working
In our operatiens safe from harm.

Qur Code of Ethical Purchasing sets out

the standards we expect gur suppliers

o meet on health and safety, labour rights
{(ncluding child or forced labour), ethics

and environmental protection. In addition,
our traning and audit programmes help
tomprove therr practice and approach both
drectly and further down the supply chain,
We expect our suppliers to continuously
mcnitor their cormpliance with the standards
setoutin cur mandatory Code of Ethical
Purchasing and promptly rectify any failures
to do so We also require them to report
serious breaches to Vodafone immediately,
in order for us to understand what happened
andensure they take corrective action.

Our established policies, governance and
due diligence processes help us tc ensure
we avord, reduce and mitigate these risks.

Mobiles, masts and health

The health and safety of our customers and
the wider pubiic 1s a priority for Vodafone.
While our mobile dewvices and masts

cperate well within the guidelines set by the
International Cornrmissian on Non-lonizing
Radiation Protection (ICNIRP?). we reccgnise
thatin a number of countries there s still some
public concern regarding the electromagnetic
frequency CEMF Y ernissions frorn mokile

4y
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devices and base stations, We endeavour
to address these concerns by providing
up to date, open, transparent Information
onour website and by engaging with
local communities,

The frequencies proposed for SG are coverad
by existing international and national exposure
guidelines and regulations for radio-frequency
electromagnetic fields. These international
guidelnes are based on extensive

reviews of published scientific research,

and apply in the same way to 5G as they

doto existing 2G, 3G and 4G technologies

and other radio-frequencies such as radio

and TV transmuissions

@ Read more at vodafone.com/mmh

Human rights

We recognise our responsibility to respect the
human rights of every individual who works
for us, erither as an employee or through our
supply chain, and of the communities close
to our operations, We acknowledge our
responsibility to respect human rights as set
cutinthe International Bill of Human Rights
and the eight fundamental conventions
onwhich the United Nations Guiding Principles
on Business and Human Rights are based,
Thatrespect 1s embedded in our Code

of Conduct which sets the expectations and
respensibilities of everyone who warks for

or with us.

Ensuring human rights compliance in our supply chain

We monitor cornpliance with our Code of Ethical Purchasing in a number

of ways, ranging from ensuring our suppliers complete our ethical, labour and
environmental risk questionnaire, 1o detailed evaluations and on-site aydits.
We conduct our own audits for specific suppliers thatwe have identified

as high risk and that are not covered by the shared assessments we carry-out
with Joint Audit Cooperation {JAC. This year we conducted six such on-

site reviews.

We work with JAC, & supply chain initiative created specifically for the
telecormmunications industry, to conduct and share audits with whom

we share many suppliers. Between January and December 2018, there were
;79 shared on-site audits, ofwhich 63 were within Vodafone's supply chain.

. Aspart oftha JAC inftiative, this year Vodafone worked with three other
operators to launch a Supplier Academyto build supplier capability.

‘the Acaderny focuses on developing training to help suppliers assess and
improve the social, ethical and ervironmental performance issues that may
arise within thelr own supply chains.

Following aweek of ¢lassroom traming delivered by an internationaliy
B recognised audit and verification company, five participating suppliers
SR wore on-boarded into the Academy. They were then given an opportunity

R o gain practical experience of performing an audit under the supervision
of an independent third party auditor. Once completed, suppliers were then
able to complete 25 audits of their own, or of their suppliers, facilies and
shared the resulis with Vodafone.



VodafoneGroup Pie
Anfiual Report 2619

40

GNtassessment

CLOBAL
NETWORK

NP~ s Ve

In 2077 we joined the Global Network
Inttiative (GNID as 4 Board member:

The GNlis rmulti-stakeholder forum
Crested to address the complex challenge
afprotecting digital rights globally:
Jeiningthe G strengthened ang
broadened oyr commitment to digital
rights and followed our founding role mythe
Telecommurications Industry Dialogue

on Freedorn of Expression and Privacy:

The GNY brings together information and
communications technologycompanies,
Gvil sodiety groups Gncluding human rights
and media frseciom groups} acadermics
andinvestorswith a shared cormmitrent

W promote ang advance freedom of
exprassion and Privacy woridwide As part

of our mémbership ofthe GN! we must
corenit to implement the GNi Principles,
putting concrete Mmeasures inplace to
Protect and advance freedomn of expression
andtheright 1o pPrvacy ALGMNI cormpanies
uridergo an Independent assessment of their
implementation of the Principles every two
Years, 1o demonstrate their effortsin practice,

We started breparations for aur first
independent assassreant mAugust 2018
by setting up a tearn of senior levet experts
frorn across the business and across our
Operating markets to participate inthe
requiredinterviews, evidence coliection
andreport writing, We continued this work
until the March 2019 Board Teview meeting,
working togetherwith our independent
235es50r, who reviewed our processes,
policies and the governance modef that

We useto safeguard ouruser’s rights
tofreedom of expression andright to privacy,
toensure all relevant areaswere covered,

Vodafone completedits first format GNJ

Wewillissue public report on any related
recomrmendations in early 2020, following
the release of the formal G reportonthe
2019 assessrnents,

@ Eg(l;morelnformaunn onntil;e it
compa d55855me, vl
mg(ogarl;yetworkinmatm.om/

company-assessments

Our commitmenit to human nghts is overseen
by aur Group Executive Cornmutiee (ExCo?
Ineach of the countries in which we Operate,
the Chief Executive responsible for our
OPerating comparty oversees hurman rights
matters, with governance support from
felevant loca! market professionais,

@ Readmere at vodafone.com/hy manrights

Ourmost salient human rights risics relate

1o anindviduat’s nghit to privacy and freedom
of expression, Our Digital Rights and Freedoms
Reporting Centre containsinformatiory
refated to the protection of our customers’
Private Communications and how we work

to respect our customers nghts and express
themselves freely,

Qurreports explain how we respong

te lawful demangs for dovernment access

to our customers data and how we pratact
Qur customers' data and respect therr right

1o privacy and freedom of expression

Qur principles and dpproach on awide

range of topics, including law enforcement
surveillance. privacy; data protection, freedom
of expression, censorship and the drgital
nghts of the child, can be found om our onbne
feporting centre along with information

0N how many government requests for access
to customer data werecejve In &very country
where it s legal to disclose this information

@ Read mare at vodafone,com/dlgltalrlghts

Anti-bribery and corruption

Vodafone does not tolerate bribery ang
corruption in any form, Qur policy on this
ISSUe is summarised in our Code of Conduct
and states that employees or others working
Grour behalf must never offer or accept

any kind of bnbe Ouranti-brlbery poucy

is consistent with the UK Bribery Act and the
US Foreign Corrupt Practices Actand any
breaches can lead to disrissal or termmation
of contract

The policy provices guidance about what
constitutes a bribe and prahibits giving
Orrecelving any excessive OrImproper gifts
and hosprtality, it also makes clear that where
our policy differs in degree frorn an equivalent
local law: we must follow the more stringent
of the two,

Our Chief Executve and ExCo oversee our
efforts to prevent bribery. They are SUpperted
by local market Chief Executives, who are
Tesponsible for ensur ng that our anti -bribery
and corruption programme s implermented
effectrvely in theyr local market.

As part of our anti-bribery Programme, every
Vodafone business myst adhere to minmom
Qlebal standards, which include:

— ensuring there s 4 due diligence process for
suppliers anq business partners at the start
ofthe business relationstp;

= completion of the global e-learning training
for all employees, as wall a5 tallored
classroom trainmg for higher risk tearns; ang

— using Vodafone’s global online gift
and haspitality Tegistration platform,
aswell as ensuing there s 3 process
for approving local sponsorships and
charitable contributions,

Implementaton of the anti-bnbery policy
ISMonitored regularly in all local markets

a5 part of the annyal Group Folicy Compliance
Review assurance process, which reviews

key anti-onbery controls, In addition, visits
tolocal markets, on & rotating basis, enable

Us to assess the implernentation of the anty-
brbery programme in more detail, thraugh
on-the-ground reviews,

All Vodafone employees are encouraged

to report amy suspected breaches of our Code
of Conduct as 500N as possible, using our
“Speak Up” process. Senior EXecutives review
every Speak Up report and the programmie
isreviewed by the Group Risk and Complianice
Committee. In ourlatest Global People Survey,
84% of respondents said they would use
Speak Up to report unethical behaviour.
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Find out more

Our Sustainable Business Report 2019
provicles more detaited information on our
progress against our sustainable business

In 2615, we published our Slavery and Hurnan Trafficking Staternent and our Genger
Pay Gap Report, in line with our statutery reporting requirements. We also present our
coniribution to the UN SDGs in a separate report.

strategy and fargets.

Read more at
Y vodatone.com/sbreport2019

Read ourtatest reportsat

@ vodafone.corm/sbreporting

Non-financial information statement

The table below outlines where the key contents requirernents of the Non-Financiat Staternent can be found within this document

{as required by sections 414CA and 414CB of the Campanies Act 2006).

Vodafone's sustanable business reporting also follows other international reperting frameworks, including the Global Reporting Intiative,

CDP and GHG Reporting Protocol.

Reporting requirement

Environmental matters

Employees

Secial and community matters

Humanrights

Anti-bribery and corruption

Policy embedding,
due diligence and outcomes

Description of principal risks
and impact of business activity

Description of business model

Non-financial key
performance indicators

Vodafone policies and approach
Energy innovation performance

Clirnate change nsk management

Code cf Conduct

Occupationat heaith and safety

Diversity and inclusion

Driving positive societal transformation

performance

Stakeholder engagement

Moblles mastsand health

Human rlghts approach

Code of Ethu:ai Purchasmg ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
Slavery and Human Tfafﬁcklng Statement
Code of Conduct

Anti-bribery policy

Speak Up process

Section within Annual Report

Qur enwronrnentai impact, page 38
Risk watchlist, page 50

Doing What's nght page 43
C(eatlnga safe p(ace to work, page 43

Women’s empowerment, page 36
A diverse and 1nc1usnve Vodafone page 43

Womern's empowerment page 36
Youth skills and jobs, page 37
Vpdafone Foundation, page 37

Engaging with our stakeholders, page 62
Mabiles, masts and health page 39

Humaﬂ r@ht& page 39

Sup;}ly chain mtegnty. page 39

Find out raore, page 41

Anti-bribery and corruption, page 40
Anti- bnbery and corruption, page 40
Anti-bribery and corruptlon page 40

Sustainable business, page 36
Risk management, page 44

Risk managernent, page 44

Our strategy, page 14

Sustainable business, page 36
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Our people and culture

The people behind our
purpose led business

Our people: key information

By contract - By gender

' By location
Employees; 92005 : Male: 55,556 (60%) . Germany: 14%
Contractors: 10423 « Femnale 36,449(4082) * U- 124

faly:6.5%  Vodacom: 8%
Spain: 5.5%  Vodafone Shared Services: 18%

Other: 36%

2019 2078 2017
Average humber of employees 92,005 91,980 92,200
Employee engagementindex B - A
E‘mptogeetué;ibééf;—éte o 17% 17% 18%
Wbmen on tliel;oard ‘ 42% 33% 25%
Women In senior leadership positionss 28% 2% oz
Womenin management and leadership roles® 31% 0% 20%

The headcount igures are anaverage of surmenthly headcount and excludes Qatarand jointventuresin india, the Netherlands,

Australia ahd Safancom

Notes 1 % of serior womenin our top 184leadership positons. 2 % ofworneninour 6,715 management andleadership roles,

Digital Strategy and Culture

Qur people are fundamental to every
aspect of our Vodafone strategy and are
committed to delivering a superior network
perforrance and providing exceptional
custorner expenence.

We want Digital to be core to how we allwork
and think at Vodafone. We have therefore
continued the roll out of our refreshed
Digital Vodaforie Way, which underpins our
Culture and purpose. At its centre 15 afocus
on three core principles: speed, simplicity
and trust We want our people to respond
swiftly and effectively to challenges and
opportunities, especially those that affect
our custorners, We want them to do so while
avoiding unnecessary bureaucracy and
costly and cumbersome internal

processes. And we want all of our business
activities and decisions to be Informed

by an understanding that €arning and retaining
the trust of our customers, employees and
all other stakeholders must be integral

to everything we do as we connect people
to a “Digital Society”

Over the last year, we have continued

to reshape our organisation as part

of delivering our Digital strategy We have
transitioned parts of the business to a new
organisational model, rade up of cross-
functional, self-managed teams organised
in “Tribes”. The Tribes operate In agile ways
of working, bnng the right people and skills
together from across the company, and are
focused on key business outcomes and
designed around our customer Ifecycle

to deliver more for our customers

Our customers

Our customers are becoming increasingly
digital and they want to be abie to interact
searnlessly and consistently with us, when
and how they want To support this, we have
continued to focus on upskiling our frontline
ermployees and 'mproving cur digital customer
expenence. We have continued the roll out
of the Digital Vodafone Way CARE training
initiative, across our frontline induction
programmes. The core of the programime
aims to ensure frontline staff take end-to-end
ownership for resolving custormer problems
and deliver an outstanding customer
experience by putting the customer first,
This year an additional 20,507 new starters,
internal and external, to Vodafone have
beentrained,

‘_Lbndgn biéiia( Hub

Attracting and developing

great people

This year we invested more than £60 milbon
nemployee training and development. We have
focused on upskiling our people oncnitical

skills they need to succeed now, and investing

in developing the skills we will need in the future,

This has included developing critical new skills
such as digital marketing, €-commerce, coding,
big data and analytics to create simple and
persenalised expenences for our customers,

In addition, we have continued to deliver onour
commitment to increase the number of digital
opportunities provided by Vodafone to those
aged 26 and under, with the aim of reaching
100000 by 2022, Through our digital work
EXpenence programmes, apprenticeships,
intern and graduate schemes this year

we have provided over 54,500 digital
workpiace expenences.

We have continued to expanid our vocational
training and apprenticeships across our business,
These provide young people permanent roles
atVodafone while being supported through
continuous learming in order to gain a forrmat
qualficatron intherr chosen fields.

Inaddition, since its launch in 2017,
Vodafone's #codelteagil programme has
contmued to grow, and this vear has reached
over 1,500 girls in 20 markets The programme,
launchedin partnershipwith Code First: Girls,
aims to tackle low representation of grls

in STEM education, It offers girls aged 1418
animmersive crie-week digral expenence
where they learn to code and receive

basic trainng on computer languages and
developrnent programmes,

Our Discover graduate programme, which has
been running for over ten years, offers young
peoptle with a bachelor’s or master’s degree

a senes of assignments across our business
areas and local markets.

LR — [ S

Acioss the organisation, we are bringing together

the right people and skills to scale Up and accelerate
our digital transfermation. An example of thisis the
exaiting new Digital Hub that we have openad incentral
Londor, i brings together Consumer and Digital
teamsin an'agle working environment to drive greater

* Getlaboration and creatiity and uitimately growth

for Vodafone UK. ltwill create a sense of commurity

in a place people feel proud to workin, as well as help
attract the best commerciat and digital talent available
in the country: So far,we have relocated 200 employees

and hired over 230 Consumer and Digital Talent to work
inolir new Bigital hub, By the end of the calendar year,
we airn to have eround 600 Consumer and Di gital
employees working at this tocation,
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Sinceits taunch ten years age, over 5000
graduates have joined the programme, with
700 recrutted ths year. This provides Vodafone
with a strong pipeline of future talent and, over
the last three years, 2450 graduates have
been offered permanent roles at Vodafone
Our Discover programme s highly diverse,

this year new entrants were recruited from 21
different countries and over half were female.

A diverse and inclusive Vodafone

This year we employed an average of 92,005
peoplewith 131 nationalities as well as over
10,423 contractors. Our commitment to all
forms of diversity and nclusion begins at the
top, with clear leadership from the Vodafone
Group Pl Board and s embedded at every
level of our business through the “Digital
Vodafone Way,” the “Code of Conduct™ and our
“Business Prinaples”

QOur comnrmitrment s acknowledged and
supported by our employees globally. In our
2019 annual Global People Survey, 90%

of employees who responded said they felt they
were treated fairly, respective of age, gender,
disability, sexuat onentation, gender identity,
cultural background or beliefs.

Qver the last year we have increased our focus
on supporting the LGBT+ youth community
Vodafone commissioned research to survey
more than 3,000 LGBT+young pecple across 15
countries and multiple industries, The research
found that 58% of respendents are not open
about theair sexual orientation or gender idenuty
atwork because they worry they wil face
discnmination, and one nthree said they went
"back into the closet” when they started therr
first job. Vodafone nas launched a number

of Inatives to help create a culture where
ernployees can be open about therr sexual
onientation and genderdentity. Theseinclude
LGBT+inclusive messaging onjob adverts

and career channels, a global “buddying”
programme for LGBT+ graduates, a learning
programme for Friends of LGBT+where over
1,500 Friends have signed up, a refreshed Code
of Conduct that supports LGBT+inclusmity,

and a teollat for managers to help create

an LGBT+ inclusive workplace.

This year we have alsoworked to understand
more aboul the representation and experiences
of our ethnic minonties based in the UK and
have inmhated diversity disclosures and a mult-
cultural network as aresult

I addtion, we have continued to raise awareness
about our disabled population We have created a
digrtal disABILITY site for all employees, providing
guidelines, wideos and toolkits, and conducted a
review of ourwebsites to Increase accessibility for
our colleagues,

Doing What's Right

We believe that ethical conductis just
asimportant as high performance. Qur Code
of Conduct cutines the behaviours we expect
from every single persen werking for and with
Vodafone and helps to ensure that we protect
Vodafone's reputation, our people and

our assets.

We want everyane in Vodafone to feel safe
bothin and outside of work This year Vodafone
Foundation commissioned international
research onworking men and women across
nine countries that locked at the Impact

of domestic violence and abuse on peoplein the
workplace. It found that more than one in three
had experenced domestic viclence and abuse
insome form. 67% sard that it affected their
career progression and 16% had to leave work
because of therr situation. As a result, Vodafone
has anncunced a groundbreaking new

HR policy specfically for victims of domestic
viclence and abuse n 23 of its operating
companies, Employees will have accass

to support and specialist counselling, as well

as up to ten days additional paid “safe leave’”.
HR managers will receive specialist training

to equip them to provide suppert to impacied
employees. In addition, Viodafone Foundaticn
has announced the International expansicn

of Bright Sky, a free app that helps identify

if abuse 15 taking place and connects victims

of domestic violence and abuse to advice and
support services

Recognising performance

We reward people based ontherr performance,
potential and contribution to our values and
success. We have continued to promote and
improve line management capability on future
focused and developmental conversations
between employees and line managers

To maintain compliance with cur fair pay
standards, we benchmark and monitor our pay
practices in every country inwhich we operate
This ensures cur pay practices, ncluding
retrement and other benefit provisions,

are compliantwith all local legislation, free
from discnmination, market competitive and
easily understood.

We also offer competitive retirerment and

other benefit provisions. Global short-term
Incentive plans are offered to a large percentage
of colleagues, and global long-term incentive
plans are offered to our senicr managers.

Our arrangements are subject to company and
indwvidual performance measures,

Creating a safe place to work

We want everyone working with Vodafone
to return home safely every day. Despite all
of our efforts, we deeply regret to report two
recordable fataliies dunng the year.

PP
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In addition a further five fatalities resulting from
twao separate road traffic acadents in Turkey are
currently going through legat processes and
we have been unable to review themwithin

the year.

Road traffic accidents remain atop nisk and
priority area of focus for us. This year we have
continued to roll-out the use of telematics

and in-vehicle cameras wherever local privacy
legistation allows We have developed gamified

mobile-friendly training for our driver population,

enabling them to batter anticipate potential
issues onthe road.

Additionally, we have strengthened controls
to reduce the nisks related to working

In proximity to electriaty, specifically
overhead pewer ines, as we INcrease our
fibre roll-outs We also continue to instit a zero
fatalmies mind-set cutture through employee
and supplier policies, standards, engagement
andtraring.

improving employee wellbeing remains a key
area of focus and we have continued to embed
the Group Wellbeing Framework with locat
markets focusing on one of the specific pillars
that best fits thewr needs locally.

Increasing employee
engagement

Every year, all our employees are invited

to parhcipate 1n a global survey which allows
us to reasure engagerment levels and identify
ways toimprove how we do things

Thisyear, 87%% of employees participated in the
Global Pecple Survey The survey demonstrated
that 85% of employees who responded

were proud to work for Vodafone. The overall
Engagement Index score — demonstrating
employees desire to continue working with
Vodafone —increased by one percentage

point this year, to 80%. Out of the respondents,
8824 felt that they were treated with respect

at Vodafone. In addition, 85% felt that Vodafone
was a soclally responsible company, while 8224
of respondents would recommend Vodafone
as aplace to werk to ther friends and family

Managing change

The pace of change In technology means that
our industry Is always evolving and Vodafone
must continue to respond to this change. As a
result, over the last year there have been a
nurmber of crganisational changes in both the
global offices and local markets. Dunng a
reorganisation, we engage directly with
employees to discuss implications, am to help
affected employees find new jobs and offer
training to Improve interview and CV-writing
skills. Ay reorganisation 1s carmed-outin
compliance with local legistation and in
consultationwith emnployee representatives,
waorks councils and local unicns



Vodafone Group Plc
Annual Report 2019

44

Risk management

Our risks and uncertainties

We operate a global risk frarework across all of ourlocal markets and group
entities. This ensures our strategic and operational risks are identified, managed,
assured and reported in a consistent way. It is an evolving framework as we
continually seek to improve and enhance our risk management processes,

ldentifying our principal risks

Our process begmns with collatinginput from all local markets and Group
entities on their most significant risks, having regard to their own local
strategic prionties and external environments This s consolidated

into a group-wide view and presented to over 40 of our senior leaders,
who add their own input on strategic, functional and emerging risks

This year we added a further lens to the assessment of our risk
landscape by Including the output from modelling severe but plausible
scenarios We model various scenarios for each risk and examples

of these can be found in the principal risks on the following pages.

This activity allowed us to supplement the Usual qualitative data with
some useful quantitative data, providing nsight into the potential impact
of the risks

The proposed principal risks are then reviewed and agreed by a range
of stakeholders, including cur Executive Committee, Audit and Risk
Committee and Board.

Risk categories

We have updated the way our r1sks are categorised. The new approach
allows us to consider the risks an a continuum reflecting the degree
to which we can seek to control the risks, whichin turn reflects the
appropriate level of oversight and assurance required to effectively
manage these risks,

Principal risks
Categories Risks Strategy These risks are
. mainly external,
Strategic/External  _ Geo-political risk in supply chain associated with
Theinfluence of . our operating
stakeholders and industry — Adverse political and regulatory measures en\{jronment and
players on our business — Market disruption t%/plcaUy managed
through our strate
and our response to them - Disintermediation g qy
Financial ~ Global economic disruption/adequate bquidity
Ourfinancial status,
standing and — Taxchangesor challenges
continued growth
Technological — Cyber threat and information security
The systems we use .
to power our businessang ~ ~ 'echnology resiiience
the data they hold ~ IT transformation
Theserisks are
. mainty internat,
OPefat'°"al_ - Legalcompliance associated with our
Our abilty to ?Ch'eve our — Digital transforrmation and simplification processes, people
optimum business model and systemns and are
~ Successfulintegration of new assets and management typically managed
of joint ventures R through proactive,
Operations internal controls
Risk watchlist = UK's departure from the EU (Brexit) — EMF health related risks

Emerging or developing risks with the

potential to impact in the longer term = Climate change
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Strengthening our framework
Over the course of the year, we have:

— People and skills: worked to develop local risk teams thfou‘gh
a series of cormrnunity events with soft skills training, best practice
sharing and technicat glidance.

— Governance: improved local oversight of risk by briefing our locat
market and group entity oversight committees on a regular basis.

- Cdverage: extended our risk framework to provide more detailed
coverage of some of our largest functions, tike Technology,
and sorne specialist areas, such as Partner Markets and M-Pesa.

— Tools and technology: enhancad the use of our global risk toot
by incorporating additional control frameworks and assurance
activities that manage our rnisks, integrating risk and assurance
into one systemn, This approach was recognised with an award
from Continuity, Insurance and Risk magazine for “Best Use
of Technology in Risk Management”.

- Linaiﬁg r;sktobudget. prc\}i&éd ir{tel{igence onrisk for the
capitat atlocation discussions, identifying areas where budget,
is required 1o effectively manage our risks within tolerance.

- Emerging and longer-term risks: created a watchlst
of emerging threats and developing risks. This allows us to consider
risks where the threat 1s longer term and the resulting impact and
potential mitigation may not yet be clear.

Key to principal risks
1 Cyberthreat and information security

External or internal attack resulting in service
uravailability or data breach

2 Adverse political and regulatory measures
Regulatory measuresimpacting strategy:
taxchatienges

3 Global economicdisruption/
adequate liquidity
Econiomic disruption or another nisk materialising
impacts our ability to refinance

4 Geo-political riskin supply chain
Global trade wars and security concerns impact
our supply chain

5 Digital transformation and simplification
Faiture 10 debver business and
IT transformation targets

6 Marketdisruption
New telecom operators entering the market:
price wars reduce margins

7 Technelogyresilience
Failure of key IT, fixed or mobile assats causing
service disruphion

8 Successfulintegrationof new assets
and management of joint ventures
Faiture to achieve synergies expected from
integration of new assets; risk that joint ventures
do not operate effectively

9 Legal compliance
Non-complance with lawsincluding privacy,
anti-bribery, compettion law, anti-money
taundering and sanctions

10 Disintermediation Operational

Technology players gaining customer relevance

through emerging technology Key 35 Low

Interconnections between the risks

We continue to consider risks bothindividually and collectively in order to fully understand
our risk landscape. By identifying the correlation between risks, we can ensure that those
that have the potential to cause, impact or increase another risk are weighted appropriately.
This exercise also helps to inform our scenaric analysis, particularly the combined scenario
usedn the Long Term Viability Staternent {pages 50 and 51).

Technotogical

R

Strategic Report

Key changes in the year

Charges to risks:

Allocation of the Group's capital has been split, partly merging
with the existing Global economic distuption/adequate liquidity
risk and also forming part of the new Successfal integration of
new assets and management of joint venturesnsk.

* EMF heatth related risk has been moved to our watchiist

as aionger- term potential risk. More detail on this risk can be
found in the relevant section on page 51

- Effective data managementwas remaved dunng the course

of risk reviews in FY19 with the Privacy component beirg merged

- into the Legal Compliance risk,

) New risks:

Geo-political risk in supply chain: relates o giobal trade wars

. and security concerns that could result in resirictions on key

equipment, This could have significant financial, legal, supply
chan or operational implications.

Successful integration of new assets and management of
joint ventures: relates 1o failure to realise the expected benefits
from acquisitions {subject to completion) and jointly controlied
businesses that could resutt if we are unable to effectively manage
the integration or any governance failures,

Financial

Strategic/
External

# Medurm B Hgh B8 Crtical
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Cyber threatand i nformation security

What is the risk:

An externat cvberattack, nsicier threat o supplier breach could cause Servite Interruption or the loss of confidentat
dsta Cyber threats couid lpad to major customner, financial, reputationat and FeguiatoryImpact across all of our
Iocal markats

Adverse political and regulatory measures

What is the risk;

Operating across Many MAKELS and jursdictions means we deal with a varj ety of complex political and Tegulatory
landscapes. in alt of theseenvironmerits, we can face changes in taxation, Political mtervention and potential
competitive disadvantage. Tnis also includes our participation in Epectum suchons,

Global economic disruption/adequate liquidity

What is the risic:

Asamultinatonal business, we operate " Mary countries and curre Naies, so changes to global economic conditions
CANIMpact L. Any major econgrmic disruption covid resuitn reducedspending power for our customers and impact
our ability to access capital Aarkets, Arelative strengthening or weakening of the major curTencies in which we transact
couldimpact gur profitability:

Geo-political risk in supply chain

What is the risk:
We operate amg deviop complex nfrastructure inthe Courttriesinwhich we sre present, Our networks and systerns
are dependenton awide Tange of suppliers internationaiy IFwewers unableto EXECUte o plans, we, andthe industry,
wouid face potantia delaystonetwork improvements and increased costs.

Digital transformation and simplification

What Isthe risk:

Weare currently immemmﬁngama;ortransfarmaﬁm planto evolve Vodafoneintya Digital £} irst’ companywith an am )
. Prograrmme, with direct Sponsorship from ourExecutive
+ Committen, We have: clearly defing obyethives and target

1o deliver world-class custerner experience, ncregse DU speed o marker endincrease operational efficizncies thraugh
automation ang Aj, Fafture ta dothis couldiead to missed commareial OpROriunties, Hreasedcosts and Qustomer
EXperance issies,

. Howwe manageit:

Riskowner: Johan Wibergh

Howwe manage it;
We protect Vodafore and pur customers from cyber

. threats By contirmuung to strengthen global and local
" securfty controls, 3 24x7 tyber defence capahility and
customerfocused securtty,

. Riskowners: Joakim Reiter/Margherita Delta Valle

How we manage it:

We engage with top-level policy makers andinfluencers
addressing issues apenty, with cléar arguments o find
mutially acceptable ways forward,

Risk owner Margherita DellaValle

Howwe manage it:

We mantan access to tongand short-term Capital
markets through diversified sources of fundingand
ensure the resitience of our balance sheetthrough the
long-term duration of our debt

Risk owrer: Joakim Reiter

. Hnwwamanage It

We are closety Fronitoring the political situation

- aroundour key suppliers. Weargalso engaging with

; govemments.tamertsandsupplierstofmf

. nRarmed so thatwe can respond accordingty and we will
. abwayscormplywih the [atest requistions,

WEa:eworkm with our Supply chair to ensyre contineity

. ofsupply of core equ;pment!ntheeventcfam’mpact
- from Brext,

Risk owngr Ahtnad Essam

Dugitat First' Sacompany-wide ansformation

KPis for the overall Prograrmme and each functionat

T area conrdinated centraliyand executed locally. We are
eantinucusty driving simplification feducethe

cormpledty of our products an PrOpesitiang with clearly
definect objectives and target Kpis,
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Risk movernent: Stable Risk category. Technological

Qur target tolerance: Example scenario: Emerging threats:

We aim for asecure digital future for our customars. Scenarios cauld wickude attacks on mdrvidual rmarkets, Cyberriskis constantly evolving in ina with technologicat

Security underping our comnitrment 1o protectingour parts ofour network or large-scale intrusions spanning advances and geo-politicel developments. We anticipate
" customerswith relable connections and keepmgtheir muttiple markats threatswall continue to.evolve in areas such as 1T, supply
. data safe.We seek to avoid any breaches, loss of data chaity, cloud computing and the use of machine tearning.

or reputational impact froma cyber event,

Risk movemnent. Stable Rusk category: Strategic /Externat

Our target tolerance: Example scenario: Emerging threats:

We actively seek to engage with governments, regulaters  We do notrecewve the requisite approvals to atiow Asconnectivity starts tounderpin the furictioning
and tax authontes o encourage good working. ustocomplete our planned strategic acquisitions. of differentindustrial sectors, there is a risk of pneraus
retationships andto help shape potentialimpacts coverage obligations and requiatory fragrnentation
of legslative change on the Group, through sector-speaific connectivity nades,

Intaddition, there Is a risk of national fragmentation
inrelation to emerging fechnology topics suchras Al,
which are being dealt veth by a variety of nstitutions

Risk movement Increased Risk category” Financial
Given the acquisition of Liberty Global, our debt levels are expected to increase.

Ourtarget tolerance; Example scenaric: Emerging threats:

We take a conservative approach to financiat risks which A financial cnsisimpacts on our abiity to refinance Becausethisis an externally driven risk, the threat
reflects our diverse business We carefully manage or access cornmeraizl paper or bond markets. environinent is continually changing

ourliquidity and access to capital markets to limnit owr
exposure to unstabie economic conditions.

Risk movermnent; New Risk category: Strategie/External

" Ourtargettolerance; - Example scenario: Emerging threats:

* Wehave arange of supplier relatianships and There i3 a disruption to our supply ehaindue Asthe political lantiscapechanges globatly, we coutd see
we manage these closelywith our procurement teinternationat trade rulings. an increase in tracke wars between rmajor world powears,

speciahsts Weendeavour to ensure there 1 sufficient
choice of appropriate suppliersin an active and

competitive marketplace,

Risk rnovement: Stable Risk category Operational

Our target tolerance: Example scenario; Emerging threats:

We amto be a [eading digital company with the right mix Failure to retain customers through a differentiated The digitat transformation strategy considars

of efficient systerns. relevant skils and digital expertise experience and 10 achieve our smplification targets. emerging threats and factors these into the ongaing
to defiver a worid-class custorner experience, programme management.

We have made excellent progress in the first 158 months
of mplementation hitting most of our targets, but have
an ambitioLs agenda ahead in the next 24 months,
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H H rier. A ssam
Market disruption Fiskowner. Amed Essa
What is the risk: Howwe manage it:
New entrants o markets or competitors with leanmodels could create pricing pressure. The push ofcompetitors Wemomtor the cormpetitor ervirenment in all markets,
towards unbrmited bundies could lead to price erosion, which might affect profitabiity inthe short o mednm term andreact appropriately. We have already seen different

© elements of this disruption in taly and Spainnthe

- past 12-18months Although disruption threat rernains
insome markets. i mostrmarkets we are moving towards

. amore stable landscape.

Teehnology resilience ) Risk omer:!ohanWibemh

What is the risk; Howwe manage it:

Atechinclogy siteloss couldresultina Major IMmpact to our custorners, revenues and repuitation. This cavers mabile and | Uniquerecovery targets are set for essential sites

fixed sttes as well as data centres Our resilience prograrmme also extends to wider service platforms, i neludingtelevision  tolimitthe impact of service outages. A global policy

and payrments, SUPpOrts these targets with requisite controls to ensure
effective resibence,

We monitor thelfespan of key assets and maintarn

bacik-upwhere necessary,
- - . .
Successful integration of new assets Fiskowners: Hannes Ametsreiter/ Vivek Badrinath
and management of joint ventures
What is the risk: Howwe manage It:
Subjecttoregulatory approvals, we are undertaking a large-scale Integration of new assels across multiplemarkets, We have integration specialists working ervthe planning
ifwe de not comptete thisin atmely and efficient manner, we would not see the benefit of planned synergies and ofalt ntegration actwities and ff deals are approved, there

could face addrtional costs or detays ta completion. The successful integration alsorequiresthat an important number will be teams to cobrdinate and control execution ofthe
oftechrolegy platforms/services are frigrated on tme before the termination of the transitional services agreemerts, muttiple projects/activities that constitute the fulti-yvear

We also have a number of joint venturesin operation and rnust ensure that these operate effectively ntegration plan.
We have robust governance 1 place to marage our jomt
ventures effectively,

H Risk owner: Rosem lartin

Legal compliance e

What is the risk: . Howwemanage it:

Vodalone must comply with a multitude ofiocal andinternational (aws These inciudelaws relating tor privacy. anti- Wehave sutiect matter experssin tegal teams

moneylaundering: competition: anti-tribery: and ecoromic sanctiars, Failure o comply with these laws could leact intocal markets and in group and a robust palicy

o repetational damage, firancial penaltias and/or suspension of our licence io operate. comaliance framework.

We tram our employeesin DoingWhat's Right, our traiming
s and awareness programme, which sets our ethicat
. culture scross the orgartisation and ensures employaes
understand their rote in ensurng complianee,

L3 - - - R S"( N
Disintermediation ; Fiskouner.Ahmad Essam
What is the risk: Howwe manage it:
We face increased competition from a vatigty ofnewtechnology platforms which aim to buitd alternatrve We continually strive tointroduce innovative propositions

<communication services or different touch points, which could potentialty affect our custornerretationships Wemust andservices while evolvingour custamer expefience
be able tokeep pacewith these new developmentsard competitors i changing miarkets while mainteining high levels - tostrengthenthe refationship with our customers,
of customer engagement and an excelient custorner experience. We areiunning amibttious programmes on thees fronts
to fundamentallystrengthen our custorner relationship—
(1) deepen our customer engagerent. (2} radicatly
" simplfy our offer portiote, and (3) create rouch betrer
digitat experiences acrossthe customer lifecycle,
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Risk movement Decreased

Uncertaingy over new competition: remains in some markets, known threatsin other key markets

- have eased over the last 12 months.

. Qurtargettolerance:

We wil| avolve our pffer and adopt an agile commercial
* model o mitgate competitve risks, Wewilldo this

» throughtargeted offers, smart pricing modets and

* g differentiated customer experence,

. Riskmovernent:Stable

Ourtarget tolerance:

Qur customer promise 1 biased on refiable svatability
of our network, therefare the recovery ofkey mobile,
fixedand T services must be fast and robust.

Risk movernent New

Qurtargettolerance:

Qur aim isto integrate businesses efficiently and
effectivelyn arder to achieve the biest possible return
oninvestment and realise the expected synergies,

Risk movement: Stable

Ourtarget tolerance:
We seek to complywith all applicable laws and
- regulations inall of our rnarkers,

Risk movement: Decreased

- Example scenario:
_ Aloss of market sharen a rmajor market due to changing

behawgur from existing competitors.

. Example scenario:

Theloss of essential assets across ournetworks and

»internal ITinfrastructure

Exampte scenatio:
Integration of a major new acquisition s detayed and
benefits cannot be realised as quickly as ptanned.

Example scenario:

Potential breaches across some legal compliance risks
which could tead to reputational damage. investigation
costsand fines.

Movernent to unlimited bundles means the potentialimpact of this risk has reduced.

Ourtargettolerance:

We offer asupernor customer expenence and continually

imprave our offering through 2 wide set of innovative
products and services, ncluding fixed and robile
content, foT and voice over LTE, We also devetop

mnovative new products and explore newgrowth areas

suchas 50, loT. convergence, digital services, data

analytics, Al and security so that we continue to meet our

customers needs

Example scenario:
Ererging technalogy Impacts our market share

Strategic Report

Risk category. Strategic/External

Emerging threats:

- Becausethisis an externally driven risk, the threat

enwrenment is centinuaily changing

Risk categery: Technological

Emerging threats:

We could beimpacted by an increase in exirerne weather
sventscaused by climate charige which may ncrease the
likelhood of a technology failure,

New assets inherited from acquired businesses may
notbe aligned to our target resibence levelswhich may
ncrease the kebhood of atechnalggy faiture

Risk category. Operational

Emerging threats:
Thes s anew risk s all currently known threats have been
ncluded as part of the pnncipal nsk.

Risk category- Operational

Emerging threats:

Changngworkplace dynamics, digital transformation,
assetintegrations and a change in cur employes
demographics could degrade our control environment
Sowe are updating our Cotle of Cenduct and varlous
policiesto mitigate this

Risk category: Strategic/Externat

Emerging threats:

As we complete acquisition activity, we will have Increasing
nterests m television and fixed Line access, The profile

of thisrisk will change as thiswill widen and/or increase
the range ofthreats frorm new technology and over the
top providers
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Risk watchlist
There are twe ways in which we have identified our emerging risks
1N this report.

First. for our prineipal risks, we have noted on the previous pages some
ernerging threats regarding these risks. These uncertainties mayrelate
to future technological, regulatory or political changes

Secondly, we also face a number of uncertainties where an emerging
threat may potentially impact us in the lenger term In some cases,
there may be insufficient information avalable to understand the Ikely
scale, impact or velocity of the risk We also might not be able to fully
define amitigation plan until we have a better understanding of the
threat. We have created a watchlist of these risks which we will review
onaregular basis to monitor any changes to the likely scale, impact
and velocity.

Somme examples of these are:

UK’s departure from the EU (‘Brexit’)
The Board continues to keep the implications of Brexit for Vodafone's
cperations under review,

A cross-functional Brexit steening committee continues to operate.
This steering committee has ident fied the impact of Brexit on the
Group’s cperations and produced a comprehensive mitigation plan.
The terms of the UK's exit from the EU, and the future relationship,
rernain uncertain.

Long-Term Viability Statement (LTVS")

The preparation of the LTVS includes an assessment ofthe Group’s long-

Due to this current uncertainty, Vodafone is prepared for ano deal
scenario, as this was judged to have the most potentral for disruption.

Although we are a UK headquartered company, a very large majority
of our customers are n other countries, acceunting for most of our
revenue and cash flow. Each of cur national operating companies

Is a stand-alone business, incorporated and licensed in the Junsdiction
inwhich it operates, and able to adaptto awide range of local
developments As such, our ability to provide services to our customers
i the countries n which we operate, inside or outside the EU, 15 unlikely
to be affected by Brexit We arenot a rmajor internatonal trading
company, and do not use passporting for any of our major services

Or processes.

Depending on the arrangements agreed between the UK and the EU,
the key Issue that could drrectly :mpact our operationat performance
is a sigrificant revision to macro econoric performance in our major
European markets, Including the UK, caused by the uncertainty

of the Brexit process. This would affect the economic cimate in which
we gperate, and In turn impact the performance of the operating
companies in those markets.

Climate change

There is clear evidence that global ternperatures are rising rapidly and a
consensus among scientists and policyrmakers that man-made greenhouse
gases (GHGs) are having a direct Impact on the cimate. We support the
view that urgent action is needed to address climate change.

term prospectsin addition to an assessrnent of the abitity

o meet future commitrments and liabilities as they fall due over the three vear review penoad.
Viabitity Prospects
) ) ) Qutlook of key trends
Headroom is calculated using cash, cash equivalents and other avallable facilities, at yearend defining the industry
and the broader
external environment
Long Range Plan is the three year forecast, approved by the Board on an annual basis,
and used to calculate cash position and avaitable headroom for the LTVS
Assessment of the
Group'seurrent position
strategy and business
Severa but plausible Quantification ofthe cash Sensitivity anatysis model o ensure the
scenarios modelled impact of combined to assess the level of declne sustainability of value
to quantify the cash impact scenarios where multiple Inperformangce that the creation in thetong term
of an indrviduat principal risk risks rmaterialise across one Group could withstand, were
materialising over the three ormoremarkets, over the ablack swan event to accur
year period three year period Assessment of
principal risks that may
\1/ \L N influence the Group's

Viability results from comparing the cash impact of the severe but plausible

scerarios ot the available headroom, considering addit

2

Long-Term Via
Directors confirm that they have reasonable ex
in cpergtion and meet its liabilities as

long-term prospects
ional fiquidity options

A

bility Statement
pectation that the Group will
they fall due over the three y

be able to cortinue
ear penod
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Achieving the required reductionsin GHG emissions will be particularly
challenging, however, in the context of continuous economic and
poputation growth.

As a significant user of energy. the telecommunications and ICT
industries face a growing challenge: every additional device connected
to a network and every additional gigabyte of data transmitted or stored
represents a potential Increase in energy needs.

Clmate change poses a number of potential risks for
telecommunications operators, from both a physical (e.g. solated events
such as ncreased intensity of storms, heatwaves or higher average
operating temperatures) and regulatory (e.g new or strengthened
carbon reduction commitments) perspective.

We welcome the development of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures ( TCFD') recommendations and have updated our
risk management process this year to strengthen our consideration

of the potential business implications and impacts of cimate change.
In addiion, we undertook an independent gap analysis of cur reporting
aganst the TCFD recommendations and are working to achieve

full alignment.

For further nformation on how we are working to reduce our envircnmental
impact, inctuding performance against our 2025 targets to reduce our

Strategic Report

e

#n

EMF

A cross-functional team, led by a Director and sponsored

by an Executive Committee member meets regularly to identify,

and discuss nsk and cormnpliance 1ssues relating to EMF and reported
twice this year to the Board about developrments in science, policy and
compliance We have a network of resources in each market to drive
compliance and to share best practice.

In addition, we work with the industry and the GSMA to identify and
adopt best practice

The risk can be broken down into three areas.

— fallure to meet our policy requirements or comply with international
guidelines (set by International Cornmission on Non-lonizing
Radiation Pratection) or local legislation as it applies to EMF

— the nsk ansing from activism or negative sentiment towards location
orinstallation of radio base stations.

— changes in the radio technology we use or the body of credible
scientific evidence which may impact esther of the twa risks abave

GHG emissions by 50% and to purchase 100% renewable electncity,
see page 38 and the Sustainable Business Report 2019

Assessment of viability

Vodafone adopts athree year period to assess
the Group’'s viability. This time horizonis in line
with our business ptanning cycle and a period
inwhich principal risks (particularly those

of an operaticnal nature, over whichwe have
more controb) typically develop, inwhat

15 a dynarnic industry sector, The three

year periodis aiso in ine with fong-term
management incentives and the outputs
frorn the long range planning process,

The plans and projections prepared

as part of this forecasting cycle include the
Group's cash flows, planned commitments,
required funding ard other key financiat
ratios. We assume that debt refinance wilt

be avaitable in all plausible market conditicns
and that there will be no material changes

1o the Group's structure over the period.

The estimated impact of an individual severe
but plausible scenario for each principal risk
on the three year plan forms the cornerstons
of our approach to LTVS.

In addition, we stress tested a combined
scenario taking into account the
interconnections between the risks, shown
onthe diagram on page 45, where the
foltowing risks were modelled as materiatising
over the three year period:

- Markét disruption

Sigruficant market disruption resultinginloss .

of market share across our key rmarkets.

— Integration of assets
Slower realisation of synergies and
higher casts than anticipated to integrate
acquired businesses.

- Cyber threat and information security
Cyher security breach caused by ongoing
{T transformation leading to a GDPR fine.

— Geo-political risk in supphy chain
Bisruption in the supply chain due
to international trade rulings restricting
access to key suppliers,

- (3lobal economic disruption/
adequate Lquidity
The combination of the above within
a shorttime frame puts pressure on our
liquidity and our abitity to refinance.

Assessment of long-term prospects
Each year the Board conducts & strategy
session, reviewing the internat and externat
environment as well as signdficant threats

and opportunities to the sustainable creation
of shareholder value in the long-term (known
emerging threats related to each principat risk
are described inpages 46 to 49),

As aninput to the strategy discussion,

the Board reviews some of the principal risks
that are longer term in nature (inciuding
adverse political and regulatory measures,
market disruption and disintermediation},

with the focus ondentfying underlying
opporiunities for the Group and setting the
future strategy. The output from this session

s reflected in the strategic section of the
Annual Report{pages 8 and 9 which provides

- aview of the Group's long-term prospects.

Conclusions

The Board has assessed the prospects and
viab#ity of the Group in accordance with
c2.2 of the 2016 UK Cerporate Governance
Code, conmdering: the Group’s strategy
andbusiness modet: and the principal nsks
threatening the Groug's future performance,
solvency, liquidity and reputation.

The assessment also ensured a review

of the reasonableness of actions available
to management inresponse to any Nsk

or combination of riskg miateriatising.

Total cash and facilities available

of £13.6 billion (pages 11410 159)

as of 31 March 2019, along with options
available to reduce cash outgaings over the
period considered, provide the Group with
sufficient positive headrosmin all scenarios
tested, Reverse stress festing reveriue and
EBITDA over the review period also confirmed
that the Group has sufficient positive
headroom available to face uncertainty.

The Board deemed the stress test conducted
of the Group's vigbility fo be adequate and
therefore confirm that they have a reascnable
expectation that the Group will remain

in operation and be able to meet its liabilities
as they falt due up to 31 March 2022.
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Chairman’s governance statement

‘Committed to strong and

robust corporate governance

to support the creation of

long-term sustainable value

Dear Shareholder,

Welcome to the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended

31 March 2019, which | am pleased to present on behalf of the Board
This report includes insight Nto how corporate governance underping
and supports our business and the decisions we make The Board

1s committed to the creation of long-term sustainable value for the
benefit of our shareholders and wider stakeholders, and strong and
robust corporate governance is integralin supporting this.

During 2018 the Board has ensured a successful transition of the

Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer and the implementation

of arefreshed purpose and strategy to address industry headwinds.

We have also recommended the appointment of a new statutory
auditor for the year ending 31 March 2020, Ernst & Young LLR

following a tender process run by the Audit and Risk Committee.
Further information on this tender process can be found in the Audit and
Risk Cornmittee report on page 74.

The Board has also spent time considering the changes brought
in by the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the new Code’)
and The Comparues (Miscellaneous Reparting) Regulations 2018
(the ‘Regulations’) to ensure Vodafone's compliance

Purpose and strategy

Following Vittorio Colao stepping down as Chief Executive at the

end of September 2018 and Nick Read's appointrment, Nick brought
arevised strategy to the Board for consideration The Board were very
supportive of Nick’s proposal and the revised strategy, which was
announced in Novernber 2018, has been a significant focal point for the
Board this year.

As part of the revised strategy, we have also refreshed our purpose
—“We connect for a better future™— and committed to improve one
billion lives and halve our environmental impact by 2025. Qur purpose
15 at the core of our strategy which aims to drive sharehelder returns
through afocus on operational excellence and organic growth by:
deepening customer engagement, transforming our operating model,
and impreving asset utilisation.

Further information on our refreshed purpose, revised strategy and
the Group's performance over the last 12 months can be found in the
Qverview and Strateqic Repart sections.

Culture and values

The Board recognises the importance of ts rolein setting the tone
of Vodafone's cuiture and embedding it throughout the Group and
| am committed to instilling and uphelding the culture and values
we expect to see from all of our employees

Qur Code of Conduct underpins everything that we do and

is reinforced through the Digital Vodafone Way, which sets out the

type of organisation we want to be Everycne who works for and with
usisreguired to comply with these, An averview of our Code of Conduct
and the Digital Vodafone Way can be found on pages 42 to 43,

In addition to the Board, the Executive Committee and senior
management understand how we work is as important as what

we achieve, and ensure that the importance of compliance and integnity
15 recogrised at all levels throughout the Group.

The cuttural chrmate inVodafone 1s measured through a number

of mechanisms including policy and compliance processes, internal
audit, and fermal and infermal channels for employees to raise
concerns including our employee opinion survey and Speak Up,
ourwhistleblowing programme. Speak Up is also available to the
contractors and suppliers working with us, During the year the Audit and
Risk Cornmuttee has been kent abreast of any material whistleblowing
ncidents and detall on action taken when our employees do not display
the values and behaviours expected of them.

Governance

This year Vodafone was subject to the 2016 UK Corporate Governance
Code and | amn pleased to confirm that Vodafone has applied the
principles and complied with all of the provisions.

During 2018 the Regulations and the new Code were

published and are the result of the action taken as part of the

UK Government’s commitrnent to corporate governance reform

in order to build trustin business. The Regulations and new Code

put more emphasis on engagement with stakeholders, diversity,
rernuneratian structures and the strengthening of corparate culture,
The Board 1s supportive of the aim to build trust in business and of the
requirernents under the Regulations and new Code. We have spent
time this year considering our compliance and the ways to enhance our
disclosures for our 2020 Annual Report to demonstrate the high levels
of corporate governance maintained within Vodafone. | look forward
to prowviding you with furtber detail on our compliance in our 2020
Corporate Governance Report.

Board composition

Through the Nominations and Governance Committee, we keep the
composition of the Board under review to ensure itis refreshed to reflact
the skills, expenences and diversity required to remain effective,

Qver the last 12 months there have been a number of changes to the
Board including the appointment of Nick Read as Chief Executive

and Margherita Della Valle as Chief Financial Officer foliowing the
assessment of both internal and external candidates for the positions.
The promotion of Nick and Margherita 1s reflective of our commitment
to succession ptanning for all senior positions within Vodafone and our
commitment to the development of internal talent.

Additionaliy, after a thorough search to identify an appropriate Non-
Executive Director with telecommunications experience, we were
pleased to welcome Sanjiv Ahuja to the Board in Novernber 2018.

Sanyiv brings extensive telecornmunicabions experience having worked
In various telecormn compantes inciuding Telcordia and Orange Ple and
enhances the knowledge and skills already brought by Board members.
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Last year we asked Samuel Jonah to remain on the Board for a further
12 menths which shareholders suppeorted by re-electing him at our
2018 AGM. After ten years on cur Board, Samuel will step down

at the conclusion of our AGM on 23 July 2019 lwould Like to take this
opportunity to thank Samuel for his effective and valuable contributions
to the Board over his tenure and wish him every success for the future.

These changes arein addiion to the three Non-Executive Directors
appointed to the Board since September 2015 who bring financial

Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate

Governance Code (the ‘Code’)

Inrespect of the year ended 31 March 2019 Viodafone Group Plc
was subject to the Code {availabie from wwwifrc.org.uk). The Board
ispleased to confim that Vodafone applied the principles and
cornplied with all of the provisions of the Cede throughout the year
Further information on compliance with the Code can be found

expertise, IT and technolegy experence. The refreshed cormposition asfotlows:
enables the Board to remain effective and we are comnmuitted to further
strengthening this with additicnal telecommunications expenence over Leadership Read more
the next 12 months.
Therole of the Board

We are committed to having a Board that is diverse In all respects and
we continue to take into consideration the targets set out In the Parker
and Hampton-Alexander reviews. | am pleased to report that the Board
15 currently exceeding its target of having 33% fernale representation
on the Board by 2020

Board effectiveness

This year the Board undertook an external effectiveness review

In accordance with the requirements under the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code. The review was undertaken by Raymond Dinkin
from Consilium and involved interviews with all of the Board members,
the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and the Executive
Committee, and observation of our interactions at a Board, Nominations
and Governance Committee and Audit and Risk Commitiee

meeting The review concluded that the Board remains effective.
Further information on the process ¢f Consilium's appeintrment and the
achions anising out of the review can be found on pages 66 to 67

As part of the review undertaken last year, the Board wanted further

Drvision of responsibilities
The Chairman

Non-Executive Directors

Effectiveness
Composition of the Board
Appointrments to the Board
Commitment
Development

Information and support

focus on developments in technelogy and the benefits and nsks Bvatuation

that this could pose This year we recewed regular training sessions Re-election
from our Group Chief Technology Officer and Cyber Secunty team,

culminating in a Board wisit to our Cyber Defence Centre. This visit

provided insight into the investments Vodafone has made to keep our Accountability

employee, custorner and supplier information secure against external
cyber threats

Stakeholder engagement

Vodafone's success 1s dependent on the Board taking decisions for
the benefit of our sharehelders and In doing so having regard to all
of our stakeholders

The Regulations and the new Cade have renewed the emphasis

on stakeholder engagement and on pages 62 to 64 you will find further
infermation on how we have engaged with alt of our stakeholders

this year, The Boardis committed to understanding the views of all

of Vodafone’s stakeholders in order to inform the decisions that we make

Looking ahead

The Boardis committed to mantaining the highest standards

of corparate governance across the Group to support the delivery of our
strategy and the creation of long-term sustainable value. Over the next
12 months we will also be focused on demonstrating our compliance
with the new Code and Regulatrons

Gerard Kleisterlee

Charman
14 May 2019

Finangial and business reporting
Risk management andinternal control

Audit Committee and auditors

Remuneration
The level and components of remuneration

Procedure

Relations with shareholders
Dialogue with shareholders

Constructive use of general meetings

Read more

Readmotre

Read more

Readmore

QPO

OJOJOJOXOROJO - BROIOKOJOJ -

Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules

We comply with the corporate governance statement requirements
pursuant to the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
by virtue of the inforrnation included in this "Governance” section

of the Annual Report together with information containedinthe
“Shareholder information” section cn pages 214 to 220.
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Governance

Division of responsibilities

Board roles and responsibilities

We have a clear division of responsibilities between our Chairman and
Chief Executive, each role is clearly defined and is quite distinct from
one another.

The Board currently compnses the Chairman, two Executive Directors Chief Financial Officer
and nine Non-Executive Directors Our Non-Executive Directors bring
wide and varied commercial and financial expenience to the Board and

Committees. A summary of each role can be found below,

— Supports the Chief Executive Officer in developing and implementing
the Group strategy,

— Leads the global finance function and develops key finance talent:

Chairman
— Ensures effective financial reporting, processes and controls are

Leads the Board, sets each meeting agenda and ensures the Board
receves accurate, timely and clear information in order to monitor,
challenge, guide and take sound decisions:

— Promotes a culture of open debate between Exacutive and Non-
Executive Directors and holds meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors, without the Executive Directors present,

— Regularly meetswith the Chief Executive and other senior
management to stay informed;

— Ensures effective cormnmunication with shareholders and
other stakeholders,

— Promotes high standards of corporate governance and ensures
Directors understand the views of the Company's shareholders
and other key stakeholders 50 they can censider them, and the
section 172 Companies Act 2006 factors, in Board discussions
and decision-making,

— Promotes and safeguards the interests and reputation of the
Company; and

— Represents the Company to custormers, suppliers, governments,
sharehclders, financial nstitutions, the media, the community and
the public

Chief Executive

- Provides coherent leadership of the Company, including representing
the Company to customers, suppliers, governmenits, shareholders,
financial Institutions, ernployees, the media, the community and the
public and enhances the Group's reputation,

— Leads the Executive Directors and serior management
team in running the Group's business, Including chainng the
Executive Committes;

— Develops and implements Group objectves and strategy having
regard to shareholders and other stakeholders;

— Recormmends remuneration, terms of employment and succession
planning for the senior executive tearm;

— Manages the Group’s nisk profile and ensures apprepriate Internal
controls aren place,

— Ensures compliance with legal, requlatory, corporate governance,
social, ethical and environmental requirernents and best practice; and

— Ensures there are effective processeas for engaging with,
communicating with, and listerung to, employees and cthers working
for the Company.

in place;

— Recormmends the annual budget and long-term strategic and
financiat plan; and

— Oversees Vodafone's relationships with the investment community.

Senior Independent Director

— Provides a sounding Board for the Chairman and acts as a trusted
intermediary for the Directors as required;

— Meetswith the Non-Executive Directors mthout the Charman
present) when necessary and at least once a year to appraise the
Charrman’s performance and communicates the results to the
Charman, and

— Tegether with the Nominations and Governance Committes
(excluding the Chairman), leads an orderly succession process for
the Chairman.

Non-Executive Directors
— Monitor and challenge the performance of managerment;
— Assistin development, approval and review of strategy;

— Review Group financial information and provide advice
to management;

— Engage with stakeholders and provide insight as to their views
including in relation to employees and the culture of Vedafone, and

— As part of the Nominaticns and Governance Committee,
review the succession plans for the Board and key members
of senior management.

Company Secretary

Ensures cormpliance with Board procedures and provides suppert
to the Chairman, to ensure Board effectiveness,

Assists the Chairman by organising induction and training
programmes and ensuring that all Directors have full and tirmely
access to allrelevant information;

Ensures the Board has high-quality nformation, adequate time and
appropriate resources in order to function effectively and efficiently,

Provides advice and keeps the Board updated on corporate
governance developments; and

— Facilitates the Cirectors’ induction pregrammes and assists with
professional development
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Board of Directors

Experienced, effective
and diverse leadership

Our business is led by our Board of Directors. Biographical details of
the Directors and senior managernent as at 14 May 2019 are as follows

(with further information available at vodafone.com/board).

Gerard Kleisterlee @
Charrman -
Independent on appointment

Tenure: 8 years

Skills and experience:

Gerard has extensive experience of
seniorleadershup of global businesses
bothin the developed and emnerging
markets.He bringsto the Groupa
deep understanding of the consumer
electronics, technology and lifestyle
industries gamed from his career with
Philips Electronics spanning over
30years and continuas 1o use this
expernence to oversee the development
of Vodafone's strategy and the
effeciveness of ts operations as

a total communications company.

Qther current appointments:

— Royal Dutch Shell, deputy chair,
senior ndependent director, chair
of the remuneration commitiee
and member of the nomination and
sLCCession committes

— ASML, chairman of superwsary board

Sanjiv Ahuja
Non-Executive Director
Tenure: <1 year

Skills and experience:
Sanpv has broad telecoms expertise,
having led mebile, broadband and
infrastructure companies, such as
Telcordia (formerty Bellcore), Orange
Fle and Tiiman Global, as well as
considerable international expernence
from operatingn Europe, the United
States, Africaand Asia Heisthe
founder and chairman of Tillman
Global Holdings, which provides
telecornmunications and renewable
enerdy projectdevelopment services.
His comprehensive knowledge of
the telecoms sector Is valuable to
Board discussions
Other current appointments:
~Tittrman Global Holdings LLC,
charman
— JCDecaux Small Cetls Limited, director

Nick Read
Chief Executive —
Executive Director

Tenure: <1 year (as Chief Executive}

Skills and experience;

As Chief Executive, Nick combines
strong cornrmercial and operational
leadershipwith a detaled
understanding of the industry and

its opportunities and challenges.

Prior to becoming Chief Executiven
October 2018, Nick served as Group
Cheef Financial Officer from Apoil
2014, and held a vanety of senior roles
including Chref Executive for Africa,
Middle East and Asia Pacific for five
vears and Chief Executive of Vodafone
UK, Prior to joming Vodafone, he held
senior global finance positions with
United Business Media Plc and Federal
Express Warldwide.

Other current appointments:
~ Bookmg Holdings Inc., non-
executive director

SirCrispinDavis a4 N
Non-Executive Director
Tenure: 4 years

Skills and experience:

Sir Crispin has broad-ranging experience
as a business leader within internatonat
contentand technology markets

from hus roles as chief executive of
RELX Group (formerly Reed Elsevier)
and the digital agency, Aegis Group

ple. and group managing director of
Guinness PLC (now Drageo ple) He

was kiighited In 2004 for services to
pubbshmg and information He brings
asirong COMMErciel perspective 1o
Board discussions

Qther current appaintments:
— Hasbro, non-executive director

— Oxford University, trustee and
member of the university board

— CVC Capital Pariners, adviser

— Rentoki lnvtial ple, non-
executive director

Margherita Della Valle
Chief Financial Officer -
Executive Director

Tenure: <1 year

Skills and experience:

Margherita brings considerable
corporate finance and accounting
expenence to the Board Shewas
Deputy Chief Financial Officer

from 2015 to 2018, Group Financial
Controller from 201010 2015, Chief
Finanoial Officer of Vodatone’s
European region from 2007 to 2010 and
Chief Financial Officer of Vodafone Italy
from 2004 to 2007. Margherita joined
Omnitel Promo itzbain'italyin 1994
and held vanous consumer marketing
POSItIoNs In business analytics and
custorner base management before
moving 1o finance, Omnitel was
acauired by Vodafone in 2000,

Other current appointments:
- None

Michel Demaré r
Non-Executive Director

Tenure: 1 year

Skilts and experience:

Michel brings extensive Internaticnal
finance, strategy and M&A experience
to the Board, ganed during his 18-year
career at Dow Chemical, as CFO of
Baxter Internationial (Europe), and as
CFQ and head of gtobal markets of
ABR Group. He was the non-execuive
chairman of Syngenta until the
company was sold to ChemChinan
2017 and was the vice charman of UBS
Group AG for W0years.

Other current appointments;

— Louig Dreyfus Company Holdings BY,
non-executive director

— IMD Business Schoolin Lausanne, vice
chairman of the supervisory board

— Department of Bankingand Finance
atthe University of Zurich, adwisory
board member

Valerie Goodingcee N @

Sertior Independent Director

Tenure; 5 years

Skills and experience:

Valene brings a wealth of international
business expenence obtained at
companies with tugh levels of customer
service ncluding Britrsh Airways and as
chief executive of BUPA which, together
with her focus on leadership and talent,
1svaluable to Board discussions.

Other current appointments:

— TULAG, non-execytive director

— Aviva UK Insurance Ltd, charman

— English National Ballet, trustee

— ENB Productions Limited, director

— Royal Botarical Gardens, Hew,
Queenstrustee

DameClaraFurse A
Non-Executive Director

Tenure: 4 years

Skills and experience:

Darne Clara brings to the Board adeep
understanding ofrternational capial
markets, regulation, service INdustries
and business transformation developed
from her previows roles as chref
executve officer of the London Stotk
Exchange Group ple and Credit Lyonnars
Rouse Ltd. Her financial proficiency 1s
highly valued as a member of the Audit
andRisk Cornmittee In 2008 she was
appainted Dame Commander of the
Order of the British Empire.

Other cuirent appointments:
— HSBC UK, non-executive chairman

— Amadeus IT Group SA,
non-executive direcior
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Committee Key:

A Auditand Risk Committee

ReneelJames N R
Non-Executive Director

Tenure:8years

Skills and experience:

Renee brings comprehensive
knowledge of the high technology
sector developed frem herlong career
atIntel Corparation where she was
president She s currently the chairman
and CEQ of Ampere Computing Her
extensive experience of International
management, technolegy and the
development and implementation of
corporate strategy 1s an asset to the
Board and the Comimittees of which
sheisamember.

Other current appointments:

— The National Security
Telecommunications Advisory
Committee, charman

— Carlyle Group. operatingexecutive

— Oracle Corporation, non-
executive director

- Ciigroup Inc., non-executive director

N Nominations and Governance Cormmittee

£

Samuel Jonahkee R
Non-Executive Director

Tenure: 10 years

Skills and experience:

Sarmuel brings expenence and
understanding of business operations
inemerging markets, parucularly

Africa Previously executive president of
AngioGold Ashanti Ltd, he provides an
nternational, commercial perspective
to Board discussions

GOther current appointments:

- Global Advisory Council of Bank of
Amenca, member

— President of Togo, adviser

— Iron Mineral Benefication Services,
non-execuive chairman

— Jonah Caprtal (Pty) Limited,
executive chairman

— Hollard tformerly Metropolitan)
Insurance Company Limited,
chairman

-~ The Investment Cimate Facility,
member of trustee board

Board and Committee meeting attendance

Hoard
Gerard leisterice 77
VitoroColagt~~ 3/3
NickRead 77
Mafgherata DellaVale?  5/5
Sanjiv Ahuje® /3
Sir Crispin Davis* 5/7
michel Dernaré® 7

Notes:

Nomirations

AudiandRsk  endGovemange  Remameration
Computtes Commitee Comemitiee
- 5/5 B

4/5 4/5 -

- - 3/3

EEVEEE R

AmparoMoraleda a

Non-Executive Director

Tenure: 1 year

Shills and experience:

Ampara brings stranginternational
technology experience to the Board
from her previous role as chief executive
officer of the international dvision

of Iberdola and a career spanning
20vears at BM, where sheheld a
number of positions across a range

of global locations,

Other current appeintments:

— Airbus Group, non-executive director,
chairof the nominations, governance
and remuneration committees

— CaxaBank, non-executive

L

Governance

e Catie
hER Py yiNG

R Remuneration Committee . Solid background signifies Committee Char

HEEE 4 R
David Nish @
Nen-Executive Director
Tenure: 3 years

Skills and experience:

David has wide-ranging operational

and strategic expenence as a senior
leader and has a strong understanding
of financral and capital markets through
his previous directorships which
include chief executive officer and chief
financial officer of Standard Life plc

and chief financial officer of Scottish
Power plc.

Other current appointments:
— HSBC Holdings plc, non-
executive director

— Uniersity of Dundee,

director and chair of the honorary professor
remuneration commuttee
— Sclvay, non-executive director
— Royal Academy of Economic and
Financial Services, member
Nu;n\‘;wancns
Audit and Risk ardd Governanice Remungration
Board Lommatiee Cartimttee Cornmities
Dr Mathias Dopfner® 172 - - 1/2
Darne Clara Furse w7 5/5 - -
Valerie Gooding cst V4 - 5/5 5/5
Renee James Y& - 5/5 5/5
Sarmuel Jonah kee wr - - 5/5
Amparo Maoraleda’ T/7 4/5 - -
David Nish W 5/5 - -

The maxrnum numperof schaduled meetings held duning the year that each Director could attend 1s shown next to the nurnber attended, Additional mestings were held as required

W BN

Vittone Colao stepped down from the Board on 30 Septernber 2(18.
Marghenita Della Valle wasappointed on 27 july 2018

Sanyiv Ahuja was appointed on 9 November 2018,

Sr Cnspin Davis was unable to attend two Board meetings and one Audit and Risk and Norminahons and Governance Coramittee meeting due fo medical reasqns
Michel Demaréwas appointed to the Rernuneration Committea on 27 july 2018
Drdathias Dopfrer was unable ta attend one Board and Remuneration Cormmties meating due to 3 prior busnesscommitment. He stepped down from the Board on 27 July 2018
Arngaro Moraleda was unable to attend one Audit and Risk Commattee meeting due to a prior business commitment
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Executive Committee

Delivering our strategy,
driving performance

Chaired by Nick Read, the Executive Committee focuses on managing
Vodafone's business affairs as a whole, which includes delivering

a competitive strategy in fulfilment of our purpose, driving financial
performance and ensuring good succession planning and a diverse

talent pipeline,

Membership

The Committee is comprised of Nick Read, Gref
Executive, Margherita Della Valte, Chief Financial
Officer and the serwar managers as detated
onthese pages Tenure refers to length of service
inrole,

Biographies forNick Read, and Margherita Detla
Valle can be found on page 56.

Nick Read
Chief Executive

Margherita DellaValle
Chief Financial Officer

Leanne Wood
Chief Hurnan Resources Officer
Tenure: <1 year

Responsibilities:

Leanne joined Vodafone on 1 April 2019.5he 1s
responsible for leading Vodafone's people and
organisation strategy which includes developmg
strong talentand leadership, effective orgarisations,
strategic capabilities and an engaging culture and work
environment, thereby building strong capabitites in
Vadafone to deliver growth

Previous roles include:

— Burberry Plc, chief people, strategy and corporate
affars officer (2015-2019)

- Diageo ple, varousroles inctuding group human
resources director (2000-2015)

Ahmed Essam
Chief Commercial Cperations and
Strategy Officer

Tenure: <1 year

Responsibilities:

Ahmed is responsible for Vodafonie’s global
comimercial operations and strategy, as well as
Innovation and transformation projects, including the
Company's digital transformation programme and the
Custorner eXpenence eXcellence global programme

Previous roles include:

— Vodafone Chief Executive Officer—Europe Cluster
(2016-2018)

— Vodafone Egypt, Chief Executive Officer (2014-2016)

— Vodafone Group, Group Commercial Director
2012-2014)

— Vodafone Egypt, various rales including customer
care and consumer business unit director
(1999-2012)

Johan Wibergh
Group Technology Officer

Tenure: 4 years

Responsibilities:

Johan isresponsible for leading Vodafone's global
technology organisation His role is Integral to
developing Vodafone's convergence strategy
onaglobal scale

Previous rolesinclude;
— Enicsson, various roles including executive VP
(1996-2015)

Rosemary Martin
Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Tenure: 9years

Responsibilities:

Rosemary 1s responsible for managing Vedafone's legal
risk and for providing legal, compliance and company
secretariat services to the Group

Previous roles include:
— Practical Law Company, chief executive officer
(2008~-20100

— Reuters Group Ple, vanous governance roles
including group general counsel and company
secretary (1997-2008)

— Rowe & Maw, partner (1990-1997)

Joakim Reiter
Group External Affairs Director
Tenure: 1 year

Responsibilitias;

Joakim leads Vodafone's engagement with external
stakeholders (including governments, regulators,
International institutions, the media and Industry
commentators) in arder to project Vodafone's position
on the contnbution of our ndustry to broader

palicy objectves and on issues of importance to

our customers and to the communities inwhich we
operate He isatse responsible for secunty, and for the
Vodafone Foundation, of which he is a trustee,

Previousrolesinclude:

= United Nations, assistarit secretary-general
and United Nations Conference on Trade and
Development, deputy secretary-general (2015-2017)

— Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Sweden, deputy director-
general (2014-2015)

— World Trade Organisation. ambassador (2011-2074)

—~ Permanent Representation to the European Union,
miruster councillor (2008-2011)
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Committee Meetings

Eachyear the Committee conducts a strategy review
to identify key strateqic fssues facing Vodafone

1o be presented to the Board,

The agreed strateqgy 1s then used as a basig for
developing the uproming budget and three year
operating plans.

Nick Jeffery

Chief Executive Officer —Vodafone UK

Tenure: 2 years

Responsibilities:

Nick is responsible for

- Defining Vodafone's strategy i the UK m accordance
with Group strategy and operating models,

— Delivering the strateqic vision and executing
commercial plans; and

— Ensuning delivery aganst KPls.

Previous roles include:

—Vodafone Group Enterprise, Chief Executive Officer
(2013-2016)

— Cable &Wireless Worldwide, Chief Executive Officer
202-2013)

—Vodafone Global Enterprse, Chief Executive Officer
(20062012

—Vadafone Group, Director, Business Marketing
(2004-2006)

Anténio Coimbra
Chief Executive Officer —Vodafone Spain

Tenure: 6 years

Responsibilities:

Antdrio 1s responsible for

— Defining Vodafone's strategy in Spain in accordance
with Group strategy and operating models,

— Delivening the strategic vision and executing
commercial plans, and

— Ensuring delivery against KPts

Previous roles include:

— Vodafone Portugal, Chief Executive Officer (2009-
2012), Executive Committee member (1995-2009),
Marketingand Sales Director (1952-1895)

— Apritel - Telco Association (on behalf of Vodafone
Portugal}, president (2005—-2007)

—Vodafone Japan, Chief Marketing Qfficer (2004)

— Olvett Portugal, marketing manager (1991-1592)

- Siemens Portugal, produce and sales manager
(1988-1991)

The Committee matten tmes during the year and
considered the following items:

~Purpose and stratégm
—Substanyal business devetoprnents and projects;

—Chief Executive’s update onthe business and the
fusiness environment;

—Lpdates oﬁ the)Group’s financiat perforﬁ;ance;
—Commercial and blsiness per\‘orménce updates:
-—Bfe;(lt preparation;

—Talentand success:g}n plén upié!ates.

DrHannes Ametsreiter
Chief Executive Cfficer —Vodafone Germany
Tenure: 3 years

Responsibilities:

Hannes 1s responsible for

— DefinngVodafone's strategy in Germany in

accordance with Group strategy and operating models;

— Positioning Vodafone Germany as a Gigabit
company, strengthening its role as Germany's
leading TV prowider and integrated player,

— Delvening the strategic vision, executing commescial
plans and delivery against KPlIs, and

— Shaping Vodafore's leadership role n
digital technologies.

Previous roles include:
~ Telekom Austria, group chief executive officer
(2009—-2015)

— Al Telekom, chief executive officer (2009)

— Mobilkom Austna/Telekom Austriz, chief marketing
officer (2001--200)

Vivek Badrinath
Chief Executive Officer — Rest of the World
and Interim CEQ Vedafone Business

Tenure: 2 years

Responsibilities:

Vivek oversees Vodafone's operations in the Vodacom

Group, india, Australia, Egypt, Ghana, Kenya and New

Zealand and Vodafone's enterprise business globally.

Thisincludes

— Defining Vodafone's strategy In these local
marketsin accordance with Group strategy and
operating models,

— Delivering the strategic vision and executing
commercial plans, and

— Ensurning delivery against KPis

Previous rolesinclude:
— AccorHotels, deputy chief executive (2014-2016)
— Qrange, deputy chief executive (2013-2014)

Governance

- Updates from the head of each Group function
includingupdates on technology, the regutatory
environmentand preparation for and compliance
with GOPR;

~Updatesfrom the Chief Executive Officers of each
market and regiom;

- Upaates and reports on heatth and safety matters;
and

— Presentatians from senior managers, ncluding
from the Groun Strategy & Commercial Planning
Duractor, Group Financial Controlier and Group
Wergers & Acquisitions Director.

Aldo Bisio

Chief Executive Officer —Vodafone Italy

Tenure: 5 years

Responsibilities:

Aldo s responsible for

- Defining Vodafone's strategy in ltaly n accordance
with Group strategy and operating models;

— Delvering the strategic vision and executing
commercidl plans; and

— Ensunng delivery against KPls

Previcus roles include:

— Aniston Thermo Group, chief executive officer/
managing director (2008-2013)

- McKinsey & Company, senior partner (2007-2008)

— RCS Quotidiar, managing director (2004—2006)

— McHKinsey & Company, partner (1992-2004)

Serpil Timuray
Chief Executive Officer — Europe Cluster

Tenure: <1 year

Responsibilities:

Serpil oversees Vodafone's operations in the

Netherlands, Portugal, Ireland, Greece, Romarna,

Czech Republic, Hungary, Albarna, Malta and Turkey

Thisincludes

- Defining Vodafone strategy in these local markets in
acoordance with Group strategy and operating models,

- Delwvenng the strategic vision and executing
commercial plans: and

- Ensuring delivery against KPls

Previous roles include:

— Vodafone, Chief Commeraal Operations and
Strategy Officer (2016-2018)

—Vodafone, Regional Chief Executive Officer— AMAP
(2013-2016)

—Vodafone Turkey, Chief Executive Officer
(2005-2013)
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Board activities

What the Board did this year

Board activities are structured to develop the Group’s strategy and to enable
the Board to support executive management on the delivery of itwithin a
transparent governance framework. The table below sets out the key areas
of focus for the Board's activities and topics discussed during the year.

Business performance and
strategic developments

Strategy

- Reviewed and approved the refreshed purpose and revised strategy;

— Approved the final steps with respect to the Vodafone Idea merger,

— Approved the proposed acquisition of Liberty Giobal's assets
in Germany, Czech Republic, Hungary and Romania;

— Receved updates on Vodafone's competitive landscape, and

— Approved the long-term viability statement.

Local market focus

— Reviewed the local markets with a focus on Germany, India, Italy,
Spain and Rest of the World; and

— Visited the following local markets either indvidually or collectively.
Egypt, Germany, Ireland, ltaly, Romania, Spain, South Africa
and Turkey

Business developments

— Discussed 5@ spectrum auctions;

— Monitored the EMF report;

— Reviewed the quarterly reports on market trends; and

— Reviewed and monitored the business development projects
in the pipeline,

Financial

Group budget

— Approved the 2019/2020 budget; and

— Monitared performance against the approved budget of the
Cornpany and each of Vodafone's businesses

Approval of the financial statements

— Approved the 2018 Annual Repert and Accounts and determined
they were far, balanced and understandable; and

— Approved the 2018/2019 half-year results.
Dividends

— Recommended final dividend for 2017/2018; and
— Approved the 2018/201% interim drvdend.

Governance,
risk and regulatory

Group principalrisks

- Rewviewed and approved the annual risk managerent report
and approved the sk tolerance and risk management plans;

— Reviewed and approved the annual compliance and nisk reports,
Including the assessment system of internal control;

— Rewviewed and monitored the matenal litigation report; and

— Received briefings on cyber security, technology and risk of global
economic disruption.

Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

— Reviewed and approved the Group's Slavery and Hurnan Trafficking
Staternent, for publication on the Cornpany's website

Corporate governance

— Rewviewed and approved the Notice of AGM and corporate
governance disclosures;

— Considered the key prowisions of the new UK Corporate Governance
Cade and the application of it to the Company;

- Rewviewed and approved the Matters Reserved for the Board and each
of the Commuttees’ terms of reference;

— Discussed the findings of the externally facilitated Board evaluation
and agreed actions for the following year; and

— Charrman and Non-Executive Directors metwithout the Executive
Directors present.

General Data Protection Regulation

— Recewed traning on the key provisions of the General
Data Protection Regulation and receved regular updates
on the Group's compliance.

Political/Regutatory

— Moenitored the political and regulatory trends and developments
and theirimplications for the business,

Committee oversight

~ Received regular reports of the proceedings of the Audit &nd Risk
Committee, Remuneratron Committee and the Norminations and
Governance Committes.
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People and culture

Diversity and succession planning
— Reviewed and approved the Board Diversity Policy:
— Discussed talent, diversity and succession planning; and

— Raviewed the results of the annual employee opinion survey

Health and Safety

— Reviewed updates regarding health and safety within the Group.
Approval of the recommendations of the

Nominations and Governance Committee

— Approved the appointments of Nick Read, Marghenta Della Valle
and Sanjiv Ahuja

Shareholders

Shareholder value
— Reviewed areport on shareholder return;

— Reviewed feedback followang the investor roadshows and other
Institutional shareholder meetings; and

— Recewed updates from the Investor Relations Director
on the current climate.

Further information on stakeholder engagement can be found
onpages 62 1o 64.

Governance

EbrEat g

The Board’s visit to South Africa

The Board's strateqy dayis a sigjnﬁﬁéaht e\}éﬁt i&ifhzn the annruéﬁq -
calendar and each year it takes place in one of Vodafore's key
locations. This year it was heldin Johannesburg, South Africa.

Holding the strateqy day off-site not only enables the Board

the tirme to focus on Vodafone's strategy, it also fagilitates the
Board's engagement with employees and the community
inthe local market. The visit helps the Board to gain a deeper
understanding of the operations and cutture of the local market.

Strategy day

The annual strategy day provides the Board the opportunity to come
together to discuss in detal Viedafone's strategy and implernentation
plans. This year Nick Read set out his vision for a revised strategy
which Board members and Executive Committee members discussed
insmatl groups before coming back togather to have awider
discussion, The result of this session was our revised stratagy which
aims to drive shareholder retums through a focus on operationat
excellence and orgaric growth by. deepening custorer engagement;
transforming our operating rmodel and improving asset utifisation.

Vodacorys business

During the Board 5 visit to South Africa. Vodacom's senior
management showcased Vodacor Warld, an interactive exhibition
of Vodacorn's business areas. The Board, in small groups, received
presentations on retail and digitat services, finandial services,

IoF and bigdata. These sessions gave the Board a chance to interact
with Vodacom's senicr management, asking questions as they
moved threugh the exhibition to gain a greater understanding

of the opportunities available to Vodacom in each area.

Community engagement

Inorder to understand the work being undertaken with the locat
community, Board membersvisited the Lernoshanang Teacher
Developrment Centre whichis situated in Atteridgevile, “Custaat”

and supported by the Vodacom Foundatior. The training centre
offers ICT training for teachers, meluding curriculurn implernentation.
This is a nationwide teacher cevelopment initiative to improve

the quality of instruction at all levels with a particular emphasis
onmathematics and (CT literacy. Their prirmary obiactive 1s to improve
the youth [T skills i various regions of South Africa. The Directors also
received a briefing about other projects supported by the Foundation
including New Beginningz, a Gender Based Violence Command
Centre and Children's Horne, which supparts children affected

by HIVAds including abandoned babies.

Stakeholder engagement

At the end of the Board's visit. a gala dinnerwas held which the
Directors, Executive Comimitiee, senior management from Vodacom
and a selection of stakeholders including key suppliers, customers
and government officials attended. This provided an informat
opportunity for the Board to interact with stakeholders in the local
market directly,
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Engaging with our stakeholders

Committed to effective
engagement with all of
our stakeholders

We are committed to maintaining good communications and building

positive relationships with all
to building a sustainable business.

:%‘ i :
Our customers

Our customers are made up of individuals from multiple nationalities,
gender, age group, ncorne strata and ethnicity: We also serve
arange of organisations across the globe from smati enterprises
tolarge multinationats,

Our engagements are insight based and our offeri Ngs contextual and
tailored for the communication needs of our consumers. We believe
irtan inclusive digital society that oyr techrologies can enable and

i uson the joumey to this exciting fuiure
by constantly improving their experience and delivering efficient ang
Cost effective solutions.

Eachyear. we interview in excess of one millipn Customers and
potential custorners across our markets. Our NFS programme s orie

ofthe targest global customer satisfaction benchrmarks ranning,

ur people

Cur people are <riticat to the successful delivery af our strategy.
tis essential that they are £ngaged and connected to oyr purpose
and values, Throughout the yearwe focusedon g number of areas
1o ensure that our peaple are highly engagedin group and our
locat markets,

our stakeholders as we seethis as fundamental

How we engaged with aurcustomers during the vear

- We track cansideration of our brangd and customer satisfaction
continuously in all of our markets. 12 months a vear,
and in a competitive context. Thrs allows us to respond
o engaing issues, challenges and Competitive threats, and also
to share ideas that have peen proven effective 1n Moving
Custormer experience orperception from one to many markets
Thisyear we supplemented our “Future is exaiting Ready?”
brand promise with a dedicated identity for our anterprise

unique offerng “Pass” ang 148 million consumers on our
4G offering.

All of our markets have an ndependent youth offenng, with
21 markets using the Future jobs Finder o engage with
our custorners,

We continue towork towards our goal of connecting
an additional 50 milion wornen living in EMerging markets
to mobile by 2025

0w

Read more abour deepeningeustamer
encagementon Pages14ta 17

How we engaged with OUF people during the year

—~ Wisimpertant farour employees o feel connected to our
PUrpose, and this vear we launched our refreshed purpose —
“We connect fora better future” —which €ncourages and allows
all our employees tg getinvolved and contribute,

= OurHR initiatives are focused on ensuring we have good
managers, the right recognition and incentives and learning ang
developrnent opportunities particularly in relation to building
digital skills where we launched a range of content.

— Everyyear, we invite af| of our people to Participatein aur online
Glabal People Survey which helps us to assess our employees’
concerns and aspirations Our overall Engagement Index
score reached 80% ~ demonstrati ng

usasan employer,

O

Read more about bow We engagewith oyr
employees gn pages 42 1o 43
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Ou suppliers

Our business is helped by more than 10,800 suppliers who partner
withi s, ranging from start-ups and small businesses to large
multinationat companies. Our annual expenditure across this diverse
suppiy chain is £22 bitlion for FY19, providing us with equipment and
software to run our networks, products and services to connect to our
rietwork and other services to serve our customers and colleagues.

We actively engage aur suppliers to comply with our requirements
given they can have a social, environmentat and ethicalimpact.

Our local communities
and non-governmental
organisations (NGOs)

We believe that the long-term success of our business is closely tied
to the success of the communities in which we operate.

Threugh our products and services, we interact with tocal
communities on a daily basis. Whether in comrnunities in some
of Europe’slargest aties or remote villages in Africa, we seek

1o be a force for good wherever we operaie,

We also actively engage and work with many different NGOs around
the world, on a variety of topics that range from conflict minerals

to digital human nghts. This engagement is essential to help

us understand broader sccietal concerns and perspectives.

Governance

How we engaged with our suppliers during the year

— We recognise we can make a dfference working with
our supplers and regularly hold events and conferences
on key 1ssues. We held safety forums in different countries
avery quarter and an LGBT+ event called “Partners in Pnide”
to encourage adoption of UN Global LGBT+ standards

— Over 3,500 suppliers have enrolled to access supply chain
financing facilities and free e-invoicing tools we have made
available. Cur suppliers have the opportunity to take up early
invoice payments on a completely voluntary basis, where
payment can be taken in advance of agreed terms at much
lower rates than they are Uikely to receive under traditional
factoring or borrowing arrangermnents.

— InApril 2019, we hosted a premier technology event, the Arch
Summit, in Luxembourg. This event encourages our suppliers
to explore the latest technologies, network with peers,
engage with business leaders and, for ambitious start-ups,
an opportunity to secure investment. Visit archsummit.|u for
further detalls of the event

— Werecognise that small, innovative technology start-ups
are particularly sensitive to cash flow and to support them
we introduced an "Innovation Fast Lane” scherme, which has
simplified contracting and enables lower payment terms,
capped at a maximumn of 21 days from date of receipt of invoice,

@ @ Read more about how we work with our supphers

on social, enwironmental and ethical mpact oh page 39

How we engaged with our local communities during
the year

— Through its “Connecting for Good” programme, the Vodafone
Foundation supports local community projects around the
wortd, often run in partnership with charitable organisations and
local NGCs.

— Vodafone s a Board member of the multi-stakeholder Globat
Network Initiative which brings together ICT companies,
avil socety groups, academnics and investors with a shared
commitment to promote and advance freedom of expression
and privacy worldwide Read more on page 40.

— Wework to understand and address any public concerns

about the location of our base stations. With the developrment
of 5G technology and in preparation for commercial launches,
we have worked across industry to ensure that our technology
continues to be compliant with national regulations and
international guidelines.

Read mare sbout ourlocat commurities and
NGOs at vedafone.com/sbreporting
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How we engaged with regulators and governments
during the year

— Ourengagement has been focused on building
an understanding of the telecoms and digital market, and its
contribution to the economy and society

— We have sought to influence the shape of the regulatory,
legrsiative and public policy environmment i a way that reflects
the needs of our customers, This has ncluded making the case
far an enviranment that facilitates investment in technology.
such as a 5G, full fibre and T, and promoting competition.

Regulators and govemmentsL

We engage on an ongoing basls wﬂh ol regulators, government

— We have also engaged onssues such as the allocation
of spactrum and the protection of consumers. in addiion,
our engagement has nvolved identifying and putting

stakehoiders and political representatives.
This includes responding to policy consultations and formal

information requests: attending. speaking at and hosting events;

forward areas of potential partnership between businesses,
governments, regulators and others to tackle public policy
issues, such as extending geographic coverage and connecting

taking part in industry meetings: and engaging in one-to-one the disconnected insaciety.

meetings with minisiers, elected representatives, policy officials
and requiators.

@ @ fead more about ow we migate political

We als0 engage with industry bodies and trade associations. andregulatory nskon page 46

How we engaged with our shareholders during the year
Institutional shareholder meetings

— We held meetings with major iInstitutionat shareholders,
mdividuat shareholder groups and financial analysts
throughout the year in vanous geographic locations to discuss
the business performance and strategy These were attended
by the appropriate mx of Directors and senior management,
including our Chairman, Senior Independent Cicecter, Chief
Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Executive Commuttee
members, senior leaders and the Investor Relations team.
Institutional shareholders alse met with the Chairman
to discuss matters of governance.

— In addition, webcasts and conference calls were held in respect
of pur quarterly cesults, with the Chuef Executive and Chief
Financial Officer hosting briefing sessions for our half-year and
full-year results respectively

Our sharder

We maintain an active dialogue with our shareholders throughout the
year through a planned programme of mvestor relations activities.
This ensures the views of ourinvestors are taker into account when
Board decisions are taken. In addition to the direct engagement
undertaken, the Board is provided with regular updates of investor
relgtions activities.

Retal shareholders

~ We continue to communicate with our retar shareholders

We respond ta daily queries from shareholders and anafyststhrough through our dividend cormmunications and our website.

our investor relations tearn and have a section of our website which
is dedicated to shareholders and analysts: vodafone.com/investor shareholders with their unciaimed payments By 31 March
which includes all of our financial restdts presentations, 2019 we had returned £2.87 million.

Our registrars, Computershare and Deutsche Bank (as custodians © AGM

of our ADR programme) also have 3 team of people to answer — The AGM s an important event n our annual programrme

shareholder and ADR holder queriesn relation to fechnical of engagementactivities. The AGM is attended by our Board

aspects of their holdings such as dividend payments and and Executive Committee members and is open to all our

shareholding balances. shareholders to atterid. A summary presentation of financal
results is given before the Chairman deals with the formal
business of the meeting. All shareholders present can ask
questions of the Board during the meeting. Customer Services
and Investor Relations representatives are also available before
and after the meeting to answer any additional questions
shareholders may have

— At the 20718 AGM. all of the resolutions put to shareholders

to vote on a poll passed with percentages ranging from 92 47%
0 95.91%.

— During 2018 we undertock a programme to reunite our
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Induction, development and evaluation

Board induction
and development

Governance

We are committed to ensuring that our Directors have a full understanding
of all aspects of our business so they can be effective in their roles, through

their induction and ongoing training.

Board induction

We have a comprehensive induction programme in place for our newly
appointed Directors. Each new Director is provided with a tailored
Induction prograrmme to suit therr indvidual needs. This involves
meetings with other members of the Board, Executive Committee
members and senior managernent, it also covers technical briefings and
site visits. During the nduction, each Director 1s encouraged to identify
areas which they would ke additional inforrmation on, or further
rmeetings, which are then arranged by the Company Secretary

On completion of the nduction programme, all new Directors have
sufficient knowledge and understanding of the business to enable
them to effectively contribute to strategic discussions and oversight

of the Group.

On joiming the Board, Sanjiv Ahuja was provided with aninduction
programime which has been designed to ensure he gains a full
understanding of the Group, iIncluding our business, culture and values,
strategy, governance and financial posttion.

Board training and development

To assist the Board in undertakingits respensibiliies, ongoing training

15 provided for all Directors and traming needs are assessed as part of the
Board evaluation protedure. The Board programme includes regular
presentations from management, site visits and informal meetings,
tehunled their understanding of the business and sector This year Lhe
Directors recerved tramning on1 Ui folluwii iy,

Local markets

The annual strategy day 15 a sigmificant event within the annual calendar,
Thisyear the Board held its strategy day in Johannesburg, South

Africa There they interacted with senior management and were given
an interactive overview of Vodacom's business. Further information

on the Board's visit to South Africa can be found on page 61.

Cirecters are also given the oppartunity to visit other local rarkets
indmidually. During the year, site visits were macde by Board members
to the followsng local markets Egypt. Germany. Ireland. Italy, Romania,
Spain, South Africa and Turkey. These visits help to improve the
breadth and depth of their knowledge of Vodafone and engagerment
on an individual levelwith senior management and employees in the
respective markets,

Local market focus sessions were also held during Board meetings
covening the German, indian, ltalian, Sparish and Rest of the
World markets

Operating environment

Board meetings atse included sessions on Vodafone's competitive
landscape and poliical and regulatory trends and developmenits
and therr implications for Vodafone in addition to the reqular updates
provided on business development,

Legal and governance updates

The Group General Counsel and Company Secretary provided updates
on current legal and governance 1ssues. These included updates on the
General Data Protection Regulation, the Regulations and the new Code

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Generat Counsel and Company Secretary. Directors may take
independent legal and/cr financial advice at the Company's expense
whenit s jJudged necessary In order to discharge their responsibitities
effectively. No such independent advice was soughtin the 2019
financial year.

Training opportunity: Cyber security and technology

The 2018 Board evaluation hié)hlighted the Board's desire for further
focus on develapraents in technology and the benefits and risks that
these could pose,

As one of Vodzfone's top ten pringipal risks, cyber threat and
information security is a key area of focus. Yodafone aims for
asecure digital future for our custorners. Security underpins our
commitment to protecting our custormers with reliable connections
and keeping their data safe.

Thisyesr, the Board visited Vodafone's Cyber Defence Centre and
recetved training on cyber security from the Head of Global Cyber
Defence. The training prowided an insight into the changes taking
place in the cyber security landscape, external and internal cyber
threats and Vodafone's key activities to managing cyber security
risks. Regular briefings were alse provided on cyber security
throughout the year.

Inaddition to cyber security, the Board also received regular
briefings on emerging technology, ncluding 5G connectivity and
governance of technology The Board recenved a technical briefing
from the Group Chief Technology Officer, ahead of the taunch of 5G
in 19 trial sites in March 2019

®

See pages 44 1o 51 for further
details of Vodafone's prmeipat risks
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Continually monitoring and
improving our performance

The Board recognises that it needs to continually monitor and improve its
performance. Thisis achieved through the annual performance evaluation,
full induction of new Board members and ongoing Board development.
The conclusions of this year's review have been positive and confirmed that

the Board remains effective,

Process undertaken for our external evaluation

In accordance with the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code and our
three year cycle, the 2019 Board evaluation was externally faciitated.
Below s an cverview of the how the evaluation was conducted.

Step Appointment

The Group General Counsel and Cornpany Secretary
provided a list of external board evaluation providers to the
Board. Following discussion, Rayrmond Dinkin of Consitiurm
was selected to undertake the Board's external evaluation
inrespect of financiat year 2019, Consilium has no other
connection with Vodafone.

S
P Evaluation process

The objectives of the review were to provide an independent

assessment of Vodafone Group's Board effectiveness and

governance, including the effectiveness of its Committees.

Mr Binkin reviewed the prior 12 rmonths’ Board and
Committee agenda, minutes, Board packs, strategy papers
and analysts reports. All Directors, the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary, Group HR Director and Group Chief
Technology Officer completed a qQuestionnaire and were
interviewed by Mr Dinkin, whe alsc consulted the Group
Investor Relations Director and the Executive Committee.

In addition, Mr Dinkin attended a Board Meeting,
aNominations and Governance Committee and part

of an Audit and Risk Committee meeting to observe the
interactions between Directors and also with Executive
Committee members and senior management.

S?’ Evaluation findings

Following completion of the report outlining the findings

of the review, it was circulated to the Board for its
consideration. Mr Dinkin provided feedback to the Chairman
and Senior Independent Director and facilitated a discussion
of the report with the Board in March 2019 in order to agree
the priority actions for the financial year 2020 which can

be found on these pages. The Senior Independent Director
also met with the Non-Executive Directors to review the
Chairman's performance.

Board expertise

Progress against 2018 actions

itwas identified that the Board would benefit from more updates
in respect of Vodafone Business as it was evolving and this was built
into the annual calendar,

See page 6010 61 4or detailson the Board's
@ activities during the year

Board composition

Progress against 2018 actions

Following a thorough search to identify an appropriate Non-Executive
Director with telecommunications experience, Sanfiv Ahuja was
appointed to the Board n November 2018 Sanjiv brings extensive
telecommunications experience having worked invarious telecorn
companiesincluding Telcordia and Crange Ple.

See page &9 for details of Sanpv's
@ appoirtment process

Board training and development

Progress against 2018 actions

ftwas acknowiedged that the Board would benefit from ongoing
training, particutarty on developments in technotogy. Accordingly, this
year the Board received regutar training sessions frorn the Group Chief
Technology Officer and Cyber Security teamn, culrninating in a Board
visit to Vodafone's Cyber Deferice Centre.

See page 65 for detatts of the Board's vistto
the Cyber Defence Centre

Strategy

Progress against 2018 actions

Inorderto balénce focus on &ganic growth and portfolio
Managerment, the Board agenda has been carefully managed with the
Chalrrnan and Chief Executive to allocate appropriate time,

Seepages 60to 61 for details of the Board's
@ actities during the year
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Our three year Board evaluation cycle

Internal evaluation:
with the assistance of LintstockLimited,
aLondon-based firm, which has no other
connection with Vodafone,

This year’s findings

Censideration should be given to further engagement between Non-
Executive Directors and the business including rmore individual visits
to tocal markets and interactions with senior management.

This year’s findings

Forus should continue to be placed on broadening the perspective
of the Board and ensuring continuity of knowtedge during Board
changes. The Board rernains intent on enswiring its composition

has the diversity and skills required to be effective.

This year's findings

To ensﬁre thé"c thie Board is kept informed andqup té date with the latest
developments impacting Vodafone's operatinig emvironment, the Board

may benefit from more engagement with other techinology companies.

External speakers at Board meetings on topics such as developments
in requlation and technciogy may also be beneficial.

This year’s findings

To ensure continued focus on execution of the Cornpany’s strategy.
more time should be found on the Board's agenda to review progress
on delvery of the strategy

External evaluation:
facilitated by Raymond Dinkin of Consilium
which has no other connection with Vodafone.
Further information can be found below.

Governance

L ats

internal evaluation;
further details will be provided
innextyear'sreport.

Action for 2020

Opportunities for more Non-Executive Director local market visits are
being developed. After each vist Directors will give feedback to the
Chief Executive. Going forward more senior managers witl present

at Board meetings 10 enable direct engagement with the Board.

Action for 2020

The Board will continue to use opportunities inits natural lifecycle

10 addressidentified skitls gaps to ensure that the Board's composition
is aligned with the Compary's strategic goals, inctuding to further
strengthen the telecornmunications experience on the Board.

Action for 2020

Arrangerments are being made for speakers frorm other technology
companies to meet with the Board. Efforts are being made to ensure
Directors are provided with timely and informative material

on developments impacting Vodafone's operating environment
during the year,

Action for 2020

When deciding the agenda for Board meetings dunng the year,

the Chairman and Chief Executive together with the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary will ensure that sufficient time

is allocated to itemns relating to the execution of the strategy to aliow
time for deeper discussion.
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Nominations and Governance Committee

ominations and Governance Committee
{the Committee) continues its work of evaluating
the compc 10f the Board and ensuring that our
governance is effective,
Chairman
Gerard Kleisterlee

Chonre b e o s

Members
[ERat

Key objective:

To make sure the Board compnses individuals with the necessary
skills, knowledge and experience to ensure that itis effective

In discharging its responsibilities and to have oversight of all
mattersrelating to corporate governance

Responsibilities:

— Assessing the composition, structure and size of the
Board and its Committees and making reccmmendations
on appointments to the Board:

— Succession planning for the Board and Executive Committee:

— QOverseeing the performance evaluation of the Board,
its Committees and individual Directors; and

— Monitoring developmentsin all matters relating to corporate
governance, bringing any issues to the attention of the Board.

The Cormmittee 1s composed solely of ndependent
Non-Executive Directors. The Committee had five scheduled
meetings and one additional meeting duning the year,

and attendance by members at Committee meetings can
be seen on page 57. Committee meetings were attended

by Committee members, with other individuals and

external advisers invited to attend all or part of the meetings
as appropriate.

FY19 highlights:

— Overseeing the appomntment of the new Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer;

— Appointrnent of Sanjiv Ahua as a Non-Executive Director,

— Planning the succession of the Chief Human Resources
Officer.and

— Responding to the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
consultation and assessing how the new Code wallimpact
the Company and the role of the Committee.

The Committee’s Key areas of focus for the next financial year are
as follows:

FY20 key areas of focus:

- Board and Executive Committee succession planning in order
to maintain the necessary balance of skills, knowledge and
experience to remain effective; and

— Continuing to monitor compliznce with the new Code
and Regulations.

The terms of reference of the Committes, which were reviewed
and updated in March 2019, are avallable on the Viodafore
website at vodafone.com/governance

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Nominattons and
Governance Committee report for the year ended 31 March 2019

This year, the rnan focus of the Cornmittee has been Board composition,
succession planning and corporate governance matters As!mentioned
n my Chairman’s letter on page 52, at the end of September 2018

we said farewell to Vittorio Colao and, on behalf of the Board, [ would

like to record our gratitude to Vittorio for an outstanding tenure and

to express our confidence in Nick Read and Margherita Della Vale in the

creation of and moving forward with the Company’s refreshed strategy

. Additicnally, Sarmuel Jonah will be standing down from the Board

following the 2019 AGM after ten years of service and on behaif of the
Beard, lwould also ke to thank Samuel for his valuable contribution
to Board discussions

The Committee 15 also delighted to welcome Sanyiv Ahuja to the Board
who was appointed as a new Non-Executrve Director in Novermnber
2018, Sanjiv brings extensive telecomns experience, having led mobile,
breadband and infrastructure cormnpanies, as well as considerable
international expenence from operating n Europe, the US, Africa and
Asia An insight into the Comrmittee’s appointrment process for Sanjiv can
be found on page 69

To find the most sutable candidates for the Board, the Committee
considers the skills, experience and attributes required to create
adiverse Board which is capable of driving the Company forward
successfully in fulfilment of its purpose and strategic goals.

The Committee also ensures that initiatives are In place to develop
the talent pipeline. As Charman of the Cornmittee, L take an active
role in overseeing the progress made towards improving diversity

1N appointments to the Board and Executive Committee in a way that
s consistent with the long-term strategy of the Group. The Cormmittee
will continue to monitor the balance of the Board to ensure that broad
expertise Is avallable from the existing members, and will recommend
further appointments as and when appropriate.

Lastly, following the publication of the new Code and Regulations
1N 2018, the Committee reviewed the impact of the changes
on the Company

Changes to the Board and Committees
During the year to the date of this report, the following changes were
made to the Board:

Following the 2018 AGM:
— Margherita was appointed as a Director and Chief Financial Officer:;

— Nick's rale changed to Chief Executive Officer-Designate before
he became Chief Executive in Cctober 2018;

— Michel Demaré became a member of our Remuneration Committee:
and

— DrMathias Dépfner stepped down from the Board after more than
three years of service,

On 30 September 2018 Vittoric resigned as the Chief Executive and

as a Director of the Company and was succeeded by Nick.

Addrtionally, as announced on 27 March 2019, at our AGM
on 23 July 2019:

- Samuel Jonah will not seek re-election after ten years of service;

— Dame Clara Furse will become a member cf the Remuneration
Committee and step down from the Audit and Risk Cornrittes; and

— Sanjiv Ahuja and Michel Cemaré will become members of the Audit
and Risk Committee.
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Assessment of the independence of the

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Executive Directors have submitted themselves for re-election
at the 2015 AGM, with the exception of Samuel Jonah who is standing
down at the AGM. Sanjiv will be subject to election for the first time

In accordance with our Articles of Association.

The Committee reviewed the independence of all the Non-Executive
Drrectors All are considered independent in accordance with

UK requirements and they continue to make effective contributions
and effectively challenge management, During the course of the
financial year, Samuel Jonah's tenure exceeded nine years, however
the Committee was confident that he was able to demonstrate
independent jJudgernent in Board discussions during this period.

The Executive Directors’ service contracts and Non-Executive Directors’
appointment letters are avallable forinspection at our registered office
andwill be available at the 2019 AGM

Management of Conflicts of interest

The Committee and the Board are satisfied that the external
cornmitments of the Non-Executive Directors and of me, your
Chairrnan, do not conflict with our duties and commitrnents as Directors
of the Company, and that each Non-Executive Director is able

to dedicate sufficient time to the Company's affarrs

Directors have a duty under the Companies Act 2006 te avoid

a situationinwhich they have or may have a direct or indirect interest
that conflicts or might conflict with the interests of the Company.
This duty is in addition to the existing duty cwed to the Company

to disclose to the Board any interest in a transaction or arrangement
under consideration by the Company

Our Directors must. report any changes to theirr commitrnents

to the Beard, immediately notify the Comipany of actual or potential
conflicts or a change In circurmnstances relating to an existing
authorisation; and complete an annual conflicts questionnaire

Any conflicts or potential conflicts identified are considered and,

as appropriate, authorised by the Board in accordance with the
Company’'s Articles of Association A register of authorised conflicts
is also reviewed periodically.

Cunng the finandal year. no actual conflicts were identified and one
new potential conflict was identified and duly authonised by the Board.
The Commmittes 1s comfortable that it has measures in place to manage
and mitigate this potential conflict

Board evaluation

In accordance with the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘2016
Code) Viedafone conducts an annual evaluation of Board and Board
Committee performance, which is facilitated by an independent third
party at least once every three years. This year the performance of the
Board and Cormnmittees was assessed by Raymond Dinkin from Consilium.
The Committee oversaw the evaluation process and was Involved

In the selection of the external provider for the review Further details
ofthe review, the process followed to appoint Consiium and the actions
to be taken over the next 12 months as a result of the review can be found
on pages 66 and &67. The Committee 1s pleased to report that the
performance evaluation concluded that the Committee operated well

Succession planning

The Committee monitors the length of tenure and the skills and
experience of the Non-Executive Directors to assist in succession
planmng Detalls of the length of tenure of each of the Directors
can be found on pages 56 and 57 and a sumimary of the skills and
experience of the Non-Executive Directors can be found opposite
The Comimittee 1s confident that the Board has the necessary mix
of skills and experience to contribute to the Company's strategic
objectives but ams to further strengthen the telecormmunications
experence on the Board duning the next financial year

Governance
Experience and skills
Non-Executive Directors
ey 228 2
THE 2998 e 28098
OO 0008 ey RS8R

Further to the publication of the new Code and the requirement that the
chair should notremain In post beyond nine years from the date of therr
firstappointment to the Board, a subset of the Committee led by our Seror
Independent Director, Valerie Gooding, and excluding me, your Chairrman,
has Instructed an external executive search consuttancy MWM Consulting
to assistin the search for my successor. MWM Consulting has no other
connectionwith Yodafone and is an accredited firm under the Enhanced
Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms No decision has currently
beer: taken as to when | may step down from the Board and shareholders
willbe keptinformed as required.

In addition to the succession planning for Board roles, the Committee
recelved several presentations during the year relating to the succassion
planning for the Executive Committee. The Group HR Director nformead the
Committee of hisintention to teave the Company after ten years of service
and a successor, Leanne Wood, was identified. Potential successers

have been identified for other top senior managerment positions and the
Cornmittee will continue to review succession planning and monitor

the progress and success of the development plans which have been
established for relevant employees.

Appointment process

When ronsidering the recruitment of new members of the Board,
the Cornrmittee adopts a formal and transparent procedure with
due regard to the skills, knowledge and level of experienice required
aswell as diversity.

Sanjiv Ahuja—Non-Executive Director

The Cornmittes had previously identified that the addition

of a Non-Executive Direcior with telecommunications experience
would be beneficial to the compaosition of the Board.

During the search for anew Non-Executive Director external

search consultancy, Russell Reynolds Associates, was engaged

to support the recruitment process. They have no other connection
with the Cornpany other than providing recruitment services and
are an accredited firm under the Enhanced Code of Conduct for
fxecutive Search Firms.

Details of the stages of the appontment process that were followed
inrespect of Sanjiv Ahuja can be found below:

Step Step Step Step - Step
1 2 3 4 ) 5
Engage Sherttisting interview  Recommendation Appointment
withsearch  ofcandidates  processwith totheBoard  termsdrafted
consultancy by Commitee  onthechosen  andagreed
and provide Committee. members candidate, with the
themwith and Chief selected
asearch Executive. candidate.
specification,
SanfivAhula oL
Appointed aga NotvBreoutie
. Ditector on @ Novenber 2018
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Board diversity

The Committee through Vedafone's Board Dwversity Policy1s cornmitted
10 supporting diversity and inclusion in the Boardroom 1n compliance
with the 2016 Code and acknowledges the importance of drersity
andnclusion to the effective functioning of the Board, As set outin our
Board Diversity Policy, Vodafone's long-terr ambition is to ncrease
diversity on our Board in all forms. This includes diversity of skils and
EXperience, age, gender, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity,
cultural background or belief, When selecting new members for the
Board, the Committee takes these considerations into account, as well
as professional background.

The Cemmittee annually reviews and agrees the Board Diversity Palicy
and monitors the progress made at Board and senior management
levels dunng the financial year,

Implementation of the FY19 policy

The Committee has been and continues to rnonitor Vodafone's
compliance with gender diversity targets set outin the Davies Report
and Hampton-Alexander Review in relation to gender diversity and the
Parker Review in relation to ethnic diversity.

We aspire to increase the representation of wormen in leadership roles
to meet the Davies Report recommendation that 25% of Directors
onthe Board be wornen and to meet the targetin the Harnpton-
Alexander Review that by 2020 at least 33% of Board and Executive
Committee positions, and direct reports of the Executive Committee
{the ‘Senior Leadershuip Team'’} are held by women. Following the
appointment of Margherita as a Directorin July 2018, 41.7% of our
Board roles are currently held by women which exceeds bot targets.
At 37 March 2019, five women and seven men served an the Board.

Margherita was also appainted to our Executive Committee and,
following the appontrnent of Leanne Wood as Chief Hurnan Resources
Officer, 4 (30.8%) Executive Committee positions are currently held

by women. animproverment compared to 2018 (14.29) demonstrating
the Committee’s commitment to increase female representation
atthis level Lastly, 48 (27.9%) of Senior Leadership Team postions are
currently held by women which has increased since 2018 (26%)

The below chart illustrates the current gender diversity statistics for our
Board, Executive Committee and the Senior Leadership Team against
the Hampton-Alexander Review and Davies Report:

Vodafone's gender diversity against
review recommendations

Board
Hartpton-Alexander Review ‘
Executive Committee
Hampior-Alexarder Review —

Vodafone

CO18:1425%)
Senior Leadership Team
Harnpton-Alexander Review _
Vodatone Y cos o0

Davies Report
Vodafone

The Board 1s mindful of the recommendation of the Parker Review
Report to have atieast one Director from a non-white ethnic rminority
by 2027 and is satisfied that it meets this requirement

Diversity extends beyond the Boardroom and the Committee

1s supportive of managementss efforts to build a diverse organisation
and maintain a diverse talent pipeline. Vodafone's ambition is to become
the world's best employer for women by 2025 While our focus

has been gender and nationality, following the recommendations
fromthe McGregor-Smith Review, Vodafone has now implemented
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME?) reportingin our peaple
systern in the UK and at Group. Additienally, we are committed

to leading the way by developing the pipeline of BAME candidates
through talent programmes and our BAME network_ Further details
on Vodafone's diversity mitiatives to build a diverse organisation can
be found in the “Our Pecple” section on pages 42 and 43,

Governance

The Committee reviewed Vodafone's cormpliance with the 2076 Code
and was satisfied that Vodafone complied with the 2016 Code during
the year, The Committee alsc receved regular updates on corparate
governance developments and has considered the impact of those
developments on Vodafone, including the approaches the Company
has taken to cormply with the Regulations and the revised elements
of the new Code, which was published in July 2018, During the

year, the Board and Executive Committee reviewed and approved
Vodafone's revised strategy and refreshed purpose, and 1ts alignment
with Vodafone’s culture. Going forward the Board will also be provided
with updates on the ways In which Vodafone's cuiture is embedded
throughout the organisation, the recognised cultural challenges and the
corrective action being taken to address any material whistleblowing
incidents identified through Vodafone’s Speak Up programme.

In her role as Senior Independent Director, Valere Gooding

will be attending a number of employee forums including the
European Workers Council and South African Nationat Consultative
Committee In addrtion to this, the Board will receive updates on the
actions being taken to ensure there is sufficient engagement with
employees, ncluding the results of the annual employee opinion
survey. As mentioned above, the Board is committed to prormoting
diversity in all forms and the Cormmittee will continue to oversee
the development of a diverse pipeline at Board and Executive
Committee level.

The Matters Reserved for the Board and the Terms of Reference of the
Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration
Committee have been updated to take INto account the revised
elements of the new Code and were formally approved by the Board
inMarch 2019,

During the course of the next financial year, the Committee will
continue to monitor its compliance with the Regulations and the new
Code, review succession plans far Nen-Executive Directer roles aswell
as continuing to ensure that adequate succession planningisin place for
the Executive Directors and senior rmanagement.

3
f/"% A

Gerard Kleisterlee
On behalf of the Nominations and Gevernance Com mittee

14 May 2019
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Audit and Risk Committee

s akey role inthe governance
al reporting. risk management,

dth

howy the

Chairman and financial expert
David Nish

Members

Hey objectives

Provision of effective governance over the appropriateness
of financial reporting of the Group, Including the adequacy

of retated disclosures, the performance of both the internal
audn function and the external auditors and oversight of the
Group's systermns of internal control, business risks and related
compliance actrvities

Responsibilities
The Committee’s terms of reference are avallable on vodafone.
com/governance. Responsibilities of the Committee are tor

— Monitor the integrity of the financial statements, ncluding the
review of significant financial reperting judgements;

~ Provide advice to the Board on whether the Annual Reportis far,
halanced and understandable and the appropriateness of the
long-term viability staternent;

— Review and moniter the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the external audit;

— Review the system of Internal financial control and compliance
with section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

— Monitor the actrvities and review the effectiveness of the Internal
Audit function, and

— Monitor the Group's risk management system, review of the
principal nsks and the management of those risks

Dear Shareholder,

Thus report provides an overview of how the Committee operated,
aninsight into the Committee’s activities and its role in ensuring the
integrity of the Group’s published financial information and ensuring the
effectiveness of its risk management, controls and related processes.

Committee structure

The membership of the Committee, which remained unchanged

during the year, has been selected with the am of providing the

range of financial and cornmercial expertise necessary to meetits
responsibiities Grven my recent and relevant financial experience,

| continue to be designated as the financial expert onthe Committee

for the purposes of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the UK Cerperate
Governance Code We believe that the Committee as a whole continues
to have competence relevant to the sectar in which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee had five scheduled meetings dunng the year and two
addinonal meetings to oversee the audit tender process. The attendance
by members at Committee meetings can be seen onpage 57.

Tegre g T

Governance

Meetings of the Committee normally take place the day before Board
rmeetings. | report to the Board, as a separate agenda item, on the
activity of the Committee and matters of particular relevance andthe
Board receives copies of the Committee minutes. The external auditor
is Invited to each meeting and | also meet with the external lead audit
partner outside the formal Committee process throughout the year.
The Committee also regularly meets separately with each of PwC,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Risk and Cempliance Director
and the Group Audit Directer without others being present

We routinely conduct deep dive reviews, together with specific risk
management activities as set out below:

— InSeptember and March, we assess issues affecting the Group's half-
vear and year end reporting and approve the principalnisks;

— InNovernber and May, we conclude this work and advise the Board
on the Group's external financial reporting, and

— While each meeting has reviews of sk and compliance related
matters, the January meeatingis particularly focused on these

Areas of focus
This year, the Committee has focused on the following areas.

— The adoption in the year of IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Custorners” and tFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”;

— Preparations for the adoption of IFRS 16 1n the next financial year;

— Cyber security given the need te ensure the Group 1s well placed
to meet the nsks and external threats in thus area;

— The accounting, reporting and disclosure implications of the merger
of Vodafone India with Idea Cellular to form the Vodafone Idez joint
venture; and

— Assessing the continued iIndependence of the external auditors.

Next financiat year, the Committee will also focus on the accounting,
reporting and disclosure implications of the propesed acquisition
of Liberty Global’s assets In Germany and in Central and Eastern Europe.

External audit

In early Decermnber 2018, the Cornmittee was informed of Lkely
developments in relation to the potential legal action between the
Company and a company for which a number of PwC partners are
acting as admnistrators. Given uncertainties over how this matter would
develop, the Committee launched a competitive tender process for the
statutory audht for the year ending 31 March 2020 A legal action was
filed by the administrators on behalf of this company against Vodafone
and otherson 18 December 2018. On the 15 February 2019 it was
announced that the Board had approved the appointrment of Ernst
&Young LLP subject to the approval by shareholders at the Annual
General Meetingon 23 July 2019 Further detallis provided on page 74.

Committee effectiveness

In order to ensure that the Committee rermains effective, every

three years the Board appoints an external crganisation to perform

an independent review of the Committee to evaluate its performance.
The last review was performed in March 2019 and concluded that the
Board members considered the Committee to be thorough and fully
effective in meeting its objectives

)=

David Nish
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee
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Financial reporting

The Committee’s pnimary responsioiity n relation to the

Group’s finangial reporting 15 to review, with management and the
external auditor, the appropriateness of the half-year and annual
financial statements. The Committee focuses onv

— The quality and acceptability of accounting policies and practices;,

— Material areas in which significant judgments have been applied
or where significant 1ssues have been discussed with the
external auditor;

— Anassessment of whether the Arnual Report, taken as a whole, is farr,
balanced and understandable.

— The clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial
reporting standards and relevant financial and governance
reparting requirements;

— Providing advice to the Board on the form and basis underlying the
long-term viability statement, and

— Any correspendence from regulators in relation to our
financial reporting.

Accounting policies and practices

The Commuttee received reparts from management in relation ta:

— The identification of crnitical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation unicertainty,

— Significant accounting policies;
The adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 during the current financial year:

— The implementation programme for the adoption of IFRS 16 for the
2020 financial year; and

Prapased disclosuresin relation to these matters n the 2019
Annual Report.

Following discussions with management and the external auditor,

the Committee approved the disclosures of the accounting policies and
practices set out in note 1 “Basis of preparation” to the consolidated
financial statements, which include details of the impacts of adopting
IFRS S.IFRS 15 and IFRS 16.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Commuittee assessed whether the Annual Report, taken as awhaole,
is far, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and strategy. The Committee reviewed
the processes and controls that underpin its preparation, ensunng that
all contnbutors, the core reporting tearn and seniof managernent are
fully aware of the requirements and their responsibilires. This included
the use and disclosure of alternative performance measures or “non-
GAAP” measures) and the financial reporting responsibilities of the
Directors under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to promote
the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as well

as considering the interests of other stakeholders which will have
animpact on the Company’s long-term success of the entity.

The Committee reviewed an early draft of the Annual Report

to enable early input and comiment. The Committee also reviewed
the financial results announcerments, supported by the work of the
Group's Disclosure Committee which reviews and assesses the Annual
Report and investor communications

This work enabled the Committee to provide positive assurance to the
Board to assist them in making the statement required by the 2016
UK Corporate Governance Code.

Long term viability statement

As part of the Committtee’s responsibility to provide advice to the Board
on the form and basis underlying the long-term viability statement

as set out on pages 50 and 57, the Committee reviewed the process and
assessment of the Group’s prospects made by management, including:

— The review period and alignment with the Group’s Internal long-
term forecasts.

— The assessment of the capacity of the Group to remain viable
after consideration of future cash flows, expected debt service
requirerments, undrawn facilities and access to caprtal markets;

— The maodeiling of the firancialimpact of certain of the
Group's principalrisks rmaterialising using severe but plausicie
scenarios; and

— Ensuring clear and enhanced disclosures in the Annual Report
asto why the assessment period selected was appropriate to the
Graup, what qualifications and assumptions were rmade and how
the underlying analysis was performed, consistent with recent
FRC pronouncements

Regulators and our financial reporting

The FRC published themitic reviews to help companies improve the
qualrty of corporate reporting around new accounting standards,
notably IFRS 9 and IFRS 15. The FRC also 1ssued a range of guidance
and performed a number of detaled reviews related to the year-end
reporting process across public companies. The Group has reviewed the
impact of each and whilst the Group already complied with the majority
of the recommendations, the 2019 Annual Report seeks to ensure new
disclosures are in Line with best practice.

There has been no correspondence from regulators, ncluding the
FRC's Corporate Reporting Review Teamn (CRRT), cornmenting on our
financial reporting during the 2019 financial year We have been
informed however that the CRRT will review the disclosures i relation
ta the adopron of IFRS 15 that are mcluded in the financial statements
within this Annual Report
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Significant financial reporting judgments
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Governance

The areas considered and actions taken by the Committee in refation to the 2019 Annual Report are outlined below:
For each area, the Committee was satisfied with the accouniting and disclosures in the financial staternents.

Area of focus

Revenuerecognition

The timing of revenue recognition, presentation on a gross or net
basls and the treatment of discounts, incentives and commissions are
complex areas of accounting.

In addition, there 1s inherent risk following the impiernentation of
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Lontracts with Customers”.

See note 1 “Basis of preparation”.

Taxation

The Group is subject to arange of tax claims and related legal actions
across anumber of jurisdictions where it operates, The most material
claim continues to be from the Indian tax authorties in relation to our
acquisition of Vodafone india Limited in 2007,

Further, the Group has extensive accurnulated tax losses and akey
managerment judgement is whether a deferred tax asset should be
recognised in respect of these losses,

See note 6 “Taxation™ and note 28 "Contingent liabilites and legal
proceedings”.

Liabitity provisioning

The Group is subject to arange of claims and legai actions frem a
rurriber of sources, including cormpetitors, regulators, custormers,
suppliers and, onoccasion, fellow shareholders in Group subsidiaries.

See note 16 "Provisions” and note 28 "Contingent liabiltties and legal
proceedings”.

Impairments

Judgements in relation to impairrnernt testing retate primartly to the
assumptions underlying the calculation of the valug inuse of the
Group’s businesses, being the achievability of the long-term business
plans and the macroeconomic and related modelling assumptions
undertying the valuation process.

See note 4 “Impairment losses”.

Significant one-off transactions

The judgements in relation to the accounting and the reporting
impilications of the merger of Vodafone India with idea Cellular to create
the Vodafone Idea joint venture.

See note 7 “Discontinued operations and assets and Liabitities held for
sale” and note 26 "Acquisitions and disposats”

Actions taken/conclusion

The Committes reviewed and discussed with managernent the new
accounbing policy for, and related disclosure requiremnents of, IFRS 15
that have been presented in the Annual Report and challenged
management on the systerns and processes implernented for
reporting Management confirmed that controls over FRS 15
reporting were effective for the year,

The Group Tax Director presented on both provisioning and disclosure
of tax contingencies and deferred tax asset recognition at the
Noverrber 2018 and May 2019 Committee meetings.

The Committee challenged the judgerments underpinning both
he provisioning and disclosures adopted for the most significarit
components of contingent taxation tiabilities and the underlying
assumptions for the recognition of deferred tax assets, principally
the avaitability of future taxable profits, During the year, the Group
derecognised a deferred tax asset in Spain of £1.2 billior,

The Committee met with the Group's Counsel and Company
Secretary and the Director of Litigation in both November 2018 and
May 2019,

The Cormmitiee reviewed and challerged management's assessment
of the most significant claims, together with relevant legal advice
received by the Group, to form a view on the level of provisioring,

The Committee reviewed and discussed detailed reporting
with management and challenged the appropriateness of the
assurnptons made, including:

— The consistent application of managerment’s methodology,

- 'The acf"ties}ablélity of the business pians; :

- ﬁ;ssdmup)tic;ns in rela;cion fo terminal growth in the businesses a‘& the
end of the plan period; and

= Discount rates.

During the year the Group has recorded impairments in respect
of its investrments in Spain €2.9 bitlion), Rormania €0.3 bitlion) and
Vodafone Idea (€0.3 billion)

These judgerents included the assessment of the recoverable
amount of the Group's investment in Vodafone Idea at 31 March 2019

The Committee challenged the judgements presented by
management in relation to the key accounting and disclosure
impacts of the merger. As a result of the transaction, the Group
recognised a net loss on the fermation of Vodafone Idea Lirmited of
€3 4talkion,
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External audit

The Committee has primary responsibility for overseeing the
relationshup with the external auditor, PwC. Thus includes making the
recommendation on the appeintment, reappointrnent and removal
of the external auditor, assessing their independence on an ongoing
basis, involvernent in fee negotiations, approving the statutory audit
fee, the scope of the statutory audit and appointment of the lead audit
engagement partner.

PwC was appointed by shareholders as the Group's external auditor

in July 2014 followng a formal tender process. The lead audit partner,
Andrew Kemp, has held the position for five years and, under FRC ethical
rules, would have rotated off had PwC remained as statutory auditors for
the year ending 31 March 2020

Independence and objectivity

Inits assessrment of the independence of the auditor, and In accordance
with the US Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard's standard
onindependence, the Committee receives detalls of any relationships
between the Cormpany and PwC that may have a bearnng on therr
independence and receives confirmation from Pw(C that they are
independent of the Company within the meaning of the securities laws
administered by the US Securities and Exchange Commussion CSEC.

As previously reported, the Committee has been aware that a company
for whichi a number of PwC partners are acting as administrators,

was considenng Litigation against the Group As a safeguard against
anurnber of related risks, the Cornmittee had agreed a range

of measures to preserve both Company confidentisity and auditor
independence. This included the separate storage of audit working
papers and other highty confidential matenal and the lead Group
engagement partner taking sole responsible for the audit implications
of the potential I'gation. The Committee also agreed that both

PwC's Compliance Departrment and its independent non-executives
provide oversight of the effectiveness of the safeguards put in place and
report to the Committee on these safeguards on a regular basis.

PwC confirmed to the Committee that these safeguards were in place,
were monitored internally and operated effectively throughout the year.
Asin prior years the Committee concluded that Pw(C's appointment was
net prohibited and that PwC remained independent for the purpose

of the audit for the 2019 financial year.

In December 2018, the Committee was informed of ikely developments
inrelation to the potential for legal action. Given uncertainties over

how this matter would develop, the Commritiee deaded 10 launch

a cornpetitive tender process for the statutory audit for the year ending
31 March 2020.

The Committee approved the tender participants, process, timetable
and assessment enteria. As a first phase, the partiapants were

provided access to a data room which contained information to enable
the participants to gain a better understanding of how the Group

is structured and operates. This information was supplemented

by meetings with senior management This process ran in parallel

with each firm conducting an audit independence assessment for

the purpose of the 2020 financial year. The second phase of the

process included discussions as to how the firms would structure their
audit at an operational level and work with cur management team.

The Committee then reviewed the written propesals and met with the
participants who were assessed against a range of criteria, including how
the participants responded m their proposal to the scale and complexity
of the Group, the strength and depth of the engagement team and the
opportunities arising from the use of digital tools and techrugues m the
audit approach.

Onthe 15 February 2019 it was announced that the Board had approved
the appontment of Ernst & Young LLP as statutory auditor for the year
endng 31 Match 2020 The appointmment is subject to the approval

by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 23 July 2019

Going forward, the Committee anticipates that the audit wilt be put out
o tender at least every ten years

Audit risk

The audit nsk identification process is considered a key factor n the
overall effectiveness of the external audit process and duringthe 2019
financial year we received a detailed audit plan from PwC identfyngits
audit scope, planning matenality and assessment of key risks which are
set outlined in the Audit Report on pages 102 to 110.

The key audit risks for the 2019 finanoial year were broadly consistent
with those for the 2018 financial year, updated to reflect business
developments as follows:

— Anew nsk relating to significant one-off transactions following the
merger of Vodafone India with Idea Cellular to create the Vodafone
Idea joint venture; and

— The removal of the risk relating to capitalisation and asset lives

These risks were challenged by the Commuttee to ensure the external
auditor's areas of audit focus remain appropriate. The Committee also
receives reporting from PwC on its assessment of the accounting and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Effectiveness of the external audit process

The Committee reviewed the quality of the external audit throughout
the year and considered the performance of PwC, taking into account
the Committee’s own assessment and feedback, the results of a detailed
survey of senior finance personnel across the Group focusing on arange
of factors we considered relevant to audit quality, feedback frorm the
auditor onits’ performance against its own performance objectives and
the firm-wide audit quality inspection report issued by the FRC in June
2018, Based on these reviews, the Committee concluded that there

had been appropriate focus and challenge by PwC on the primary areas
of the audit and that it had applied robust challenge and scepticism
throughout the audit.

The Cornpany has complied with the Statutary Audit Services Order
2014 for the financial year under review.

PwC audit and non-audit fees
Total fees payable during the year for audit and non-audit services
amounted to €19 millicn (2018, £26 milbon).

Total PwC Feesém

WhAudtfees

MNon-audtt fees

lnopractical abermative supplied
& Non-guditfees

(noiegat altemnative suppier

2018
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Audit fees

For the 2019 financial year, the Committee reviewed and discussed the
fee proposal, was actively engaged in agreeing audit scope changes
and, following the receipt of formal assurance that therr fees were
appropriate for the scope of the work required, agreed a charge from
PwC and related member firms of £17 million (2018 £21 mitlion}

for statutory audit services, The prior year included €5 million of fees
inrespect of advance audit procedures for the implementation

of IFRS 15 and IFRS 16.

Non-audit fees

As one of the ways In which it seeks to protect the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor, the Committee has a policy governing
the engagement of the external auditor to provide non-audit services
which precludes PwC from playing any part in managerment or decision-
rnaking, providing certain services such as valuation work and the
provision of accounting services. It also sets a presumption that PwC
should only be engaged for non-audit services where there 1s no legal
or practical alternative supplier and includes acap on the amount

of non-audit fees that can be billed The Committee has pre-approved
that PwC can be engaged by management, subject to the policies set
outabove, and subject to.

— A£60000 fee imit for Individual engagements;

— A€500,000 total fee mit for services where there 15 no legal
alternative; and

— A€£500,000 total fee Uit for services where there 1s no practical
alternative supplier

For all other services, or those permitted services that exceed these
specified fee imits, the Chairman pre-appraoves the service,

Non-audit fees were €2 million (2018 €5 million) of which €1 rillion
(2018 £1 million) was for services where there was no legal alternative
and£1 million (2018, €4 rmillion) was for services where there was

no practical alternative supplier. Non-audit fees represented 12%

of audit fees for the 2019 financial year (2018 24%, 2017. 24%),

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2019 s primarily in respect

of certrfication procedures to meet routine regulatory and legal filing
requirernents The amount for year ended 31 March 2018 also includes
non-recurring fees that were incurred during the preparations for
apotential IPC of Vodafone New Zealand and the merger of Vodafone
India and idea Cellular.

See note 3 "Operating (Loss)/profit” for further details

Ernst & Young LLP has histonically provided the Greup with a wide range
of consulting and assurance services, Given the number and complexity
of certan of these relationships, following the decision to appoint the
firm as auditor for the 2020 financial year, the Committee and EY agreed
a number of steps to ensure EY was independent for the purpose

of conducting the audit of the 2020 financial year The primary elernents
of thiswere that all existing £Y services should cease by 31 March 2019
unless subject to a specific exernption from this requirerment and all
new EY services would immediately be subject to the Group's non-audit
services policy. As aresult of this approach, three in flght EY services
which would not ordinarily have been approved under the Group's nen-
audit services policy, but where it was deemed to be significantly
advantageous for the service to be completed, were allowed

to continue Into the 2020 financial year Eachwas a permitted service
under audit regulations with each service terminating in that year

B T IR

Governance

Internal control and risk management

The Committee has the primary responsibility for the oversight of the
Group's system of internal centrol. including the nisk managerment
framework, the compliance framework and the work of the Internal
Audit function

Internal audit

The Internal Audit functicn provides independent and objective
assurance over the design and operating effectiveness of the system
ofinternal control, through a nisk based approach. The function reports
into the Committee and, administratively, to the Group Chief Financial
Officer The functionis composed of teams across Group functions
and local markets This enables access to spaciaiist skills through
centres of excellence and ensures local knowledge and experience
The function has a high level of qualified personnel with a wide range
of different professional quatifications and experience. A co-sourcing
agreement with a professional firm has ensured access to additional
speciabst skills and an advanced knowledge base.

Internal Audit activities are based on a robust methedelogy and subject
to ongoing internal quality assurance reviews to ensure compliance
with the standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors. The function has
invested In severalinitiatives to continuously improve its effectiveness,
particularly in the adoption of new technelogies. The increased use

of data analytics has provided deeper audit testing and driven increased
insights. In September 2018 an independent effectiveness review was
performed by a professional firm and they concluded positively onthe
effectiveness of the function

The Committee has a permanent agenda item to cover internal Audit
related topics. Prior to the start of each financial year, the Committee
reviews and approves the annual audit plan, assesses the adequacy
of the budget and resources and reviews the operational initiatives for
the continuous improvement of the function’s effectiveness.

The Committee reviews the progress against the approved audit plan
and the results of audit activines, with a focus on unsatisfactory audit
results and “cross entity audits’, being audits performed acress multiple
markets with the same scope Audit results are analysed by nsk, process
and geography to highlight mevernents in the control envirenment and
areas that require attention

During the year, Internal Audit coverage focused on principal nsks, which
include cyber threat and infermation security, data privacy, technology
resilience and digital and technological transformations, Relevant audit
results arereported at the same time as the Committee’s in-depth
review with the risk owner, which allows the Committee to have
anintegrated view on the way the risk1s managed

Assurance was also provided across a range of areas, including
competition law, economic sanctions, employment law and

core financial processes, balance sheet reconciiations and the
implementation of IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
There has been focus on Vodafone Business and M-Pesa, given

the complexity of processes, products and services. The activities
performed by the shared service organisation atso received attention
due to their significant bearing on the effectiveness of global processes.

Management s responsible for ensuring that 1ssues raised by Internal
Audt are addressed within an agreed timetable, and their trely
completion is reviewed by the Committee.
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Compliance with section 404 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act The Group has an nternal control environment designed to protect
Oversight of the Group's compliance activities in relation tosection 404 the business from the material risks which have been identified.

of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act and palicy compliance reviews also fall Management s responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
within the Committee’s remit, nternal controls and the Committee has responsibility far ensuring the

effectiveness of these controls,

Managernent is responsible for establishing and maintaning adequate

internal controls over financal reporting and we have responsibility for The Committee reviewed the process by which the Group evaluated

ensuring the effectiveness of these controls, This is achieved by taking s control environment, in accordance with the requirernents of the
anactive role In monitoring the Group’s compliance activiies, receiving Guidance on Risk Managernent, Internal Control and related Financial
reports from management in the year covering programme-leve| and Business Reporting published by the FRC. Activity here was
changes, the scope of work performed and the results of control esting  driven primarily by reports from the Group Audiit Director on the
performed. The external auditor also reports the status of its' work effectiveness of internal controls Although not relevant in the financial
in each of therr reports to the Committee period, this would include any dentified incident and fraud, including

Assessment of Group's system of internal control. including
the risk management framework

those involving management or employees with a significant role
minternal controls

The Group's risk assessment process and the way inwhich significant The Committee has completed its review of the effectiveness of the
business risks are managad 1s an area of focus for the Committee. Group's system of nternal control, including risk management, during
The Committee’s activity here was led primanly, but not solely, the year and up to the date of this Annual Report. The review covered
by the Group’s assessment of its prncipal and emerging risks and all matenial controls including financial, operating and compliance
uncertainties, as set out on pages 44 to 51 The subjects of the reviews controls. The Committee confirms that the system of internal control
are outlined below and included reports from the Group Risk and operated effectively for the 2079 finanaia! vear. Where specific areas
Cempliance Director and the Group’s cyber secunity team, with whom for iIrnprovernent were identifie, there was rellance on mitigating
the Cormmittee Chairrman met regularly duning the year. Cyber security or alternative controls and processes weren place to ensure
has been a major area of focus for the Committee dunng the year and sustanabie remediation This allows us to provide positive assurance
this will continue going forward given the ongoing risks in this area tothe Board to assist its obligations under the 2016 UK Corporate
The Committee also visited the Group's Cyber Defence Centre. Governance Code,

Subject of review Principal risk (see pages 44 to 51)

Cyber security and information security, including user security, external threats,
Custorner security and cyber defence.

Compliance risk in Vedafone Business, including review of internal augit findings, off
footprint gevernance and data privacy.
Controt environment in Vodafone itaty and key risks facing the business including

the threat of a new entrant, regulatory pressure and the success of the IT digital
transformation project.

Anti-money laundering and M-Pesa programene improvernents including new products

and servicesrisk assessments. thematic reviews and training for M-Pasa agents.

Technology, including the Group's continuing mobile and fix
the improvernents in the I resilience programme,
Supply Chairi Management, including the operational model and risks, including Brexit.

The Group Policy Compliance Review assurance process and alignrent with the Group's
principat risks from the Group's Risk and Compliance Director.

The risk of fraud in the arganisation and how it is being managed froman overview by the
Group Corporate Security Director, ’

Local market audit and risk committee activities and alignmentwith the Group
Committee’s activities.

Results of the use of Speak Up channelsin place to enabie emplayees to raise concerns

abaut pessible iregularities in financial reperting or other issues and the outputs of any
fesulting investigations.

The local market cornpliarice environment from the Regional Finance Directors, including

joint venture entities,

ed resilience programme and

Cyber threat andinformation securty.
Legal compliance.

Market disruption.
Oigitat fransformation and simplification.

Legal compliance.

Technology resitience.
Geo-political nsk in supply chain.
Legal compliance,

Legal compliance,
Legat compliance,

Successfulintegration of new assets and
management of joint ventures.
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Remuneration Committee

During the ye 'ﬂhg Committec has continued to ensure

“Utive remuneraticn are made in

Chairman
Valerie Gooding

Members

R

Key objectives:

To assess and make recornmendations to the Board on the policies
for executive remuneration and reward packages for the individual
Executive Directors

Responsibilities:

— Determining, on behalf of the Board, the pelicy on the
remuneration of the Chairman of the Board, the Executive
Directors and the senior management tearm;

— Determining the total remuneration packages for these
individuals including any compensation on termination of office;

— Operatingwithin recognised principles of good governance; and
— Preparing an Annual Report on Directors remuneration.

The Committee met five times during the year and each meeting
had full attendance with the exception of the May 2018 meeting
where Mathias Dopfner was unable to attend due to a prior
business commitment. The terms of reference of the Committee
are avallable cn vodafone.com/governance.

Contents of the Remuneration Report

80 Ataglance-2019 compared to 2020

81  Remuneration Policy

82 ‘he Remuneration Folicy table

86  Charman and Non-Executive Directors remuneration
87 Annual Report on Remuneration

87 Remuneration Commitee B

88 2019 remuneration (ncludinginformation an Executive blrector
shareholdings on page 91

95 ‘EOEOremuneratnon
96 Further remunerationinformation

Letter from the Remuneration
Committee Chairman

Dear Shareholder

Onbehalf of the Board, | present our 2019 Directors’ Rermnuneration
Report. This report includes both our Policy Report (as approved
by shareholders at the 2017 AGM), and our 2019 Annual Report

on Remuneration, which sets out how our policy was implemented
dunngthe year under review, and how it will be applied for the

year ahead.

The Commuttee remains satisfied that the current policy is operating
effectively and 1tis our intention to keep this frammework in place until
Its full three year term, which concludes at the 2020 AGM, 1s fulfilled.
Thisis in Line with the planned approach set out to shareholders prior
to the current pelicy’s approval and helps ensure that our approach
te remuneraticn remains both transparent and stable

Inimplementing the current policy during the year, the Committee
continued to base its decision-making on its core principles of:

— Ensuning our remuneration policy, and the manner in which
itisimplemented, drives the behaviours that support our strategy
and business objectives;

— Maintaming a “pay for performance” approach to remuneration which
ensures our incentive plans only delver significant rewardsif and
when they are justified by business perfermance;

— Aligning the interests of our senior management team with those
of shareholders by developing an approach to share ownership that
helps to maintain commitment over the long term; and

— Offering comipetitive and fair rates of pay and benefits to all of our
people, inlinewith our Fair Pay principles (which are set outn this
letter below).

Alignment with our Strategic Framework

As highlighted in the principles set out above, ensuring our
Remuneration Policy supports and drives our strategic and business
objectives remains a core focus for the Committee,

Our strategic objectiveis to be a converged communications leader and
an enabler of a digital society. In order to achieve this we need to build

2 leading Gigabit network and dnive customer growth for our converged
offerngs across all markets. Our core priorties are therefore;

Deepening customer engagement to improve loyalty and drive
revenue growth

Achieving this prionty will require us to develop deeper relationships
with our customers, particularly our existing user base. The mportance
of custorner relationships s reflected in the inclusion of a custormer
appreciation metricin our short-term incentive, This metric was
introduced In the 2015/16 financial year with aweighting of 40%.

To date the 40% weighting has reflected the significant focus

on Customer Experience and Custormmer Obsessicn which has formed
the core of our CXX strategic programme. As part of this year's review,
the Committee considered the appropriateness of this weighting in Light
of the current strategic priorities It was agreed that given the key ams
of the CXX programme are now embedded in our day-to-day business,
Itwas appropriate to rebalance the performance measures so that all
four metrics are equally weighted at 25%. Further details can be found
onpage 95
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Transforming our operating model for greater efficiency and agility &
Improving asset utilisation with sustained network leadership

The Committee recegnises that the success of our efforts to fulfil the
priorities of transforming our operating model and improving asset
utilisation will both rely on, and be measured against, our key financial
indicators Through creating a radically simpler Digital ‘First’ operating
model, leveraging our Group scale, and investing in capital smart
infrastructure relationships, we intend to create the foundation required
for sustainable, long-term, financial growth,

Underpinring this appraach)s the fact that cash generation rerains
the key driver of value creation in our business. The importance of this
particular measure is reflected through its presence as a measure

in bath cur shortterm and long-termincentive plans. Service revenue
and adjusted EBIT also continue to be important financial measures,
both for measunng the impact of our strategic iInitiatives and n helping
us delver long-term value to our shareholders

To reflect the importance of such metrics, all three of these financial
measures will see their weighting ncreased from 20% to 25% for the
2020 performance year. As a result, 752 of our short-term incentive

will now be subject to financial performance (compared to 60%

N recent years).

External considerations

Trends and guidelines

During the year the Committee received regular corporate dovernance
updates on developing trends and guidelmes in the market. ltalso
invited the Reward Director of & peer cormpany to attend the
November meeting where the Commuttee received an nsight inte the
remuneration arrangements and processes at this FTSE 30 organisation
Such an external insight 1s now an annual agenda itemn and allows the
Committee to get an open and honest insight into the different ways of
working and thinking at other leading businesses of a similar size and
geographical scope

Pensions

Amongst recent corporate governance developments s the destre
of stakeholders to reduce the gap between executive and wider
employee pension arrangements.

This is an area of governance that the Cornmittee fully supports, and has
done for many years. Executive pensions were first reduced in 2015
from 30% to 24% of salary to align with the then pension levels for
senior management. After a further reviewin July 2018, our executive
arrangements are now aligned with those of gur wider UK population

at 10% of base salary.

Such levels will be maintained for the year ahead and the Policy Report
will be amended prior to its subrmission at the 2020 AGM to fully reflect
this approach.

Shareholder engagement

The Committee s fully aware of the concerns that have been voiced

in the external market over the last decade, and particularly in recent
years, in respect of executive pay. Whilst this has generally led to pasitive
changes in both market practices and governance structures, itis also
evident that in sorme organisations this has led to a divide between
rmanagemeant and stakeholders.

[tis the Cormmuttee’s strong belief that through genuine engagement
the relationship between Committee and shareholders can be mutually
beneficial. On a personal note, | have always found discussions with our
stakeholders to be informative, considered, and productive, and lwould
like to thank you, our shareholders, for your ongoing support

in this respect.

Internal considerations

Fair pay at Viodafone

Aspartofits review of executive remuneration arrangements,

the Committee takes account of the pay policies in place across the
wider business. Thrs Includes considering the structure of rernuneration
offerings at each level of the business to ensure thereis astrong
ratonale for how packages evolve across the different levels

of the organisation.

In addition t¢ bemng a core principle of the Cormnmittee, there is a clear
culture in our business of ensuring we offer compatitive and fair

pay to all employees. Our approach, acrass our business, 15 guided
by six principles:

2. Free from discrimination
4, Share in our success
6. Open and transparent

1. Market competrtive
3. Ensure a good standard of living
5 Provide benefits for all

CEC pay ratio

Whilst the revised reporting requirernents are not applicable to us until
2020, the Committee requested that the CEQ pay ratio be calculated
for the 2019 year in line with the regulatory methaod. Full details of the
approach taken and resulting ratios can be found on page 94.

The Committee considered the ratio as part of a wider discussion
anremuneration at Vadafone which included the aforementioned fair
pay topics Such discussion preceded the decision-making on executive
arrangements for the year ahead, ensuning the Committee’s decision-
making on executive arrangements was made in the context of wider
employee arrangements.

Employee engagement

As partof the Beard's aim to continually improve employee
engagerment, I will be attending a number of employee forums

N my capacity as Senior Independent Director Thiswillinclude
engaging with both our European Workers Council, to hear the views of
our European colleagues, and our South Afnican National Consultative
Committee which acts as a forum for our African markets

Such engagement will encompass matters wider than just pay
arrangements, with the outputs being reported directly to the
Board, Nonetheless this role will have an added benefitin respect
of my capacity as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,

In providing a first-hand insight into our people’s pricnities.

These views will add further cotour to the context inwhich the
Committes’s decision-making occurs and, on a broader note, ook
forward to working with the wider Board on ensuring such engagerment
leads to tangible and measurable improvements in areas that matter
most 1o our people

Arrangements for 2020

Following a March review of the executive remuneration arrangements,
the Committee agreed that there would be no increase to base salary
for either the Chief Executive or the Chuef Financial Officer and as such
therr salaries will remain unchanged for the year ahead.

As set out above, whilst the Committee deterrmined that no changes
should be made to the measures used under the short-term

or long-term incentive plans, it was agreed thatin order to reflect the
importance of our strategic priorities a re-weighting of the measures
under the former to equally weighted was appropriate

The Committee remains committed to & robust target setting basis
which ensures pay and performance are linked. This 1s evidenced
through our historic incentive payouts, the levels of which reflect our
use of genuinely stretching targets (see page 93 for a ten year history).
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The Commuttee will conduct a further detailed review of the current
executive remuneration framewark as part of its work and engagement
ahead of the 2020 AGM where a new Policy Report wilt be subrnitted
for approval.

Furtherinformation on the forward-looking arrangements for our
Board can be found on pages 95 and 96 of the Annual Report
on Remuneration.

Performance cutcomes during 2019

Annual bonus (GSTIP?)

Annual bonus performance during the year was assessed against
both financial and strategic measures. The financial metrics had
aweighting of 6024 which was spread across the three equally weighted
metrics of service revenue, adjusted EBIT and adjusted free cash flow.
The strategic measure carried aweighting of 40% of total opportunity
andwas linked to customer appreciation KPis, The KPIs themiselves
covered metrics including net promoter score, brand consideration,
churn, revenue market share and Average Revenue Per User — further
details of which can be found on page 89

During the year free cash flow performedin line with target, with
anumber of our markets recording above target perfermance, including
Italy, Egypt and Turkey, with overall performance offset by particularly
challenging results in Spain. Service revenue and adjusted EBIT results
were below target, mainly driven by below target performance in Spain
and the UK

Our Customer Appreciation KPI performance was below target, with
adetalled assessment of performance under this measure provided
on page 89 The combined performance under all of these measures
during the year resulted in an overall payout of 43.9%6 of maximurn,
Further details on our performance under each measure can be found
onpages 88 and 89 of the Annual Repert on Remuneration.

Long-term incentive (GLTT)

The 2017 Global Long-Term Incentive award was subject te free cash
flow and TSR performance, both of which were measured over the three
year period ending 31 March 2019, The free cash flow measure finished
in line with target during this period whilst TSR performance was below
the median of our TSR peer group Such TSR performance means

there will be no additional uplift from the TSR multiplier as part of the
vesting —an outcorne which the Committee agreed was appropriate.
Overall payout for the award was 40.1%6 of maximurm — further details
can be found on page 90

Consideration of the use of downward discretion

Prior to approving the incentive outcomes, the Cormmittee had

a thorough discussion regarding whether the use of discretion was
appropnate for the year under review

During this discussion the Committee noted that the Chief Executive
was strongly aligned with the investeor expenence through

1. Theimpact of Total Shareholder Return performance on the
upceming GLTI vesting which will have no TSR multiplier uplift.

2 Theimpact of recent share price performance on the Chief
Executive’s shareholding which, on a like-for-like basis, has decreased
In value by over 25% since 1 Apnl 2018 Dunng this period, the Chief
Executive has continued to personally invest in Vadafene, including
retaining 100% of his post-tax shares from the GLTI award vesting

In June 2018, and an additional market purchase of 150,151 shares,
at a costto him of ¢ £250k, in Septernber 2018

3. The Chief Executive’s commitrment to retain all of his post-tax shares
inrespect of the GLT| award vesting in June 2019, and his further
commitrment to take his full post-tax bonus for 201910 the form

of Vodafone shares
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4.The decrease in the Chief Executive’s single figure, which has fallen
by aver £11 million corpared to 2018, despite the latter solely
reflecting payments received in respect of his previous position In the
Committee’s view, this illustrates that our incentive plans are operating
asintended by delivening pay Uinked to performance and ensuring total
pay of our executives s alignad with the shareholder experience

Inught of the above, the Committee agreed that the payouts under both
the GSTIP, which reflects a below target payout, and the GLTI, which
reflects an overall target payout but with no TSR multiplier uplift, were
appropriate and that the use of downward discretion was not required
onthis occasion.

Changes to the Committee

Finally, as previously announced, Samuel Jonah will be stepping down
from the Board at the 2019 AGM [would ke to take this cpportunity
to thank Samuel for his long service to both this Committee and the
wider Board Dame Clara Furse willjon the Committee foliowing the
2019 AGM and | look forward to working with both Dame Clara, and the
rest of the Committee, during the year ahead.

V. Geedigy

Valerie Gooding
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

14 May 2019
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Total target remuneration at a glance — 2019 compared to 2020
The below table Wustrates the arrangements in place during the year under review (2019} campared to those whichwill be in place far 2020

Base salary

Benefits

Pension

GSTIP

GLTI

Totaltarget
remuneration

Shareholding
guidelines

Shareholding

information

2019 (y/e 31 March 2019)

Effective 27 July 2018:

Chief Executive £1,050,000 (8.7% decrease to the role).
Chief Financial Cfficer: £700000 (3.4% decrease

to the role).

Travel related benefits and private medical cover,

Pension contribution of 243 of salary for all Executive
Directors until 27 July 2018 fromwhtch date contributions
were reduced to 10% of salary for new executive
Incuments.

Opportunity (% of salary):
Target: 100%6
Maximurn; 20026

Measures:
Service revenue (20%), adjusted EBIT (20%), adjusted FCF
(20%), and customer apprediation KP's (40%)

Opportunity (% of salary):
Target:

Chief Executive — 230%

Other Executive Directors - 210%

Maxirrm:

Chief Executive —575%
Other Executive Directors —525%

Measutres:
Adiusted free cash flow (2/3 of total award) and
TSR (1/3 of total award).

Chvef Executive — £4.6m (effective 27 july 2018)
Chvef Financial Officer — £3.0m (effective 27 July 2018)

Chief Executive — 500% of salary
Chief Financial Officer — 400% of salary

Include post employment holding requirements

Share ownership (as at 31 March 2018)
The share ownership values reflect an average share price
over the six monthis to 31 March 2018 of 217.58 pence:;

Chief Executive (Vittoric Colaoy
12,190,562 shares (2,306% of salary)

Chief Financial Officer (Nick Read):
2113416 shares (634% of salary)

Directors’ interests {as at 31 March 2018)

The fallowing Directors' interests include both owned
shares and the maximum number of unvested shares
(as disclosed on page 83 of the 2018 Annuat Report):
Chief Executive (Vittorio Colao)— 21,274490 shares

Chief Financial Officer (Nick Read)— 6,822,235 shares

Share ownership (as at 37T March 2019)

2020 (y/e 31 March 2020)

Effective 1July 2019:
Chief Executive: £1,050000 (no increase).
Chief Financial Gfficer, £700.00C (no increase).

Travel related benefits and private medical cover

Pension contribution of 1026 of salary for all Executive
Directors

Opportunity (% of salary):
Target: 100%
Maximum. 200%

Measures:
Service revenue (25%), adjusted EBIT (25%%), adjusted FCF
{25%6), and custorner appreciation KPIs (252).

Opportunity (% of salary):
Target:

Chief Executive— 230%

Cther Executive Directors— 210%

Maximurm;
Chief Executive — 575%
Other Executrve Directors — 525%

Measures:
Adjusted free cash flow (2/3 of totat award) and
TSR (1/3 of total award).

Chief Executive — £4 6m
Chief Finangial Officer — £3.0m

Chief Executive — 500% of salary
Chief Finangial Officer — 400% of salary

Include post employrent holding requirements.

The share ownership values reflect an average share price
over the six months to 31 March 2018 of 149 27 pence:

Chief Executive (Nick Read):
2,825,550 shares (402% of salary}

Chief Financial Officer (Margherita Della Valle):
846,302 shares (180% of salary)

Directors’ interests (as at 31 March 2019}

The following Directors interests include both owned
shares and the maximum nurmber of unvested shares
{see page 91 for further mformation);

Chief Executive {Nick Read) - 9,222,245 shares

Chief Financial Officer (Marghenta Della Valle)—
3,573,007 shares
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Remuneration policy — notes to reader

No changes have been made to our policy since its approval at the 2017 annual general meeting which was held on 28 July 2017. Our approved
Policy Report|s avallable on our website at vodafone.com, and has been reproduced below in the shaded boxes exactly as it was set out in the 2017
Annuat Report. As such, a few phrases/disclosures are now out of date, including:

— Dates/Page numbers — Including references to the 2017 annual general meeting and page number references

— Pensions — As set cut on page 80, our Executive Directors receve pension contributicns equivalent to 10% of salary. The policy approved at the
2017 annual general meeting allowed for 24% of salary, and this will be amended to reflect cur actual arangements when the policy is next
submitted for approval

- Charts — The charts on page 85 reflect the incumbents at the time of the 2017 annual general meeting.

Remuneration poticy {first published in the 2017 Annual Report)

In this forward-looking section we describe cur remuneration poticy for the Board. This includes owr considerations when deterrmining policy,
a description of the elerents of the reward package, including an indication of the potential future value of this package for each of the Executive
Directors, and the policy applied to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors,

We will be seeking shareholder approval for our Rernuneration Policy at the 2017 AGM and we intend to implement at that point. A summary and
explanation of the proposed changes to the current remuneration pelicy is provided on pages &7 to 70. Subject to approvat, we wil review our
poticy each year to ensure that it continues to support our company strategy and if we feel it is necessary to make a change to our policy within
the next three years, we will seek shareholder approval.

Considerations when determining remuneration poticy
Qur rermuneration principles which are outlined on page 67 are the context for our policy Our principal consideration when determining
remuneration policy is to ensure that it supports our cormpany strategy and business objectives.

The views of cur shareholders are alsc taken into account when determining executive pay. In advance of asking for approval for the
remuneration policy we have consulted with our major shareholders We invited our top 20 shareholders and anumber of key governance
stakeholders to comment onrernuneration at Vodafone and to provide feedback on the proposed changes to the current poficy which was
approvedat the 2014 AGM. A nurnber of meetings between shareholders and the Rernuneration Cornmittee Chairmnan took place during this
consultation period, Further detaiis of this consultation are provided on pages 67 to 69 whilst a summary of the proposed changes to our current
pelicy, which are incorporated in this revised Rernuneration Policy section, 1s provided on page 70.

Listening to and consulting with our employees is very important, This can take different forms in different markets but atways includes our
annual peeple surveywhich attracts very high levels of participation and engagement. We do not consult directly with employees on the
executive remuneration policy nor is any fixed remuneration comparison measurement used. However, when determining the policy for
Executive Directors, we have been mindful of the pay and employment conditions of erployees in Vodafone Greup as awhote, with particular
reference to the market inwhich the executive is based. Further inforrmation on our remunaration policy for other employees is given on page 74.

Performance measures and targets

Our Company strategy and business objectives are the primary consideration when we are selecting performance measures for our incentive
plars. The targets within our incentive plans that are related to internal financial measuires (such as revenue, profit and cash flow} are typically
determined based on our budgets. Targets for strategic and external measures (such as customer appreciation KPls and total shareholder
return (TSR} are set based on company objectives and in lght of the competitive marketplace, The threshold and maximum levels

of performance are set to reflect minrnum acceptable levets at threshold and very stretching fevels at maximum,

Asn previous Remuneration Reports we will disclose the details of our performance targets for our shert and long-termincentive plans.
However, our annuat bonus targets are commerciatly sensitive and therefore we will only disclase our targets in the Remuneration Report
following the comnpletion of the financial year. We wili disclose the targets for each long-term award in the Remuneration Report for the financial
year preceding the start of the performance period.

Atthe end of each performance period we review performance against the targets, using judgement to account for tterns such as (but not limited
to) mergers, acquisitions, disposals, foreign exchange rate movements, changes In accounting treatment, material one-off tax settlernents etc,
The application of judgernentis important to ensure that the final assessrments of perforrnance are fair and appropriate.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee reviews the incentive plan results before any payments are made to executives or any shares vest and
hasfull discretion to adjust the final payment or vesting downwards if they believe circumstances warrant it. In particutar, the Committee has the
discretion to use erther malus or clawback as it 5ees appropriate. In the case of malus, the award may lapse wholly or in part, may vest to a lesser
extent than g would otherwise have vested or vesting may be delayed In the case of clawback, the Committee may recover bonus amounts
that have been paid up to three years after the relevant payment date, or recover share awards that have vested up to two vears after the
relevant vesting date, The key trigger events for the use of the clawback arrangernents inciude material misstaternent of performance, material
rriscalcutation of performance condition cutcomes, and gross misconduct. Subect to approvat of this Rermuneration Policy, the clawback
arrangements will be applicable to ali future bonus armounts paid, or share awards granted, following the 2017 AGM.
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The remuneration poticy table
The tabte below surnmarises the main components of the reward package for Executive Drrectors

Base salary

Penéion ,

Benefits

Annual Bonus
—~Globat Short-
Termincentive
Plan (GSTIP)

Leng-Term
Incentive—
Global Long~
Term Incentive
Plan (GLT1

Purpose and limk Lo strategy

To attractand retain the besttalenL » R

Toremain cormpetitive within the marketétace. .

— To aid retention and remain competitive within -

the marketplace.

T drivelbehavir)urénd communicate the kéy -
pricrities for the year, ’

To motivate employees and incentivise i
delivery of perforrmance over the one year -
operatrng cycle

The fi nanc:ai metrics are desrgned to both ;
drive our growth strategies whilst also focusing -
onimproving operating efficiencies, The strategic .
measlres aim to ensure agreat customer

experience remains at the heart ofwhat we do.

"Tomotivate and incentivise delivery of sustained =

performance over the long term.

: TQ support arzd encourage greater shareholder

alignment through a high tevel of personat -
s’nare ﬁwnersrﬁp

The use of free cash flow as me pnnapal ;-
performance measure ensures we apply prucfenz
cash managernent and rigorous capital disciptine f o
o ourinvestment dedisions, whilst the use of TSR
along with a performance period of notiess than
three years means thatwe are focused on the

jong-terrninterests of our shareholders,

Operat ron

Salaries are usually reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months
commencrng T July: Deusron is mﬂuenced by:

~ levelof skrll experlence and scope of responsrbrlltfes
of individual;

~ business perforrnance, scarciy of talert, econormic cimate
and rmarket conditions;

— increases elsewhere within the Groupr and

- extemalcamparator groups (whlch are used for reference
purposes only} rmade up of companies of similar size and
complexity ta Vadafone

kExecutwe Drrectors may cho ose ta pamcrpate in the deﬁned

contribution pension scheme or to receive a cash allowance
1n ﬂeu of pens;on

T avel retated beneﬂts Thrs may include {but s not Ltmtted to)
company car of cash allowance, fuel and access to a driver
where appropriate,

Private medical, death and disability insurar\ce and annual
health checks.

In the evenit that we ask an individual to relocate we would offer
thern supportin line with Vodafone's relocation or internationat
assigrimentt policies, This may cover (but is nat limited to)
refocation, cost of living allowance, housing, horne teave,
education support, tax equalisation and advice.

Legal fees if appropnate

QOther benefits are also offered in line with the benefits offered
to other employees for example, our all-employee share plan,
mabile phane discounts, maternity/paternity benefits, sick leave,
paid holiday, etc.

Bonus tevels and the appropnateness of measures and
weightings are reviewed annually to ansure they continge
to supportour strategy.

Performance over the financial year is measuréd against
stretching financial and non-fnancial performance targets set

atthe start of theﬂnancralyear

The arn ualbonus is usuatly pa;d in cash in June each year fer
perforrmance over the previous year.

Awardlevels and the framewark for deterrﬁimng véstirzg :
are reviewed annuatly to ensure they continue to support
our strategy

Long«term lncentwe awards cons;s’t of performaﬂ ce shares whrt:h
are granted each year,

|~ All awards vest notless than three years after the award based

on Group cperaz:onatand extemat performance
Dlvrdend equNalents are pard ;n cash after the vestrng date
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Opportunity

~ Average salary increases for existing Executive Cormmittee members (ncluding Executive
Directorsiwilt not normally exceed average increases for employeesin other appropriate parts
of the Group. Increases above this level may be made in speaific situations, These situations
coutd indlude (but are not krnited toy internal promations, changes to role, materiat changes
to the business and exceptional company performarice.

— The pension contribution or cash payment is equal to 24% of annual gross salary.

- lBe‘rAmeﬁtskwiA{l bé pfovidé& fn line w:th 'é‘pipro;‘)‘rllété iewels irﬁdiéaied by local rmarketpracticeinthe  None,

country of ermnployment.

— We expect to maintain benefits at the current tevel but the value of benefit may fluctuate
depending on, amoengst other things. personal situation. insurance premiums and other
external factors

— Bonuses can range from 0-200% of base salary, with 10@% paid fér oﬁ -target ;ﬁerforma nce.
Maximnum is anly paid out for exceptionat performance.

~ The target award level is 230% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 210% for other
Executive Directors.

— Minimum vesting 15 0% df the target award level, threshotd vesting is 45% of the target award
level, and maximum vesting is 250% of the target award level.

~ Maximurn leng-term incentive face value at award of 57524 of base salary for the Chief
Executve and 525% for others Executive Directors.

'~ The Committee has the discretion to reduce long-term incentive grant levels for directors
who have neither met their shareholding guideline nor increased their shareholding by 100%
of salary during the year.

'~ The awards that vest accrue cash dividend equivalents over the three year vesting period.

— Awards vest to the extent performance conditions are satisfied. These is a mendatory holding
period where 50% of the posi-tax shares are released after vesting, a further 25% after the first
anniversary of vesting, and the remaining 25% willbe released after the second anniversary.

-~
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Performance metrics

Nore.

None,

— Performance over each financial year

is measured against stretching targets set
atthe beginning of the year.

— Theperformance measures normally
comprise of amix of financial and strategic
measures. Financial measures may include
{butare notlirmited to} profit, reverwe and
cash flowwith a weighting of no less than
50%. Strategic meastres may include (but
are not lrmited 10) customer appreciation
KPis such as net promoter score and
brand consideration,

— Performance is measured against
stretching targets set at the beginning
of the performance petiod.

~ Vesting is determined based onthe
following measures:

— adjusted free cash flow as our
operational performance measure; and

— relative TSR against a peer group
of companies as our external
performance measure.

- Measures will normally be weighted
2/3to adjusted free cash flow and 1/3
1o relative TSR.
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Notes to the remuneration policy table

Existing arrangements

We will honour existing awards to Executive Directors, and iIncentives, benefits and contractual arrangements made to mdividuals prior to their
promotion to the Board and/or prior to the approval and implementation of this policy. For the avoidance of doubt thisincludes payrments
Inrespect of ary award grented under the previous remuneration palicy. This will tast until the existing incentves vest{or {apse} or the benefits
or contractual arrangements no longer apply.,

Long-Term Incentive (‘GLTI')

When referring to our tong-term incentive awards we use the financial year end inwhich the award was made. For example, the “2017 award”
was made in the financial year ending 31 March 2017, The awards are usually made in the first half of the financial year (the 2017 award was made
in June 20163,

The extent to which awards vest depends on two performance conditions:
— underlying operationat perforrmance as measured by adjusted free cash flow; and
— relative Total Shareholder Return {TSR') against a peer group median.

Adjusted free cash flow

The free cash flow performance is based on the cumulative adjusted free cash flow figure over the performance period The detalled targets
and the definition of adjusted free cash flow are determined each year as appropriate. The target adjusted free cash flow level is set by reference
to our [ong-range plan and market expectations. We consider the targets to be critical to the Company’s long-term success and its ability

o maximise shareholder value, and fo bein line with the strategic goats of the Company. The Remuneration Committee sets these targets

to be sufficiently dermanding with significant stretch where only outstanding performance will be rewarded with a raxirmuem payout,

The curmilative adjusted free cash flow vesting levels as a percentage of the award subject to this performance element are shown in the table
below twith linear interpolation between points);

Veéu};éb&cemam
Performerce X o . . ) L ) . ool FCF elerment)
Betow threshold 0%
Threshold 18%
Target 40%
Maximum 100%

TSR outperformance of a peer group median

We have alimited number of appropriate peers and this makes the measurernent of a relative ranking systerm volatite. As such, the
outperfermance of the redian of a peer group is felt to be the most appropriate TSR measure. The peer group for the performance
condition is reviewed each year and amended as appropriate.

The TSR vesting levels as a percentage of the award subject to this performance elementt are shown in the table below (with linear interpolation
between ponts):

“Vestingpercentage
. S - Ce o . . . o e TSR element
Below median . . A , 0%
Mediary N N » ) o 18%
Percentage outperformance of the peer group median equivalent to 65th percentile . N ] 40%
Percentage outperformance of the peer group median equivalent to 80th percentite ) ) ) - 100%

Inorder to deterrnine the percentages for the equivalent outperformance levels above median, the Remnuneration Committee seeks
independent externat advice.

Remuneration policy for other employees
While our remuneration palicy follows the same fundamental principles acrass the Growp, packages offered to ernployees reflect differences
iremarket practice in the different countries, role and seniority.

For example, the remuneration package elements for our Executive Commitiee are essentially the same as for the Executive Directors with some
rrinor differences, for example smatler levels of share awards and local or regional performance conditions where appropriate. The remuneration
for the next tevel of managemertt, our senior leadership tearn, again follows the same principles with local and individual performance

aspectsin the annual bonus targets and performance share awards. They also receive lower levels of share awards which are partly delivered

in conditional share awards without perforrnance conditions. ’
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Estimates of total future potential remuneration from 2018 pay packages

The tables betow provide estimates of the potential future remuneration for each of the Executive Directors based on the reymuneration
opportunity to be granted in the 2018 financial year. Potential outcomes based on different performance scenarios are provided for each
Executive Director,

The assumptions underlying each scenario are described below

Fied Consistsofbase salary, berefitsandpension.
Base saiary isatt July 2017
Beneﬁts arevalued using the figures in the total remuneration for the 2017 financial year table ony page 78 (of the 2017 report)

Pens:ons are valued by app[ymg cash allowanc:e rate of 24% of base salary at 1 July 2017,

Basa Berefis Pansion Totat fixad
) g0 €000 ©o LE000
Chief Executive 1150 2 276 ) - 1453
Chief Financial Officer ' 725 29 174 928
Ontarget Based on what a Director would receive if pefforrﬁénce&vas intine with plan.

The target award opportunity fer the annual borus ( GST}P) is 100% of base salary.
The target award opportunity for the long-term incentive (GLTI) is 230% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 210% for the
Chief Hinancial Officer, We assumed that TSR performance was at median,
Maximum Two times the target award opportunity is payable under the annusl bonus (GSTIP?).
The maximum levels of performance for the long-term incentive (GLTT) are 250% of target award opportunity We assumed
o that TSR performance was at or above the 80th percentile equivalent.
Allscenarios  Long-term incentives consist of share awards onfywhich are measured at face value ie.no asshmpu'on forincrease in share

price or cash dividend equivalents payable.

Vittorio Colao, Chief Executive ro0  Nick Read, Chief Financial Officer 000
12!00".3” i ) 12000 S S
.. 4%

10000 10,000

8000 soce

400 4000

e e e s ERA5E ans

2000 1a% 2000 £928

0 Fixed Ontarget Maximumn 0 Foeed Ontarget Maxirrum

B Salary and benefits 8 Annualbonus - Long-termincentive B Salary and benefits % Annualbonus <2 Long-term incentive

Recruitment remuneration
Cur approach to recruitment rernuneration is to pay no mere than is necessary and appropriate to attract the right talent to the role,

The remuneration policy table (pages 72 and 733 sets out the various cormponents which would be considered forinclusion in the remuneration
package for the appointrent of an Executive Directar. Any new Director's remuneration package would include the same elements,

and be subject to the same constraints, as thase of the existing Directors performing simitar roles. This means a petentiai maximum bonus
opportunity of 200% of base salary and long-term incentive maximum face vatue of opportunity at award of 575% of base salary.

When considering the remurieration arrangements of individuals recruited from external roles to the Board, we will take into account the
remuneration package of thatindividual in their prior role. We only provide additional compensation to individuats for awards foregone

i necessary we will seek to replicate, as far as practicable, the level and timing of such remuneration, taking into account also any remaining
performance requirerments applying to it. This will be achieved by granitinig awards of cash or shares that vest over & timeframe similar to those
forfeited and if appropriate based on performance conditions. A commensurate reduction in quanturmwill be appled where it is determined that
the new awards are erther not subject to performance conditions or subject to performance conditions that are not as stretching as those of the
awards forfeited.

Service contracts of Executive Directors
After aninitial term of up to two years Executive Directors’ contracts have relling terms and are terminable on ne more than 12 months’ notice.

The key slements of the service contract for executrves relate to remuneration, payments on loss of office (see below), and restrictions
during active employment {and for 12 months thereafter). These restrictions include non-competition, non-solicitation of customers and
employees etc.

Additienatly, all of the Company’s share plans contain provisions relating to a change of controt. Outstanding awards and options would normally
vest and become exercisable on a change of control to the extent that any performance condition has been satisfied and pro-rated to reflect the
acceleration of vesting.
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Payments for departing executives

In the table below we summarise the key elemnents of our policy on payment for loss of office. We wiif of course, always comply both with the
relevant plan rules and 1oca emplcyment Leglstatlon

Provisen LEey B

Notice penod ar:d — 12months notice from the Company to the Executive Director.

compensation for T . o . . S .

loss of office in - Up 1o 12 months’ base salary {in line with the notice period). Notice period paymentswill either be made
Service contracts as normmal (f the exgoutive continues to work during the notice period or s on gardening leave) or they will

be made as monthly payments |n tisuof notlce (subject to mltigatlon if aiternative ernptoyment 5 obtalned}

Treatment of annuat benus - The annual bonus will be pro-fated forthe penod of service during the financial year and wilt reﬂect the extent
(GSTIP) en termination 1o which Company performance has been achieved.

under planrutes — The Remuneration Compmittee has discretion to redoce the entitlement to an annual bonusto reflect the

mdmdua[ S performa nce andthe cwcumstances 01' the ten'nmatlon

Treatment of unvested - An Executve Director's award will vest in accordance wnth me terms of the Qlan and sahsfacnon uf performance
long-termincerttive awards  conditions measured at the normal completion of the performance period, with the award pro-rated for the
(GLTTYon termination propertion of the vesting period that had elapsed at the date of cessation of ernployment,

under plan rules

— The Remuneration Cormittee has discretion towvary the level of vesting as deermed appropriate, and in particular
{o determine that awards should not vest for reasons which may include, at their absolute discretion, departure
it case of poor perforrmance, departure without the agreement of the Board, or detrimental competitive activity.

Pension and benefits — Generally pension and benefit provisions will constinue to apply until the termination date,

— Where appropféate other benefits may be receivable, such as (but not liﬁwited t0) pay}nents intieu ofaccrued.
holiday and legal fees or tax advice costs in relation to the termination.

— Benefits of relative small value ray continue after termination where appropriate, such as (but not limited to)
mobite phone provision.

In exceptional circumstances, an arrangernent may be established specifically to facilitate the exit of a particular individual albeit that any such
arrangement would be made within the context of minimising the cost to the Group. We wilt only take such a course of action in exceptional
circurnstances and where it is considered 1o bein the best interests of shareholders.

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration

Qur policy is for the Chairman to review the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors annually following consultation with the Remuneration
Committee Chairman, Fees for the Chairman areset by the Remuneraﬁon Cornmittee.
Sewent Py ' o
Fees ~ Weaimto pay compentwely for the roie mdud{ng con5|derat|on of the time commnment reqt.u ired.

We benchrmark the fees against an appropriate external comparator group, We pay fees to our Chairrman and
Senior Independent Director thatinclude fees for chairmanship of any committess. We pay a fee to each of our
other Non-Executive Directors and they receive anradditionat fee if they chair a committes, Non-executive fee
leveLs are set within the maxamum level as approved by sharehoLders as part of olr Articles of Assouatlon

Altowances - Anallowanceis payable eachtimea non—Europe -based Non-Executive Directoris required to travel toattend
N ~ Boardandcommittee meetings to reﬂect the additional time commitment involved,
Incentives - Ncn~Execut|ve Dlrectors do not partnqpate in any :ncentive plans
Benefits - Non—ExecutNe Dxrectors du not participate in any beneﬁt plans The Company does not prov;de any contrtbunon

to ther pension arrangements. The Chairmianis entitled to the use of a car and a driver whenever and wherever
heis providing his services to or representing the Company. We have been advised that for Non-Executive
Directors, certain travel and accornmodation expenisesin relation to attending Board meetings should be treated
as a taxable benefit therefore we also cover the tax{iability for these expenses.

Non-Executive Director service contracts

Non-Executive Directors are engaged on letters of appointment that set out their duties and responsibilities. The appointment of Non-Executive
Directorsmay be terminated without cornpensation, Nen-Executive Directors are generally not expected to serve for a period exceeding nine
years. For further information refer to the “Nomination and Gevernanice Committee” section of the Annual Report,
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Remuneration Committee

In this section we give details of the composition of the Remuneration Committee and activities undertaken during the 20719 financial year
The Committee I1s comnprised to exercise Independent judgement and consists only of the following Independeant Non-Executive Directors.

Chairman: Valerie Gooding
Committee members: Michel Demaré (appainted 27 July 2018), Dr Mathias Dopfner (until 27 July 2018), Renee James and Samuel Jonah

The Commuttee reqularly consults with Nick Read, the Chief Executive, and Leanne Wood, the Chief Human Resources Cfficer, onvarious matters
relating to the appropriateness of awards for Executive Directors and senior executives, though they are not present when their own compensation
is discussed. During the year, and up until they stepped down from their respective positions, the Cornmittee also consulted with Vitterio Colac and
Ronald Schellekens, who were the previcus Incumbents of these positions, on these same matters. In addition, Adrian Jackson, the Group Reward
and Policy Director, provides a perspective on information provided to the Committee, and requests mformation and analysis from external advisers
as required, Rosemary Martin, the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, advises the Committes on corporate governance guidelines and
acts as secretary to the Committee

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisers where apprepriate, The appointed advisers,
Willis Towers Watson, were selected through a thorough process led by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee at the time and were
appeinted by the Commuttee in 2007, The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee has direct access to the advisers as and when required,
and the Committee determines the protocols by which the advisers interact with managementin support of the Committee. The adwvice and
recommendations of the external advisers are used as a quide, but do not serve as a substitute for thorough consideration of the issues by each
Committee member. Advisers attend Committee meetings occasionally, as and when required by the Committee.

Willis Towears Watson 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and, as such, voluntarily operates under the Remuneration Consultants”
Group Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting in the UK. This is based upen principles of transparency, integrity,
objectivity, competence, due care and confidentality by executive remuneration consultants Willis Towers Watson has confirmed that it adheres
to that Code of Conduct throughout the year for all rermuneration services provided to Vodafone and therefore the Committee is satisfied that

it1s independent and objective. The Remuneration Consultants’ Group Code of Conduct 1s available at remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.

Feesfor services

orovided to the
Commitiee
Advizer Appomted by Services provided to the Commitiee €000 Other services provided to the Company
Wilhs Towers Watson Remuneration  Adwice on market practice; governance, 87 Reward and benefits consultancy,
Committee provision of market data on executive reward: provision of benchmark data; pension
In 2007 reward consultancy, and performance analysis administration, and insurance

consultancy Services.

Note

1 Feesaredetermined ona time spentbasis

2017 annual general meeting — Remuneration Policy voting results

At the 2017 annual general meeting there was a binding vote on our Remuneration Policy. Details of the voting outcomes are provided inthe
table below

Votesfor % Votes against % Totalvotes Withhels

Remuneration Policy 17.581,245488 9719 507704367 2.81 18,088,949855 55,312,703

2018 annual general meeting — Remuneration Report voting results
At the 2018 annual general meeting there was an advisory vote on our Remuneration Repert. Details of the voting outcomes are provided in the
table below.

Votes for % Votes against % Totalvotes Withheld

Remuneration Report 16474188042 9712 488,883,471 288 16563071513 463720332

Meetings
The Remuneration Committee had five formal meetings and four formal conference calls during the year. In addition, informal conference calls can
also take place The pnncipal agenda items at the formal meetings were as follows:

Meeting Agendaitems

May 2018 — 2018 annual bonus achievernent and 2019 targets/ranges — 2018 Directors Remuneration Report
— 2016 long-termincentive award vesting anc 20719 targets/ranges  — Shareholder Update

July 2018 — 2019 long-term iIncentive awards — Cerporate governance matters

November 2018 - 2020 annual bonus framework — External insights

January 2019 — Corporate governance matters — Rewview of Rernuneration Policy
— Gender Pay Gap

March 2019 — Remuneration arrangements across Vodafone — Fair Pay at Vodafone

i
|

Committee’s Terms of Reference
Risk assessment

2020 reward packages for the Executive Committee
Charrman and Non-Executive Director fee levels
2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report
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2019 remuneration

In this section we summarise the pay Packages awarded to our Executive Directors for performance in the 2019 financial year versus 2018
Specifically we have provided a table that shows allrernuneration that was earned by each Indiidual durng the year angd tomputed a single total
remauneration figure for the vear. The value of the annyal bonus (GSTIPY) reflects what was earned Inrespect of the vear but witl be paidoutin cash
inthe following year. Similarly the value of the long-term incentive (GLTP reflects the share awards which will vestinJune 2019 as a result of tha
performance through the three year perod ended at the completion of our financial year on 31 March 2015,

The Remuneration Committee reviews al Incentive awards prior to Payment and uses judgement to ensure that the fina| assessments

of performance are farr and dppropnate. If circurmstances warrant it, the Committee may adjust the final Payment or vesting downwargs, On this
occasion, based on the fact that final annual bonus payout and final vesting level of tong-term incentives awards under the GLT| were deemecd
10 be an accurate reflection of performance and Were considered far and appropriate, the Cornmittee did nipt use its discretion to adjust final
outcomes Further information an e Commuttee’s rationale for this decision can be found on page 79

Board changes

Nick Read was appointed Chief Executlve—Designate an 27 July 2018, and becarne Chief Exacutive on 1 October 2018, Nick’s 2019single figure
therefore reflects remuneration received both in respectofhis current role, as well as inrespect offus Previousrole as Chief Financial Officer.

By companson, Nick's 2018 singte figure solely reflects remuneration received in respect of his role as Chief Financial Officer.

Margherita Della Valle Joined the Board as Chiaf Financial Officer on 27 July 2018 Inline with the reparting reguiations, the single figure for
Margherita reflects remuneration recenved n respect of services rendered as 3 Board Directar (. from 27 July 201810 31 March 209 Thisincludes
thevalue of performance share awards granted to her prior to her appointmment i the Board which vest based on agjusted free cash flow
performance over the three-year period to 31 March 2019,

Vittorio Colae retired from the Board on 30 September 2018, In ine with the reporting requ(at ons, the single figure for Vittoro reflects remuneration
received in respect of services rendered as a Board Director {ie from 1 April 2018 to 30 Septernber 2018 The single figure table does not include
values in respect of Vittono's contractual loss of office Payments which can instead be found on page 93

Total remuneration forthe 2019 financial year {audited)

" NickRead T Margherta Dalla Vs T ‘Vittorto Colag
2019 2018 2019 2018 WY 201
Salary/fees 947 722 476 - 575 1,150
Taxable benefits: 29 24 12 - 13 25
Annual borus: GSTIP (see below for further detail) 922 927 118 - 505 1471
Totat long-term incentive: 1012 2337 220 - 1632 4,466
GLTvesting duringthe year? 816 1936 186 - 1316 3700
GLT dividends® 196 401 34 - 318 766
Cashinlieu of pension 129 173 48 - 138 276
Other’ N 1 1 - - 1 1
Notes:

T Taxable benefitg include amountsin espectof ~Private ealthcare 2079 Nieh Read £2.63 2, Margherita Della Valle £1, 760, Vittona Colac €93 72018 Nick Bread €2 A82;Vittoria Colag E2,480%
—Cash carallowarce £19.200 pa.,and
— Traveb{2019: Nick Rea) 86,767 Margherita Deita Vatie £194, Vittorio Colin 1,663 2018 Nick Read £ 2479 Vittoro Cofan £2 864
2 Thevalue shown Irthe 2078 coluimisthe awardwhichvested on 26 Jurie 201Band s viltied using the execotion share price on 26 Juna 201&of 18242 ponee Thevalue shown inthe 209
columais the mware wheh vestson 30 junie 2019 andis valuedusingan average closing share prce over e last quarter ofthe 2013 firantiat yesr of 14205 pence,
3 MNickRead ang Vittong Colaa alscrecelve acash award, equivalent in vatus to the dividergs that would have been Ppaiddiring the vest ngperiod onany shares thatvest. The dwidend value
shownn 2019 relates o awards vesting on 30 June 2018 Margherita Deffs Ville's igure reflects the vatue of dividend squnalent swsrds accrued duringthe performance penodinrespect
of the award VESng on 30 June 2015,
Reflects the value of the SAYE benefitwhich is caloytated as E375.12 monthsx 20% 1o reflect the discount applied based an SENgS tade dunng tha year.
Inline with our SEC Feporting requirements, tatal rem ureration recetved by Margherita Datia Vatle in respectofthe period 1 Aprtt 261810 31 March 2% inclusive of, Pavments received whilst
Deputy Chief Financlat Officer, was £1,488%

Ur s

2019 annual bonus (GSTIP’) payout (audited)

In the table belowwe disclose our achievernent against each of the performance rmeasures and targets in our annLial bonus {GSTIP) and the
resulting total annual bonus Payout level for the year ended 35 March 2019 of 87.8% of target. Thisis applied to the target bonus level of 100%
of base salary for each executive. Commentary on our performance against each measure is provided below the table.

Payaurat Payaut a1 Threshold Target Maxemum Actual

target Maxirmum Actual performance petformance performance performance

performance performance payat level {evel leve| level'

Performance measure 100% 200% (Hofargety £bn €bn €bn £bn

Service revenue 20% 40% 14.3% 374 394 413 388

Adjusted EBIT 209 40% 16.3% 34 44 53 4.2

Adjusted free cash flow 20% 40% 20.2% 45 54 6.2 54
Customer appreciation Kpis 40% 80% 370% See below for further details

Totalannualbonus payouttevet . . 100%200%  e7ex

Note
1 Thesefigures are adjustedta include the remaval of the mpact OTM&A, foreigr exchange movements and any changesin accounting treatment,
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Financial metrics

Buring the year under review, free cash flow performance was in line with target performance level. A nurmber of our European markets recorded
above target performance, ncluding Italy and Hungary, whilst Eqypt and Turkey also recorded above target performance. This was however offset
by particularly challenging results in Spain.

Service revenue and adjusted EBIT results were below target, mainly driven by below target performance in Spain and the UK

Custorner appreciation KPIs
An assessment of performance under the customer appreciation KPIs measure was conducted on amarket by market basis Each market was
assessed against a number of different metrics which included:

— Net Promoter Score for both Consumer and Enterprise business units.
— Brand consideration for Enterprise and both Consumer user and Consumer non-user

— Churn, revenue market share and ARPUL

In respect of the measures included under the custorner appreciation KPis, net promoter score is used as a measure of the extent to which our
custorners woutd recommend us, whilst brand consideration acts as a measure of the percentage of people who woutd consider using a certan
brand as therr telecomns provider

Bath measures utilise data from our local markets which is collected and validated for quality and conststency by independent third party agencies.
The data 15 sourced from studies involving beoth our own customers and custemers of our competiters for the NPS measure, and both Vodafone
users and non-users for the brand consideration measure. In formulating a final assessment of perfermance under the customer appreciation KPls
other relevant custormer factors such as churn, revenue market share, and service levels are considered

Overali Group performance was below target for the year reflecting our current market positions, in the markets where such metrics are measured,
of:

— Being ranked number 1 for Consumer NPS in 17 of 25 markets
~ Being ranked nurnber 1 for Business NPSin 15 of 20 markets

~ Being ranked nurnber 1 for Non-User Consumer Brand Consideration in 17 of 24 markets

Once these figures are adjusted te reflect changes n measured markets, they llustrate a decrease in the number of markets where we are leaders
for Consurner NPS, an increase in the number of markets where we are leaders for Business NPS, and a maintenance in the number of markets
where we are numnber 1 for non-user consumer brand consideration compared to last vear. Further information on specific region and market
performance s provided below

Altheugh the continued work and passion of our people has seen us gain or retain leadership positions in a number of our markets, the Committee
continues to assess performance against stretching targets reflecting cur strategic ambitions in customer engagement in what remains a nighly
competitive market.

Itis wathin this context that overall performance against our Customer Appreciation KPIs metrics during the year was judged to be below target.
The aggregated performance for the regions and the Group s calculated on a revenue-weighted average to give an overall achievernent

Custormer appreciation KPIs Achievement
(%8 oftarget}

Europe 900%
Rest of the World (Row) 102.5%
Gow o | 925%

The achievernent percentage for Europe includes strong performance in Hungary and Portugal with the former extending our leadership position
in both Consumer and Business NPS, and the latter now positioned as clear first place n non-user brand consideration, In the UK we retained our
number 1 spotin Business NPS and improved our Consumer NPS although further improvernent i1s required te gain leadership an this metric.

The achievernent percentage for RoW reflects strong performance in Turkey where we regained our leadership position in Consumer NPS and
significantly improved our score in Business NPS. Performance in this region also reflects improved performance in Egypt where we increased our
scores and retained leadership in both NPS categoeries.

Base salary Target bonus 2019 payout Actual payment
2019 annual bonus (L3TIR ) amelrts E£000 #.of base salary %of target £000
Nick Read 1,050 10C% 87.8% 522
Marghernta Della Valle' 700 100% 87.8% 418
Vittorie Colao? 1150 100% 87.8% 505

Notes
1 Reflects annual bonus amounts in respect of the penod 27 July 2018 to 31 March 2019
2 Reflects pro-rated bonus (for further details see page 93)
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Long-term incentive (‘GLTI’) award vesting in June 2019 (audited)
The 2017 long-term incentrve (GLTT) awards which were made in June 2016 will vest at 40.1% of maximurn (100 2% of target) in June 2019,
The performance conditions for the three year period ending n the 2019 financial vear are as follows:

TSR outperformance TSRpeer group
Adjusted free cash flow measure £bn (Up lo?r?;ﬁg:) {&5th percentile eqj\ijf;ﬁ?) (BOth percentile eqieﬁﬁsl Bhart Orange
Below threshold <995 0% 0% 0%  BrGroup Telecom lialia
Threshold 995 509 759 100% Deutsche Telekomn Telefénica
Target 11.80 100% 150% 200% MM
Maximum 13.65 125% 187.5% 250%

The adjusted free cash flow for the three vear period ended on 31 March

2019 was £11.81 billion This compares with atarget of £1180billion and 2017 GLTl award: TSR performance

a threshold of £9.95 billion, {growth in the value of a hypothetical US$100 helding over the
performance period, six month averaging

The chart o the nght shows that our TSR performance over the three

year period ended on 31 March 2019 was below that of the median 149 vvvvvvvv -

of our comparator group resutting in no additional upbft from the TSR woo

multiplier as part of the vesting. e ™ s ﬁf
Using the combined payout matrix abave, this performance resulted 1;2 e e

In a payout of 100.2% of target (40.1% of maximum). 9

The combined vesting percentages are applied to the target number ’ ‘ao‘ )

of shares granted as shown below o

s 0346 0916 OSAT 0317 OB 0918 03419
—edafore GroUR - Medanofpeergroup s Quiperformance of median of 8% pa

Adusted free cash
Maximum Target flow performance Value of
number number payout Overall vesting Nurmperof sharesvesting
2017 GLTeperformance share awardsvesing in June 2019 of shares of shares ¥ oftarger TSRmutuplier %oftarget shares vesting {000
Nick Read 1432123 572849 100.2% 100 umes 100.2% S73708 £816
Margherita Della Valle! 306,547 153,273 100.6% N/A 100.6% 154,254 £220
Vittorio Colao? 3078938 1,231575 1002% 1.00 times 1002% 925066 £1.316

Notes
1 These performance shares reflect an award granted to Margherita Della Valle prior to her appointment to the Board (ncluding indicative dividend equivalent shares) The award was subject

to adjusted free cash flow performarnce in linewith the ranges outbned above
2 The number and value of shares vesting for Vittone Colaoreflect the pro-rated amount paid inrespect of time served
These share awards wilt vest on 30 June 2019, Specified procedures are performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP over the adjusted free cash
flow to assist with the Committee’s assessment of performance. The performance assessment in respect of the TSR measure is undertaken by Willis
Towers Watson. Details of how the plan works can be foundin the Policy Report that was approved at the 2014 AGM.

Long-term incentive (‘'GLTI’) awarded during the year (audited)
The independent performance conditions for the 2012 long-term incentive awards made in June 2018 are adjusted free cash flow and TSR

performance as follows:

Adusted FCF F‘errorman:é Adjusted FCF perfarmance Vesting percentage
(2/3 of total award) (Eon} 1% of FCF element)
Below threshold <1515 0%
Threshold 1515 18%
Target 17.00 40%
Maximum 18.85 100%
TSR Performarice Vesting pefcentage
1/3 of total award) TSRoutperformance {% of TSRelement}
Below threshold Below median 0%
Threshold Median 18%
Target 5.0% p a (65th percentile equivalent) 40%
Maxirmum - 100% p.a {80th percentile equivalent) 100%

TSRpeergroup
Bharti BT Group Deutsche Telekomn Liberty Global MTN
Orange Royal KPN Telecom ltalia Telefonica
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Conditional awards of shares made to Executive Directors in June 2018 were as follows:
Number of shares awarded Facevalue of shares awarded Proportion of
Target max:murm award
vesting level Maximum Target Maximum  vestingat minmum Performance
2019 GLT| performance share awards made n June 2018 (40% of max) vesting level vesting level vesting level performance petiodend
Nick Read 1,311,217 3278043 £2,415,262 £6038155 1/5th 31 Mar 2021
Margherita Detla Valle 798,132 1995330 £1,470,159 £3675398 1/5th 31 Mar 2021

Note
1 Facevalue calculated based onthe closing share price on 25 June 2018 (day immediately preceding the date of grant) of 184 2 pence

Dividend equivalents on the shares that vest are paid In cash after the vesting date

Outstanding awards
The structure for awards made in August 2017 (vesting August 2020) and June 2018 (vesting June 2021) 15 set out on the previous page.
Further details on the structure of these awards, and relevant targets, can be found in the Annual Report on Remuneration of the relevant year

All-employee share plans
During the year the Executive Directors were eligble to participate in the Vodafone Greup Sharesave Plan which is open to UK all-employees

The Viodafone Sharesave Plan is an HM Revenue & Custorns (HMRC) approved scheme open to all staff permanently emploved by a Vodafone
cormpany In the UK as of the eligibility date. Cptions under the ptan are granted at up to a 20% discount to market value. Executive Directors’
participation is included in the option table on page 52.

Pensions (audited)
Dunng the 2015 financial year the Executive Directors received a cash allowance of 2424 of base salary until 27 July 2018, after which they received
acash allowance of 10% of base salary.

Marghenta Della Valle accrued benefits of £6,807 under the defined contribution pension plan in respect of the penod she served on the Board during
the year Neither Nick Read, Marghenta Della Valle, or Vittorio Colao have participated in a defined benefit scheme whilst an Executive Director

The Executive Directors are provided benefitsin the event of death in service They also have an entitlement under a long-term disability plan from
which 2/3 of base salary, up to a maximum benefit determined by the insurer, would be provided unitil the state pension age In respect of the Executive
Committee members, the Group has made aggregate contributions of £264,818 (2018: £256913) nte defined contnbution pengsion schemes

Alignment to shareholder interests (audited)
Current levels of ownership by the Executive Directors, and the date by which the goal should be or should have been achieved, are shown below.
The values are calcutated using an average share price over the sixmonths to 31 March 2019 of 14927 pence.

Based on this valuation price, both Executive Directors are currently below their shareholding goals Inrespect of Nick Read, this reflects a decrease
in the valuation of his holding from 634% of salary, as stated in the 2018 report, to 4022 as stated In the table below This decrease 1s due to the
2019 measurement being calculated on Nick’s tatest base salary since becoming Chief Executive (compared to the 2018 figure which was based
on his salary as Chief Financial Officer), and the movernent in share price snce the previous measurernent date. The nurnber of shares Nick has
beneficial ownership of has increased from 2,113,416 to 2,825,550 over the same period,

Margherita Della Valle joined the Board on 27 July 2018 and will continue to werk towards achieving her goal prior to July 2023,

Goalasa% Current % saofgoal Number Valug of Cate for goal
AL31 March 2019 of satary of salary held acheved of shares owned shareholding tc be achieved
Nick Read 500% 402% 80% 2825550 £42m July 2023
Marghenta Della Valle 400%4 180% 45% 846,302 £1.3m July 2023
Vittorio Colao (position at retirement) N/A N/A N/A 13263145 £19.8m N/A

The shareholding goals nclude a post employment condition whereby the Executive Directors will be required to continue to meet therr guideline
until all leng-term incentives have vested. If this condition 1s not met, then any unvested GLTI awards will normally be forfested.

Collectively the Executive Committee including the Executive Directars owned 17,221,392 million Vedafone shares at 31 March 2019, with a value
of over £25.7 millon. None of the Executive Committee members' shareholdings amounts to more than 1% of the 1ssued shares in that class
of share, excluding treasury shares

Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company (audited)
Asurmmary of nterests in shares and scherme interests of the Cirectors who served dunng the year 1s given below. Margherita Della

SharePlans o Share options
Lrvestedwithout

“otalnamber performanse conditions Urvested with Unvestedwith SAYE

of intercsts in shares (Crantedprior to performance conditions performance cond hiors Unvestedwithout

At 31 March 2019 (at maximum) appontTent 1othe Board ) (attarget) (at maamum) performance conditions)
Executive Directors e

Nick Read 9222,245 - 2,553,440 6383603 13,292

Margherita Della Valle 3,573,007 146.276 1090679 2580429 =

Vittorio Colao {position at retirernent) 19307917 - 2412378 6030846 13826
Total 32,103,169 146,276 6,056,497 14994978 27118

Nete

1 Thisincludes both owned shares and the maximum number of univested shares
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The total number of interests in shares includes interests of connected persons, unvested share awards and share cptions

Total numbar
of Irterests

At 31 March 201% inshares
Non-Executive Directors
Sanjiv Ahuja 14,000 (ADRs)'
Sir Crnispin Davis 34,500
Michel Demaré 100,000
Dr Mathias Dépfner (position upen retirement) 11,500
Darne Clara Furse 75000
Valere Gooding 28570
Renee James 27272
Sarnuel Jonah 30190
Gerard Klessterlee 220,000
Maria Amparc Moraleda Martinez 30000
Dawvid Nish 107018
Note

1 OneADR s equivalentto ten ordinary shares

At 14 May 2019 and during the period from 1 Apnil 2019 to 14 May 2019, no Director had any interest in the shares of any subsidiary company
Other than those individuals included in the tables above who were Board members at 31 March 2019 members of the Group’s Executive
Committee at 31 March 2018 had an aggregate beneficial interest in 13,549,540 ordinary shares of the Company. At 14 May 2019 the Directors had
an aggregate beneficial interest in 4,464,802 ordinary shares of the Company and the Executive Committee members had an aggregate beneficial
Interestin 12,801,032 crdinary shares of the Company. The change in the number of shares held by the Executive Committee reflects a change

in membership during this period. None of the Directors or the Executive Committee members had an individual beneficial interest amounting

to greater than 1% of the Company's ordinary shares,

The Directors’ total number of interests in shares did not change duning the period from 1 April 2019 to 14 May 2019

Perforrmance shares
The maxirnum number of outstanding shares that have been awarded to Directors under the long-term ncentve (GLTT) plan are currently as follows.
2017 award 2018 award 2016 award
Awarded June 2016 Awarded August 2017 Awarded Jure 2018
Parformance penodending March 2019 Performance period ending March 2020 Performance penod ending March 2021
Vesting date lune 2019 Vesting date August 2020 Vestng date June 2021
GLTI performance share awards Share price a1 grant 2168 pence Sharepnice atgrant 224 ( pence Share price at grant 184 2 pence
Nick Read 1432123 1673437 3,278,043
Margherita Della Valle' 259174 260,764 1995330
Vittorio Colao 3078938 2,952,008 -

Note

1 Margherita Della Valle'’s 2018 award was granted n June 2017 at a price of 223 7 pence and will subsequently vest in June 2020

Details of the performance conditions for the awards can be found on page 90. Margherita Della Valle’s 2017 and 2018 awards are subject
1o adjusted free cash flow only.

Share options

The following informaticn summarises the Executive Directors' options under the Vodafone Group 2008 Sharesave Plan (SAYE) HMRC approved
awards may be made under all of the schemes mentioned No other Directors have options under any schemes and, other than under the SAYE,

no options have been granted since 2007 Options under the Vodafone Group 2008 Sharesave Plan were granted at a discount of 2034 to the market
value of the shares at the tirne of the grant No other options may be granted at a discount.

Options Options Options
At granted exercised tapsed
1 Apr 2018 dunng the durng the dunngthe {Options Market
ordateof 2019 financial 2019financiat 2019 financial hetd at Opticn priceon
appontment year year year 21 March 2018 price Date from exeroise
Number Nurmber Number Number Number which Gainon
Grant date of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares Pence’ exercisable Expiry date Pence exercise
Nick Read
SAYE Mar 2017 4854 - - - 4854 15451 Apr2022 Sep 2022 - -
SAYE Jul 2017 8438 - - - 8438 17775 Sep2022 Feb2023 - -
Total 13,292 - - - 135,292 - -
Note

1 The closing trade share price on 31 March 2015 was 13980 pence The highest trade share price dunng the year was 213 95 pence and the lowest price was 131 36 pence
At 14 May 201 there had been no change to the Directors’ interests in share options from 31 March 2019

Other than those individuals included in the table above, at 14 May 2019 members of the Group’s Executive Committee held options for 36,952
ordinary shares at pnices ranging from 154.5 pence to 189 2 pence per ordinary share, with a weighted average exercise price of 1624 pence per
ordinary share exercisable at dates ranging from 1 Septernber 2019 to 1 Apnl 2022

Marghenita Della Valle, Hannes Ametsreiter, Aldo Bisio, Anténio Coimbra, Ahmed Essamn, Rosernary Martin, Joakim Rerter, Serpit Timuray and Leanne
Woodheld nc options at 14 May 2015,
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Loss of office payments (audited)

Vittorio Colao retired on 30 Septernber 2018 having worked four months and 17 days of his 12 month notice penod. Vittonio was entitled to receive
payrents in lieu of notice each month for the remainder of his notice pencd subject to mitigation Vitterio received the equivalent of six months
salary (E575,000) for the period 1 October 2018 to 31 March 2019 The remaining payments in lieu of notice Inrespect of the pericd from 1 Aprd
2019 to 14 May 2019 (£139113) were paid in April 2019 and May 2019 respectively.

Since Vittorio was employed for part of the 2019 financial year his annual bonus payrent (as disclosed on pages 88 and 89) was pro-rated for tme
served (e t0 30 September 2018). Vittorio's 2017 GLTI award, the final vesting of which is described on page 90, will also be pro-rated for time
worked and will vest at the normal vesting date,

Vittorio's outstanding 2018 GLT1 award will be pro-rated on a time worked basis and wili vest, subject to performance, at the normal vesting date
In accordance with the share plan rules.

Vittono received no further payments other than those stated above, and, other than the pro-rated 2018 GLTI award detailed above, will receive
no further payments or benefits aside from the prowision of a SIM card for his personal use at the Company’s expense for a period of three years
commencing 1 Cctober 2018,

Payments to past Directors (audited)
During the 201S financial year Lord MacLaurin received benefit payments in respect of security costs as per his contractual arrangements
These costs exceeded our de minimis threshold of £5,000 p.a. and, Including the tax paid, were £23,186 (2018: £9.411)

Fees retained for external non-executive directorships
Executive Directors may hold positions In other companies as non-executive directors and retain the fees.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 Nick Read served as a non-executive director on the board of Booker Holdings Inc where he retained fees
of $335,000. Marghenta Della Valle served as a non-executive cirector on the board of Centrica ple where she retained fees of £66,651 1n respect
of the penod since 27 July 2018 Margherita stepped down frem the board of Centrica plc on 12 May 2019.

Vittornio Colao served as a non-executive director on the boards of Unilever NV and Unilever PLC Vittorio retained fees of €63.500 iInrespect of the
period to 30 September 2018 (2017: £54,474 and £42,500).

Assessing pay and performance

In the table below we summarnise the Chief Executive’s single figure Ten year historical TSR performance

remuneration aver the past ten years, as well as how our variable pay {growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years)
plans have paid out In relation to the maximum oppor tunity. This can -/ S —.
be cornparedwith the historic TSR performance over the same period. 325 322 287 288 oo

The chart below shows the performance of the Company relative to the oo e e o e B e -
STOXX Europe 600 Index over a ten year penod, The STOXX Europe 600

Index was selected as this is a broad-based index that includes many 225
of aur closest competitors. It should be noted that the payout from the

long-term incentive planis based on the TSR perfoermance shown in the 175
chart on page 90 and not this chart. 125 100

75 0340 0340 G311 03/12 03713 03714 03/15 03/16 03/17 03/18 03/19
—— eafone Grotp s BTORE Furope 60CHNGEX

Financial year remuneration for Chef Executive 2010 20m 202 2013 2014 201s 206 2017 2018 2019
Single figure of total remuneration £000 3,350 7022 15767 11,099 8014 2810 5224 6332 7389 2864 1657°
Annualvariable element (actual award versus max opportunity)  64%  62%  47%  53% 44% 56% 5B%  47%  64% 44%
Long-term Incentive {vesting versus max oppertunity} 25%  31% 100% 57% 37% 0% 23% 44% 67% 40%

TOt'?;e single figure reflects share awards which were granted in 2006 and 2007, pnor to Vittornio Colac's appomtment to Chief Executive in 2008

2 Reflects the single figure inrespect of Vittorio Colao for the perod to 30 September 2018

3 Reflectsthe single figure inrespect of Nick Read for the peniod from 1 October 2018

Change in the Chief Executive's remuneration between 2018 and 2019

In the table below we show the percentage change in the Chief Executive’s remuneration (salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus payment)
between the 2018 and 2019 financial years compared to the average for other Vodafone Group employees who are measured on comparable
business objectives and who have been emptoyed in the UK since 2018 (per capita) Viodafone has employees based all around the world and some
of these individuals work In countries with very high inflation therefore a comparison to Vodafone's UK-based Group employees 1s more appropriate
thanto allemployees.

In Lne with the regulations, the table below calculates the percentage change in the Chief Executive's remuneration by comparing Nick Read's 2019
rermuneration with Vittono Colao's 2018 remuneration. This reflects the change in incumbent as detailed on page 88

Percertage change from 201810 2013
Other Vodafona Croup emiployees

term Chief Zxecutive enp oyedinthe LK
Base salary 177% 51%
Taxable benefits 16.0% 15%

Annual bonus -373% -239%
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CEO pay ratio
The following table Sets out our CEQ Pay ratio figures in respect of 20119 Although disclosure in thys areals not requirad untit 2020 the Commuttee
agreed that given the methodoilegy for calculating these figures is now avallable, it was apbropriate 1o disclose early

The CEOsingle figure used in the calculation of the 2019 ratiesreflects a blanded figure for Vittorio Colao and Nick Read, recognising the change
inincumbency for this role during the year
CEO Single Figure: £4,522x

Year Method 25th percennle Day ahg Median pay rat e TSthpercentile Pay 3l

2019 - CptonB ’ 1741 " M1 601

The calculation methodology used reflects Option B as defined under the relevant regutations, This utilises data analysed within oue Gender Pay Gap
report, with employees at the three quartiles identified from this analysis and their respective single figure values ca lculated,

To ensure this daty accurately reflects INchviduals at such quartiles, the single figure values for individuals Immediately sbove ang below the
identifiadt employee at each Quartile within the Gendar Ray Gap analysis were also reviewed,

Year Suppormg Information 2Sthpercertile Payratc Median FPavratp 7Sthpertentln Day rate,
2019 Salary £227k £36.44 £65.0K
Total pay £26.1k E40.8k E75 5k

Relative spend onpay
The chart below shows both the dividends distributed in the year and the total cost of remuneration in the Group.

Relative importance of spend on pay €m

600 ) B ' 5267

500?_ L 4022

4000

2000

1000

o 2018 e T 2018 2019

Diswiputed by way of dividengs Dverall expenditure on

Femuneration for ag employees

For more details on dwvidends and expenditure on remuneration for all em ployees, please sea Pages 144 and 171 respectivaly,
2019 remuneration forthe Chairman and Non-Executive Directors (audited)

Saiary/fees Benefirs Total
2019 2018 2me 2018 2018 2018
E'J00 £ OOO\ i F'000 €000 £000 E00g
Chairman ’
Gerard Kleisterlee 644 625 g a5 730 710
Semor Independent Director ‘
Valerie Gooding 185 157 7 10 172 167
Non-Executive Directors )
Sanyv Ahuja {@ppaointed v Nevernber 2018) 45 - - - 45 -
Sir Crispin Davis 15 115 9 5 116 120
Michel Demaré (apponteq 1 February 2018) 5 1 17 & 132 25
Dame Clara Furse "o 6 2N
Renee James? B R 17 e 158
Sarmuel Jonah? 151 151 15 12 166 163
Marta Amparo Moraleda Martines @ppointed 1 jure 2017 115 96 18 21 133 -z
David Nish 140 B2 3 24 177 156
Former Non-Executive Directors - o - -
DrMathies Dpier (retiredi 27 Jupy 2015) 38 o . 5 38 120
e B test a0 e 1982 ags
Notes

1 Wehave been advised that for Non-Executre Drrectars, certain travel ang aocommadation EXpenses in relation to aftending Board meetings should be Treated as 2 taxghle benefit The table
above Includes these travel expensag and the Corresponding tax contnbution
2 Salary/fees Include an zddigrat allowance of £6,000 Permeeting for Directors baseq outside Europe.
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2020 remuneration
Detalls of how the Rermuneration Policy will be implernented for the 2020 financial year are set out betow.

As sat out in the Letter from the Remuneration Committee Chairman, prior to reviewing executive remuneration arrangements the Committee
was fully briefed on remuneration arrangements elsewhere in the business. This ncluded a detalled discussion on the structure of rermuneration
offerings at each level of the business and how pay at these levels is determined.

The cumulative effect of these discussions was that the Committee was able to make decisions in respect of executive remuneration within the
context of how, and appreciating the rationale for why, remuneration arrangements evolve across the different levels within the orgamisation.

2020 base salaries
In March 2019 the Cammittee reviewed executive remuneration arrangements against the fellowing comparator groups:

1A EuroTop peer group constituting the top 50 European companies {excluding financial services companies) and a few other select companies
relevant t¢ the TelCo sector; and

2) The FTSE 30 {excluding financial services companies)

Following this review, the Committee agreed that the salaries for both the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer would rermain unchanged at;

— Chief Executive. Nick Read £1,05C,000; and

— Chief Financial Officer, Margherita Cella Valle £700,000.

The average salary Increase for Executive Committee members willbe 1,626 —this compares to a budget of 2122 which 1s based on an average of the
relevant local market budget for each Executive Committes member,

Pension
Pension arrangerments for both the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer will remain unchanged at 10% of salary, in Line with the tevel for
the wider UK population,

2020 annual bonus (‘GSTIP?)
The performance measures and weightings for 2020, are outlined below.

— service revenue (25%);
adjusted EBIT (25%);
adjusted free cash flow (25%). and

customer appreciation KPIs (25%). Thisincludes an assessment of churn, revenue market share, and Net Promoter Score' {(NPS').

Note

1 Theassessment of NPS utilises data collected in our [ocal markets which s validated for quality and consistency by independent third party agencies

The customer appreciation metric was introduced in the 2016 financial year with aweighting of 40%. This reflected cur significant focus at the time
on Customer Experience and Customer Obsession which formed the core of our CXX strategic pregramme.

Whilst custorner experience rernains crucial to our future success, the key ams of the CXX programme are now embedded in our day-to-day
business, As such, for 2020, we will rebalance the performance conditions by equally weighting all measures at 2524,

Due to the potential mpact on our commercial interests, annual bonus targets are considered commercially sensitive and therefore will be disclosed
inthe 2020 Remuneration Report following the completion of the financial year

Long-term incentive (‘GLTI’) awards for 2020

Awards for 2020 will be made in lne with the arrangements described in our policy on pages 82 to 84 Vesting of the 2020 award will be subject
10 the performance of adjusted free cash flow (2/3 of total award) and TSR (1/3 of total award). The details for the 2020 award targets are provided
in the table below {with linear interpolation between points)

Following the annual review of the performance measures which included a review of analysis provided by the Committee’s external advisers,
the Committee decided that, in light of its geagraphical focus cornpared to our own strategic prionties, Bhart should be removed from the peer
group for the 2020 award Full details of the peer group for the 2020 award are provided on the following page.

The Committee further determined that the TSR outperformance range for the 2020 award should continue to be set at the 65th and 80th
percentile equivalents for target and maxirmum performance respectively For the 2020 award, this equates to outperformance of 4 25% p.a
attarget and 8 502 p.a. at rnaximum

Adusted FCF Perfarmance Ad)Lsted FCF performance Vest~gperrentage
(2/3 of "cral award} (eon} Gsof FCReerrent)
Below threshold <15.85 0%
Threshold 1585 18%
Target 1770 40%

Maximum 19.55 100%
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'TSR Performance Vesting percentage
(1/3 of total award) TSRoutperformance (% of TSR elerent)
Below threshotd Below median 0%
Threshold Median 18%
Target 4.25% p.a. (65th percentile equivalent) 40%
Maxirmum 8.50% p.a. (80th percentile equivalent) 100%

TSR peer group
BT Group Deutsche Telekom Liberty Global MTN
Orange Royal KPN TelecomItala Telefonica

2020 remuneration for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
For the 2019 review the fees for our Chairman and non-executives have been benchmarked against the FTSE 30 (excluding financial services
companies). Following the review it was agreed that no changes will be made to the current fee levels which are set out in the tabie below.

Position/role Fee payable £000
Charrman’ 650
Non-Executive Director 115
Additienal combined fee for Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Cornmittee 50
Additional fee for Charmanship of Audit and Risk Cornmittee 25
Note.

1 The Charman’s fee also includes the fee for the Chairmanship of the Nominations and Governance Committee

For 2020 the allowance payable each tme a non-Europe-based Non-Executive Director s required to travel to attend Board and Committee
meetings to reflect the additional trme commitment iInvelved is £6,000.

Further remuneration information

Dilution

All awards are made under plans that incorporate dilution limits as set outin the guidelines for share incentive schemes published by the
Investment Association. The current estmated dilution from subsisting executive awards, including the planned June 2019 awards. is approximately
2.7% of the Company's share capital at 31 March 2019 (2.7%6 at 31 March 2018}, whilst from all-employee share awards 1t 1s approximately

0.3%4 (0.4% at 31 March 2018). This gives a total dilution of 3.0% (3.1% at 31 March 2018).

Service contracts

The terms and conditions of appointment of our Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered office dunng normal business
hours and at the annual general meeting (for 15 minutes pricr to the meeting and during the meeting). The Executive Directors have notice periods
In therr service contracts of 12 months. The Non-Executive Directors' letters of appointment do not contain provision for notice periods or for
compensation if their appointments are terminated

This report on remuneration has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by.

V. Ceedo

Valerie Gooding
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

14 May 2019
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Our US listing requirements P

As Vodafone's American depositary shares are Usted on NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (NASDAQY), we are reguired to disclose a surmmary of any
matenial differences between the corporate governance practices we follow and those of US comparies listed on NASDAQ Vodafone's corporate
qovernance practices are primanily based on UK requirements but substantially conform to those required of US comparnies listed on NASDAQ.
The materiat differences are set out in the following table:

Board member independence Different tests of independence for Board members are applied under the 2016
UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code) and the NASDAQU isting rules, The Board
is not required to take into consideration NASDAQSs detalted definiticns of independence
asset cutinthe NASDAQ Usting rutes. The Board has carried out an assessment based
on the independerce requirements of the Code and has determined that, initsjudgement,
each of Vodafone's Non-Executive Birectors is independent within the meaning
of those requirements.

Cammittees Trie NASDAQ listing rutes require US companies to have a norninations committee, an audit
commitiee and a compensation committee, each composed entirely of independent directors,
with the naminations cornmittee and the audit committee each required to have awritten
charter which addresses the committee’s purpose and responsibiities, and the compensation
committee having sole authority and adequate funding to engage compensation consultants,
independentlegal counsel and other compensation advisers.

- Qur Neminations and Governance Committee is chared by the Chairman of the SBoard
and its other members are independent Non-Executive Directors.

— Cur Remuneration: Cormmittee is composed entirely of independent Non-Executive Directors.

— Cur Audtt and Risk Committee is composed entirely of Non-Executive Directars, each
ofwhom () the Board has determiried to be independent based on the independence
requiremnents of the Code and (i) meets the independence requirements of the Securities
Exchange Act 1934

— We have terms of reference for our Nominations and Governance Committee, Audit and Risk
Comnenittee and Rermuneration Cornmuttee, each of which complies with the requirernents
of the Code and 15 available for inspection on our website at vodafone com/governance.

— These terms of reference are generally responisive to the relevant NASDAQHisting rules,
but may not address all aspects of these rules.

Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct Under the NASDAQ listing rutes, US companies rmust adopt a Code of Conduct applicable to all
directors, officers and employees that cormnplies with the definition of a “code of ethics” setout
in section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

-~ We have adépte‘d‘a Code of Ethics that corﬁbiies with section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act
which is applicabte only to the senicr financial and principal executive officers, and which
is avallable on ourwebsite at vodafone.com/governance.

— We have also adopted a separate Code of Conduct which applies to all employees.

Quorum The quorurm required for shareholder rmeetings, in accordance with cur Artictes of Association,
is two shareholders, regardless of the tevel of their aggregate share ownership, white
LS companies listed on NASDAQ are required by the NASDAG tisting rules fo have aminimurm
quorum of 33.33% of the shareholders of ordinary shares for shareholder meetings

Related party transactions I liew of obtaining an ndependent review of related party transactions for conflicts of interests
in accordance with the NASDAQ listing rules, we seek shareholder approval for refated party
transactions that i) meet certain financial thresholds or (i) have unusual features in accordance
with the Listing Rules issued by the FCA in the United Kingdom {the "Listing Rules),
the Companies Act 2006 and our Articles of Association.

Further, we use the definition of a transaction with a retated party as set outin the Listing Rules,
which differs in certain respects from the definition of related party transaction in the NASDAQ
listingrules.

Shareholder approval When determmining whether shareholder approval 1s required for a proposed transaction,
we comply with both the NASDAQ listing rues and the Listing Rules. Under the NASDAQ
Listingrules, whether shareholder approval is required for a transaction depends on, among
otherthings, the percentage of shares to be issued or sold In connection with the transaction,
Under the Listing Rules, whather shareholder approval is required for a transaction depends an,
ameng other things, whether the size of a transaction exceeds a certain percentage of the size
of the listed cormpany undertakmg the transaction.
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Directors’ report

The Directors of the Company present their report togetherwith the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019,

This report has been prepared in accordance with requirernents cutlined within The
Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Acceunts and Reports) Regulations
2008 and forms part of the management report as required under Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rule (CTRY 4 Certain information that fulfils the requirements of the
Directors' report can be found elsewhere in this document and 1s referred to below.
Thisinformation s incorporated into this Directors report by reference

Responsibility statement

As required under the DTRs, a statement made by the Board regarding the
preparation of the financial statements 1s set out on pages 100 and 101 which also
provides details regarding the disclosure of information to the Company's auditors
and management’s report on internal control over financial information

Going concern

The going concern statement required by the Listing Rules and the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘Code?)1s setout in the “Directors' staternent of responsibility™
on page 101.

System of risk management and internal control

The Board s responsible for maintaining a nsk management and internal contral
systern and for managing principal risks faced by the Group. Such a system s designed
to manage rather than elminate business risks and can enly provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material mistreatment or loss This s descrbed n more
detall inthe Audit and Risk Committeereporton pages 71 1o 76

The Board has implemented infull the FRC “Guidance on Risk Management Internal
Control and related Financial and Business Reporting” for the year and to the

date of this Annual Report. The resulting procedures, which are subject to regular
montonng and review, provide an ongoing process for identfying, evaluating and
managing the Company's principal nsks iwhich can be found on pages 44 to 51).

Corporate governance statement

The corporate governance statement setting out how the Company complies

with the Code and which includes a description of the main features of cur internal
control and sk management arrangements in relation to the financial reporting
process is set out on pages 52 to 96 The information required by DTR7 2.6R can

be found in the “Shareholder Information” section on pages 214 to 220. Adescription
of the composition and operation of the Board and its Committees including the
Board Diversity Policy 15 set out on pages 68 to 70 The Code can be viewed infull
atfrcorguic

Strategic Report
The Strategic Reportis set out on pages 6o 51 and s Incorporated Mo this
Directors report by reference.

Directors and their interests

The Directors of the Company who served during the financial year ended 31 March
2019 and up to the date of signing the financial statermnents are as follows: Gerard
Kleisterlee, Vittono Colao, Nick Read, Marghenta Della Valle, Samwv Ahuja, Sir Cnspin
Davis. Michel Demaré, Dr Mathias Dopfner, Dame Clara Furse, Valerie Gooding, Renee
Jarnes, Samuel Jonah, Amparo Moraleda and David Nish. A summary of the rules
relating to the appantment and replacament of Directors and Directors powers

can be found on page 216, Detaits of Directors' interests in the Company’s ordinary
shares, options held over ordinary shares, interests in share options and leng-term
Incentive plans are set out on pages 7710 96.

Directors’ conflicts of interest
Established within the Company s a procedure for managing and monitoring
conflicts of interest for Directors Detalls of this procedure are set out on page 69

Directors’ indemnities

Inaccordance with our Articies of Associabon and to the extent permitted by law,
Directors are granted an indemnity from the Company in respect of bability incurred
as a resultof theiroffice Inaddiion, we maintained a Directors’ and officers’ Liability
insurance pobicy throughout the year Neither our indemnity nor the insurance
provides cover in the event that a Director 1s proven to have acted dishonestly

or fraudulently.

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4

The information onthe amount of Interest caprtalised and the treatment of tax relief
can be found in notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements respecively.
The remaining disclosures required by Listing Rule 98.4 are not applicable to Vodafone

Capital structure and rights attaching to shares

Allinformation relating to the Company’s capital structure. nghts attaching to shares,
dividends, the policy to repurchase the Company’s own shares, details of Company
share repurchases and other shareholder information 1s contamned on pages 34 and
21416220

Change of control
Details of change of control provisions in the Company’s revolving credit faciities
are setoutinnote 21 “Capital and financial nsk management”

Information on agreements between the Company and its Directors providing
for compensation for loss of office of employment (Including details of change
of control provisions inshare schemes) is set out on pages 85 and 86 Subject to
that, there are no agreements between the Company and its employees
providing for compensatian for loss of office of employment that occurs because
of atakeover bid

Dividends

Full details of the Company’s dvidend policy and proposed final dmidend payment
for the year ended 31 March 2019 are setout on page 34 and note Sto the
consolidated financial statements.

Sustainability

Information about the Company's approach to sustainability nisks and cpportunities
15 set out on pages 3610 41 Also Included on these pages are details of our
greenhouse gas emissions.

Political donations

No political donations or contributions to political parties under the Companies Act
2006 have been made dunng the financial year. The Group policy 1s that no politcal
donaticns be made or political expenditure incurred

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Disclosures relating to financial risk management objectives and policies, including
our policy for hedgingare set outin note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
and disclosures relating to exposure to price nsk, credit risk, liquidity nsk and cash
flow sk are outlined n note 21.

Important events since the end of the financial year

Details of those important events affecting the Group which have occurred since
the end of the financial year are set out in the Strategic Report and note 3010 the
consolidated financial statements

Future developments within the Group
The Strategic Report contains details of Likely future developments within the Group.

Group policy compliance

Each Group policy 1s owned by a member of the Executive Committee so that
there 15 clear accountability and authority for ensuning the associated business
rishis adeguately managed. Regienal Chief Executives and the senior leadership
team member responsible for each Group function have primary accountability
for ensunng compliance with all Group policies by all our markets and enthies
Qur Group compliance team and policy champions suppert the policy owners
and local markets in implementing policies and monitoring compliance, All of the
key Group policies have been consolidated into the Vodafone Code of Conduct
which applies to all employees and those who work for or on behalf of Vodafone.
It sets out the standards of behaviour expected in relation to areas such as Insider
dealing, bribery and raising concerns through the whistle blowing process (known
internally as Speak Up)

Branches
The Group, through various subsidianes, has branches in a number of different
Junisdictions Inwhich the business operates Further details are Included in note 32

Employee disclosures

Vodafone 1s an inclusive employer and diversity 1s important to us. We give full and
far consideration 1o applications for employment by disabled persons and the
continued employment of anyone incurring a disability while employed by us.
Training, career development and promotion opportunities are equally applied for all
ouremployees, regardless of disability Our disclosures relating to the employment
of women in senior managament roles, dversity, emplayee engagement and
policies are setout on pages 42 and 43.

By Order of the Board

dzs

Rosemary Martin
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

14 May 2019
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Reporting our financial performance

Focus on clear, effective and concise reporting

We continue to review the format of our consolidated financial statermnents with the aim of making them clearer and easierto follow.
To help you navigate to information that rnight be important to you, three key mattersin the year were:

Adoption of [FRS 9 and IFRS 15
Future adoption of IFRS 16

We include detailed disclosures in note 1
“Basis of preparation” relating ta the impact
of adopting IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments™
and IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Custormners™in the current financial year and
further information regarding the adopticn
of IFRS 16 "Leases™in the 2020 financial year

?ﬁm

wisiiafons

Soetatons idea Ll

Vodafone Idea

On 31 August 2018, the Group combined its
operations in 1ts subsidiary, Vodafone India
with [dea Cellular Limited, to create Vedafone
Idea Limited, a company jointly controlled

by Vodafone and the Aditya Birla Group

See note 26 "Acguisttiions and disposals”

for further detalls

@ Formore information

e

Financials

"y

F i et il PRI L

£3.5 bitlion
of inpairment
osses

Impairment

Weinclude detallsof the €3 S billion
Imparment charge recorded in respect of the
Group's investments in Spain, Romania and
Vodafone idea in note 4 “Imparrment losses”

@ For more information

@ @ For more information
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Directors’ statement of responsibility

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations and keeping proper
accounting records. Detailed below are statements made by the Directors in
relation to their responsibilities, disclosure of information to the Company’s
auditors, going concern and management’s repart on internal control over

financial reporting.

Financial statements and accounting records

Company law of England and Wales reguires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at the end
of the financial year and of the prefit or less of the Group for that period.
In preparing those finanoial statements the Directors are required to:

— select surtable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
— make judgernents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

— present information, Including accounting policies,
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

~ state whether the consolidated financial staternents have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted for use n the EU and Article 4 of the
EUIAS Regulations The Directers also ensure that the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared m accordance with IFRS
as issued by the Internatonal Accounting Standards Board (IASB?),

— state for the Company's financial statements whether applicable
UK accounting standards have been followed: and

— prepare the finandial statements on a going concern basis unless
1t i5 inappropnate to presume that the Company and the Group will
continue In business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and of the Group and to enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006

and for the consolidated financial staternents, Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation. They are also responsible for the systern of internal contrel,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and, hence,
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Cornpany's website. Legislation in the United Kingdern governing the
preparation and disserination of financial statements may differ from
legisiation in other junisdictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages
56and 57 confirm that, to the best of therr knowledge:

— the consolidated financial statements, prepared 1n accordance with
IFRS as issued by the IASB and IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
of the Group:

— the parent company financial statements, prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice, give
a true and farr view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
of the Cornpany; and

— the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the developrment and
performance of the business and the position of the Group, together
with a description and robust assessment of the principal risks and
uncertanties that it faces

The Directors are also responsible under section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 to promate the success of the Company for the benefit of its
members as awhole andin doing so have regard for the needs of wider
society and stakeholders, ncluding custormers, consistent with the
Group's core and sustainable business objectives.

Hawving taken advice from the Audit and Risk Committeg, the Board
considers the report and accounts, taken as awhole, 1s fair, balanced
and understandable and that it provides the Information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Neither the Company nor the Directors accept any liability to any
person in relation to the Annual Report except to the extent that

such liability could anse under English law Accordingly, any bability

to a person who has demonstrated reliance on any untrue or misleading
statement or omission shall be determined N accordance with secticn
90A and schedule 10A of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000,

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Having made the requisite enquines, so far as the Directors are aware,
thereis no relevant auditinformation {as defined by section 418(3) of the
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's auditors are unaware and
the Directors have taken ail the steps they cught to have taken to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit nfermation and to establish that
the Company’s auditors aré aware of that information.
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Going concern

The Group's business actiities, performance, positon, principal nsks and
uncertainties and the Directors’ assessment of its long-terrm wviability are
setout n the Strategic Report on pages S0 and 51.

In addition, the financial pesition of the Group 15 included in “Borrowings
and caprtat resources” and “Capital and financial nsk management”

innates 20 and 21 respectively to the consolidated financial statements,

which include disclosure inrelation to the Group's objectives, palicies
and processes for managingits capital; its financat risk management
objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging actvities,
and its exposures to credit nsk and quidity risk

The Group believes it adequately manages or mitigates its solvency
and lquidity risks through two primary processes, described below.

Business planning process and performance management
The Group's forecasting and planning cycle consists of three in-year
forecasts, a budget and a long-range plan. These generate income
statement, cash flow and net debt projections for assessment by Group
management and the Board

Each forecast s compared with prior forecasts and actual results

50 as to dentify vanances and understand the drvers of the changes
and their future iImpact so as to allow management to take action where
appropriate Additional analysis 15 undertaken to review and sense check
the key assumptions underpinning the forecasts

Cash flow and liquidity reviews

The business planning process provides outputs for detailed cash flow
and liquidity reviews, to ensure that the Group maintains adequate
liguidity throughout the forecast periods. The prime outputis a one year
liquidity forecast which s prepared and updated on a dally basis which
highlights the extent of the Group's iquidity based on contrelled cash
flows and the headroom under the Group's undrawn revolving credit
faciligy CRCF.

The key inputs into this forecast are;

— free cash flow forecasts, with the first three months inputs being
sourced directly from the operating cornpanies (analysed on a
daily basis), with information beyond this taken from the latest
forecast/budget cycle;

— bond and other debt maturities, and

— expectations for shareholder returns, spectrum auctions and
M&A activity

The iquidity forecast shows two scenarios assuming either maturing
commeraial paper is refinanced or no new commercial paper Issuance
The bquidity forecast 1s reviewed by the Group Chief Financial Officer
and included in each of her reports to the Board.

In additron, the Group continues to manage its foreign exchange and
Interest rate risks within the framework of policies and guidelines
authonsed and reviewed by the Board, with oversight provided

by the Treasury Risk Committee.

Conclusion

The Group has considerabte financial resources, and the Directors
believe that the Group 1s well placed to manage its business risks
successfully Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and accounts.

LTty

Financials

Controls over financial reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and mantaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting for the Group.

The Group's internal controt over financial reporting includes policies
and procedures that

— pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detal,
accurately and farly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets,

— are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions
arerecorded as necessary to permit the preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU and IFRS
asIssued by the JASB, and that receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorisation of management and the
Directors of the Company; and

— provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
ortimely detecticn of unauthorised acquisition, use or disposition
of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Any Internal control framework, no matter how well designed,

has inherent imitations including the possibiity of human error and
the circurmvention or overniding of the contrels and procedures,

and maay not prevent or detect misstatements Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future perods are subject to the nsk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions
or because the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the internal control
over financial reporting at 31 March 2019 based on the updated
Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO?

In 2013. Based on management’s assessment, managernent has
concluded that internal control over financial reporting was effective

at 31 March 2019. During the peniod covered by this docurment, there
were no changes In the Group's internal control over financial reporting
that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to matenally affect
the effectiveness of the internal controls over financiat reporting.

By Crder of the Board

sl

Rosemary Martin *
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

14 May 2019
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Audit report on the consolidated and Company financial statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Vodafone Group Plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

— Vodafone Group Plc’s Consolidated Group financial staternents and Cornpany financial statements (together the “financial staterments”) give
atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Cornpany’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended;

- the Consolidated Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the Eurcpean Unign;

— the Company financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framewerk”, and applicable law); and

— thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Consclidated
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report. which comprise: the Consclidated and Company staterments

of finanaial position as at 31 March 2019; the Consolidated income statement and Consolidated staternent of commprehensive income for the year
then ended; the Consolidated staternent of cash flows for the year then ended, and the Consolidated and Company staternents of changesin equity
forthe year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting poticies.

Our opinion 1s consistent with our reporting to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB
As explained in note 1 to the financial staterments, the Group, N addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion, has also applied IFRSs
as fssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (ASB),

In our opinion, the Consolidated Group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with JFRSs as issued by the JASB,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ('1SAs (UK)) and applicabte law Our responsibiliies under ISAs
(UK are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our repart, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Independence

We rernained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requiremnents that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to Usted public interest entities, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities

1N accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group
or the Company.

Other than those disclosed innate 3 to the Consolidated Group financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the Group or the
Company In the period from 1 Aprit 2018 to 31 March 2019,
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Qur audit approach

Overview Materiality

— Gverall Group mateniality. £250 million (2018. €225 million), based on 525 of three year average
of ‘Adjusted Operating Profit’ CAOP™) for combined continuing and discontinued operations.

— Qverall Company rmateriality: £185 mitlion (2018: €165 millon), based on 125 of total assets, limited
s0 as not to exceed 75% of Group mateniality
Auditscope

— We identified seven local markets, which. in our view, required an audit of their complete finangial
inforrnation, either due to their size or due to their nsk characteristics cormprising Germany, UK,
Vedacom South Africa, Spain, Italy, Turkey and India

— Further specific audit procedures over central functions and areas of significant judgement,
including taxation, goodwill, treasury and material provisions and contingent liabilities, were
performed at the Group's Head Cffice.

Key audit matters

— Revenue recognition — accuracy of revenue recorded given the complexity of systems and impact
of IFRS 15.

— Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets including impairment charges
— Taxahon matters.

— Provisions and contingent liabilities

— Significant one-off transactions

— Accuracy of share of results and valuation of investrments in significant joint ventures including
Vodafone Idea and VodafoneZiggo

The scepe of our audrt
As part of designing our audit, we determined materialbty and assessed the nsks of material misstaternent in the financiat statements

Capability of the audit In detecting irregulanties, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal nisks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related
to privacy, ant-bribery, competition, anti-moneay laundenng and economic sanctions (see page 48 of the Annual Report), and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We alsc considered those laws and regulations
that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial staternents such as the Companies Act 2006 and the UK Listing Rules. We evaluated
rmanagement’s Incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {ncluding the nisk of overnide of conitrols),
and determined that the principal nisks were related to posting inappropnate journal entries to manipulate financial results and management
bias in accounting estimates. The Group engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditers so that they could

include appropniate audit procedures inresponse to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the Group engagement tearn and/
or component auditors included:

— Discussions with management, internal audit and the Group's legal counsel, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulation and fraud,

— EBvaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect iIregulanties, in particutar ther
anti-bribery controls;

— Assessment of matters reported on the Group’s whisttebiowing log and the results of management's investigation of such matters;

— Chatlenging assumptions and judgements made by management in respect of the significant accounting estimates, Including the impact of the
application the new revenue standard, the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets including impairment charges, recognition and
recoverability of deferred tax assets, and provisions and contingent Liabilities related to pending ltigations and withholding tax clams {see related
key audit matter below); and

— ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations or posted
by senior management

There are inherent imitations N the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws ang regulations

15 from the events and transactions reflected in the finanaal statements, the less likely we would becorne aware of 1t Also, the risk of not detecting
amaterial misstaternent due to fraud s higher than the rsk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve delberate concealment
by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.



Vodafone Group Plc
Annual Report 2019

104

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgerment, were of rmost significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current pencd and include the most significant assessed nsks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due te fraud) identified by the
auditors, Including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagernent team. These mMatters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context

of our audit of the finanaial staternents as awhoele, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This isnot a complete list of all nsks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter

Reveriue recogrifiion — 8Ccuracy of revernte
recorded given the complexity of systemns and the
impact of the application of IFRS 15

There is aninherent risk around the accuracy of revenue

recorded given the complexity of systems and the
impact of changing pricing models (tanff structures,
incentive arrangements, discounts etc.).

The application of revenue recognition accounting
standards s complex and involves a number of key
judgernents and estimates

In addition, the new standard on revenue
recognition, IFRS 15, was adopted frorm 1 April

2018. The new standard has a material impact

on the Group. On adoption, Vodafone has applied
the cumulative retrospective method to recognise
the cumulative effect of the transition directly

In equity as of 1 April 2018 Initial recognition has led
to an increase in retained earnings within total equity
of £2.5 billon as of 1 Apnl 2018

Refer to note 1 —"Basis of preparation” of the Group
financial staterments and Audit and Risk Committee
report onpages 711to 76.

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets
including impatrment charges

The Group has goodwill of €23 .4 bitlion contained
within 18 cash generating units (CGUs).

With the continued difficult macro-economic
environmentin Europe and the changing regulatory
environrment globally the risk that goodwill and
intangible assets are Impaired In¢reases. As a result,
impairment charges amounting to €3 2 billion

to goodwill have been recogrused in respect of Span
and Rornania in the current penod.

For the CGUs which contain goodwill, the determination

of recoverable amaount, being the higher of far value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use, requires
judgement on the part of management in both
identifying and then valuing the relevant CGUs.

Recoverable amounts are based on management’s view

of variables such as future average revenue per user,

average customer numbers and custormer churn, timing

and approval of future capital, spectrum and operating
expenditure and the most appropriate discount rate.

Refer to note 4--“imparment losses” and note 10—
“Intangible assets” of the Group financial statements
and the Audit and Risk Committee reporton

pages 71 to 76.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We instructed seven component audit teams in full Group scope to undertake audit
procedures over the accuracy of recording of revenue Including procedures related to the
changes in revenue recognition resulting from the adoption of IFRS 15.

Our audit approach included assessing the design and testing the operating effectiveness
of controls and substantive procedures covering, in particular:

— testing the [T environment in which rating, billing, revenue recognition adjustments
and other relevant support systerns reside, including the change control procedures
in place around systerns relating to materal revenue streams. This iIncluded systems
related to the reporting of revenue In accordance with IFRS 15;

— testing the end to end reconailiation from business support systems to biling and
rating systems to the general ledger This testing included validating material journals
processed between the billing systerns and general ledger;

— performing tests on the accuracy of customer bill generation on a sample basis and
testing of a sample of the credits and discounts applied to custorner bills;

— testing cash receipts for a sample of custorners back to the custorner invoice, and

~ performing tests on the accuracy of revenue recognition adjustments arising from the
adeption of IFRS 15 on a sample basis.

Based on our work, we noted no significant issues on the accuracy of revenue recorded in
the year.

We also considered the application of the Group's accounting policies to amounts billed
and the accounting implications of new business models to assess whether the Group’s
accounting policies were appropriate for these models and were followed

We evaluated the apprapriateness of management's identification of the Group's CGUs
and tested the design and operating effectiveness of controls over the iImpairment
assessrnent process, including incicators of impairment.

With the support of our valuation experts, we benchmarked and challenged key
assumptions in managernent’s valuation models used to determine recoverable amount
against external data, ncluding assumptions of projected EBITDA. projected capital
expenditure, projected licence and spectrum payments, projected long-term growth rates
and preojected discount rates.

We compared the accuracy of histonical forecasting to actual results and we performed
testing of the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow models and challenged and agreed
the inclusion of the key assurmptions to the Board approved long-term plan.

Based on our procedures, we noted no exceptions and consider management's key
assumptions to be within a reasonable range.

We evaluated the impairment charges recorded dunng the year with reference to the
relevant long-term plan including consideration of how local market conditions had
been incorporated in the plan. We performed detailed testing on the impairment charges
recorded, ncluding assessment of the Key assumptions in managerment’s valuation
models included in the long-term plan.

We validated the appropriateness of the related disclasures in note 4 and note 10 of the
financial statements.
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Key audit matter

Taxation matters

The Group cperates across alarge number

of Jurisdictions and 1s subject to perfodic challenges

by local tax authorties on a range of tax matters during
the normal course of businessincluding transfer pricing,
indrrect taxes and transaction-related tax matters.

We focused on matters relating to the legal claim
inrespect of withholding tax on the acquisiion

of Hutchisen Essar Limited and the recognition and
recoverability of deferred tax assetsin Luxernbourg,
Germany and Spain as follows'

Provisioning claim for withholding tax — there continues
to be uncertainty regarding the resolution of the

tegal claim from the Indian authoritiesin respect
ofwithholding tax on the acquisition of Hutchison

Essar Limited,

Recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets

in Luxernbourg, Germany and Spain- significant
judgementis required in relation to the recognition

and recoverability of deferred tax assets, particularly
inrespect of losses in Luxernbourg and Germany
amoeunting to €21 4 billion and €2 7 billicn respectively.

Refer to note 6 —"Taxation” and note 28 —“Contingent
Labiiities and legal proceedings” of the Group financial
statements and Audit and Risk Committee report
onpages 711076

Financials

P

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We gained an understanding of the status of the indian tax investigations angd menitored
changes in the disputes including consideration of external advice received by the Group,
where relevant, to establish that the tax provisions were appropriately adusted to reflect
the latest external developments

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in respect of the recognition and
recoverability of deferred tax assets.

Inrespect of deferred tax assets, we used our tax specialists to assess the recoverability of
losses from a tax perspective through performing the following:

— understanding how losses arose and where they are located, ncluding to which sub-
groups they are attributed,

— considenng whether the osses can be reversed based on the ability to generate profits
In excess of past losses;

— comparing historical forecasting to actual results;
— considenng the impact of recent regulatery developments, as applicable;

— assessing any restnctions on future use of losses; and

determining whether any of the losses will expire.

In addimon, we assessed the application of International Accounting Standard 12— Income
Taxesincluding:

— understanding the tnggers for recognition of deferred tax assets;
— considering the effects of tax planning strategies;

— testing the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow models and challenging and
agreeing the key assumptions in the board approved management plan;

— Inrespect of the Luxembourg deferred tax assets we assessed management’s view
of the Group's Lkelhood of generating future taxable profits to support the
recoverabiity of the deferred tax asset; and

— inrespect of the derecegnition of the Spain deferred tax asset, we assessed
rmanagement’s view of the recoverability period and the probability of losses
being utilised

We determined that the carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 March 2019 was
supported by management’s plans, including intercompany funding arrangements.

We validated the appropriateness of the related disclosures in note 6 and note 28 of the
financial staterments, ncluding the disclosures made in respect of the utiisation penod
of deferred tax assets.
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Hey audit matter

Prowisions and contingent liabilities

There are a number of threatened and actual

legel. regulatory and tax cases against the Group.

There s a high level of judgement required

in estimating the level of provisionng required in certain
of these cases.

Refer to note 1 —“ Basis of preparation”. note 16—
“Provisions” and note 28 — "Contingent biabilities and
leqgal proceedings” of the Group financial staternents
and Audit and Risk Committee repert on pages 71 to 76

Significant one-off transactions

Accounting for acquisitions, disposals and other forms
of collaboration, requires the exercise of judgerments
over the accounting and disclosure for the transactions
specific to the Vodafone india — [dea Celluler merger

Refer to note 7 —"Discontinued operations and assets
and liabilities held for sale” and note 26 — "Acquisitions
and disposals” of the Group financial statements and
Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 71 to 76

Accuracy of share of results and valuation
ofinvestments in sigrificart joint ventures including
Vodafone Idea and VodafoneZiggo

The share of results of equity accounted associates
and joint ventures was mateniat as of 31 March 2019.
The majonity was contnbuted by the Group's share

of the results from Vodafone Idea and VodafoneZiggo

The carrying values of the investrnents in Vodafone Idea
and VodafoneZiggo are assessed forimpairment with
reference to the recoverable amounts.

Refer to note 12 - “Investment in associates and joint
arrangements” of the Group financial staternents and
Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 71 to 76,

How our audit addressed the key audit rnatter

For legal, regulatory and tax matters our procedures included the following:
— testing key controls over ltigation, regulatory and tax matters;

— performing substantive procedures on the underlying calculations supporting the
provisicns recorded:

— where relevant, reading external iegal opinions cbtained by managerment:

— rneeting with regional and local management and reading relevant
Group correspondence;

— discussing open matters with the Group litgation, regulatory, general counsel and
tax feams;

— assessing management’s conclusions through understanding precedents setn similar
cases; and

— arcutarisation, where approprate, of relevant third party legal representatives and
direct discussion with them regarding certan matenal cases.

We used our tax specialists to gain an understanding of the current status of the tax cases
and monitored changes in the disputes by reading external advice receved by the Group,
where relevant, to establish that the tax prowisions had been appropriately adjusted to
reflect the latest external developments.

Based on the evidence obtained, while noting the inherent uncertainty with such legal,
requlatory and tax matters, we determined the level of provisioning at 31 March 2019 to
be appropriate

We valdated the completeness and appropriateness of the related disclosures innote 16
and note 28 of the financial staternents and concluded that the disclosure was sufficient.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting treatment and challenged
management's basis for accounting for the loss on disposal of the Vodafone
India operations.

We assessed the accounting in the Group financial statements in respect of the
Group's Investrment In Vodafone (dea including management’s determination that the
investment should be accounted for as a joint venture

We engaged our valuation specialists 1o assess the valuation methodology n deteronining
the fair value of the Group’s Investment in Vedafone |dea and validated the accounting
on formation of the joint venture,

We reviewed the relevant disclosures in the Annual Report

We obtained a full scope audit opinion from the local auditors of Vodafone Idea.

We instructed the local auditors and performed oversight and review of therr audit work.
This mcluded meeting with the local audrtors and understanding the audit nisks, approach
and results of their work

We challenged management's assessment of the carrying vaiue of its investment
in Vodafone |dea at 31 March 2019 and satisfied ourselves that the recoverable amount
exceeded the carrying value with reference to the share price of Vodafone Idea.

We performed specified audit procedures for VodafoneZiggo and assessed
management’s review of the carrying value of the Group's investment in VodafoneZiggo
with reference to the relevant long-term plan for the business.

We tested the equity accounting of jont ventures and we reviewed the relevant
disclosures in the Annual Report.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.
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How we tailored the audit scope
We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry n which they operate.

The Group operates in 25 countries across twa regions; “Europe” and “Rest of the World” In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the local operations by us, as the Group engagement team, cur component
auditors within PwC UK, other PwC network firms and non-PwC firms cperating under our instruction. Wnere component auditors performed
the work, we determined the level of involvement we needed to have in the audit work at those local operations to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropnate audit evidence has been abtained as a basis for cur opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.

The Group’stocal operations vary In size, with the seven local markets in Group scope (Germany including KDG, UK, Vodacom South Africa,

Spain, ltaly, Turkey and india; being Vodafone india for the five months penod to 31 August 2018 and Vodafone Idea for the seven months period

to 31 March 2079) representing 77% and 70% of the Group's revenue and AOP including Vodafone India, We identified these seven local markets

as those components that, in our view, reguired an audit of their complete finanaial informaticn, due to their size or nsk characteristics. Specific audit
procedures over certain balances and transactions were also performed at both local market component and Group levels to give approprate
coverage of all matenal balances. The Group engagement team visited all seven local market components in scope for Group reporting during the
audit cycle. These visits included meetings with local management, component auditors and review of audit working papers for these components
The lead audit partner or a senior member of the Group engagement team attended the year-end audit clearance meetings for the seven local
markets in Group scope. Further speaific audit procedures over central functions and areas of significant judgement, including taxation, goodwill,
treasury and matenal provisions and contingent liabilities, were performed at the Group's Head Office

Inresponse to the audit sk relating to the accuracy of share of results from joint ventures, we visited the component team of Vedafone Idea and
obtained reporting in respect of the special purpese financial infermation fromits auditor The Group team performed specaified audit procedures
aver the investrnent in and results of, VodafoneZiggo.

Also. audits for local statutory purposes are performed at a further 14 locations. Where possible, the tirming of local statutery audits was accelerated
to align to the Group audit timetable, with significant findings reported to the Group engagement team

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of matenality. We set certain quanitative thresholds for materiality. These, togsther with
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of cur audit and the nature, trming and extent of our audit procedures on the Indmidual
financial staterment Line iterms and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstaternents, both Individually and In aggregate on the financial
statements as awhole,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial staterments

Overall materiality €250 milbon (2018: £225 million. €185 milbon (2018 €165 million)

How we determined it 5% of three year average of ‘Adjusted Operating 1% of total assets, Lirmited so as not to exceed 75% of
Profit CAQP"), for combined continuing and Group materiality
discontinued operations,

Rationale for benchmark applied The Group's principal measure of garnings We believe that total assets 1s the most appropriate
Is operating profit adjusted for a number measure as Vodafone Group Plc acts as an
of itemns of ncome and expenditure as disclosed investment holding parent company rather than
in note 2 of the Group financial statements a profit oniented trading company. However,
Managerment believes that thisis a more helpful raterality levels have been capped at 75% of Group
measure by which shareholders can assess the materiality

underlying performance of the Group.

We took this measure into account in determining
our materiality In additon, we used athree year
average given volatility in the measure year-on-year.

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a mateniality that 1s less than our overall Group materiality. The range
of mateniality allocated across components was between €40 million and £160 million Certain components were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Cornmittee that we would report misstatements identified dunng cur audit above €15 million Group audit)
(2018 £15 million) and £15 milhon (Company audit) (2018 £15 million) as well as misstaternents below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons

Financials ]
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Going concern
In accordance with 15As (UK), we report as follows:

Reporting obligation o o - ) ) Outcorne

We are required te reportif we have anything material to add or draw We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.
attention tc inrespect of the Directors Statementin the financial
staternents about whether the directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going cancern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
staternents and the directors’ identification of any matenal uncertanties
to the Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern
over a penod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements

We are required to report if the directors’ statement relating to Going We have nothing to repoert.
Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is matenally

inconsistent with our knowledge obtanedin the audit.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted,
this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group's and Cornpany's ability
to continue as a going concern For exarnpte, the terms on which the
United Hingdom may withdraw from the European Union are not clear,
and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potentialimplications on the
Group's trade, customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opimon enthe financial staternents does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents, our respensibility 1s to read the other information and, n doing so, consider whether
the other nformation s rmaterially nconsistent with the financial staterments or cur knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent matenal incensistency or material misstaternent, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there 1s a material misstaternent of the financial staterents or a material misstaternent of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matertal misstaternent of this other infermation, we are required to report that fact.
We have ncthing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also censidered whether the disciosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilites described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Cornparies Act 2006 (CA0S), ISAs (UK)
and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below (required
by 1SAs (UKD unless ctherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ report
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken I the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the year
ended 31 March 2079 15 consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements (CAO6).

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Cormpany and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report (CAO6).

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the inforrmation given in the Corporate Governance Statement (on page 52)
about internal controls and risk management systems in relatfon to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures in complance
withrules 72.5 and 7.2.6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA (‘DTR™} is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared m accordance with applicable legal requirements. {CACE).

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained 1n the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstaternents in this nformation CAQE).

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the iInformation given in the Corporate Governance Staterent (on page 52)
with respect to the Company’s corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and supervisory bodies and
their committees complieswith rules 72.2,72.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR (CAQE)

We have nothing to repert arising from our responsibility to report f a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the Company. (CAO6).
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Financlals
The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding

— Thedirectors’ confirmation on page 100 of the Annual Report that they have carned out a robust assessment of the prinaipal risks facing the
Group, iIncluding those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

— The disclosures inthe Annual Report that describe thase rnisks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

— The directors’ explanation on page 50 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that
the Group will be able to continue In operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the period of tharr assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualfications or assumptions

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out arobust assessment of the principal risks
facing the Group and statement in relation to the longer-term wiability of the Group. Our review was substantially less i scope than an audit and only
consisted of making inquiries and considenng the directors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are In alignment
with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”); and considening whether the statements are consistent with the
knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, (Listing Rules).

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing te report in respect of cur responsibility to report when'

— The staternent given by the directors, on page 100, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Group’s and Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy 1s materially Inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company obtained in the course of perforrming
our audit.

— The section of the Annual Report on page 71 describing the work of the Audit and Risk Committee does net appropriately address matters
communicated by us tc the Audit and Risk Committee,

— The Directors’ Staternent relating to the Company’s comipliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision
of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors

Directors’ Remuneration
Inour opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properiy prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006.(CAD8)
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibility set out on page 100, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view The directors are also
respansible for suchinternal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountng unless the directors erther
intend to liquidate the Greup or the Cornpany or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
aguarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will abways detect a matenal misstaternent when it exists. Misstaternents can anse
from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, ndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econormic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This descnption forms part of our auditors' report,

Use of this report

This report. including the cpinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not. in giving these apinions, accept or assurme responsibility for any other purpose
or 1o any other person towhom this report is shown or into whaose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pror cansent nwriting.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repert to you if, In our opinion;

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

— certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

— the Company financal statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not n agreement with the accounting
recards and returns.

We have ne exceptions to report ansing from this responsibiity.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, we were appointed by the members on 29 July 2074 to audit the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 and subsequent financial peniods. The period of total uninterrupted engagementis S years, covenng
the years ended 31 March 2015 to 31 March 2079.

Arckes K—f

Andrew Kernp (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on hehalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London, 14 May 2019

{@) The maintenance and integrity of the Vadafone Group Plc website is the responsibility of the Directors. the work carried out by the auditors dees notinvolve consideration of these matters and,
accordingly. the auditors accept no responsitility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were nitially presented on the website

(B) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and disseminatron of financial statermnents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

{©) Note that the report set out above is included for the purposes of Vodafone Group Plc's Annual Report for 2019 only and does not form part of Vodafone Group Ple’s Annual Report an Form
20-Ffor2019
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Consolidated income statement
for the years ended 31 March

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distributicn expenses

Administrative expenses

Net credit losses on financial assets’

Share of results of equity accounted associates and joint ventures
Impairment losses

Cther (expense)/income

Operating (loss)/profit

Non-operating expense

Investmentincome

Financing costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the financial year from continuing operations
Loss for the financial year from discontinued operations
(Loss)/profit for the financial year

Attributable to:

—Qwners of the parent
—Non-controlling interests
(Loss)/profit for the financial year

(Loss)/earnings per share
From continuing operations:
—Basic

—-Diluted

Total Group:

—Basic

~Ditted

Notes

1 Amounts for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 were previausly reported within administration expenses

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

forthe years ended 31 March

(Loss)/profit for the financial year:
Other comprehensive Income/expense)

iterns that may be reclassified to the income staternent in subsequent years

Gains on revaluation of available-for-sale investments, net of tax?
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of tax

Foreign exchange losses/fgains) transferred to the income staterment’
Fair value losses transferred to the iIncome staterent

Qther. net of tax

Total itemns that may be reclassified to the income statement in subsequent years
fterns that will not be reclassified fo the income staterment in subsequent years:

Net actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes, net of tax

Total items that will not be reclassified to the income statement in subsequent years

Other comprehensive income/{expense)
Total comprehensive (expense)/| income for the year

Attributable tor
—Owners of the parent
—Non-controlling Interests

Notes

1 For further information an the amount for the year ended 31 March 2019 see note 26 "Acquisitions and disposals”

Nate

Note

2 Information relating to years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are presented under the Group's IAS 39 accounting palicies

2019
€m

43,666
(30,160

13,506
(3,897
(5410}
575)
(908)
(3,525)
(148)
©s1)
%0

433
(2088)
(2,613)
{1496}
(4,309)
(3.535)

(7.644)

{8020)
378

(7648)

625k
(16.25xc

{(2505)c

(o905

2019
€m

(7.644)

(533)
2079

243
1,789

(33)
(33)
1,756
(5,888)

(6,333)
445
(5.888)

W T e

Financials L]

S e s

20318 20{17
46571 47631
@277 (34,576)
13,800 13,055
T 4349
””””””” G118 (5491
(528) (589)
G 47
213 1052
4,299 3,725
32) )
e an
aory (1.406)
3878 2792
Tgre T T@ves
4757 (1,972)
(1,969) (4,107)
2788 (6,079)
2439 ©.297)
349 218
2788 (6,079
15.87c (783
1582¢ (783)
878c (225N
8.76¢ (22.50c

2018 2017

£m <m

2,788 (6,079)

9 2

(1.909) 1,201
80) -

- 4

(339) 110
2,319) (1,085)
o @72

(70) 272)

(2,389) (1.357)
399 (7436

187 (7.535)
212 99
399 (7.436)

Further detals on tems in the Consclidated staterment of comprehensive income canbe found n the consalidated statement of changes ik equity on page 113
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Consolidated statement of financial position

at 31 March
31 March 2019
Note €m
Non-current assets ‘
Goodwill 10 23,353
Other intangible assets 10 17652
Property, plant and equipment 1 27432
Investments in associates and joint ventures 12 3952
Other investments 13 870
Deferred tax assets 6 24,753
Post employment benefits 24 94
Trade and other receivables 14 5170
103,276
Current assets
Invantory 714
Taxation recoverable 264
Trade and other recewvables 4 12,180
Other investments 13 13012
Cash and cash equivalents 19 13,637
38177
Assets held for sale 7 231
Total assets . M2ge2
Equity
Called up share capital 17 4796
Addiionat paid-in capital 152,503
Treasury shares {7875
Accumulated 1osses 116725
Accumulated other cornprehensive Income 29519
Jotal attributable to owners of the parent 62,218
Non-controlling interests 1227
Total non-controlling interests 1.227
Total equity . 63445
Non-current liabilities
Long-terrn borrowings 20 48,685
Deferred tax iabilities 6 478
Post empioyment benefits 24 S51
Provisions 16 1,242
Trade and other payables 15 2938
| 5384
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 20 4270
Financial habilities under put option arrangements’ 21 1844
Taxation Ligbilities ) 596
Provisions 16 13160
Trade and other payables 15 17653
Liabibties held for sale T -

Totalequity and liabllitles U UL

Notes.

3% ek 2008

£€m

26,734
16,523
28325
2,538
3,204
26,200
10
4026
107,660

581
106
9975
8795
4674
24131
13820
145,611

4,796
150197
8463)
(106,695)
27305
67,640

967
957

68,607

32908
644
520

1,065
2843
37,980

8513
1838
541

891
16.242
28025
10999

L asen

1 Financial liabiliies under put option arrangements comprise lrabilities for payments due to holders of the equity shares in Kabel Deutschlend AG under the terms of 2 domination and profitand

loss transfer agreement, the amounts as at 31 March 2018 were previously presented within short-term borrowings

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 199 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 14 May 2019 and

were signed on 1ts behalf by:

;;I \‘—" - :’f’
Nick Read Margherita Della Valle
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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13

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the years ended 31 March

Additional

Share paid-in

capital’ capital?
£m £m
TApnL 2016 4756 151654
Issue or reissue of shares - 2
Share-based payments® - 112

Transactions with non-controlling interests
in subsidiaries
Dividends
Comprehensive expense
{Loss)/profit
OC —before tax
OCl—taxes -
Transfer to theincome staterment -
Other -
31March2017 4,796 151,808
lssue of ressue of sharest - Q741
Share-based payments’ 130
Transactons with nen-controlling interests
in subsidianies?
Disposal of subsidiaries?
Dwidends -
Comprehensive income
Profit -
QOCI —before tax
OCl—taxes
Transfer to theincome staternent
Purchase of treasury shares'®
31March 2018 as reported
Adoption of IFRS 91
Adoption of IFRS 15"
1 April 2018 brought forward

4,796 150197

4796 150197

Issue or reissue of shares® - a7y
Share-based payments’ - 199
fssue of mandatory convertible bonds'? — 3848

Transactions with nen-controlling interests
in subsidianes

Cividends
Comprehensive expense

(Loss¥/profit

QCl - before tax

CCl—taxes

Transfer to the iIncome statement
Purchase of treasury shares'

31March 2019 4796152503

Notes
1 Seenote 17 “Called up share caprtal”

2 Includes share premium, capital reserve, capital redemption reserve, merger reserve and share-based paymentreserve The merger reserve was derived from acquisitions rmade prior

Treasury Retained
shares losses
8,777 (95683)
67 (150)

- (12)

- (3709

- (6297)

- (6297
(8,610) (105,851)
1882 (27)
- 805

- (3561)

- 2439

— 2439
(1,735} -
(8,463) (106,695)
- (224)

- 2457
(8463) (104.462)
1834 ©@2)
- (129

- (4022

- 600

~ B0
{1.246) -
7879 (116725

to 31 March 2004 and subsequently allocated to additional pard-in capital en adoption of IFRS
3 Thecurrency reserve 1s used to record cumulative translation differences on the assets and Uabilities of foreign operations The cumulative transtation differences are recycled to the incomea

statement on disposal of the foreign operation

P

Financials

Equity

Other comprenensive Income attrbutab e

Cursency Pensions  Revaluation
reserve’ reserve surplus*

o m €m €m
30,7141 830 1,227
(1.082) (@272 -
(1096 2749 -
14 2 -
29,655 (1102) 1,227
(1.852) o) -
(1.641) (94) -
(13n 24 -
(80) - -
27,?07 ﬂ({1 ,172) 1,227
27807 Q1172 1227
1477 3B -
{594) (33 -
8 - -
2079 - -

29284 Q209 1227

243

tohe
Other® owners
£m (2l

157 83,375
19
12

2}
(3,709
(7535
6,297
158 (1,212)
(46) (30

4 4

116

273 72.200

14
130

805
(3960
187
2439
(342) 2077
12 o9
- 80
1735)
(57) 67.640
27
- 2457
(30} 63900
- 1
199
3848

(330

(129)
@022)
6,333
8020}

(337

(55
2,079
(1,246)

290
@7

aory

Non-
centrolling
Interests
€m

1811

17
@10
99
218
(129

m
(769)
(306)

212

349
(140}

3

967

81
1043

34

207
602)
445
376
73
@

)

Total
equity
£m

85136
19
12

5
4119
(7436)
6079
{1,333)

(28)

4

2

73,719
4
130

11Me
(769)
@4,267)
399
2788
2.217)
92)
80}
{1735)
68,607
202
2538
70943
)
233
3,848

178
@624
(5888)
(7644)
(264
(59
2079

(1.246)

213 62218 1227 63445

4 The revaluation surplus denves from acquisiions of subsidianies made befare the Group's adoption of IFRS 3 {Revised} en 1 Apnl 20110 and comprises the amounts anising from recogmising the

Group's pre-existing equity interest in the acquired subsidiary at fairvalue

5 Princmpally includes the impact of the Group's cash flow hedges with €71,555 mitlion net gain deferred to other comprehensive mcome dunng the year (2018 £1811 milion net loss,
2077 €787 milben netgan) and £1,276 million net gain (2018 €7 460 millon net loss, 2017 £654 millicn net gain) recycled to the Incorme statement These hedges pnmarily relate to foreign
exchange exposure on fixed barrowings, with interest cash flows unwinding to the Income statement over the life of the hedges and any foreign exchange on neminal balancesimpacting
mcome statement at maturity (up to 2056) See note 21 "Caprital and financial nsk management " for further details

& Movements nclude the re-issue of 7291 million shares (€1.742 million} in August 2017 and 7991 million shares 1,742 million) n February 2019 to satisfy the two tranches of the Mandatory

Convertible Bond 1ssued in February 2016
7 Includes €4 million tax credit 2018 €8 million charge, 2017 £3 million credit)

8 Seenocte 12 'Investmentsin associates and jont arrangerments” for further details
9 Relatestothe disposal of Vodafone Qatar See note 26 “Acauisitions and disposals” for further details
10 Represents the irrevocable and non-discretionary share buyback prograrnme announced on 25 August 2017

11 Impact an adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 1500 1 Apnl 2018 Seenote 1

12 Includes the equity component of the subordinated mandatory convertible bonds which were cormpound instruments issued in the year ended 31 March 201G
13 Represents the rrevocable and non-discretionary share buyback programme announced on 28 January 2019
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the years ended 31 March

Inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of interests n subsidianes, net of cash acquired
Purchase of interests m associates and joint ventures
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments

Disposal of interests in subsidianes, net of cash disposed
Disposa! of interests in asscciates and joint ventures
Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Disposal of investments

Dividends recewed from associates and joint ventures
Interest recaved

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

lssue of ordinary share capital and reissue of treasury shares
Net moverment in short-term borrewings

Proceeds from issue of long-term borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Purchase of treasury shares

Issue of subordinated mandatory convertible bonds’

Equity dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries
Other transacticns with non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries
Other movernents in loans with associates and joint ventures
Interest paid?

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Tax on financing activities

Inflow /(outflow) from financing activities

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year
Exchange gan/(loss) on cash and cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents at end of the financlal year

Note
1 Seenote 20 "Barrowings and capital resources’ for further details

Mote

8

17

19

\.;19- -

2019
€m

12,980

&7
(3098
{5053)
{3,629

42
43
2269
498
622
@72

(9217

7
(547

14,681
6.180)
“4rs)
3,848
4064}
(584
221
42
(1.297)
(779)

4437
8,200

5.394
"

13,605

2013
€m

13,600

)
(33
(3,246
@917)
(3501
239
115
41
1,250
489
378
(247)
(9,841)

20
(534
4,440
(4.664)
(1,766}
(3920)
3100
1097
(194)
(9971
(302)
(110}
(7.234)

(3,475)

9302
(433)

. 34

an7
€m

14,223

28
499
(2,576)
6,285)
(2219
2
4
43
3597
433
434
(2,327)
8,425

25
1,293
7326

(9.267}

(3.714)
413}

5

70
(1,264
(3.157)

(5,096)
(3,296)

12911
(313)
. 5302

2 Amountfor 2019 mcludes £131 million of cash outflow on dervative financial nstruments for the share buyback related to the second tranche of the mandatory convertible bond that matured
dunngthe year Amount for 2018 includes €140 million of cash inflaw on dervative financialinstruments for the share buyback related to the first tranche of the mandatary convertible bond

that matured duringthe year
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements Fancint

1. Basis of preparation

This section describes the critical accounting judgements and estimates that management has identified

as having a potentially material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements and sets out our
significant accounting policies that relate to the financial staternents as a whole. Where an accounting policy
is generally applicable to a specific note te the financial statements, the policy is described within that note.
We have also detaited below the new accounting pronouncements that we will adopt in future years and our
current view of the impact they will have on cur financial reporting.

The consclidated financial staternents are prepared in accordance with Internationai Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board CIASB") and are also prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the European Union (EUY),
the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU 1AS Regulations. The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Vodafone Group Picis incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales (registration number 1833679) The registered address of the Cormpany
15 Vodafone House, The Connection, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 2FN, England.

IFRS requires the Directors to adopt accounting policres that are the most appropnate to the Group's circumstances. These have been applied
consistently to all the years presented, unless ctherwise stated In determining and applying accounting policies, Directors and management are
reguired to make Judgements and estimates in respect of iterns where the choice of specific policy, accounting judgement, estimate or assumption
to be followed could matenally affect the Group's reported financial position, results or cash flows and disclosure of contingent assets or iiabilities
during thereporting period; it may later be deterrmned that a different choice may have been more appropriate.

The Group's critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estirnation uncertainty are detalled below, Actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates, The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised i the
penod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that pericd; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Managerant regularly reviews, and revises as necessary, the accounting judgements that significantly impact the amounts recogrised in the
financial statements and the estmates that are considered to be “critical estimates” due to ther potential to give rise to matenal adjustments
inthe Group's financial staternents in the year to 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019, management has identified critical judgemnents in respect
of revenue recagnition, the accounting for tax disputes in India, the classification of joint arrangements and whether to recognise prowvisions

or to disclese contingent liabilites In additicn, managemenrt has identified criticat accounting estirmates in relation to the recovery of deferred tax
assets, post employment benefits and impairments; estimates have also been identified that are not considered to be criticalin respect of the
allocation of revenue to goods and services, the useful economic Lives of finite lived intangibles and property, plant and equipment

The majority of the Group's provisions are either long term in nature (such as asset retirement obligations) or relate to shorter term liabiities (such
as those relating to restructuring and property) where there is Nt considered to be & significant risk of miatenal adjustrment in the next financal
year. Critical jJudgernents are exercised in respect of tax disputes in india, including the cases relating to our acquisition of Hutchison Essar Limited
(Vodafone India).

These critical accounting judgements, estimates and related disclosures have been discussed with the Group's Audit and Risk Committes

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Revenue recognition

Revenue recogntion under IFRS 15 15 significantly maore complex than under previous reporting requirements and necessitates the collation and
processing of very large amounts of data and the increased use of managerment judgements and estimates to produce financial information,
The most significant accounting judgements and source of estimation uncertainty are disclosed below:.,

Gross versus net presentation

If the Group has control of goods or services when they are delivered to a custorner, then the Group 1s the principalin the sale to the custormer,
otherwise the Group is acting as an agent. Whether the Group 15 considered to be the principal or an agent in the transaction depends on analysis

by management of both the legal form and substance of the agreement between the Group and its business partners; such jJudgements impact the
amount of reported revenue and operating expenses (see note 2 “Revenue disaggregation and segmental analysis”) but do not impact reported
assets, labilities or cash flows. Scenanos requinng Judgement to determine whether the Group s a principal or an agent include, for example, those
where the Group delivers third-party branded services (such as premium music or TV content) to customers.

Allocation of revenue to goods and services provided to customers

Revenue 1s recognised when goods and services are delivered to customers (see note 2). Goods and services may be delivered to a customer

at dfferent times under the sarme contract, hence itis necessary to allocate the amount payable by the custorner between goods and services

on a relative standalone selling price basis’ this requires the identification of performance obligations (obligations’) and the determimation

of standalone selling prices for the identified obligations The determination of obligations is, for the primary goods and services sold by the
Group, not considered to be a critical accounting judgerment; the Group's policy on identifying obligations i disclosed in note 2. The determination
of standalone selling prices for identified obligations 1s discussed below

Itis necessary 1o estimate the standalone price when the Group does not sell equivalent goods or senaces in similar crcumstances on a standalone
basis When estimating the standalone price the Group maximises the use of external inputs: methods for estimating standalone prices Include
deterrnining the standalone pnce of similar goods and services sold by the Group, observing the standalone prices for similar goods and services
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when sold by third parties or using a cost-plus reasonable margin approach fwhich 1s sormetimes the case for handsets and other equipment).
Where it s not possible to reliably estirnate standalone prices due to lack of observable standalone sales or highly variable pricing, which

1s sometimes the case for services, the standalone price of an obligation may be determined as the transaction price less the standalone prices

of ather abligations in the contract. The standalone price determined for obligations materially impacts the allocation of revenue between
obligaticns and impacts the timing of revenue when obligations are provided to customers at different times — for example, the allocation of revenue
between handsets, which are usually delivered up-front, and services which are typically delivered over the contract period. However, there is not
considered to be a significant nsk of matenial adjustment to the carrying value of contract-related assets or liabilities in the 12 rmonths after the
balance sheet date If these estirates were revised,

Taxation
The Group's tax charge on ordinary activities 1 the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the Group's total tax charge
Involves estirmation and judgement m respect of certain matters, being principally.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
Significant iters on which the Group has exercised accounting estimation and judgement include the recognition of deferred tax assets in respect
of losses in Luxembourg, Germany and Spain as well as capital allowances in the United Kingdem.

The recognition of deferred tax assets, particularly in respect of tax losses, 1s based upon whether management judge that itis probable that there
will be sufficient and suitable taxable profits in the relevant legal entity or tax group against which to utilise the assets in the future

The Group assesses the availability of future taxable profits using the same undiscounted five year forecasts for the Group's operations as are used
inthe Group's value in use calculations {see note 4 “Impairment (osses™).

Where tax losses are forecast to be recovered beyond the five year period, the avallability of taxabie profits 1s assessed using the cash flows and long-
term growth rates used for the value in use calculations.

The estimated cash flows inherent in these forecasts include the unsystermnatic risks of operating I the telecommunications business including
the potential impacts of changes in the market structure, trends in customer pricing, the costs associated with the acquisition and retention
of customers, future technological eveolutions and petential regulatory changes, such as our ability to acquire and/or renew spectrurm licences.

Changesn the estimates which underpin the Group's forecasts could have an impact on the amount of future taxable profits and could have
asignificantimpact on the period over which the deferred tex asset would be recovered

Thie Group only considers substantively enacted tax laws when assessing the amount and availabitity of tax losses to offset agamst the future taxable
profits. See note 6 “Taxation” to the consolidated financial staternents.

Uncertain tax positions

The taximpact of a transaction or itemn can be Lncertain until & conclusion 15 reached with the relevant tax authority or through a legal
process. The Group uses in-house tax experts when assessing uncertain tax positions and seeks the adwvice of external professional advisors
where appropriate. The most significant judgement in this area relates to the Group’s tax disputes in India, ncluding the cases relating to the
Group's acquisiion of Hutchison Essar Limited (Vodafone india). Further details of these are included in note 28 “Contingent liabilities and tegal
proceedings” to the consolidated financial statements,

Joint arrangements

The Group participates in a number of joint arrangements where control of the arrangement 1s shared with ene or more other parties
Judgementis required to classify joint arrangements in a separate legal entity as either a joint operation or as a joint venture which depends
onmanagement’s assessment of the legal form and substance of the arrangement taking into account relevant facts and circurnstances such
aswhether the owners have rights to substantially all the economic outputs end, n substance, settle the liabilities of the entity.

The classification can have a matenal impact or the consobdated financial statements. The Group's share of assets, habilrties, revenue, expenses and
cash flows of joint operations are included n the consolidated financial statements on a ine-by-line basis, whereas the Group's investment and share
of results of joint ventures are shown within single line iterns in the consolidated staternent of financial position and conselidated income statement
respactively. See note 12 “Investmentsin associates and joint arrangements” to the consolidated financial statements.

Finite lived intangible assets
Other intangible assets include amounts spent by the Group acquiring licences and spectrum, custorner bases and the costs of purchasing and
developmng computer software.

Where intangible assets are acquired through business combinabions and no active rarket for the assets exists, the farr value of these assets
is determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by the asset Estimates relating to the future cash flows and discount rates
used may have a material effect on the reported amounts of finte lived intangible assets,

Estimation of useful lfe

The useful life over which intangible assets are amortised depends on managernent’s estimate of the perod over which econamic benefit will

be derved from the asset. Useful lives are pericdically reviewed to ensure that they remain appropriate. Management's estmates of useful life have
arnatenalirnpact on the amount of amorusation recorded in the year, but there s not considered o be a significant risk of material adjustment to the
carrying values of ntangible assets in the year 1o 31 March 202C if these estimates were revised The basis for determining the useful life for the most
significant categories of intangible assets is discussed overleaf
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The estmated useful lfe principally reflects managernent's view of the average eccnomic life of the custorner base and 15 assessed by reference
to customer churn rates An ncrease in churn rates may lead to a reduction in the estimated useful fe and an increase in the amortisation charge.

Caprtalised software
For computer software, the estimated useful Ufe is based on management’s view, cansidenng histoncal experience with similar products as well
as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in technology. The useful life wall not exceed the duration of alicence

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represents 19.2% (2018 19.5%4) of the Group's total assets; estimates and assumptions made may have a material
Impact on their carrying value and related depreciation charge. See note 11 "Property, plant and equipment” to the consolidated financial
staternents for further details,

Estimation of useful Life

The depreciation charge for an asset s denved using estimates of Its expected useful Ufe and expected residual value, which are reviewed annually
Management’s estimates of useful life have a matenal iImpact on the amount of depreciation recorded in the year, but there is not considered

to be asigrificant nisk of material adjustrnent to the carrying values of property, plant and equipment in the year to 31 March 2020 If these estimates
were revised

Management determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on expenience with similar assets and taking
Into account other relevant factors such as any expected changes in technology.

Post employment benefits

Management uses estimates when deterrmining the Group's labilities and expenses arising for defined benefit pension schemes.

Management s required to estimate the future rates of inflaben, salary Increases, discount rates and longevity of members, each of which may
have a matenal impact on the defined benefit obligations that are recorded Further detalls, including a sensitivity analysis, are included in note 24
“Post employiment benefits” to the consolidated financial staterments.

Contingent liabilities

The Group exeraises jJudgement to determine whether to recognise provisions and the exposures to contingent liabibties related to pending
bmigations or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated settlement. mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as other contingent
babilties (see note 28 "Contingent labilities and legal proceedings” to the consolidated financial statements) Judgement 1s necessary to assess the
lkelihood that a pending clam will succeed, or a liability will arise

Impairment reviews
IFRS requires management to perform imparment tests annually for ndefinte lived assets, for finite lived assets and for equity accounted
investments, if events or changes in arcurnstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Irpairment testing requires rnanagerment to judge whether the carrying value of assets can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows that they generate. Calculating the net present value of the future cash flows requires estimates to be made In respect of highly uncertain
matters including management's expectations of:

— growth in adjusted EBITDA, calculated as adjusted cperating profit before depreciation and amortisation;

— timing and armount of future capital expenditure, lcence and spectrum payments;

— long-term growth rates; and

— appropriate discount rates to reflect the nsks iInvolved.

Managemnent prepares formal five year forecasts for the Group's operations, which are used to estimate therr value in use; a long-terrm growth rate
INto perpetuity has been determined as the lower of

— the neminal GDP growth rates for the country of operation; and

— thelong -term compound annual growth rate in agjusted EBITDA in years six to ten estimated by management.

Changing the assurmnptions selected by managernent, in particular the discount rate and growth rate assumptions used in the cash flow projections,

could significantly affect the Group'simpairment evaluation and hence reported assets and profits or losses Further detalls, ncluding a sensitmty
analysis, are Included in note 4 “Impairment losses™ to the consolidated financial staternents

For operations that are classified as held for sale, impairment testing requires managernent to deterrmine whether the carrying value of the
discontinued operation can be supported by the farr value less costs to sell Where not observable in a quoted market, management have
determined farr value less costs to sell by reference to the outcomes from the application of a number of potential valuation technigues, determined
frominputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly or indirectly
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Significant accounting policies applied in the current reporting period that relate to the financial
statements as a whole

Accounting convention
The consolidated financial staternents are prepared on a historical cost basts except for certain financial and equity mstruments that have been
measured at fair value,

Basis of consotidation

The consolidated financial staternents ncorporate the financial statements of the Company, subsidiaries controlled by the Company (see note 32
“Related undertakings” to the consolidated financal statements) and joint operations that are subject to joint control (see note 12 “Investments
in associates and joint arrangements” 1o the consolidated financial staternents).

Significant new accounting pronouncements

Two significant new accounting standards, IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customners” and IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”, were adopted
by the Group on 1 April 2018, The impact of adopting these new standards on the financial staterents at 1 April 2018, and the key changes to the
accounting polioes previousty applied by the Group, are disclosed below within this note on pages 12010 123

The Group's new IFRS 15 accouniing policy 1s diselosed n note 2 *Revenue disaggregation and segmenital analysis™ the Group's previous revenue
accounting policy under IAS 18 "Revenue” s disclosed in note 31 *IAS 18 basis primary statements” together with disclosures of the Group's results
for the yearto 31 March 2019 on an I1AS 18 basts in addition, the segrmental analysis of selected financial data n note 2 “Revenue disaggregation and
segmental anatysis” 1s prepared on an 1AS 18 basis.

Foreign currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which is also the Company’s functional currency, Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financiat staterments of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevalling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabiities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the respective functional currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on the
reporting period date. Non-monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the initial transaction dates Non-monetary iterns measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Changes in the fair value of monetary secunties denorinated in foreign currency are analysed between translation differences and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security Translaton differences are recognised in the consolidated income staterment and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Translation differences on non-rmonetary financial assets, such as investments in equity securtties classified at fair value through other
comprehensive income, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss and are included in the consolidated statement of cormprehensive income

Share capital, share premium and other capital reserves are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction
and are not retranslated

Far the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilites of entitres with a functional currency other than euro

are expressed In euro using exchange rates prevailing at the reporting period date. Income and expense itemns and cash flows are transtated at the
average exchange rates for each month and exchange differences anising are recognised directly n cther comprehensive income ©n disposal

of aforagn entity, the cumulative amount previously recogrused in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ncorne relating to that particular
foreign operation s recognised in profit or loss

Goodwill and fair vaiue adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and abilities of the foreign operation and
translated accordingly.

The net forergn exchange loss recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 201915 £€2,277 million (31 March
2018: €476 myllion gai, 2017: €231 milkion oss). The net gains and net losses are recorded within operating profit (2019: £1 multion charge,
2018.€65 million credit; 2017 €133 million charge), non-operating income and expense (2019: £nil ; 2018: €80 million credit; 2017:€127 million
charge), Investment and financing income (2019: €150 million charge; 2018: €322 million credit; 2017: £28 millon charge), income tax
expense (2019. £7 milbon charge; 2018:£9 million credit; 2017: €1 millon credit) and loss for the finanaal year from discontinued operations
2019; £2,079 million charge (2018 €nil, 2017: €nil). The foreign exchange gains end losses included within other ncome and expense and non-
operating incorne and expense arise on the disposal of discontinued operations, interests in joint ventures, associates and investments from the
recycling of foreign exchange gains previously recognised 1 the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Current ot non-current classification

Assets are classified as current in the consolidated staternent of financial position where recovery s expected within 12 months of the reporting
date. All assets where recovery s expected more than 12 menths from the reporting date and all deferred tax assets, goodwill and intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and investments in associates and joint ventures are reported as non-current.

Liabilities are classified as current unless the Group has anuncanditional nght to defer settiernent of the tability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date. For provisians, where the timing of settlement is uncertain, amounts are classified as non-currert where settlement is expected more
than 12 months from the reporting date. In addition, deferred tax babilities and post-employment benefits are reported as non-current.
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Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average costs and comprises direct
matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition

New accounting pronouncements adopted on 1 April 2018

Cn 1 April 2018 the Group adopted IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” details of the impact
of adoption are provided below. In addition the following new accounting pronouncements, none of which were considered by the Group
as significant on adoption, were adopted by the Group to comply with amendrnents to IFRS.

- Amendments to IFRS 4 "Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”,
— Amendments te 1AS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures™ (part of “Improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 Cycle™;
— Amendmentstc IFRS 2 "Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions” and

— IFRIC 22 "Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration”

New accounting pronouncements to be adopted on 1 April 2019
On 1 April 2019 the Group will adopt IFRS 16 “Leases”, which has been issued by the IASB and endorsed by the EL; this standard will have
asignificant impact on the Group's financial reporting Addrtional infermation on the imipact of this standard is discussed below.

The following pronouncements, which have also beenissued by the IASB and endcrsed by the EU are effective for annual pencds beginning
onor after 1 January 2019. The Group's finanaial reporting will be presented in accordance with these new standards, which are not expected
to have a matenal impact on the conselidated results, financial position or cash flows of the Group, from 1 April 2019,

— Amendments to IAS 28 "Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures™,

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”,
“Improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 Cycle”,

Amendment to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement”, and

Amendments to IFRS S “Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation”,

New accounting pronouncements to be adopted on or after 1 April 2020
In addition, the Group will adopt the following standards, which have been issued by the IASB and although not yet been endorsed by the EU:

— Amendment to IFRS 3 “Definitron of a Business™ and
— Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8 “Definition of Material”

The Group's financial reporting will be presented in accordance with the new standards above, which are not expected to have a matenal impact
on the consolidated results, finanaial position or cash flows of the Group, from 1 April 2020.

In addition, the Group will adopt IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts”, which has been issued by the 1ASB but not yet been endorsed by the EU and
Is effective for accounting penods on or after 1 January 20271,

The Group’s work to assess the impact of the accounting changes that will arise under IFRS 17 is continuing; however, the changes are not expected
to have a matenal irmpact on the consolidated income staterment and consolidated statement of financial position.

IFRS 16 “Leases”
IFRS 16 "Leases” wasissued in January 2016 to replace 1AS 17 "Leases” and has been endorsed by the EU. The standard is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and was adopted by the Group on 1 April 2019

IFRS 16 changes lease accounting for lessees and will have a matenal impact on the Group's financial statements in particular:

— Lease agreements will give rse 1o the recognition of an asset representing the right to use the leased item and a liability for future lease payrents.
The Liability recorded for future tease payments will be for amounts payable for the reasonably certain’ period of the lease, which may include
future lease periods for which the Group has extension options Under 1AS 17, liabilities are generally notrecorded for future operating lease
payments, which have been disclosed as commitments, see note 27 “Commitments”

— Lease costswillbe recognised in the form of depreciation of the nght to use the asset and interest on the lease Labiity which will generalty
be discounted at the incremnental borrowingrate of the relevant Group entity although the interest rate implicit in the lease will be used when itis more
readily determinable. Interest charges will typically be higher inthe early stages of a lease and will reduce overthe term UnderAS 17, operating lease
rentais have been expensed on a straight-ine basis over the lease term within operating expenses (see note 3 “Operating {loss)/profit”)

— Netcashinflows from operating activities and payments classified within cash flow from financing activities will both increase, as payments made
at both lease inception and subsequently will be charactensed as repayments of lease labiliies and interest. Net cash flows will not be impacted
by IFRS 16,

Lessee accounting for finance leases will be similar under IFRS 16 to existing 1AS 17 accounting. Lessor accounting under IFRS 1615 also simiar
o exsting1AS 17 accounting and 15 expected to be materally the same for the Group.
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Anhigh volurme of transactions will be impacted by IFRS 16 and matenial jJudgements will be required i identifying and accounting for leases.
The most sigrnificant judgements in applang IFRS 16 relate to lease identification and the determination of lease term;

- Formost contracts there s limited judgement in determining whethar an agreernent contains a lease; however, where the Group has contracts for
the use of fibre and other fixed telecommurication lines, judgement is required to determing whether the Group contrels the line and has a lease
Where the Group has exclusive use of aline it 1s normalty determined that the Group can also direct the use of the ine and therefore leases will

be recognised
— Lease terms under IFRS 16 may exceed the minimurn [ease period and include optional lease periods where it is reasonably certain that
an extension option will be exercised or that a termination option will not be exercised by the Group Significant judgement is required
m determinng whether optional periods should be iIncluded in the lease term taking wito account the leased asset's nature and purpose and
potential for replacement and any plans that the Group has in place for future use of the asset

The lease terms for real estate, subject to the non-cancellable period and rights and options in each individual contract, are generally judged
to be the longer of the minmum lease term and'

— Between 5 and 10 years for land and buildings (excluding retall), with terms at the top end of thisrange If the lease relates to assets that are
considered to be difficult to exit saaner for ecanomic, practical or reputational reasons;

— To the next contractuat lease break date for retail premises (excluding breaks within the next 12 months);
— Theasset life of the connected operations for leases of flbre and other fixed lines providing internal connectivty for the Group's operations, and

~ Service agreement length for individual customers for [eases of fibre or other fixed lines used to provide senvices directly to individual
end custormers.

IFRS 16 will be adopted with the cumnulative retrospective impact recorded as an adjustment to equity on the date of adoption The Group will apply
the followng practical expedients allowed under IFRS 16.

- Theright-of-use assets will generally be measured at an amount equal to the lease Lability at adoption and initial direct costs ncurred when
obtaining leases will be excluded from this measurement. Existing lease prepayments will also be added to the value of the nght of use assets
on adoption and existing lease accruals wil be deducted,

— The Group will rely on its onerous lease assessments under IAS 37 to imparr right-of-use assets recognised on adoption instead of performing
anew mpairment assessment for those assets on adoption, and

— The Group will not be taking the short term or low value expedients IniFRS 16 for either transition or on-gaing accounting and instead will
recognise such leases on the balance sheel

The Group’s current estimate of the primary pre-tax financial impact of these changes on the consolidated staterment of financial position

on adophion 15 the recognition of an additional lease Uiability at 1 April 201% of between £2.5 billion and £10 5 billion The additional lease liability
does not equal the operating lease cormitment disclosed in note 27 primarily because lease terms determined undar IFRS 16 may be longer than
under IAS 17 and because lease liabilities are discounted under IFRS 16.

The nght of use asset recognised at 1 April 2019 is expected to be slightly higher than the lease lability, as the value of existing lease prepayments
added to the balance 1s expected to exceed the value of accruals and provisions for onerous leases that are deducted. Overall, these transactions are
expected to have no material impact on Group retained earnings.

The impact ori the consolidated income statement for the year to 31 March 2020 will depend on factors that may occur duning the year ncluding
new leases entered into, changes or reassessments of the Group's existing lease portfolio and changes to exchange rates or discount rates. However,
the operating tease charges ncurred in the year to 31 March 2019 were €3.8 billion (see note 3 “Operating (loss)/profit”) and it 1s expected that

a similar amount of lease depreciation and nterest would have been recognised had IFRS 16 been applied In the year to 31 March 2019.

These impacts are based on the assessments undertaken to date. The exact financial impacts of the accounting changes of adepting IFRS 16

at 1 April 2019 may be revised. The Group will issue further details on the impact of adopting IFRS 16 as part of the mtenm financial staterments for
the six rmonths ending 30 September 2019

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments"

IFRS 9 “Financial Instrurments’, was adopted by the Group on 1 April 2018 and impacts the classification and measurement of the Group's financial
instrurnents, revises the reguirernents for when hedge accounting can be applred and requires certain additional disclosures.

The primary impacts of applying IFRS 9 in the current financial period are disclosed overleaf and on page 123.
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Primaryimpacts of applying the IFRS 9 accounting policy

The cumulative retrospectiveimpact of changes to the classification and measurement of financial nstrurnents under IFRS 9 has been reflected
by the Group as an adjustrnent to equity on the date of adoption. The accounting poticies for financiat instrurnents following the adoption of IFRS 9
are consistent with the Group's pre-existing poticy under IAS 35S “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement”, except as set out below

— Certain other cash and cash equivalent and short term investment amounts previously recerded at amertised cost are now classified as fair value
through profit and loss CFVPL) The carrying values of these assets approximated to fair value and therefcre there is no material impact from
this reclassification.

— The carrying values of trade recevables and contract assets are reduced by the lifetime estimated future credit losses at the date of initial
recognition where previously credit losses were not recogrised on such assets untit there was an indicator of impairment, such as a payment
default (see page 122 for further information relating to expected credit losses recognised on adoption of IFRS G)

— When the Group establishes a practice of selling recevables from time to time these portfolics, which were previously recorded at amortised cost,
are recorded at far value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCT), the impact of this remeasurement 1s not material (see note 14 “Trade
and other receivables”).

Whilst hedge accounting requirements are revised under IFRS 9, these result in nc material changes to the Group's hedge accounting (see note 21
“Capital and financial nsk rmanagement™).

On the date of initial application, 1 April 2018, the Group assessed which business models apply to the financial assets and financiat labilities held
by the Group and has classified its financial Instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories The main effects resulting from this reclassification
are detailed in the table below with the impact on the carrying amounts relating solely to the recognition of less allowances:

31 March 2018 1 April 2018 21 March 2018 Imzactof 1ApTL2018
Tieasurement caleqory measurement category Carryng value adoptionof Carrying value
(las 3oy UFRS 9 (A5 33} IFRS9 (FRS )
Notes £m £ £m
Financial assets
Otherinvestments 13
Equity secunties? Avallable for sale FvOCI 47 - 47
Long term debt securties Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 3157 (12) 3145
Short term bond and debt securtties Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 830 - 830
Short term bond and debt securities FVTRL FVTPL 1974 - 1974
Shaort term bond and debt securties® Loans and receivables  FVTPL 175 - 175
Managed investments funds FVTPL FVTPL 3087 - 3087
Managed investments funds® Loans and receivables FVTPL 804 - 804
Other investrnents —restricted deposits® Loans and receivables  FVTPL 817 - 817
Other investments — restricted depoesits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 565 - 565
Other investments — public debt and bonds FVTPL FVTPL 543 - 543
Trade and other receivables 14
Trade recevables* Loans and receivables Amortised cost 5402 (1,047} 4,355
Trade recevables? i oans and recevables  FVOCI - 877 877
Otherrecenvables®> Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 5970 7N 5899
Denvative financial Instruments FYTPL FVTPL 2629 - 2629
Cash and cash equivalents 19
Cash atbank and in hand Loans and recevables  Amortised cost 2924 - 2924
Money Market funds® Loans and recavables FVTPL 2477 - 2477
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 15
Trade and other payables Loans andrecevables Amortised cost 16.702 - 16702
Derivative financial nstruments FYTPL FVTPL 2,383 — 2383
Borrowings 20 Loans and receivables  Armortised cost 43259 - 43259
(253)
Notes

1 UnderlAS 39, assets classified as held for trading and available-far-sale were stated at fairvalue Where secunties were held for trading purposes. gans and losses ansing from changes in far
value were includedin net profit or loss for the penod For avallable-for-sale investments, gains and losses ansing from changes in fair vatue were recogrsed directly in other comprehensive
Income, until the security was disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or less previcusly recognised in other cornprehensivencome, deterrnined using the
weighted average cost methoed, would be included in the net profit or loss for the penod Other assets classified as loans and receivables were stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less any impairment
These are nvestments in other companies

[ECRAN)

value and there 1sng Impacton transiton

Investments reclassified from loans and receivabies to far value through profit and loss as the returns do not represent solely payment of prinaipal and interest Far value approxmates carrying

4 Trade and other recevables classified asloans and recevables under IAS 39 were measured at amartised cost The €241 million reduction in carrying value on adoption of {FRS 9relates
t0 €220 million in current assets and £21 million In non-current assets, See page 123

owen

The impact of adoption of IFRS 9 relates to cantract asset balances
Money marketfunds reclassified from loans and receivables to fair value through profitand loss as the returns onthe funds do not represent solety payment of principal and interest Fair value
3pproxmates carrying value and there 1s no 1mpact on transition
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1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Provisions for receivables, reflecting lifetme expected creditlosses from the date of first recogrution, have increased The application of FRS 9
resutted in additionalimpairment allowances at T Apnl 20718 as follows'

€m

Loss allowance at 31 March 2018 under JAS 39 1,249
Recognition of additional allowance on trade and other receivables at 1 April 2018 264
Loss allowance on contract assets recognised on adoption of IFRS 151 78
Release of allowance for trade receivables reclassified to fair value through OCI (23}
Loss allowance at 1 April 2018 under IFRS 9' 1,568
Note

1 Theloss allowance on contract assets recognised on adoption of iIFRS 15 has increased to €78 million from €34 mullion disclosed In the condensed consolidated financial statements for the
period ended 30 September 2018, pubbished on 13 November 2018 As aresult, the total loss allowance at 1 April 2018 has increased from £1,524 million previously reported to £1,568 million
The carrying value of contract assets and recervables at 1 Apnl 201815 unchanged from that previously reported

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” was adopted by the Group on 1 April 2018 with the cumulative retrospective impact reflected
as an adjustment to equity on the date of adoption; the Group has not applied any other expedients inrelation to the adoption or ongoing
application of IFRS 15.

The primary impacts of applying IFRS 15 in the current financial period are disclosed below, on page 123 andin note 31 *1AS 18 basis
primary statements”.

Prmary impacts of applying the IFRS 15 accounting policy
The primary wmpacts of applying the IFRS 15 (current’} accounting policy in place of the accounting policy applied in the annual report and accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the ‘previous policy’) are’

— Under the previous policy, revenue allocated to obligations was restncted to the amount receivable without the detivery of addivonal goods
or services, this restriction no longer applies under the current policy. The primary impact is that revenue allocated to equipment typically
increases and revenue subsequently recognised for service delivery during the contract period typically decreases when the Group sells
subsidised devices, such as handsets, together with artime service agreements. The recognition of additional up-front unbilled equipment
revenue is the primary driver for the ncrease in the contract asset value recorded under IFRS 15 (see page 123 and n note 14 “Trade and
other receivables™).

— Under the current policy, direct and mcremental contract acquisition costs, such as commissions, are typically recognised in expenses over the
related contract period; this generally leads to the later recognition of charges for such costs compared with the previous policy. The amounts
of contract acquisition costs deducted from revenue as they are considered to relate to the funding of customer discounts are higher under the
current policy than under the previous policy. Deferred cantract acquisiion costs recorded under the current policy are disclosed on page 123
and in note 14 “Trade and other receivabies”.

— Contract fulfilment costs are deferred under the current policy when the requirerments for the deferral of expense recognition are met (see
above and note 2 “Revenue disaggregation and segmental analysis™; such costs were generally expensed as incurred under previous policy.
Deferred contract fulfilment costs recorded under the current policy are disclosed in on page 123 and in note 14 “Trade and other receivables”

Adoption of the IFRS 15 accounting policy in the Group's joint ventures and assotiates resutted inan increase to the carryng value
of those Investments,

The key causes of the movernents recorded in the consolidated staterment of financial position as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 on 1 April 2G18 ‘
are disclosed above. Due to the comnplexity and volume of the Group’s contracts, it is not possible to separately quantity each of the underlying
TeasoNs giving nse to the increase in contract assets.

Certain changes have been made to the allocation of, and timing of recognrtion for, equipment and service revenue. As a result, contract assets
have decreased by £6 million, contract babilities have reduced by €100 milion and net deferred tax liabilities have increased by €20 million at 1 April
2018 compared to that originally disclosed in the condensed consolidated financial staternents for the period ended 30 September 2018, published
on 13 Novermber 2018. The increase in equity as a result of adopting IFRS 15 has increased by €74 mithon (from £2,464 mition to £2,538 million)

Further information on the impact of adoption of IFRS 15 on the results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are detailed in note 31 “IAS 18 basis
primary statements”
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Impact of the adeption of IFRS @ and IFRS 115 on the opening balance sheet at 1 April 2018
The impact of the adoption of IFRS S and IFRS 15 o the consclidated staterment of financial position at 1 Apnl 201815 set out below

Consolidated staternent of financial position

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Otherintangible assets
Property. plant and equipment

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Otherinvestments

Deferred tax assets

Post employrnent benefits

Trade and other receivables

Cfwihich: Contract assets
Irade recervables
Deferred acquisifion costs
Fulfilment costs

Current assets

Inventory

Taxation recoverable

Trade and cther receivables

Ofwhich: Contract assets
Trade recenvables
Deferred acquisition costs
Futfilment costs

Otherinvestments

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Total assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Additional paid-in caprtal
Treasury shares
Accumulated losses

Accumulated other comprehensive Income
Total attributable to owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Total non-controlling interests
Totalequity
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Post employment benefits
Provisions

Trade and other payables
Ofwhich Contract liabilrties

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Financial labibties under put option arrangements

Taxation labiities

Prowvisions

Trade and other payables

Ofwhich Contract hiabilities
Other pavables

Liabilities held for sale
Total equity and labilities

31 March 2018
&m

26734
16523
28325
2,538
3,204
26,200
110

107,660

581

106
8975
2257
4967

8,795
4674
24,131
13,820
145,611

4795
150197
{8463)
(106,695)
27805
67,640
967

967
68607

32908
544
520

1065
2843
237
37,980

8513
1.838
34

891
16.242
1678
1346
28,025
10999
145,611

(224)
27

(197)
(5)
(5)

(202)

R T
Financials

ATt peyec ey

Impactof acocpionof FRS9  Impact of adoption of IFRS 15 TApIE2ZAE
€m £m £m
- 1
- T esas
- - 28,325
- 227 2765
(12) - 3192
50 699 25,557
- - 10"
(21 851 4856
7) 500 843
(14) - Ty
- 340 340
- 71 11
17 379 108,056

39 620
- 106
2349 2704
1209 3402
- a8n
1097 1097
43 43
- 8795
— 4674
2,388 26,299
- 13,820

2,767 148175

- 4796
-~ 150197
- (8,463
2457 (104462)
- 27832
2,457 69,900
81 1043

81 1043
2,338 70943
- 32908

142 785

- 520

- 1065

10 2853
70 247
152 38,131
- 8513

- 1838

- 541

- 891

77 16319
38 1716
39 1385

77 28,102

- 10959

2,767 148,175
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2. Revenue disaggregation and segmental analysis

The Group's businesses are managed on a geographical basis. Selected financial datais presented on this
basis below.

Accounting policies

Revenue

When the Croup enters inte an agreerment with a custorner, goods and services deliverable under the contract are dentified as separate
perforrnance obligations (obligations?) to the extent that the custorner can benefit from the goods or services on their own and that the separate
goods and services are consrdered distinct from other goods and services in the agreement, Where individual goods and services don't meet the
criteria to be identified as separate obligations they are aggregated with ather goods and/or services in the agreernent until a separate obligation

15 1dentified. The cbligations identifled will depend on the nature of individual custorner contracts, but might typically be separately identified for
mabile handsets, ather equipment such as set-top boxes and routers provided to customers and services provided to customers such as maobile and
fixed line communication services Where goods and services have a functional dependency (for example, a fixed line router can only be used with
the Group's services) this does not, in isolation, prevent those goods or services from being assessed as separate obligations

The Group determines the transaction price to which it expects to be entitled in return for providing the prarmised obligations to the custorner

based on the committed contractual amaounts, net of sales taxes and discounts. Where indirect channel dealers, such as retailers, acquire customer
contracts on behalf of the Group and receive commission, any commissions that the deater s compelled 1o use 1o fund discounts or Gther incentives
to the customer are treated as payments to the customer when determining the transaction price and consequently are not included in contract
acquisition costs.

The transachon price is aliocated between thedentified obhigations according to the relative standalone selhing prices of the obbgations.

The standalone selling price of each obligation deliverable in the contract is determined according to the prices that the Group would achieve

by selling the same goods and/or services includedin the obligation to 2 similar custorner on a standalone basis; where standalone selling prices are
not directly observable, estimation technigues are used maximising the use of external inputs. See “Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty” N note 1 for details

Revenue is recognised when the respective cbligations in the contract are delivered to the custorner and payment rernains probatle.

— Revenue for the provision of serwices, such as mobite airime and fixed ine broadband, 1s recognised when the Group prowides the related service
during the agreed service period.

— Revenue for device sales to end custormers is generally recognised when the device 1s delivered to the end customer For device sales made
to intermediaries such as indirect channel dealers, revenue is recognised if control of the device has transferred to the intermediary and the
intermediary has no right to return the device to receive arefund; otherwise revenue recognition 1s deferred until sale of the device to anend
customer by the intermediary or the expiry of any right of return.

Where refunds are 1ssued to customers they are deducted from revenue in the relevant service period.

When the Group has control of goods or services prior to delivery to a custorner, then the Group is the principal In the sale to the customer,

As a principal, receipts from, and payments to, suppliers are reported on & gross basis in revenue and operating costs, If another party has control
of goods or services prior to transfer to a customer, then the Group s acting as an agent for the other party and revenue in respect of the relevant
abligatrons is recogrised net of any related payrments to the supplier and recognised revenue represents the margin earned by the Group

See “Critical accounting judgerments and key sources of estimation uncertainty”in note 7 for details.

Customers typically pay in advance for prepay mobile services and monthly for other communication services. Customers typically pay for handsets
and other equipment either up-front at the time of sale or over the term of the related service agreement.

When revenue recognised in respect of a custormer contract exceeds amounts recefved or receivable from a custorner at that time a contract asset
is recognised; contract assets will typically be recognised for handsets or other equipment provided to custormers where payment is recovered

by the Group via future service fees. If amounts received or receivable from a customer exceed revenue recognised for a cantract, for example if the
Group recetves an advance payment from a customer, a contract liability is recognised

When contract assets or llabilities are recognised, a financing component may exist in the contract; this 1s typically the case when a handset or other
equipment is pravided to a customer up-front but payment is receved gver the term of the related senvice agreement, in which case the custorner
s deerned to have received financing. If a significant financing componentis provided to the customer, the transaction price is reduced and interest
revenue 1s tecognised over the custorner’s payment penod using an interest rate reflecting the relevant central bank rates and custorner credit risk.

Contract-related costs

When costs directly relating to a specific contract are incurred pricr to recognising revenue for a related obligation, and those costs enhance the
ability of the Group o deliver an obtigation and are expected to be recovered, then those costs are recognised on the staternent of financial position
as fulfilment costs and are recognised as expenses in line with the recognition of revenue when the related obligation s delivered.

The direct and incremental costs of acquiring a contract including, for example, certain commissions payable to staff or agents for acquiring
custorners on behalf of the Group, are recognised as contract acquisition cost assets in the statement of financat position when the related payment
oblgation is recorded Costs are recognised as an expense in ine with the recognition of the related revenue that is expected to be earmed by the
Group: typically this is over the custormner contract pericd as new commissicns are payable on contract renewal Certain amounts payable to agents
are deducted from revenue recognised (see above),
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Financlals
Revenue disaggregation (IFRS 15 basis)
Revenue reported for the year includes revenue from contracts with customers, compnsing service and equipment revenue, as well as other
revenue items including revenue from leases and interest revenue arising for transacticns with a significant financing component The table below
disaggregates the Group's revenuie by reporting segment
Revenue from Total

Service Equipment contractswith Other I~terest segmient
31 March 2019 "Ever:;ls rEVef%L}I: CUSlO"H:: revenzi: reveg;e FEVE,‘H€U:]
Germany 9145 1077 W22 139 29 10390
Italy 3030 722 5752 97 8 5857
UK 4952 1207 6139 56 57 6.272
Span 4203 392 4595 58 16 4,669
Other Europe 4460 529 4989 61 22 5072
Elminations o110 - R ) - me
Europe 27680 3927 31607 405 132 32144
Vodacom 4391 873 5,264 w8 5443
Other Markets 401 - B 4827 29 8 4864
Rest of the World . B402 1689 10091 200 16 10,307
Common Functions 477 37 514 o3 - 157
Eliminations {107} 0 (102} (200) - (302}
Group S %458 5652 42110 1408 148 43666

Note
1 Ctherrevenue largely represents lease revenues recognised under IAS 17 “Leases”

The total future revenue from the Group’s contracts with customers with performance obligations not satisfied at 31 March 2019 is £18.447 mullion;
of which €12,566 million 15 expected to be recognised within the next year and the majonty of the remaining amount in the following 12 months.

Segmental analysis

The Group’s operating segrments are established on the basis of those components of the Group that are evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance The Group has a single group of similar services and products,
being the supply of communications services and products Revenue is attributed to & country or region based on the location of the Group
company reportng the revenue Transactions between operating segments are charged at arm's-length prices.

Segment information is pnimarnly provided on the basis of geographic areas, with the exception of Vodacom which encompasses South Africa and
certain other smaller African markets, being the basis on which the Group manages 1ts worldwide interests.

The aggregation of operating segments into the Europe and Rest of the World' regions reflects, In the epinion of management, the similar economic
charactenstics within each of those regions as well as the similar products and services offered and supplied, classes of customers and the
regulatory environment. In the case of the Europe regien this largely reflects membership of the European Union, while for the Rest of the World
region this largely includes ermerging and developing econcmies that are in the process of rapid growth and industrialisation.

Certain financial Information 1s previded separately within the Europe region for Gerrnany, ftaly, the UK and Spain, and within the Rest of the World
region for Vedacom, as this operating segment 1s Individually matenal for the Group. The segmental revenue and profit of India are included

in discontinued operations for all years reported until 31 August 2018, the date of disposal, and segmental assets and cash flows are included

In assets and Liabilities held for sale at 31 March 2018. See note 7 “Discontinued operations and assets and liabilities held for sale” and note 26
“Acquisitions and disposals” for detalls.

Segmental information is presented on an 1AS 18 {pre-IFRS 15) basis as this Is the basis of the information used for internal deaision-rmaking.
The IAS 18 revenue policy is presented in note 31 “IAS 18 basis pnimary staterments™

Note
1 Previously Africa, Middle East and Asia Pacific {AMAP)
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2. Segmental analysis{continued)

Segmental revenue and profit (IAS 18 basis)

Segment Intra regian

rEVEﬁ[L’: feVEF%L::
31March 2019 )
Germany 10952 24)
Italy 5882 a8
UK 6799 a6
Spain 4688 (24)
Other Eurcpe . o 5a o B
Europe 33442 (18
Vodacorm o " 5660 -
Other Markets 4,8@4 -
Rest of the World ; 10524 0 -
Common Functions T =1 -
Group (1AS 18 basis) . 45484 (e
Impact of adoption of IFR3 15
Group (IFRS 15basis) e
31 March 2018
Germany 10,847 29
Italy 6.204 G0
UK 7078 (21
Spain 4978 (35)
Other Furope 4941 “5)
Europe 34,048 (160)
Vodacom 5652 -
Other Markets 5770 -
Rest of the World 11,462 -
Common Functions 1,408 -
Goup . 469w (60
31 March 2017
Germany 10600 (32)
Italy 6101 30)
UK 6925 23)
Spain 4973 37
Other Europe 6128 (55)
Europe 34,727 arn
Vodacomn 5,294 -
Other Markets 65479 -
Rest of the World 11,773 -
Common Functiens 1390 -
Group 470 am

Regional
revenue
£m

10528
5864
6,783
4664
5087

33,326

5660

4864
10,524
1518

| 45368

10818
6174
7057
4,543

4896
33,888
5652
5770
11,462
1408

47713

Inter-region
revenue
&m

(26
©@
0

@

28)
®7)

®
s}

Qn

(194)

G0

(8
3
M
(2}

a0

(40)
(N

(25

(32)
(1)

o asn

(21
m
G
()]
)]

G4)

(14

(14)

34)

B

Group
revenye
£€m

10902
5,855
6763
4,660
5059

33,239
5654
4849

10,50%
1324
45066
(1,4000

10,800
6171
7050
4941
4886

33,848
5685
5,743

11,430

1293

46571

10,547
6,070
£.896
4933
6068

34,516
5,294
6465

1,759
1356

L A8y

Adjusted
ERITDA
im

4098
2189
1527
1079
1628

10521

2155
1395

_ 3550
68
14139

4010
2329
1762
1420
1515
11,036
2,203
1.554
3,757
(56

. W77

3617
2,229
1212
1,360
1865
10,283
2,063
1791
3,854
12

For the years ending 31 March 2019, 2018 and 2017 total revenue recorded in respect of the sale of goeds was €5,524 million, £4,718 million and

£4029 mitkion respectively
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The Group's measure of segment profit, adjusted EBITDA, excludes depreciation, amartisation, impairment loss, restructuning costs, loss on disposal
of fixed assets, the Group’s share of results in associates and joint ventures and other Income and expense. A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA

to operating profit1s shown below. For a reconaliation of operating prefit to profit for the financial year, see the Consolidated ncome staternent
on page 11.

20;9 2017
m £m
Adjusted EBITDA 14,139 14,149
Depreciation, amortisation and loss on disposal of fixed assets 9665 (10,179)
Share of adjusted results in equity accounted associates and joint ventures’! (291 164
Adjusted operating profit C 483 4134
Impairment losses 3,119 - -
Restructunng costs (486} {156) 415)
Amortisation of acquired custorner based and brandintangible assets {583} (974) (1.046)
Other (expense)/income ey 213 1052
Operating(loss)/profit (1AS 18 basis) S (260 42909 3,725
Impact of adoption of IFRS 152 ’ (688
Operatingloss(IFRS 15 basis) e § . 5D

T
Nate

1 Share of 3djusted resultsin equity accounted associates and joint ventures excludes amortisation of acquired customer bases and brand Intangible assets, restructunng costs and other

costs of €0 6billon (2018 €0 4 billion, 2017 £07 bullen) which are Included in smoriisation of acquired customer base and brand intangible assets, restructunng costs and other ncome and
expenserespectively

2 Seenote 31 "IAS 18 basis prmary statements” for further details
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2.Segmental analysis (continued)

Segmental assets and cash flow (IAS 18 basis)

31 March 2019
Germany

italy

UK

Spain

Other Europe

Europe

Vodacom

Other Markets

Rest of the World
Common Functions
Group (IAS 18 basis)
Impact of adoption of IFRS 15

Group (FRS13basis)

31 March 2018
Germany

laly

UK

Spain

QOther Europe
Europe

Vodacom

Other Markets
Rest of the World
Common Functions
Group

31 March 2017
Germany

Italy

LK

Spain

Other Europe
Europe

Vodacomn

Other Markets
Rest of the World
Common Functions
Group

Notes

1 Comprises goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Non current

assets'
€m

24529
1031
7405
7730
7210
57,905
5,503
3429

8932
. 208
68,846

(409)

68437

25444
9232
7465

10576
7441

60,158
5841
3.607

9,448
1976

758

26,694
8157
8210
11,035
7574
62,670
6,039
5778
11.817
1,937

76424

Capital
expenditure?
im

1816
784
804
813
775
4,992
810
626

1436

LT
7227

7227

1673
797
BBY
863
710

4932
763
729

1,492
897

7321

1,671
793
950
746
878

5.038
736
795

1,531
915

7484

Ctrer
expenditre on
ntangible assets
£m

2
2219
408
216
42

2887

91
34

25

3012

3012

24
629

317
319

359

Depreciation
and
Amertsation
Lm

3017
1,337

1612

1318

1073
ai357 .

758
673

e

9,795

3095
1479
1,600
1371
1092
8,637
776
923
1,699
73

_ 10,409

5,320
1,603
1,768
1378
1,088
9157
738
1153
1,891
38

. noss

2 Includes addiions to property, plant and equipment and computer seftware, reported within nta ngibles Excludes licences and spectrum additions.
3 TheGroup's measure of segmentcash flow (s recanciled to the closest equivalent GAAP measure, cash generated by operations, on page 232

9,795

Imparment loss
£m

(2638
(196)

2854

255

C@sn
-
(3,119)

(406)

(5.525)

Operaiing
free cash flow®
£€m

2425
1552
689
443
861
5,970
1379
i
2,148
11,047)
7071

ron

2147
1607
408
628
788
5,578
1453
725
2178
755
oo,

1,749
1,161
57
344
619
3,930
1,347
947
2,294
(557}
5627
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Detailed below are the key amounts recognised in arriving at our operating (loss)/profit
2019 2018 2017
€m £m £m
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains)’! 1 65 133
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (nate 11);
Owned assets 5795 5963 6,253
Leased assets 5% 47 12
Amortisation of Intangible assets (note 10) 394 4359 4821
Imparment of goodwail In subsiciaries, associates and joint arrangements (note 4) 3.525 - —
Staff costs (note 23) 5267 5295 5519
Amounts related to Inventory included in cost of sales 5886 6,045 6,464
Operating l=ase rentals payable 3,826 3788 3976
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 33 36 22
Own costs capitalised attnbutable to the construction or acquisition of property, plant and equiprment B844) 829 800
Netganonformation of VodaforeZiggo (note 26F o L - . (1,275}
Notes

1 Theyearended 31 March 2019 Included €miL (2018 €80 million credit, 2017 €127 million charge) reported in other income and expense inthe consolidated income statement.
2 Reportedin other income and expense inthe consolidated incorne staterment

The total remuneraton of the Group’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP and other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Lirmited, for services provided to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019115 analysed below.

209 s 2017

€m £&n £€m
Parent company 2 2 2
Subsidiaries 14 14 13
Subsidiaries —new accounting standards! 1 5 1
Audit fees: ) 17 21 16
Audit-related fees? 2 5 4
Non-audit fees: 2 5 4
Total fees e T 26 20

Notes

1 Feesduringthe implementation phase of new accounting standards. notably preparations for IFRS 1S Revenue from Contracts with Customers” mnthe year ended 31 March 2018 and
preparations for IFRS 16 “Leases™ in the year ended 3 March 2019

2 Relates to fees for statutory and regulatory fitngs during the year In addition, the amount for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes non-recurnng fees that were incurred during the
preparations for a potential IPO of Vodafone New Zealand and the merger of Viodafone India and Idea Cellular The armount for the year ended 31 March 2017 pnimarly arose fromwark
on regulatory filings prepared In anticipation of a potential IPO of Vadafone India that was under consideration prior to the agresment for the merger of Vodafone India and Idea Cellular

A description of the work perfermed by the Audit and Risk Cernmittee in order to safeguard auditor independence when non-audit services are
provided is set outin the Audit and Risk Committee report on pages 71 to 76.
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4. Impairment losses

Impairment occurs when the carrying value of assets is greater than the present value of the net cash flows they
are expected to generate. We review the carrying value of assets for each country in which we operate at least
annually. For further details of our impairment review process see “Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty” in note T “Basis of preparation” to the consolidated financial staterments,

Accounting policies

Goodwill
Goodwillis not subject to amortisation but is tested for imparment annually or whenever there s an indicauon that the asset may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately Identifiable cash flows, known as cash-
generating units If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unitis less than the carrying armount of the unit, the impairment loss 1s allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amiount of each assetin the unit Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversible in subsequent periods.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair vatue less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estirmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Management prepares formal five year management plans for the Group's cash-generating urits, which are the basis for the value
i use calculations.

Property, plant and equipment and finite lived intangible assets

At each reporting period date, the Group reviews the carryng amounts of its property, plant and equiprnent, firite Uved intangible assets and equity-
accounted investments to deterrmine whether there s any indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss If any such mdication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unitis estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit 1s reduced to its recoverable amount and animparment loss s recognised immediately in the income staterment

Where there has been a change in the estimates used to determine recoverable amount and animpairment s subsequently reverses, the carning
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years and animpairment loss
reversalis recognised immediately in the mcome statement.

impairment losses

Following our annuglimpairment review, the Impairment charges recognised in the consolidated income statement within operating profit are
stated below Further detarl o the events and circumstances that led to the recognition of the impairments charges is included later 1n this note.

2019 2018 2017

Cash-genetatingunit Reportable segment €m £m £m
Spain Spain 2930 - -
Rornania Gther Eurape T3 - -
Vodafone ldea Other Markets 255 - -
Other ) Common Functions 20 - -~
‘ - -

Forthe year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded aloss on disposal of Vodafone India of £3.420 million, mcluding a loss on disposal
of £1,276 millicn and a foreign exchange loss of £2,079 million which s included In discontinued operations. See note 26 “Acquisitions and disposals”
for further details.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a non-cash charge of €370 million (€2,245 million net of tax), included in discontinued
operations, as aresult of the re-measurement of Vodafone India’s fair value less costs of disposal.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded a non-cashumparrment charge of £4,515 millanin respect of the Group's mvestmentn India
which, together with the recognition of an associated €840 million deferred tax asset, led to an averall €3 ,675 million reduction in the carrying value
of Vodafone India, the results of which are included in discontinued cperations. See note 7 “Discontinued operations and assets and liabilities held
for sale” for further details
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Goodwill

The remaining carrying value of goodwill at 31 March was as follows:
2019 28
€m £€m
Germany 12479 12479
Italy 3654 3654
16,133 16,133
Other 7,220 10,601
23333 26734

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations
The key assurnptions used in determining the value in use are:

Assurnption
Projected adjusted
EBITDA

Projected capital
expenditure

Projected licence and
spectrum payments

Long-term growth rate

Pre-tax risk adjusted
discount rate

How determined ;

Projected adjusted EBITDA has been based ¢n past experience adjusted for the following.

— InEurope, mobile revenue 1s expected to benefit from increased usage as customers transition to higher data bundles,
and new products and services are Introduced. Fixed revenue 1s expected to continue to grow as penetration is increased
and more products and services are sold to custorners; and

— Inthe Rest of the World, revenue 1s expected to continue to grow as the penetration of faster data-enabled dewvices and
nses alongwith higher data bundle attachment rates, and new products and services are intreduced. The segment
is also expected to benefit from increased usage and penetration of M-Pesa In Afnca; and

— Margins are expected to be impacted by negative factors such as the cost of acquiring and retaining custorners
inincreasingly competitive rnarkets and by positive factors such as the efficiencies expected frorm the implementation
of Group Initiatives.

The cash flow forecasts for capital expenditure are based on past experience and include the ongoing capital expenditure

required to INcrease capacity, meet the population coverage requirements of certain of the Group's licences and facilitate

the continued growth inrevenue and EBITDA discussed above In Eurcpe, capital expenditure is required to roll out
capaaty-building next generation 5G and gigabit networks. In the Rest of the World, capital expenditure will be required for
the continued rollout of current and next generation mobile networks in emerging markets. Capital expenditure includes
cash cutflows for the purchase of property, plant and equipment and computer software,

To enable the continued provision of products and services, the cash flow forecasts for licence and spectrum payments

for each operating company for the nitiat five years include amounts for expected renewals and newly avalable spectrum.

Beyond that period, a leng-run cost of spectrum s assumed.

For businesses where the five year managernent plans are used for the Group’s value In use calculations, a long-term

growth rate into perpetuity has been determined as the lower of:

— the nominal GDP growth rate forecasts for the country of operation, and

— the long-term compeund annual growth rate in adjusted EBITDAIn years six to ten estimated by management.

The discount rate applied to the cash flows of each of the Group’s operations Is generally based on the nsk free rate for

ten year bonds 1ssued by the government in the respective market Where government bond rates contain a materiat

compenent of credit nisk, high-quality local corporate bond rates may be used.

These rates are adjusted for a risk prernium to reflect both the increased nisk of investing in equitias and the systermatic nsk

of the speafic Group operating company. In making this adjustrment, Inputs required are the equity market risk prermium

{that 1s the required return over and above arisk free rate by an investor who 1s investing In the market as awhole) and the

risk adjustment, beta, applied to reflect the risk of the specific Group operating company retative to the market as awhole.

In determining the nisk adjusted discount rate, management has applied an adjustment for the systematic nisk to each of

the Group's operations determined using an average of the betas of comparable listed telecommunications companies

and, where available and appropriate, across a specific territery Management has used a forward-looking equity market risk
premium that takes into consideration both studies by ndependent econormists, the long-term average equity market risk
prerniurn and the market nsk premiums typically used by valuations practiboners
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4, Impairment losses (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded impairment charges of £2.9 billion. £0.3 billion, and £0.3 billron in respect of the

Group's nvestrnents in Span, Romaria and Vodafone (dea respectively. The mparrment charges with respect to Spain and Rermania relate solely

to goodwill and the impairment charge with respect to Vodafone Idearelates to the jomnt venture's carmying value. AlLimparment charges are
recognised in the consolidated incorne statement within operating {loss)/profit. The recoverable amounts for Spain and Romanva are £7.1 billion and
£07 bilbon respactively and are based on value n use calculations. The recaverable amount for the Group's stake n Vodafone Ideais £1.6 bilkon and
1s based on its fair value less costs of disposal

Follewing challenging current trading and economic condiions, managernent has reassessed the expectad future business performance in Sparn.
Followng this reassessment, projected cash flows are lower and this has led to an impairment charge with respect to the Group's investment

n Spain. The impairment charge with respect 1o the Group's mvestment in Romama was driven by an increase in the yield on Rornanian government
bonds which increased the discount rate and management’s reassessment of the long-term growth rate applied beyond the five-year business plan.

Vodafone Idea Limited
The Group’s nvestrnent In Vodafone ldea was tested for impairment at 31 March 2019 in accordance with applicable IFRS. Imparrment testing was
considered appropnate as a result of rmarket condinons and declines in the quoted share price of the company during the period.

The market environment in India rernains highly challenging with significant pricing pressure, which has led to industry consolidation but

a significantly lower level of profitability and greater pressure on financing. Management continues ta consider it reasonable ta assume an overall
market and pricing recovery, however the timing and magnitude remains highly uncertain. Accordingly, there are a wide range of potential
outcomes in derwving a current view of future business performance, cash flows and debt financing requirements for value in use purposes.

Management has concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal based on an observable share price s the appropriate basis to determine the
recoverable amount of the Groups investment in Vodafone Idea for the purpose of impairrnent testing for the year ended 31 March 2018, Where the
recoverable amount is less than the investrment’s carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable arount and an impairment
IS recognised.

The investment in Vodafone Idea was also tested for impairment as at 30 September 2018, The share price of INR38.55 implied a recoverable
arnount of INR152 bilbon (€1 8 bition) which was lower than the carrying value of the investment at the same date Anmpairment charge
of €0 3 biilion was recogrised to reduce the carrying value of the joint venture in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Followng the formal announcerment of the terms of Vodafone Idea's rights issue on 20 March 2019, the Vodafone [dea share price went ‘ex-nights’
on 29 March 2019 and closed at INR18 25. Based on information available to management on 31 March 2019, the recoverable amount of the
Group's nvestment in Vodafone Idea was determined based on key assumptions relating to the number of new shares to which management
intended to subscnbe (8.8 billion) and the associated cost under the terms of the rights issue (INR12.5 per share) After taking into account these
key assumnptions and the quoted share price. the recoverable amount of the Group's interestin Vodafone Idea was determined to be INR123 billion
£1.6 billior) as at 31 March 2019,

Vodafone Idea’s share price is observable in a quoted market and is considered a level 1input under the IFRS 13 farr value hierarchy. As managernent
has also considered the observable and unguoted inputs related to the number and cost of the new shares to be issued under the nghtsissue,
the recoverable amount quoted above is considered to be a level 2 valuation under the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.

The recoverable amount is €0.2 bilben higher than the carrying value of the mvestment as at 31 March 2019 and no further changes to the carrying
value orimpairment charge recognised in September 2018 are required.

The carrying value of Vodafone Idea that has been tested for impairment s dependent on a wide range of assurmptions, including the level of market
pricing and the reatisation of anticipated merger-related operating expenses and capital expendrture syrergies. Snoutd any of the assurnptions not
materialise, in whole or In part, these will impact the entity’s expected future cash flows and may result in a future impairment. The carrying value

is also dependent on the ability of the entity to refinance its Labilities as they fall due Should thisnot be achievable, this will impact the liquidity

of Vodafone idea and wilt resuit in a future impairment, in whole or in part, of the Group's investment.

Based solely en the closing share price of Vodafone idea on 13 May 2019, the recoverable amount of the Group’s 45.2% interest would be £0.6 billion
lower than the recoverable arnount as at 31 March 2019. No adiustrment has been made ta the carrying value of the Vodafone |dea joint venture
as this is considered a non-adjusting event.

Value in use assumptions
The table below shows key assumptions used in the value in use calculations.

Assumptions Lised invalue in use calculation

Germany Iraly Spain Romania

% % % %

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate 83 105 93 11
Long-term growth rate 0.5 1.0 05 10
Projected adjusted EBITDA! 29 ©on 92 38

Projecied capital expgndgturgz L ] 165199 122125 171184 123127
Notes

1 Projected adiusted EBITDA 1s expressed as the compound annual growth rates in the initial five years for all cash-generatingunits of the plans used for impairment testing

2 Projected capiial expendiure, which excludeslicences and spectrum, is expressed as capital expenditure as a percentage of revenue in the initial five yearsfor all cash-generating units of the

plans used for rmnparment testing
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Sensitivity analysis
The estimated recoverable amount of the Group's operations in Germany, Italy, Spain and Romania exceed their carrying values by £7 4 billion,
£27 bilbon, €0.5 bithon and €01 bilbion respectively. If the assumptions used in the imparrment review were changed to a greater extent than
as presented in the following table, the changes would, in1solation, lead to animpairment loss being recognised for the year ended 31 March 2019
Change reguired for carrying value to equal recoverabie amount
Germany Italy Spain Romara
pps Pps Pps pps
Pre-tax nsk adjusted discount rate 21 25 0.5 1.2
Long-term growth rate 2.2) 29 on (1.5
Projected adjusted EBITDA! 49) a.a (1.3) 20
Projected capital expenditure” 54 M2 27 .33

Notes

1 Projected adjusted EBITDA s expressed as the compound annual growth rates in the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the plans used forimpairment testing

2 Projected capital expenditure, which excludes licences and spectrum, Isexpressed as capital expenditure as a percentage of revenue n the inibial five years for all cash-generating units of the
plans used for imparrment testing

Management considered the following reasonably possible changes inthe key EBITDA' assumpticn while leaving all other assumptions unchanged.
The associated impact on the impairment assessment 1s presented In the table below.

Management believes that no reasonably possible or foreseeable change in any of the other assumptions included in the table above would cause
the carrying value of any cash-generating unit to materially exceed rtsrecoverable amount.

Recoverable smount less carryirg value

Decrease by 2pps Base case Increase by 2pps

£bn £bn €bn

Germany 42 74 108

Italy 15 27 41

Spain 03 05 14

Romama o6 02
Note

1 Projected adjusted EBITDA 15 expressed as the compound annual growth rates in the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the plans used for impairment testing

The carrying values for Vodafene UK, Portugal and Ireland include goodwilt arising from their acquisition by the Group and/or the purchase

of operating Lcences or spectrurn nghts. While the receverable amounts for these operating companies are not matenally graater than their carrying
value, each has a lower nisk of giving nise to impairment that woutd be material to the Group given their relative size or the compostion of thesr
carrying value.

The changes in the fellowing table to assumptions used in the Impairment review would have, In isolabion, led to an impairment 1oss being
recognised In the year ended 31 March 2019

Chenge required for carrying value to egual recoverable amount.

UK Ireland Portugal
pps A1) pps
Pre-tax nsk adjusted discount rate o7 1.2 07
Long-term growth rate ©9 (14 07
Projected adjusted EBITDA! (1.9 @n 4
P(Oj?cyeq_;agipa{expenditurez . o o 33 o 84 o 3.4

Nates

1 Projected adjusted EBITDA s expressed as the compound annual growth rates in the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the plans used for impairment testing

2 Projected capital expenditure, which excludeslicences and spectrum, is expressed as capital expenditure as a percentage of revenue in the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the
plans used forimpairment testing

VodafoneZiggo
Following the merger, the recoverable armount for VodafoneZigge s not matersally greater than its carryingvalue If adverse impacts of economic,

corpetitive, regulatory or other factors were to cause significant deteroration in the operations of VodafoneZiggo and the entity's expected future
cash flows, this may lead to an impairment loss being recognised
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Year ended 31 March 2018

Value in use assumptions
The table below shows key assumptions used in the vatue in use calculations.

Assumptions used invatue in use calculation

Germany Spair Italy Romana

. % % % %

Pre-tax adjusted discount rate 83 o7 104 a8
L ong-term growth rate 05 15 10 15
Projected adjusted EBITDA! 37 59 2a 26

Projected capital expenditure JesTes  168-AT4 | 12153 119-Ms

Notes

1 Projected adjusted EBITDAs expressed 2s the cornpeund annual grewth rates n the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the plans used forimpairment testing

2 Projected capral expendeure, which excludesicences and spectyum, s expressed as capital expenditure as a percentage of revenus in the nitial five years for all ash-generating umits of the
plans used forimpairment testing

Sensitivity analysis
Cther ihan as disclosed below, management believes that ne reasonably possible change in any of the above key assurnptions would cause the
carrying value of any cash-generatng unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

The estimated recoverable amount of the Group's operations In Germany. Spain and Remania exceed their carrying values by £7.7 billion, €0 3 billion
and €nilrespectively. The changes in the following table to assumphions used in the impairment review would, in isolation, lead to an impairment loss
being recogmsed for the year ended 31 March 2018

Change reaured for carnying value toequal regoverable amaount

Germany Spam Romaria

oS mps pps

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate 20 0.2 1
Long-term growth rate 23 o2 ©on
Projected adjusted EBITDA! 33 03 ©n
Prolecteqvca Qipt:z_l g{and|guyef 163 14 04

Notes

1 Projected adjusted EBITDA 15 expressed as the compound annual growth rates in the initigl five years for all cash-generatingunits of the plans used for mparrment testing

2 Projected capital expenditure, which excludes leences and spectrum, 1s expressed as capital expenditure as a percentage of revenue in the initial five years for all cash-generating units of the
plansused for impairment testing

The carrying values for Vodafone UK, Portugal, Ireland and Czech Republic include goodwill arising from their acquisition by the Group and/cr the

purchase of operating licences or spectrurm rights. While the recoverabie amounts far these operating companies are nat materially greater than

therr carrying value, each has a lower risk of giving rise to iImpairment that would be material to the Group given their relative size or the composition

of their carrying value. The changes in the following table to assumptions used in the impairment review would have, in isolation, led to an

impairment l0ss being recognised in the year ended 31 March 2018,

Change required for carrying value to equal recoverable amount

UK treland Portugal CzechRepublic

ppe pps PpRs pps
Pre-tax risk adusted discount rate 05 06 1.0 31
Long-term growth rate 08 ©n an {4.0)
Projected adjusted EBITDA' 03 0.0 )] “o
Projected copital expenditure® e . el AR 84 189

Notes

1 Projected adjus